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S E R R PR AHARIEE “The Highest
Growth Rate 2008 in Merchant Purchase
Volume, Hong Kong - Winner” & “The
Highest Growth Rate 2008 in Number of Open
Cards in Hong Kong - 2nd Runner-up” °
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Organized the first charity golf day to invite
its customers and partners to make donation
and participate in the golf playing activity. All
proceeds of this activity without deducting
expenses were donated to Caritas-Hong Kong
for their charitable services.

Chinese Mercantile Bank, our wholly-
owned subsidiary, opened the first branch in
Guangzhou to develop Renminbi businesses.
Achieved the awards of “The Highest Growth
Rate 2008 in Merchant Purchase Volume in
Hong Kong - Winner” and “The Highest
Growth Rate 2008 in Number of Open Cards
in Hong Kong - 2nd Runner-up” from
MasterCard Worldwide.

Launched Caritas-Hong Kong Platinum
MasterCard and ICBC Titanium MasterCard.
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e Our staff members participated in the
“Walkathon 2009” held by Caritas-Hong Kong,
in order to raise fund to help the people in need
in the society.

o Awarded the “5 Years Plus Caring Company”
status by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service.
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o Acted as one of the Mandated Lead Arrangers
for a HKD?3 billion syndication loan to The Link
Real Estate Investment Trust.

o EARFLBEITLER VisaHER o
« Launched Yan Oi Tong Visa Platinum Card.
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Launched “Elite Club” welcome time deposit
promotion including high interest rates and
free credit card spending limit with “Elite
Club” MasterCard Platinum Card. Customers
could also enjoy preferential investment fund
subscription fee. It was well received by the
customers.
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Collaborated with the Mainland branches of
parent company ICBC to develop the Renminbi

Settlement of Cross-border Trade Transactions
Service. Our comprehensive, effective and
reliable professional services enabled the
customers to minimize the cost and risk of
currency exchange.

Launched a new golf-themed credit card -
1872 Golf Credit Card jointly with 1872 Club,
a subsidiary of China’s largest golf service
provider Reagle Commerce Technology Co.
Ltd., in order to deliver a host of exclusive golf-
related privileges for cardmembers.

Sponsored and officiated the Caritas TV Show.
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ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company
Limited, our wholly-owned subsidiary, launched
its first flagship “ICBC (Asia) Investment
Funds” which were open for subscription at all
ICBC (Asia) branches. It further boosted our
businesses in Hong Kong. This master umbrella
fund comprises five diverse sub-funds designed
to cater for a variety of individual investment
objectives and risk parameters and it was well
received by the customers.
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Relocated Tai Po Branch provides securities
real-time quote and trading services and
is equipped with “Elite Club” Wealth
Management Centre, in order to serve the
Tai Po customers with a full range of banking
services.
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Solicited various new and second-hand goods
from customers and staff members and assigned
staff representatives to hoist a sales booth in
three Caritas Fund Raising Bazaars for charity
sale of these goods. The raised funds were
donated to Caritas-Hong Kong.

Following the sponsorship to the reconstruction
of a primary school in Yunnan Province in
2008, our staff members made donation again
for the establishment of library and replacement
of student desks for this school. It aimed at
providing the students with all-round learning
opportunities and enhancing the schooling
conditions.
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Acquired a 10% equity interest in HKMEx to
become a founding shareholder of HKMEx.
Signed a loan agreement with General Motors
SAIC Investment Limited, a joint venture
company of General Motors and SAIC Motor.
Opened the new Wong Tai Sin Branch while the
personal banking network was expanded to 44
branches.

Launched “Guangshen Railway Dual Currency
Credit Card” in Hong Kong jointly with
Guangshen Railway Co. Limited and China
UnionPay.
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Company Profile ...

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (ASIA) LIMITED

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (“ICBC (Asia)”), being a group member of Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”), enjoys ample support in various areas such as funding, settlement, information technology and

credit card business.

ICBC (Asia), formerly known as Union Bank of Hong Kong Limited, was established in Hong Kong in 1964 and publicly listed
in 1973 (Stock Code: 349). Over the years, the Bank offered advanced and diversified banking services to its customers. The Bank
changed its name to “Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited” on 21 August 2000 following it became a member
of ICBC.

In July 2001, ICBC injected the corporate banking business of its Hong Kong Branch into ICBC (Asia). By doing so, it expanded
ICBC (Asia)’s customer base, improved its deposits and loans portfolio and also diversified its product mix. Such transfer of
business therefore led to a substantial enhancement of the competitive edge of ICBC (Asia). Since then, the Bank has became the

flagship of ICBC in developing overseas business.

ICBC (Asia) acquired Fortis Bank Asia HK’s retail and commercial banking operations on 30 April 2004. Fortis Bank Asia HK was
renamed Belgian Bank and became a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBC (Asia). In October 2005, Belgian Bank, Hong Kong Branch
was legally merged into ICBC (Asia). In 2005, ICBC (Asia) acquired Chinese Mercantile Bank which becomes a wholly-owned

subsidiary and focuses on RMB banking business.

On 31 August 2008, ICBC (Asia) completed the acquisition of Worldsec Asset Management Limited, which was renamed ICBC
(Asia) Investment Management Company Limited. Being a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBC (Asia), ICBC (Asia) Investment
Management Company Limited provides professional investment and asset management services.

On 3 June 2009, ICBC (Asia) was assigned A2/Prime-1 long-term/short-term deposit ratings and C-Bank Financial Strength Rating
(BFSR) by Moody’s Investors Service.

With the nationwide branch network, leadership and expertise provided by ICBC, ICBC (Asia) will continue to offer a range of
banking and financial services, including various types of deposits and loans, trade finance, remittance, settlement, commercial and
industrial finance, syndicated loans, inward and outward bills of exchange, China business advisory and financial services, asset

management services, securities business, trustee services and bullion brokerage services as well as insurance agency services.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 3
Annual Report 2009
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Corporate Information ...0"._.. .. ..

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Jiang Jianqing (Chairman) COMMITTEE
Wang Lili (Vice Chairlady) Chen Aiping
Chen Aiping (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer) (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer & Chairman)
Hu Hao (Non-executive Director) Hu Hao (Non-executive Director)
Wong Yuen Fai (Director & Deputy General Manager) Wong Yuen Fai (Director & Deputy General Manager)
Zhang Yi (Director & Deputy General Manager) Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.B.S.,J.P.
Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.B.S.,J.P. (Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director) Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD
Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Independent Non-executive Director) (Independent Non-executive Director)
Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD

(Independent Non-executive Director) SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chen Aiping (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
COMPANY SECRETARY Wong Yuen Fai
Tsang Mei Kuen (Director & Deputy General Manager)
Zhang Yi (Director & Deputy General Manager)

AUDIT COMMITTEE Fung Siu Ming
Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.B..,].P. (Deputy General Manager & Chief Risk Officer)

(Independent Non-executive Director & Chairman) Zong Jianxin
Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD (Deputy General Manager)

(Independent Non-executive Director & Leung Ming Hym, Peter

Alternate Chairman) (Assistant General Manager & Chief Financial Officer)

Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec Cheng Yiu Lung

(Independent Non-executive Director) (Assistant General Manager & Chief Operation Officer)
Hu Hao (Non-executive Director) Jiang Yisheng

(Assistant General Manager)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD SOLICITORS

. : . Herbert Smith

W(Indep enden.t Non.— executive Director & Chairman) 23/F., Gloucester Tower, 15 Queen’s Road Central

ong Yue Chim, Richard, $.BS.,J.P. Hong Kong

(Independent Non-executive Director) Telephone: 2845 6639
Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Independent Non-executive Director) Facsimile: 2845 9099
Hu Hao (Non-executive Director)

AUDITORS

NQMINATION COMMITTEE 18/Fs., Twoo;lntgrnational Finance Centre, 8 Finance Street
Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec Central, Hong Kong

(Independent Non-executive Director & Chairman) Telephone: 2846 9888
Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD Facsimile: 2868 4432

(Independent Non-executive Director)
Hu Hao (Non-executive Director) REGISTRARS

Tricor Tengis Limite
26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OF Wanchai, Hong Kong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS Lelephone: 2980 1888
Wang Lili (Non-executive Director & Chairlady) Facsimile: 2810 8185

Hu Hao (Non-executive Director)

Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Independent Non-executive Director) %}%(,;IICSB’IC‘ETI(){\/%P OFFICE
Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong
(Independent Non-executive Director) Telephone: 2588 1188

R P . Facsimile: 2805 1166
Fung Siu Ming (Deputy General Manager & Chief Risk Officer) Telex: 73264 ICBCA HX

Post Box: GPO Box 872
SWIFT: UBHKHKHH

This Annual Report can be accessed through the internet at:
http://www.icbcasia.com/eng/investor/report/report_a.shtml
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Financial Performance

CEFNAM B E 2009 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BHT I
A4 (H #IT) For the Year (in HK$ million) 2009 2008 % Change
FALE A Net Interest Income 3,009 2,998 0.4%
Il E Y a AN Net Fee and Commission Income 727 663 9.7%
HoAth g A Other Operating Income 454 91 398.9%
B Operating Expenses 1,358 1,252 8.5%
B ELAR 2K S8 Charge for Impairment

Losses on Loans and Advances (386) (409) -5.6%

PRt T4 A1) Profit before Tax 3,070 1,064 188.5%
BLIA Tax 544 95 472.6%
B SRR A i ) Profit Attributable to Equity Holders 2,526 969 160.7%

SWH A
AESEH (&) At Year End (in HK$ million) 2009 2008 % Change
B Loans and Advances 147,025 137,083 7.3%
A E Total Assets 215,754 194,564 10.9%
A7 AR Total Deposits 163,556 142,496 14.8%
i The Equity Holders’ Funds 18,105 13,938 29.9%
i g5 Financial Ratios 2009 2008
EATE R L (R ) Capital Adequacy Ratio (Adjusted) 14.9% 13.6%
AR Y ) 4 Average Liquidity Ratio for the Year 40.2% 37.0%
PAEHA FE % Cost to Income 32.4% 33.3%
B AR Loans to Deposits 71.9% 72.9%
B b Financial Calendar
A AR ZERR Final Results Announcement R -FE=AZAWH 24 March 2010
AT EE H Posting Date for Annual Report TERRAETNA — A =H on or about

B 4% 23 April 2010
T {5 R I 5y Closing Period of Register of Members TELAEHA +H 18 to 25 May 2010
iR T A £ +HH

R AU AE K g B Date of Annual General Meeting CE-FEHA T HHA 25 May 2010
Ji IR EE H 15 Dividend Payment Date “R-FERNAZTILH on or about

6 I TRERIT (2EM) A PR /A W Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
ZEEJUFE4ER Annual Report 2009

K

29 June 2010
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Financial Performance

T4 B DL FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
ZAE (AL For the Year (in HK$ million) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
FFILE A Net Interest Income 3,009 2,998 2,388 1,853 1,316
TR KA A Net Fee and Commission Income 727 663 676 562 403
HoAth g ZE A Other Operating Income 454 91 115 182 314
& S Operating Expenses 1,358 1,252 1,135 945 890
RSl p g Exp

B R R Write-back of/(Charge for) Impairment

IEH% /(S 8) Losses on Loans and Advances (386) (409) 115 (132) (6)
R o i v A1) Profit before Tax 3,070 1,064 1,952 1,603 1,208
i 18 Tax 544 95 343 357 227
& SR A 25 Profit Attributable to Equity Holders 2,526 969 1,609 1,246 981
Bt (o) Per Share (in HK$) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
g LA 5 A Basic Earnings per Share 1.95 0.77 1.41 1.11 0.91
(53335 Dividend per Share 0.85 0.46 0.86 0.66 0.53
BHEGH (HEEIT) At Year End (in HK$ million) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
ﬁ‘%’}( ) Loans and Advances 147,025 137,083 121,704 75,648 70,406
B 7 AR Total Assets 215,754 194,564 192,304 146,392 115,782
A7 A Total Deposits 163,556 142,496 141,236 109,893 70,341
Je AR R Total Equity Holders’ Funds 18,105 13,938 15,008 11,085 9,870
W ILFR Financial Ratios 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
BARTLR LR (K %) Capital Adequacy Ratio (Adjusted) 14.9% 13.6% 13.0% 16.0% 15.7%
PARTERE G 4 Average Liquidity Ratio for the Year 40.2% 37.0% 43.9% 44.1% 36.5%
PR LR Loans to Deposits 71.9% 72.9% 61.9% 68.6% 97.4%
BCH A R Loans to Total Assets 68.1% 70.5% 63.3% 51.7% 61.0%
WEER ANELAEHLL AR Impaired Loan/NPL Ratio 0.92% 0.65% 0.53% 1.18% 0.97%
Zﬂ/a\ IR T Collective/General Provision Coverage* 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 0.8% 0.8%
IRAEA LA Cost to Income 32.4% 33.3% 35.6% 36.4% 43.8%
IRB. Dividend Payout 44.1% 61.5% 64.3% 59.5% 60.6%
SR [l R Return on Average Assets 1.2% 0.5% 1.0% 1.0% 0.9%
S48 788 P A [ % Return on Average Common Equity 16.1% 6.8% 13.6% 12.4% 11.0%
* FLAE TR E A ) * Including “Regulatory Reserve”

RABRWRAIR K 2 25 SRR JBe 3 ME AV e A
Operating Profit Before Impairment Losses/Provisions Profit Attributable to Equity Holders
[ER YT [ER T
HK$ million HKS$ million +161%

3,000
2,800

+13%
2,832

2,600
2,400
2,200
2,000
1,800

+22%
2,500
+24%
2,044
+45%
1,652
+27%
1,143

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

1,600
1,400
1,200
1,000
800
600
400
200

0

+29%
981

+29%

2,526

1,609

+27%
1,246
-40%
969

o TR R4T (3HN) A PR AW Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 7

2005

2006 2007 2008 2009
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Financial Performance

FER Deposits
1. $ERUNE 5 1. ByType 2009 2008
5 HA Current 6.1% 3.6%
it & Savings 22.6% 14.5%
E Fixed 71.3% 81.9%
Af Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. IRERSI H 5 2. By Remaining Maturity 2009 2008
PSR I RV RR AR 2R Repayable on Demand 29.0% 18.3%
AT Three Months or Less 55.8% 73.7%
—AEE DL E R =R A One Year or Less, but Over Three Months 14.6% 8.0%
FAFS LT HBE I — A Five Years or Less, but Over One Year 0.6% 0.0%
i Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. WSS 3. By Currency 2009 2008
v HKD 47.5% 44.1%
B UsD 41.3% 46.9%
HAth Others 11.2% 9.0%
Al Total 100.0% 100.0%
Joftn s SE N Other Operating Income
HAbERBA Other Operating Income 2009 2008
AL WA B g5 52 DA Net trading income and net gain/(loss) on financial
N TAB (AR i i 7= assets and liabilities designated
R4l 7 at fair value through profit or loss
AfEZ TR (EiE) 89.8% 47.1%
R H &R g BB A Dividend income from financial investments 1.4% 16.3%
EIARA Management fee income 1.6% 8.2%
LUE TRV ON Rental income 0.0% 0.1%
TEYEMRBRA Rental income from investment properties 0.5% 2.5%
HoAth Others 6.7% 25.8%
Gt Total 100.0% 100.0%
ek 1k B
Total Assets Total Deposits
[ER: XV RN
HK$ million +11% HK$ million
220,000 215,754 180,000 +15%
200,000 160000 163,556
180,000 141, 236 142 496
140,000
160,000
140,000 120,000
+17%
120,000 115,782 100,000

100,000
80,000
60,000
40,000
20,000

0

31% +1%
192 304 194,564
+26%
146,392

2005

ZEE U Annual Report 2009

2006 2007 2008 2009

8 I TRERT (dE) A PR /AW Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

80,000

60,000

40,000

20,000

0

+56%
109,893
+11%
70,341

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
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Financial Performance

Loan Portfolio

1. AT 1. By Industry Sectors 2009 2008
TER W 2 B Loans for Use in Hong Kong
ENEYE A Industry, Commercial and Financial
VB9 Property Development 7.9% 6.1%
% ESid Property Investment 12.5% 14.7%
SR Financial Concerns 5.6% 5.1%
Hﬁ?ﬁzﬁ:% Stockbrokers 0.3% 0.0%
B T & Wholesale and Retail Trade 4.1% 3.8%
iﬂiiﬁa Civil Engineering Works 0.2% 0.2%
e Manufacturing 2.6% 2.9%
SRR D S R A Transport and Transport Equipment 6.2% 5.9%
) SR Electricity and Gas 0.1% 0.0%
EallRHL Information Technology 1.4% 1.1%
B 0 8 Recreation activities 0.0% 0.0%
s - AR E R RE Hotels, Boarding House and Catering 1.4% 0.6%
HoAth Others 3.4% 4.1%
A Individuals
WE [REA LR Loans for the purchases of
[FAN g E Bt flats in Home Ownership Scheme,
K [HHFE L ER S Private Sector Participation Scheme
B 2 AR and Tenants Purchase Schemes 0.3% 0.3%
H B AT Loans for the purchase of
W2 AR Other Residential Properties 9.6% 8.6%
ICHEREE N Credit Card Advances 0.1% 0.1%
FoAts Others 1.5% 1.5%
B 5 & Trade Finance 10.7% 16.4%
e LA 2 Bk Loans for Use outside Hong Kong 32.1% 28.6%
&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. SEFIBREVN H B 5 2. By Remaining Maturity 2009 2008
R BRIy RV R £ 75 Repayable on Demand 10.6% 10.0%
—AEB LRI One Year or Less 27.5% 32.0%
FLAREL LA E A —4F Five Years or Less, but Over One Year 41.5% 38.3%
I T AF Over Five Years 20.4% 19.7%
Slf 4 R 44 Undated 0.0% 0.0%
At Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. s 3. By Currency 2009 2008
I HKD 64.4% 59.8%
B USD 26.7% 30.7%
HAth Others 8.9% 9.5%
it Total 100.0% 100.0%
Pk M WA EERK A A Bk B R
Total Loans and Advances Impaired Loan/NPL Ratio
[EF ST A"
HKS$ million %

160,000

140,000 +61%

120,000
100,000 o 727:{;)8
80,000 70,406

60,000

40,000

20,000

0

+13%

137,083

121,704 |

+7%
147,025

10%

5%

097%  1.18%
0.53%
|

0.65% 0.92%
] [ |

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

B TR 8RAT (BHN) A PR AW Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 9
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Chairman’s Statement

In 2009, being confronted with the financial crisis, governments of various countries quickly introduced rescue measures to save
the global economy from sliding downward, and the market was stabilised in the second half of the year. With the strong support
of China’s macro-economic control policies, the Mainland’s economy has succeeded in “sustaining eight” and realised a GDP
growth rate of 8.7%, while Hong Kong’s economy has been stabilised and started to grow. In face of 2010, as developed countries
are still troubled by problems such as huge national debts and weak domestic demand, the global economy is still growing slowly
and various uncertainties do exist. The Mainland economy, after a strong rebound, is also facing challenges arising from structural
adjustments and control over expected inflation. In respect of Hong Kong, while enjoying the resumption of growth, it is also facing

the problem of seeking new drives for further economic growth.

ICBC (Asia) as a listed bank in Hong Kong has dealt with the difficult situations calmly by adhering to its operating strategy
of “based in Hong Kong, backed by the Mainland, eyeing the world”, insisting on its moderate operating tactic, knowing the
importance of “doing the right thing”, making progression in certain aspects accompanying with withdrawal from other aspects.
The Bank has fully leveraged on its unique advantage of being a member of the ICBC Group. With the policy of “effectively serving
both Hong Kong and the Mainland”, it has devoted to offering comprehensive services to prime customers from the Mainland
and in Hong Kong so as to alleviate the impact of the financial crisis on the Bank’s operation. This helped the Bank to transform
crisis into opportunities amid the once-in-a-century financial crisis. Benefiting from the wholehearted impetus of the management
as well as the concerted efforts of all employees, satisfactory results were achieved with a record high profit. Meanwhile, the
Bank’s business structure, revenue structure, and customer structure have been enhanced, while risk control has also been further

strengthened.

Consolidated profit after tax of the Group for 2009 was HK$2,526 million, an increase of HK$1,557 million or 161% as compared to
2008. Consolidated net interest income amounted to HK$3,009 million, a slight increase as compared to that of the previous year.
Overall net interest margin improved with an increase from 1.55% in 2008 to 1.56 %. The Bank will continue to enhance its customer
structure, improve its loan portfolio, and further expand the net interest margin while ensuring the quality of assets and increasing

its overall profitability.

The overall cost to income ratio of the Group dropped from 33.3% to 32.4%. Return on average common equity was 16.1% while
return on average assets was 1.23%. In 2009, the net fee and commission income increased by 10% as compared to 2008, achieving
a total of HK$727 million.

As at the end of 2009, consolidated total assets of the Group were HK$215. 8 billion, a growth of 11% as compared to 2008, of
which loans grew by 7% to HK$147 billion. As for deposits, consolidated customer deposits and certificates of deposits amounted
to HK$163.6 billion, an increase of 15% as compared to 2008.
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Chairman’s Statement

For the quality of assets, the Group has implemented various stringent risk management policies with the impaired loan ratio
staying at a low level of 0.92% in 2009. The combined coverage ratio of individual and collective impairment allowance for impaired
loans dropped from 74.4% in 2008 to 65.9%, in which collective impairment allowance increased from HK$379 million to HK$453
million. In respect of investments, by upholding the principle of prudence, the Group made appropriate provisions for loans to
Dubai, reviewed and made corresponding adjustments to the bond portfolio and the risk management mechanism with a view to

minimizing investment risks.

The corporate banking and commercial banking businesses of the bank have fully demonstrated the development strategy of “based
in Hong Kong, backed by the Mainland, eyeing the world”. With the Greater China served as the business focus, full support
was given to Mainland prime enterprises to implement the strategy of “going global” and to solicit selected customers of other
regions. Considerable growth was recorded in 2009. Meanwhile, the Bank has placed the “foreign operation of RMB” business as
the strategic focus of future development. Capitalising on the advantages of the leading position of the parent bank, ICBC, in RMB
business, the Bank will grasp opportunities offered by the RMB cross-border trade settlement services and work together with the

parent bank so as to expand the customer base proactively.

As the Hong Kong’s capital market recovers, the Bank will devote to developing businesses related to the capital market, maintain

our advantages in the relevant fields and provide advisory and financing services for corporate acquisitions and mergers.

In respect of the personal banking business, the Group has fully implemented a business transformation focusing on enlarging the
customer base by providing comprehensive financial services to customers. This is to enhance the contribution of personal banking
business and make it a cornerstone for the sound development of the Bank as a whole. During the year, the Tai Po Branch of the
Bank has moved to a better location. The Bank will continue to optimize the branch network to enhance the overall service quality

of personal banking business.

Chinese Mercantile Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, will continue to place the RMB banking business as the core in
2010, by fully leveraging on the synergistic effect with the Bank and ICBC in the Mainland. With the strategies of “effectively serving
the local markets” and “effectively serving both Hong Kong and the Mainland”, it will capture the opportunities amid the China’s

rapid economic development so as to increase the profit contribution to the Group.

Furthermore, in order to fulfill corporate social responsibilities, the Bank has held an outdoor Charity Golf Day, inviting valuable
customers and partners to make donation and participate in golf activities. All proceeds raised have been donated to Caritas-
Hong Kong. In addition, the Bank has launched a staft fund-raising campaign for purchasing additional teaching equipment for
rebuilding primary school in the Shuitun Village in the poor mountainous area of Zhaotong, Yunnan, China, for the purpose of

improving the education conditions.

34 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Annual Report 2009



Chairman’s Statement

Looking ahead to 2010, the Bank generally expects that the external business environment will improve gradually but fluctuations
will be inevitable. The Bank is optimistic but will remain prudent. The Bank will fully adhere to and implement the business
strategy of “based in Hong Kong, backed by the Mainland, eyeing the world”, and will continue to “do the right thing” and to
make progression in certain aspects accompanying with withdrawal from other aspects. In respect of the credit business, it will aim
at an expansion in a progressive and selective pattern, and will continue to increase its strategic investment in personal banking
business, striving to consolidate the foundation for the development of which in 2010. In respect of the intermediary business, it will
increase the income from intermediary businesses with specific emphases according to the changing market conditions, focusing
on enlarging the capital transaction for clients and putting more efforts in developing intermediary businesses of insurance agency
and securities brokerage. In respect of risk control, the Bank will continue to uphold the conservative risk control and management
concept. Meanwhile, it will further enhance the reconstruction of internal procedures and the integration of service platforms,
developing the Bank from a financing service centre for clients to an integrated service platform with financial products linking

China and Hong Kong, with an ultimate goal to enhance the interests of shareholders, customers as well as the employees as a whole.

Dr. Jiang Jianqing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2010
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Senior Management

Mr. Chen Aiping (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wong Yuen Fai (Director and Deputy General Manager)

Mr. Zhang Yi (Director and Deputy General Manager)

Mr. Fung Siu Ming (Deputy General Manager and Chief Risk Officer)

. Zong Jianxin (Deputy General Manager)

Mr. Leung Ming Hym, Peter (Assistant General Manager and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Cheng Yiu Lung (Assistant General Manager and Chief Operation Officer)

Mr. Jiang Yisheng (Assistant General Manager)
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OVERVIEW

During 2009, there had been a gradual improvement of the local as well as the global economy in general. It was an exceptionally
good year for the property market in Hong Kong as a whole, while the total transaction volume of IPOs and other equity fund raising
activities conducted through the local stock exchange surpassed other major international financial centres such as London and
New York. Generally speaking, the banking industry in Hong Kong also benefited from the economic recovery, which resulted in
a rebound in profitability as compared to 2008.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group achieved a consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of HK$2,526 million in the year ended 31 December 2009,
representing an increase of 161% as compared to HK$969 million in 2008.

Net interest income for the year ended 31 December 2009 increased HK$11 million to HK$3,009 million. The improvement was

attributable to the slight improvement of overall net interest margin from 1.55% to 1.56%.

Net fee and commission income increased by 10% to HK$727 million from HK$663 million for 2008. The increase was mainly due
to the recovery of local stock market, stimulating the growth of commission income derived from stock broking business. Overall,
the ratio of total net fee and commission and other operating income to the total operating income increased to 28%, as compared
to 20% in 2008.

Operating expenses increased HK$106 million or 8% to HK$1,358 million from HK$1,252 million in 2008. The cost to income ratio
dropped from 33.3% to 32.4%, mainly due to the increase in total operating income, together with effective cost control over the

year.

The consolidated impairment losses decreased by HK$633 million to HK$578 million in 2009. These included impairment losses
of HK$195 million on available-for-sale financial investments on Taiping General Insurance Company Limited (HK$151 million)
and on notes issued by structured investment vehicles (HK$44 million). For 2009, impairment losses of HK$386 million were made
on loans and advances to customers as compared to HK$409 million in 2008.

The Group incurred HK$782 million of gains from disposal of investment securities, including part of our equity investment in
China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited, as compared to the disposal losses of HK$202 million in 2008.

Share of profits from associates increased to HK$23 million from HK$0.66 million in 2008, following the sale of our investment in
China Ping An Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited during the year.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The consolidated total assets of the Group reached HK$215,754 million as at 31 December 2009, representing an increase of
HK$21,190 million or 11% as compared to HK$194,564 million as at 31 December 2008.

Consolidated total loans and advances increased by HK$9,942 million or 7% to HK$147,025 million as at 31 December 2009, as
compared to HK$137,083 million as at 31 December 2008.

Total customers’ deposits amounted to HK$161,162 million, as compared to HK$138,183 million as at 31 December 2008.

Total certificates of deposit issued amounted to HK$2,395 million, representing a decrease of 44% as compared to HK$4,312 million
as at 31 December 2008.
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Loans Composition 2009 Income Composition 2009

P 0
Individuals - Others 2% Foreign Exchange and Other Income 11%

Trade Finance 11%

Industrial, L o
27% Commercial & Financial Net Fee and Commission 17%

Property Development &
Other Property
18% Investment

72% Net Interest Income

Loans for use
outside Hong Kong  32%

Individuals -
10% Residential Mortgage

CAPITAL AND LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT

At the end of 2009, the capital adequacy ratio for the Group was 14.9% (2008: 13.6%). The Group maintained an adequate level of
capital in 2009. The average liquidity ratio amounted to 40.2% (2008: an average of 37.0%).

ASSET QUALITY

Consolidated impaired loans increased by HK$470 million to HK$1,359 million as at 31 December 2009, as compared to HK$889
million as at 31 December 2008. As a result, the consolidated impaired loan ratio increased from 0.65% to 0.92%.

As at 31 December 2009, the cumulative loan impairment allowances aggregated to HK$895 million (2008: HK$661 million).
This included HK$442 million (2008: HK$282 million) of individual impairment allowances and HK$453 million (2008: HK$379
million) of collective impairment allowances. The increase of the impairment allowances was mainly due to the slow recovery in
credit environment of the financial markets after the impact of financial crisis on the global economy in 2008.

Overdue loans increased from HK$292 million as at 31 December 2008 to HK$529 million as at 31 December 2009, which
represents 0.4% of the consolidated total loans and advances.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Below are the summaries of the performance of our principal businesses in 2009 and their respective outlook for 2010.

RETAIL BANKING

The performance of our Retail Banking business gradually improved during 2009, although we encountered some difficulties in the
beginning of the year. Profit contribution from our Retail Banking business increased slightly to HK$220 million as compared to
HK$179 million in 2008, after an one-off provision for operating loss resulting from the sale of Lehman Brothers related products
of approximately HK$89 million.

There was a remarkable rebound in the property market of Hong Kong during 2009, both in terms of property prices and
transaction volume. At the same time, local banks continued to compete aggressively among each other by offering various kinds of
attractive mortgage loan plans with a view to expand their respective market share. We focused on offering mainly HIBOR-based
mortgage loan plans, and coupled with well-designed promotional offer, we were able to grow our mortgage loan portfolio during
2009 by approximately 20% as compared to the end of 2008.

We achieved a steady growth in our customers’ deposits for our branch network during 2009, notwithstanding a slight decline
toward the end of the year due to seasonal factor. As a result of the low interest rate environment throughout the year, profit margin
for our deposit business remained thin.
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During 2009, we continued our branch network rationalisation projects. Our Tai Po Branch was relocated to the central area of Tai
Po Market in September. We opened a new branch in Wong Tai Sin in December, which brings the total number of our branches
to 44.

During 2009, we strengthened our cooperation with ICBC in connection with account opening witnessing service for new
customers in Shenzhen by leveraging on the strong ICBC network there. Such service allows customers of ICBC to opening bank
accounts with our bank on the spot through witnessing service provided by staff of designated ICBC branches in Shenzhen.
With dedicated promotional effort and corresponding improvement in processing workflow, the development of our customer
acquisition plan through referral from ICBC was satisfactory.

Different promotions had been run throughout the year to acquire high net worth customers to enroll in our Elite Club banking
service, which resulted in a continuous growth of customers in 2009.

The other important developments of our Retail Banking business during the year are summarised as follows:

Securities and brokerage

We achieved considerable success in strengthening our securities and brokerage businesses during 2009, as reflected by the increase
in both the level of commission income and our market share as compared to 2008. That was attributed mainly to the general
recovery of the stock market in Hong Kong, as well as the broadening of our customer base including both retail and institutional
clients.

Wealth Management

Following the changes in banking regulations in Hong Kong relating to the sale of investment products, we experienced a general
slow-down in our wealth management business. In order to overcome such adverse factor, we continued to streamline our cross-
selling mechanism with a view to further expand our Elite Club business.

Through the cooperation with our asset management business, we were able to remarkably increase our sale volume for unit trust
products by actively marketing our own brand of investment fund products since their inaugural launch in August 2009.

Private Banking

We continued to provide high quality private banking services to our privileged customers in Hong Kong, which resulted in a steady
growth of the size of assets under management. At the same time, we also strengthened the cross-border cooperation with a number
of major branches of ICBC on private banking business by introducing our products and services as well as exchanging knowledge
on business practice.

Bancassurance

During the first half of 2009, we focused on the sale of endowment insurance products in view of the persistent risk adverse attitude
of customers. Since the mid of 2009, sales of investment-linked insurance products started to increase, in line with the improvement
in the overall investment climate. As a result, sales of life insurance products recorded a remarkable growth in 2009.

Hire Purchase and Leasing

As a result of the favourable funding cost situation prevailing during 2009, our hire purchase and leasing business recorded a higher
profit as compared to 2008. In addition, we were able to expand our loan portfolio for taxi and public light bus financing, which
resulted in a slight increase in our market share.

The outlook of our Retail Banking business for 2010 is summarised below:

In view of the general recovery in the local economy, we expect that the performance of our Retail Banking business will continue
to improve. More concrete effort will be put to strengthen our Retail Banking operation in order to reinforce our overall market
position in Hong Kong.

We intend to further enlarge our mortgage portfolio in the coming year. In order to achieve that goal, we shall launch different
kinds of mortgage loan plans to meet customers’ requirements including fixed-rate mortgage loans. Also, we shall monitor closely
the market situation and shall make appropriate adjustments in product design and pricing so as to compete proactively for new
mortgage business.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Annual Report 2009

39



40

In order to expand our customer base, we shall continue our branch network rationalisation and expansion projects. We shall open
new branches in those locations where we do not have coverage at the moment. Some of the existing branches will also be renovated

or relocated. In addition, more segment-oriented banking products will be launched to support our customer acquisition strategy.

GLOBAL MARKETS & TRADING

Profit contribution from our Global Markets and Trading business amounted to HK$516 million as compared to a loss of HK$389
million in 2008.

Since the outbreak of the financial crisis in late 2008 and the resulting change in investment climate, we focused on the marketing
of traditional treasury products, such as foreign exchange business and currency-linked deposits etc., in order to better serve
the demand of our customers. Cross referral mechanism with other business departments of the Bank also resulted in increased

transaction volume for our treasury market business.

Our relationship with ICBC contributed to the continuous expansion in the customer base of our treasury market business.
Through our strong parentage, we also strengthened our market making capability for RMB in preparation for further relaxation
on RMB banking business in Hong Kong.

In line with the gradual recovery of the world economy and the narrowing of credit spreads, the performance of our bond portfolio
improved considerably. In addition, in view of the change in market environment, we have recently established a structured
products team to enhance our ability of pricing and managing such products. Furthermore, we shall continue our effort on the
improvement of risk assessment and control by bringing in advanced technology that will assist us in the upgrade of market risk

analysis and monitoring.

COMMERCIAL BANKING

Our Commercial Banking business picked up the momentum
to grow, along with the gradual recovery of the global and
local economy, which benefited the small and medium-sized
enterprises (“SMEs”) in Hong Kong. Profit contribution from
our Commercial Banking business amounted to HK$786
million, as compared to HK$503 million in 2008. In addition, we
managed to maintain a loan impairment ratio below the average

market level.

Through the dedicated effort of our specialist teams, including

European Banking, Diamond Trade Finance and India Banking,

tailor-made banking and financial solutions were provided to

ICBC (Asia) signed a loan agreement with General Motors SAIC Investment
our customers, which contributed satisfactorily to business Limited, a joint venture company of General Motors and SAIC Motor.

growth. Also, we offered a number of new trade finance and

factoring products in order to strengthen our market position for SME banking business.

With the launch of pilot scheme for RMB cross-border trade settlement service in Hong Kong in July 2009, we captured such market
opportunity by collaborating with ICBC and vigorously pursued for client acquisition. We are dedicated to provide comprehensive,
effective and reliable cross-border banking services to enable our customers to minimise the cost and risk of currency exchange
relating to trade settlement between Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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For 2010, we shall continue to strengthen our relationship management team as well as our product development team with a
view to provide “one-stop” banking services to our customers. We shall further expand our non-interest income related businesses

especially for those relating to IPOs, trade finance and treasury products.

CORPORATE & INVESTMENT BANKING

Our Corporate and Investment Banking business further expanded during 2009. Profit contribution surged to a new record level
of HK$777 million, as compared to HK$497 million in 2008.

To maximise the growth potential from certain strategic sectors, we reorganised our manpower by industry group so as to enhance
our professional service and to offer innovative solutions to our clients. In particular, our aircraft and ship financing business
recorded major achievement, including the completion of a Hong Kong tax efficient financing arrangement with a prominent local

airline company.

Syndication activities dramatically slowed down since the last quarter of 2008. However, we were able to maintain the momentum
of our loan growth for syndicated loans, club deals and bilateral facilities. We were mandated lead arrangers for a few prominent
syndicated loan transactions, namely HK$8 billion financing for the Henderson Land Group, US$5 billion multi-currency financing
for International Petroleum Investment Company, HK$3 billion financing for The Link REIT, HK$1.225 billion term loan
financing for HSH Financial Services, HK$1.95 billion financing for China Agri-Industries Holdings Ltd, HK$5.46 billion financing
for Sino-Ocean Land and HK$1.56 billion financing for Minmetals Capitals.

On the other hand, we experienced certain set back in our syndicated loan business for the Dubai market. To safeguard any possible

deterioration in credit quality, we made a provision of around HK$100 million against our Dubai-related loan exposure.

We shall continue to pursue further business expansion in 2010 and at the same time actively monitor the quality of our loan
portfolio.

INSTITUTIONAL BANKING
Profit contribution from our Institutional Banking business amounted to HK$139 million, as compared to HK$293 million in 2008.

There was a relatively significant decline in trade finance related business conducted in cooperation with various branches of ICBC
as a result of a reducing demand from customers in Mainland China during the first half of 2009, but such business started to grow
again in the second half of 2009. On the other hand, we continued to focus on broadening our customer base in Hong Kong, as well
as enhancing the overall transactional banking services with particular emphasis on cash management for institutional clients. To
better our marketing effort, we have divided our sales force into different teams and each team is responsible for developing tailor-

made solutions to its targeted client segment.

In 2010, we expect that the business volume of trade finance related products conducted in cooperation with ICBC will continue to

grow.

ASSET MANAGEMENT BUSINESS

ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited, our wholly owned subsidiary, successfully launched its own series of

investment funds under the “ICBC (Asia)” brand name in August 2009, comprising of:
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- China and Hong Kong Vision Fund (investing primarily in equities)

- Asia Selection Growth Fund (investing primarily in equities)

- Asia Infrastructure and Redevelopment Fund (investing primarily in equities)
- Global Financial Opportunities Fund (investing primarily in equities)

- Global Total Return Bond Fund

To commensurate with the launch of such products, investment

forums were held at most of our branches. Thereafter, we

continued to provide after-sales support to the sales force of our
Retail Banking business, including the provision of weekly and
monthly investment commentaries. We aim to maximise cross-
selling opportunities through closer cooperation between our

Retail Banking network and our Asset Management arm.

To further broaden our customer base, we intend to market
our investment fund products through ICBC to both retail and

institutional customers in Mainland China.

ICBC (Asia) launched a new golf-themed credit card-1872 Golf Card jointly
CREDIT CARD BUSINESS with 1872 Club, a subsidiary of China’s largest golf service Reagle Commerce
Technology Co. Ltd

Our Credit Card business achieved satisfactory results in 2009 both in terms of total revenue and outstanding borrowing as
compared to the previous year. Loan delinquency, amidst the soaring number of bankruptcy cases, only showed a moderate
increase. Such a result was due to effective strategy for marketing and stimulation of customer spending throughout the year and
a change to aggressive card acquisition strategy as from the second half of 2009 under tightened credit control policies. Innovative
products were developed, including the “1872 Golf Card”, with the unique feature of RMB280 green field fee, and the “Guangshen
Railway Dual Currency Card”, the first CUP chip card in the Hong Kong market with contact-less payment feature. For merchant

business, the performance was especially impressive with a growth rate of over 40%.

Looking forward to 2010, we shall continue to stimulate customer spending, as well as a fine-tuning of marketing strategy. The
direction of card promotion, marketing and advertising will ride on the cooperation with ICBC to tape our group synergy for
merchant and utilisation supports in the Pear]l River Delta Region, with particular emphasis on the “Guangshen Railway Dual
Currency Card”. Sophisticated tools will be developed to monitor the evolution of the credit risk of the portfolio in response to the
expansion of the card base, particularly for customers with revolving borrowing. Customer segmentation will be enhanced not only

for marketing purpose but also for differentiated services.

CHINESE MERCANTILE BANK

In 2009, Chinese Mercantile Bank (“CMB”) suffered from declined performance due to the global financial crisis and aggressive
loan growth strategy of other domestic banks in Mainland China, as well as an increase in provision for doubtful loans. According to
Hong Kong accounting standards, net profit of CMB was HK$91 million in 2009, a decrease of HK$124 million or 58% as compared
to 2008. Net interest income decreased by HK$38 million or 12% to HK$269 million as compared with HK$307 million in 2008.
Net fee and commission income increased by HK$21 million or 66% to HK$53 million, as compared to HK$32 million in 2008.
Total assets of CMB was HK$12,830 million as at 31 December 2009, representing an increase of 23% as compared to the end of
2008. Total customers’ loan and deposit balance as at 31 December 2009 was HK$9,538 million and HK$5,595 million respectively,

representing increases of 8% and 33% respectively over the corresponding balances as at the end of 2008.
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CMB opened its Guangzhou Branch in January 2009, which is its first branch operating outside Shenzhen. Furthermore, the
registered capital of CMB has been increased to RMB1.65 billion after the injection of additional capital.

In 2010, CMB will continue to expand its business scope and scale, with an aim to provide comprehensive financial services for

customers in Hong Kong and Mainland China. At the same time, more stringent control will be put in place to improve its loan

asset quality.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The number of staff of the Bank as at 31 December 2009 was

1,425. During 2009, measures were in place to enhance our '11_ —~T-
+=E 1

position to attract, develop and retain the knowledgeable I G D G i

and skilful employees. These included active and flexible
recruitment and selection effort, emphasis of business-
oriented training programs, promotion of job skills
development, a more productive work environment for
employees and closer communication with employees to better

understand their needs.

At the same time, we offer support to our Staff Association

to organise and promote various recreational and social
gathering activities for staff, such as picnics, buffet gatherings, ~ CBC (Asia) organised Staff Annual Dinner
interest classes, sports events and the Annual Dinner, in order

to maintain and promote good employer-employee relationship and a better work and life balance for employees.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service awarded the Bank with the Caring Company “5 Year Plus Award Logo” in recognition
of the Bank and its staff’s contribution and commitment to the community over all these years. The Caring Company Logo is to

recognise private companies with business operations in Hong Kong that demonstrated good corporate citizenship.

The Bank is honoured of being appointed again as the Chairman of the Caritas Fund Raising Committee for the year 2009-2010. The
Bank and its staff volunteers were committed to support Caritas-Hong Kong by soliciting donations from business associates and
customers through various fund raising activities including donation boxes at branches, television charity shows, walkathon, sales of
raffle tickets and bazaars. The Bank also donated to Caritas-Hong Kong part of the retail spending revenue from the jointly issued
affinity card, Caritas-Hong Kong MasterCard. Furthermore, all proceeds from the “2009 ICBC (Asia) Charity Golf Day” organised
in January 2009, without deducting expenses, were donated to Caritas-Hong Kong.

Meanwhile, the Bank supported student education in both Mainland China and in Hong Kong. Following the sponsorship for
the reconstruction of a primary school in Yunnan Province in 2008, the Bank encouraged its staff to make donations for the
establishment of a library and the replacement of furniture for students at that school. It aimed at providing the students with all
rounded learning opportunities and enhancing the conditions of the school. In addition, the Bank has established scholarship for

the Master of Business Administration program of The University of Hong Kong.

In 2010, the Bank will continue to contribute to the community service and demonstrate good corporate citizenship towards a

harmonious society.
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Board of Directors

Dr. Jiang Jianging (Chairman)
Ms. Wang Lili (Vice Chairlady)
Mr. Chen Aiping (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hu Hao (Non-executive Director)
Mr. Wong Yuen Fai
(Director, Deputy General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive)
6.  Mr. Zhang Yi

(Director, Deputy General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive)
7.  Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.B.S.,J.P.

ik Wb~

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Annual Report 2009

:
EFEEFEE

bk

s

'["'.-
1

.

i

bl

I'.'..Ti.'.'-t-f
i- -

{
|

[
i3;

e

i

=
o
J

3

" |

FEEE]




Dr. Jiang Jianqing (Chairman)

Dr. Jiang, aged 57, was appointed as the Chairman and a Director of the Bank in June 2000. Dr. Jiang graduated from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics, and received a Master’s Degree in engineering and a Doctorate Degree in management,
respectively after finishing postgraduate and doctorate courses at Shanghai Jiao Tong University. Dr. Jiang has over 31 years of
banking experience and he is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China Limited, the Chairman of China Banking Association, the Vice Chairman of China Society for Finance and Banking, and
a tutor to the PhD students of Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Ms. Wang Lili (Vice Chairlady)

Ms. Wang, aged 58, was appointed as the Vice Chairlady and a Director of the Bank in December 2002. Ms. Wang is the Senior
Executive Vice President of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, primarily responsible for matters relating to the
assets and liabilities management, international business, financial market business, asset management business and legal affairs.
Ms. Wang graduated from Nankai University and received a MBA Degree in International Finance from University of Birmingham,
United Kingdom. Ms. Wang has over 34 years of banking experience and was awarded a Certificate of Competence for Professor
in the banking field. She is also the Chairlady of the Board of Directors of ICBC (London) Limited and a Non-executive Director of
Hong Kong Mercantile Exchange Limited.

Mr. Chen Aiping (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chen, aged 51, was appointed as a Director of the Bank in December 2002 and re-designated as the Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Bank in July 2008. Mr. Chen was also appointed as the Chairman of Chinese Mercantile Bank, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, in November 2008 and a Director of certain other wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank,
namely, ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited, ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited and ICBC (Asia) Asset Management Company
Limited. He is also the Vice Chairman of ICBC International Holdings Limited and a Director of Taiping General Insurance
Company Limited. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from Wuhan University and a Master of Business Administration
(International) Degree from The University of Hong Kong. He has over 24 years of banking experience and was previously the
General Manager of the International Business Department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited and the Chairman

of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Luxembourg S.A..
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Mr. Hu Hao (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Hu, aged 47, was appointed as a Director of the Bank in November 2008. Mr. Hu holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics from
Hunan University and a Doctorate Degree in Economics from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. He has over 25 years of
banking experience and is the General Manager of the International Business Department of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China Limited. He is also the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Luxembourg S.A., a Director of Xiamen

International Bank, Taiping General Insurance Company Limited and Taiping Life Insurance Company Limited.
Mr. Wong Yuen Fai (Director, Deputy General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive)

Mr. Wong, aged 54, joined the Bank as a Deputy General Manager in July 2004 and was appointed as a Director and an Alternate
Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2004. Mr. Wong was also appointed as a Director of ICBC (Asia) Investment Holdings
Limited, ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited, ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited, ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited and UB
China Business Management Co. Ltd., all are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank. Mr. Wong was also appointed as a Director
of Chinese Mercantile Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank in September 2005. Mr. Wong is an associate member of The
Chartered Institute of Bankers (UK) and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (UK). He holds a Master’s
Degree in Applied Finance from the Macquarie University, Australia. Mr. Wong has 36 years of banking experience. Prior to joining
the Bank, Mr. Wong was the Chief Executive Officer of Standard Chartered Bank, China from January 2001 to June 2003. Mr. Wong
is currently a member of the Hong Kong Housing Authority, a member of the Hong Kong Town Planning Board, a member of the
Banking Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, a member of the Standing Committee on Directorate Salaries
and Conditions of Service, a member of the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal, the Honorary Treasurer of Friends of the Earth

(HK) and the Chairman of the Hong Kong Dance Company.
Mr. Zhang Yi (Director, Deputy General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive)

Mr. Zhang, aged 47, joined the Bank as an Assistant General Manager in January 2003 and was promoted as a Deputy General
Manager of the Bank in December 2003. Mr. Zhang was appointed as a Director and an Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank
in March 2005. He is also a Director of Chinese Mercantile Bank, ICBC (Asia) Investment Holdings Limited and ICBC (Asia)
Investment Management Company Limited, all are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank. Mr. Zhang graduated from Shanghai
University of Finance & Economics with a Master’s Degree in Money & Banking and qualified as a Senior Economist. Prior to
joining the Bank, Mr. Zhang was the General Manager of Financial Planning Department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China Limited, Shanghai Municipal Branch.
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Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S., ].P. (Independent Non-executive Director)

Professor Wong, aged 57, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in July 2000. Professor Wong is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Bank. Professor Wong studied Economics at the University of Chicago and graduated
with a Doctorate in Philosophy. Professor Wong is the Deputy Vice-Chancellor and Provost of The University of Hong Kong. He
has been active in advancing economic research on policy issues in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China through his work
as founding Director of both the Hong Kong Centre for Economic Research and Hong Kong Institute of Economics and Business
Strategy. Professor Wong was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in 1999 by the Government of the HKSAR for his contributions in

education, housing, industry and technology development.
Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Tsui, aged 60, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in August 2000. Mr. Tsui is the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee of the Bank. Mr. Tsui graduated from University of Tennessee with a Bachelor of Science Degree
and a Master of Engineering Degree in Industrial Engineering. He has completed the Program for Senior Managers in Government
at the John F. Kennedy School of Government at Harvard University. Mr. Tsui is currently the Chairman of WAG Worldsec
Corporate Finance Limited and also the Vice-Chairman of China Mergers and Acquisition Association. Prior to his current
appointment, he was the Adviser and Council Member of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange from July 2001 to June 2002 and was the
Chief Executive of Regent Pacific Group Limited, a Hong Kong listed investment company, from August 2000 to February 2001. He
was also the Chairman of Hong Kong Securities Institute from December 2001 to December 2004. He joined The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited in 1994 as an Executive Director of the Finance and Operations Services Division and became the Chief
Executive from 1997 to 2000. He was also the Chief Operating Officer of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited from March
2000 to July 2000 and the General Manager (Finance, Technology & Human Resources), and then Assistant Director (Licensing),
and at the same time the General Manager (Human Resources) of the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong from
1989 to 1993. Mr. Tsui also involved in numerous government and community activities, including being a former Chairman of
the Supervisory Committee of Tracker Fund of Hong Kong and the Organizing Committee of Independent Commission Against
Corruption Professional Ethics Programme for the Securities, Futures and Investments Sectors, a former member of the Standing
Committee on Company Law Reform, the Hong Kong Trade Development Council Financial Services Advisory Committee,
The Community Chest of Hong Kong Corporate and Employee Contribution Programme Organizing Committee (Banking and
Finance Group), the Banking and Finance Industry Training Board of the Vocational Training Council and the Investment Sub-

Committee of the Government Committee of the Beat Drugs Fund Association.
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Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Yuen, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in April 2003. Mr. Yuen is the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and the Alternate Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Bank. Mr. Yuen is currently an
independent non-executive director of Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited and LeRoi Holdings Limited, both are Hong
Kong listed companies. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree (Honors) in Economics and
Political Science. Mr. Yuen had attended post-graduate studies in marketing management at the International Marketing Institute,
Cambridge, Massachusetts, U.S.A. and had completed the Hong Kong Administrators Course (commissioned by the Hong Kong
Government) in public administration and international relations at Oxford University, the United Kingdom, and the International
Executive Program in INSEAD, France respectively. In June 2003, Mr. Yuen was admitted to the Leadership in Development
Program organised by Kennedy School of Government, Harvard University. In June 2004, Stanford University, California, U.S.A.
had also invited Mr. Yuen to participate in its “Corporate Governance” forum and in early 2006 the University awarded a fellowship
to Mr. Yuen as a non-profit leader at its Centre for Social Innovation. Mr. Yuen had been Chief Executive of The Better Hong Kong
Foundation for nine years since September 1997. Prior to his joining the Foundation, he was the Assistant Director/Acting Deputy
Director of the Information Services Department of the Hong Kong Government. Mr. Yuen plays an active role in organizing
international business conferences in Hong Kong and also takes part in numerous government and community activities, including
being a board member of the East-West Strategic Development Commission. Mr. Yuen was the Panel member of the Central Policy
Unit of the HKSAR Government on the Pan-Pearl River Delta between 2003 and 2007. Mr. Yuen is currently a member of The
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Guangxi Autonomous Region, China; an advisor of the Institute of Finance
and Trade Economics; Chinese Academy of Social Sciences; an advisor of The Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences, China; an
advisor of The Board of International Investment of Guangzhou Municipality, China; and a Special Advisor of the China National
Committee for Pacific Economic Cooperation (PECC China). Mr. Yuen is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a
member of the British Institute of Management and the Institute of Marketing, United Kingdom, and was also commended by the

former U.S. President, George W. Bush for his efforts in support of coalition’s campaign against global terrorism.
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Mr. Fung Siu Ming (Deputy General Manager and Chief Risk Officer)

Mr. Fung, aged 57, was appointed as the Chief Risk Officer of the Bank on 10 October 2005, the appointed day for the merger of
the Bank and Belgian Bank, Hong Kong Branch, and was promoted as a Deputy General Manager of the Bank in January 2006.
Mr. Fung is also a Director of ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank. Mr. Fung holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences and Law from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Fung has over 35 years of local banking

experience specialised in bank lending and credit risk management.
Mr. Zong Jianxin (Deputy General Manager)

Mr. Zong, aged 43, joined the Bank as a Deputy General Manager in January 2010 and oversees the overall development and
operation of Corporate Banking and Institutions businesses of the Bank. Mr. Zong graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tung University
with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration and qualified as a Economist. Mr. Zong has over 14 years banking experience,
specialised in corporate banking, international business and investment banking businesses. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Zong

was the Vice President of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, Shenzhen Branch.
Mr. Leung Ming Hym, Peter (Assistant General Manager and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Leung, aged 47, joined the Bank in July 2001 and was appointed as an Assistant General Manager and the Chief Financial
Officer in March 2007. Mr. Leung is also a Director of certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank, namely, ICBC (Asia)
Investment Holdings Limited, ICBCA (C.I.) Limited, ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited, ICBC (Asia) Asset
Management Company Limited and UB China Business Management Co. Ltd.. Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting
and Financial Analysis from University of Newcastle upon Tyne, UK and a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws from University of London,
UK. Mr. Leung is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and serves on its Members’
Advisory Panel. He is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of

Chartered Certified Accountants (UK). Mr. Leung has over 18 years of experience in corporate finance.
Mr. Cheng Yiu Lung (Assistant General Manager and Chief Operation Officer)

Mr. Cheng, aged 54, joined the Bank as an Assistant General Manager and the Chief Operation Officer in March 2007. Mr. Cheng
was also appointed as a Director of ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, in August 2007.
Mr. Cheng holds a Master’s Degree of Electronic Commerce and a Bachelor’s Degree of Business Administration from The Open
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng has over 35 years of banking experience, specialised in operations management and control.

Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Cheng was the Alternate Chief Executive of Wachovia Bank, N.A. Hong Kong Branch.
Mr. Jiang Yisheng (Assistant General Manager)

Mr. Jiang, aged 43, joined the Bank as an Assistant General Manager in April 2007 and oversees the overall development and
operation of corporate banking product development, electronic banking, securities business and special assets business of the
Bank. Mr. Jiang graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering and a Master’s Degree in
Economics. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Jiang was the General Manager of International Business Department of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited, Guangdong Branch and President of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited,

Zhuhai Branch. Mr. Jiang has over 14 years of banking and finance experience.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Asia) Limited (the “Bank”) have pleasure in submitting its annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Bank and the Group (the Bank together
with its subsidiaries hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking, financial and other
financial related services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are shown in
Note 35 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating segments is set out
in Note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 83.

The Board has declared an interim dividend of HK$0.28 per ordinary share, totaling
HK$363,787,000 which was paid on 9 October 2009.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.57 per
ordinary share, totaling approximately HK$751,454,000 for the year ended 31
December 2009, subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Bank during the year are set out
in Note 42 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$762,000.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in investment properties and property, plant and
equipment of the Group and the Bank during the year are set out in Notes 31 and 32
to the financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Bank are set out in Note 41 to the
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Bank at 31 December 2009, calculated in accordance
with the provision of section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HK$3,936,124,000.
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A A 2 FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
VAR By A S 3308 5 AW P IBUAE S 2 264 - W S AR o A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out below.

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
T#T T T T T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
B3 Results
TR A i ] Profit attributable
to equity holders 2,526,142 969,023 1,608,788 1,245,592 980,601
¥ Mg Assets and liabilities
G AR Total assets 215,753,829 194,564,109 192,304,060 146,391,759 115,781,677
AR Total liabilities 197,649,232 180,626,331 177,295,921 135,306,456 105,911,823
JBE R REAS A A Capital and reserve
KAt attributable to equity holders 18,104,597 13,937,778 15,008,139 11,085,303 9,869,854
215,753,829 194,564,109 192,304,060 146,391,759 115,781,677
JEE R O AR ERAT R R PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE BANK’S
LISTED SECURITIES
AR ERAT TP A R M T 1A A AT BT R 55 - AR ERAT S AT During the year, the Bank has not redeemed any of its listed securities. Neither
T WA GBS 2 W I AR R TS S e B AR SRAT AT LT o the Bank nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Bank’s listed
securities.
HEE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AN GRAT T AR B e T A A i TR H O 2 R The Board of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:
T

ZAH A () Dr. Jiang Jianqing (Chairman)

FRERE Lt (R Ms. Wang Lili (Vice Chairlady)

R -PSEAE (B 5 AR A A T AR ) Mr. Chen Aiping (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
[ R e Mr. Hu Hao

B SR Mr. Wong Yuen Fai

Bk Mr. Zhang Yi

FFi#d% > SBS. » KF4ht* Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S.,].P. *

TR S A Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec *

R ek Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George *

* WA EPATES * Independent Non-executive Director

o TR S8R4T (BHN) A PR AW Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 53
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. Wang Lili, Mr. Chen Aiping and Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S.,].P,,
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with
Articles 94(1) and 94(2) of the Bank’s Articles of Association. All retiring Directors,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Bank are not appointed for specific term but subject to the retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the Bank’s Articles
of Association.

STATUS OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Bank has received from each Independent Non-executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). Based on such confirmation and the information
available to the Bank, the Bank considers all of its Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has any existing or proposed service contract with the Bank which is
not expiring or terminable within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Bank
or any of its holding company, subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year and in the normal course of business, the Group entered into a
number of transactions which, in the opinion of the Directors, constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules. The transactions were with Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”), the ultimate holding company of the
Bank, and its fellow subsidiaries (collectively the “ICBC Group”) and the details of
these transactions are as follows:

1. Derivatives transactions

The Bank entered into various derivatives transactions with the ICBC Group,
including but not limited to interest rate swaps and various options contracts
for the purpose of balance sheet and/or interest rate risk management or
hedging against customer-driven transactions.

The total notional amount of the outstanding derivatives transactions
between the Bank and the ICBC Group during 2009 was approximately
HK$2,288,810,000 (2008: HK$4,018,305,000). The interest income and
expense attributable to these transactions in 2009 were approximately
HK$80,670,000 (2008: HK$185,841,000) and HK$96,069,000 (2008:
HK$220,062,000) respectively. No net option premium expense was
attributable to these transactions in 2009 (2008: HK$101,000).

2. Foreign exchange transactions

The Bank also entered into foreign exchange contracts with the ICBC Group
for the purpose of foreign exchange risk management and in response to
customer-driven transactions in a similar manner as mentioned above for
derivatives transactions. The total contractual amount of the outstanding
foreign exchange transactions with the ICBC Group during 2009, including
spot, forward and swap transactions, was approximately HK$16,684,658,000
(2008: HK$17,826,688,000).

3. Inter-bank capital markets transactions

The Bank entered into the following inter-bank capital markets transactions
with the ICBC Group for the purpose of portfolio and risk management and
compliance with the relevant regulatory requirements. The transactions could
also provide long term funding to the Bank and its subsidiaries for general
working capital:

(a)  buying and selling debt securities (either issued by independent third
parties or the ICBC Group) from and to the ICBC Group in the primary
and secondary markets;

(b)  buying and selling debt securities on behalf of the ICBC Group; and

(c)  selling debt securities issued by the Bank and its subsidiaries.

o TR 8RAT (BHN) A PR AW Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 55
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3. Inter-bank capital markets transactions (continued)

Approximately HK$178,326,000 (2008: HK$217,003,000) of debt securities
were sold to the ICBC Group, in primary and secondary markets in 2009. On
the other hand, no debt securities (2008: Nil) were purchased from the ICBC
Group in 2009.

The Bank issued and subscribed by ICBC floating rate certificates of deposit
with nominal value of US$100,000,000 (2008: fixed rate certificates of deposit
with nominal value of US$100,000,000). The interest expense attributable to
these certificates of deposit in 2009 was approximately HK$16,192,000 (2008:
HK$42,749,000).

In addition, the Bank issued subordinated floating rate notes totalling
US$975,000,000 and HK$1,000,000,000 (2008: US$975,000,000 and
HK$1,000,000,000) and were fully subscribed by ICBC. The interest expense
attributable to these notes in 2009 was approximately HK$147,886,000 (2008:
HK$292,565,000).

4. Capital markets transactions

The Bank entered into various capital markets transactions with the Hong
Kong Branch of ICBC (the “Branch”), which include arranging participation/
sub-participation in loans, acquiring and disposing of interests in syndicated
or individual loans, subscribing to and/or issuing of debt securities and tax
efficient financing. These transactions included sub-participation in loans
of the Bank by the ultimate holding company and/or the Branch for a total
of HK$36,048,500,000 (2008: HK$130,793,038,000). For 2008, there was
similar sub-participation in loans of the Branch by the Bank for a total of
HK$24,178,687,000, but no such transaction took place during 2009. Total fee
attributable to the above transactions of approximately HK$28,737,000 (2008:
HK$48,745,000) was paid by the Bank to the Branch in 2009.

5. Trade finance transactions

The Bank entered into trade finance transactions with the ICBC Group which
included buying and selling interests in certain trade finance products only
in relation to bills of exchange secured under letters of credit, inwards and
outwards collection, and trade loans. Approximately HK$17,523,873,000 of
the above trade finance transactions with the ICBC Group were entered into
in 2009 (2008: HK$30,006,247,000).

Pursuant to a master agreement dated 14 December 2007, the Bank has entered into
the ongoing banking transactions with the ICBC Group as listed above under items 1
to 5. A waiver from strict compliance of the Listing Rules for disclosure requirements
for the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions between the Bank and
the ICBC Group has been granted by the Stock Exchange in November 2007.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

6.

Dividend services

Pursuant to a dividend services agreement dated 4 June 2007, ICBC (Asia)
Trustee Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, was
appointed by ICBC to provide services in relation to the distribution and
payment of dividends payable by ICBC to the holders of its H shares of
RMB1.00 each (the “ICBC Shares”) and such services include, but are not
limited to, facilitating the payment of dividends by ICBC to the holders of
the ICBC Shares through the bank accounts of the Bank and handling any
unclaimed dividend payments in respect of the ICBC Shares that arise from
time to time.

Total service fee received by the Group from ICBC in 2009 was approximately
HK$241,000 (2008: HK$457,000).

Custodian and trustee services

Pursuant to a custodian and trustee services agreement dated 4 September
2007 (as amended and supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 16
May 2008), the Bank was appointed by ICBC to provide custodian, settlement
and clearing services to ICBC in relation to the investments outside the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in certain investment products
held by the customers of ICBC in connection with the Qualified Domestic
Institutional Investor scheme of the PRC. On 31 December 2009, the Bank
entered into a second supplemental agreement with ICBC to extend the
service period for a further term of 3 years commenced from 31 December
2009.

Total service fee received by the Group from ICBC in 2009 was approximately
HK$7,932,000 (2008: HK$6,274,000).

Data processing services

Pursuant to a service levels agreement dated 21 February 2002 (as amended
and supplemented by supplemental agreements dated 31 December 2004, 4
February 2005, 28 September 2006, 19 February 2008 and 30 December 2008),
ICBC through its overseas data centre agreed to provide data processing and
other related services to the Bank, including (amongst other things) a new
on-line application system, inter-bank deposit and fund transfer application,
customer information application, bank cashier’s order application and an
up-graded operating system to the Bank.

During 2009, the total service fee paid by the Bank to ICBC was approximately
RMB15,087,500 (equivalent to approximately HK$17,121,000) (2008:
HK$14,289,000).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

8.

Data processing services (continued)

On 19 March 2008, Chinese Mercantile Bank (“CMB”), a bank established in
PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, entered into a CMB service
levels agreement with ICBC whereby the overseas data centre of ICBC agreed
to provide data processing services including a data storage server, application
server, on-line application server, storage facilities and network facilities to
CMB for the period from 25 March 2008 and expiring on 31 December 2010,
and is renewable for a further one year period subject to the consent of both
parties as well as compliance with relevant regulatory requirements.

During 2009, the total service fee paid by CMB to ICBC was RMB525,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$596,000) (2008: RMB453,750).

Pursuant to a credit card service levels agreement dated 30 December 2008,
ICBC through its overseas data center agreed to provide data processing and
other related services to the Bank’s credit cards for two years commenced
on 1 January 2009. Total service fee paid by the Bank to ICBC in 2009 was
approximately HK$400,000 (2008: HK$400,000).

Securities brokerage agency services

On 4 January 2008, the Bank entered into a securities brokerage agency
agreement (as supplemented) (the “First Agency Agreement”) with Macau
branch of ICBC whereby the Bank agreed to provide Hong Kong securities
brokerage and related services to Macau branch of ICBC for providing back-
to-back services to its customers for a term of one year commencing from 4
January 2008 renewable for successive terms of one year each.

On 13 February 2009, Seng Heng Bank (a subsidiary of ICBC) opened
a standard omnibus account with the Bank, which was supplemented
by a supplemental agreement dated 1 April 2009 (the “Second Agency
Agreement”), whereby the Bank agreed to provide Hong Kong securities
brokerage and related services to Seng Heng Bank for providing back-to-
back services to its customers for a term of three years commenced from
1 April 2009. Following the integration of businesses of Macau branch of
ICBC with Seng Heng Bank on 11 July 2009 and renamed as Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited (“ICBC, Macau”), the provision
of Hong Kong securities brokerage and related services by the Bank has been
conducted under the Second Agency Agreement.

During 2009, the total service fees (comprising commissions and other
related service fees) paid by ICBC, Macau to the Bank was approximately
HK$8,651,000 (2008: HK$1,136,000).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

10.

11.

Management service to the Hong Kong Branch of ICBC

Under the collaboration agreement between the Bank and ICBC dated 3 July
2001, the Bank agreed to undertake all the banking business then undertaken
by the Branch (other than its treasury operation and specific loans and
deposits retained by the Branch) or which was within the scope of the type
or category of banking business previously undertaken by the Branch. On 13
February 2008, the Bank entered into a renewed collaboration agreement with
ICBC whereby the Bank agreed to continue to undertake the aforementioned
banking business then undertaken by the Branch and to provide management
services to the Branch. The renewed collaboration agreement commenced
from 1 January 2008 and expiring on 31 December 2010.

ICBC agreed to reimburse the Bank for the time costs of its personnel in
providing the management service and associated expenses and overheads. In
addition, ICBC agreed to pay a monthly fee of HK$120,000 for the services,
with such fees to be reviewed on a quarterly basis.

During 2009, the total service fee received by the Bank from ICBC was
approximately HK$6,000,000 (2008: HK$6,000,000).

Premises income, premises expense and fee expense

The Bank entered into the following types of agreements with the ICBC
Group:

(a) granting a licence for ICEA Services Limited, a company indirectly
owned by ICBC, to occupy the premises of suites 2504-5, 25th floor of
ICBC Tower pursuant to a licence agreement dated 15 July 2008 for a
period from 15 July 2008 and expiring on 31 May 2010;

(b)  granting licenses to occupy premises of suites 2501-2, 25th floor, the
whole of the 26th floor and portion of floor area of 28th floor of ICBC
Tower to ICBC Group pursuant to licence agreements dated 30 May
2007 and 31 May 2007 respectively, with expiry dates both on 31
December 2009; and

(c) renting a portion of the first floor of No. 9 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong as the Central Branch of the Bank pursuant to a tenancy
agreement dated 31 December 2008, with expiry on 31 December 2011.
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11.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Premises income, premises expense and fee expense (continued)

The total premises income (excluding charges payable on reimbursement
basis) received from ICBC Group in respect of (a) and (b) above in 2009 were
approximately HK$24,261,000 (2008: HK$24,174,000). In respect of (c) above,
the total premise (excluding management fee) expenses paid to the ICBC
Group in 2009 were approximately HK$6,000,000 (2008: HK$5,400,000).

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed
that the connected transactions as disclosed herein were conducted in the

following manner:

(&)

(2

Such transactions were:

(]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

entered into by the Bank in the ordinary and usual course of its
business;

entered into on an arm’s length basis, as applicable;

conducted either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) if there
are no sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms that are fair and
reasonable so far as the Bank and the independent shareholders
are concerned; and

entered into either (a) in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions; or (b) (where there
are no such agreements) on terms that are no less favourable
than those available to or from independent third parties, as
applicable.

The annual aggregate value of each of the relevant categories of the
connected transactions has not exceeded the annual upper limit or
specified threshold, as applicable.

The auditors of the Bank have confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions carried out during the year:

(]

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

have received the approval of the Board;

are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Bank if the
transactions involve the provision of goods or services by the
Bank;

have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

have not exceeded the cap disclosed in the previous
announcements (if applicable).
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.20 OF THE LISTING
RULES

During the year, the Group had made Relevant Advances to the ICBC Group in
the ordinary course of the Group’s banking business which, in aggregate, exceed
8% under the assets ratio as defined under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Bank is under a general obligation to disclose the details of the
Relevant Advances and therefore the disclosure below is made in compliance with
Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2009, the types of Relevant Advances and the balances of the
relevant outstanding amounts due from, and all guarantees given on behalf of, the
ICBC Group were as follows:

AR EUN Types of the Relevant Advances
THETT
HK$°000
7 B LR SRAT SR I 2 B 5 Bk CR R Trade Loan to ICBC Group outstanding 8,965,484
TS B R A T A I A A TR PRAE CR R Confirmed ICBC Group Standby Letter of

Credit/Guarantee outstanding 573,136
7 B LR SRAT AR 1 2 B W T RIS CRAER) Money Market Placements to ICBC Group outstanding 7,161,160

P27 i B R SR A 2 SR A Syndication/Club/Revolving Short-term Loan
RGBT MBS R CR ) to ICBC Group outstanding 2,525,317
Vg vl 1 R AT S T 5% 2 A B ARk A Total Relevant Advances to ICBC Group 19,225,097

AT B B R T B BRI AT SRAT IR S i B e 2 i ) R Rt
B MBS YRS 2 B R TS b B R RA T AR R BLA T
SRATR SEHF AR E o A B R R A 31 00 IR 2 M
A B K S R — i S R A R 4 s R4 G
AT TH B G M, REEIN =) o 527 B TRReT
4 B 2 AT B B0 AR AT HE AT AR AR

P2 i B TR AR 4 B 2 AT B EE T il AR B R 1 R
TTEBRE T - H BLEA B S sl 5 B0 2 A
B R 2 IE 3 7 SE MR > I AT A A S R B B T
PAERAT AR B R 5L 2 R ARAT S8 20 ) 2 — B

The interest rates charged for the Relevant Advances mostly are floating interest
rates based on the prevailing interbank offer rate, except for money market
placements whose interest rates are set by the ICBC Group and based on the
prevailing interbank bid rate. The Relevant Advances are repayable in full at
maturity, and the maturity date for the Relevant Advances generally ranges from
overnight to one year, or longer than one year for capital market instruments and
standby letter of credit/guarantee. The Relevant Advances to the ICBC Group are
not secured by any collateral.

The Relevant Advances to the ICBC Group were made by the Group in the
ordinary course of the Group’s banking business, and on normal commercial
terms commensurate with customers of the Group having similar credit ratings or
financial strengths, and as part of the ongoing banking transactions entered into
between the Group and the ICBC Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests of the Directors and chief executives of the
Bank in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Bank and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) (the “Associated Corporations”) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Bank
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules were as follows:-

iz o

A JBASHEA T 23 Be

Bepr i H B2 A0 Approximate %

Name of ERE L Capacity in which Number of Total of total issued

WA Director 250 interests are held shares held interests share capital
L L Dr. Jiang Jianqing Haa A Beneficial owner 14,985 14,985 0.0011%
TREEEA Mr. Zhang Yi EREEA N Beneficial owner 2,156 2,156 0.0002%
Ak Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George EmBEA A Beneficial owner 17,709 17,709 0.0013%

bt 2 TOME AR B S R o AR BRAT 4 O M B e 15
352 MR A7 B 2 S Re il - i —FFE+ A =+ —
H o> AR Al ek o

Br B R gR #550 » IR = FFIAEF A =+ —H o R
725 e sl R AT BON B s 2 Tl el 18 5 2 T
MR w4 i T R AR SR AT BCHAT TR B O B AT AT A
I BRARSR A - T A AR RS 5 B B 1565 352020
TAFE 2 G RO EARSE A R UE R AR T BB AL P o

AR B Z RER

ARGRAT ~ HARMC AT ~ 25 B 24 W) 585 () AR e 2 m R 4
DAL ART IR )AL e T S7 A AT 2 B > B30{ AR SRAT 28 S Tt R
AR GRAT B A A 35 A P A 2 B A B 5 i A o
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All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 December 2009, no
short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Bank or their spouses or children under 18 years of age were
granted, or had exercised, any rights to subscribe for any equity or debt securities
of the Bank or any of its Associated Corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Bank and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding company, or its
subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Bank or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2009, so far as the Board was aware, the following persons (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Bank) were interested in 5% or more of
the issued share capital or short positions in shares or underlying shares of the Bank
which would fall to be disclosed to the Bank under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO:-

i &M e AT
TR B FH A BERI T 2 o
Capacity in Bty ¥ H B2 845 Approximate %
B A which interests Number of Total of total issued
Name of shareholder are held shares held interests share capital
o B P SRAT IR fognt 2N 954,516,464 954,516,464 72.40%
AR
Industrial and Commercial Bank Beneficial owner
of China Limited
T B A IR ST 2 A AR 954,516,464 954,516,464 72.40%
FALL ] )
Central Huijin Investment Interest of controlled
Limited Mo« corporation
RIE PNERE ] g R 2 954,516,464 954,516,464 72.40%
Ministry of Finance of the Interest of controlled
People’s Republic of China ™o corporation
B E - Note:

oI TR SRAT IR A B A A (T ep ) R 8RAT ) 23 AR 4RAT 954,516,464
JBA I 2 RN o A IR S B A FRITE A A ([ il
S 1) R N RSN I B O (AR )) 4% B A HERS o I TR 4R AT
IR EAT RS RIAT B =0 2 — sk b 2 B bR
S B BB AT %S By 2 MR o

Al A TRRE SR I AE T o ARARASRAT H2 75 Ir MW B R 05
3365 A7 B 2 BRe M Tl R =R FILE+ A = —
H o> SRR E o

W Bl il e 5h - R “EFFAET A =+ —H o e
ARARTN L (ARERAT 2 SR AT BN B BRAE) W R AR
T > AT AR 8 I S B0 091 5 XV o8 2 A SO T AR AT ¢
e BRCHOA A ERAT 12 78 7 B U A 565 336 IR ZEAF 2 T
g 2 R SR B A7 BRI B 073 2 i A

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”) is the legal owner of 954,516,464
ordinary shares of the Bank. Each of Central Huijin Investment Limited (“Central Huijin”) and
Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China (“Ministry of Finance”) is interested in
such shares as a result of Central Huijin and Ministry of Finance being entitled to exercise, or
control the exercise of, one-third or more of the voting power at general meetings of ICBC.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 December 2009, no
short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, the Bank had not been notified by
any persons (other than the Directors and chief executives of the Bank) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Bank which
would fall to be disclosed to the Bank under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is a summary of the Share Option Scheme, disclosed in accordance
with the Listing Rules:

1.  Purpose

To provide incentives and rewards to eligible participants for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of the Bank
and to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees.

2.  Participants

The Chief Executive Officer of the Bank, the Directors and any full-time
employees of the Bank or its subsidiaries.

3. Total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme together with the percentage of the issued share capital as at
the date of the annual report

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Bank, if any, must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue on 10 May 2007 (the date of the passing of the
resolution approving the Share Option Scheme), that is, 112,125,921 shares
(representing approximately 8.51% of the issued share capital as at the date of
the annual report).

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
(granted and to be granted, whether exercised, cancelled or outstanding)
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Bank to each participant in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
share capital of the Bank then in issue.

5. Period within which the shares must be taken up under an option

Such period as shall be prescribed by the Directors to each grantee, and in
the absence of such determination from the date upon which the offer for
the grant of option is accepted but shall end in any event not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the option subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof.

6.  Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised

The Directors may, at their absolute discretion, fix any minimum period for
which an option must be held, any performance targets that must be achieved
and any other conditions that must be fulfilled before the options can be
exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

7. Amount payable on application or acceptance of the option and the
period within which payments or calls must be made or loans for
such purposes must be repaid

A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer of the grant
of an option.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days from the date of
the offer of the grant of the option.

8.  Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share in respect of any option granted under the
Share Option Scheme is determined by the Directors but it must be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant of the option, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
shares.

9. Remaining life

Subject to early termination and approval of the shareholders of ICBC, the
Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the date on which the Share Option Scheme is adopted by
resolutions of the shareholders of the Bank in its general meeting.

The Share Option Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Bank at the
annual general meeting held on 10 May 2007. The adoption of the Share Option
Scheme is subject to the approval of the shareholders of ICBC, the holding company
of the Bank. During the year, no option has been granted (2008: Nil).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered into or existed during the
year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than 30%
of the total of interest income and other operating income of the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Bank has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Bank and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Bank.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance
practices and also follows the module set out in the Supervisory Policy Manual
entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized Institutions”
issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) on 21 September 2001.
Details of the Bank’s corporate governance practices are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 68 to 80 of its 2009 Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BANKING (DISCLOSURE) RULES

The Bank is required to comply with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules effective 1
January 2007, which have superseded the supervisory policy manual on financial
disclosure issued by the HKMA. The Banking (Disclosure) Rules set out the
minimum standards for public disclosure which locally incorporated authorised
institutions must disclose in respect of the income statement, state of affairs and
capital adequacy. The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2009 have been fully complied with the applicable disclosure provisions as set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors of the Bank (including Executive Directors and
Non-executive Directors) on named basis are set out in Note 17 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the following Directors of the Bank
had declared interests in the following entities which businesses are considered to
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Bank during the year:

Dr. Jiang Jianqing is the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Limited.

Ms. Wang Lili is the Chairlady of ICBC (London) Limited.

Mr. Chen Aiping is the Vice Chairman of ICBC International Holdings Limited
and a Director of ICEA Finance Holdings Limited. He was formerly a Director of
Xiamen International Bank of which he resigned as a Director in April 2009.

Mr. Hu Hao is the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Luxembourg S.A. and a Director of Xiamen International Bank.

All of the above companies provide an extensive range of financial services.

The Board of the Bank, including three Independent Non-executive Directors,
provides independent views to the Board in making the Board’s decisions. The
Audit Committee of the Bank, with majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors, meets regularly to assist the Board in reviewing the financial
performance, internal control and compliance of the Bank and its subsidiaries. The
Bank is, therefore, capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at
arm’s length from, the businesses of the above companies in which Directors have
declared interests.
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A5 W AUDITORS
AERAT 2 556 BB R O B Tk G R ER S5 T % 2 % - The consolidated financial statements of the Bank have been audited by Ernst &
MBI T AR > MR I - A AN WA Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. There
T A% BT have been no changes of auditors in the past three years.

HREH i On behalf of the Board

B3 Dr. Jiang Jianqing

Lt Chairman

Filk > “F—FE=A -+ IWH Hong Kong, 24 March 2010
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The Bank is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance
practices and also follows the module set out in the Supervisory Policy Manual
entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized Institutions”
issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (‘HKMA”) on 21 September 2001.
The Bank has complied with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2009, except
for the deviations from code provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2 which are explained in the
relevant paragraphs below.

In order to show its continuous commitment in the development of corporate
governance, the Bank has also adopted its “Corporate Governance Manual” on 24
March 2009 to further enforce the commitment by the Bank on promoting corporate
governance.

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A.1 The Board
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) has collective responsibility for
leadership and control of the Bank and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Bank by directing and supervising the
Bank’s affairs. The Board sets strategies for the Bank and monitors the
performance and activities of the senior management.

Board meetings are held at least once every quarter, such regular Board
meetings will normally involve the active participation, either in person
or through other electronic means of communication, of a majority of
Directors entitled to be present. Special Board meetings will be held
when necessary.

The Board of the Bank held four meetings in 2009. The attendance
records of individual Directors are as follows:

L)Y iR Y
Number of Meetings

WS Name of Director Attended/Held

LWL Dr. Jiang Jianging 3/4
(FEREHFEAITHEDSE) (Chairman and Non-executive Director)

TRERE &L Ms. Wang Lili 4/4
(R F e FERATHE ) (Vice Chairlady and Non-executive Director)

PR EZF-5EE Mr. Chen Aiping 4/4
(HE AR T B (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer) 4/4

BT e Mr. Hu Hao
(FERATHES) (Non-executive Director)

BOE Mr. Wong Yuen Fai 4/4
(BfT#EH) (Executive Director)

REEEAE Mr. Zhang Yi 4/4
(BUTHEF) (Executive Director)

FTii%d% > sBs. > KFs+ Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S.,J.P. 4/4
(B IF AT ) (Independent Non-executive Director)

RS Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec 4/4
(BSLIEHITHE ) (Independent Non-executive Director)

A Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George 4/4
(B IF AT ) (Independent Non-executive Director)
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A2

A3

Board Process

Directors are consulted on matters in the agenda of regular Board
meetings. Director(s) may seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances to assist him/her in discharging his/her
duties to the Bank. Directors also have access to advice and services
of the Company Secretary to ensure due compliance of the Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations.

Notice of meeting shall be given to all Directors by the Company
Secretary at least two weeks before the date of the meeting to provide
sufficient notice to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Under
special circumstances, the Company Secretary will promptly contact
all Directors by way of telephone. Agenda and accompanying papers
containing analysis and background information are circulated to all
Directors not less than 3 business days before the intended date of Board
meeting.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board and the Board committees have
been recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the Board committees, decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views (if any) expressed. Draft and
final versions of the minutes of the Board and the Board committees are
sent to all Directors or members of the Board Committees (as the case
may be) for their comments and records respectively.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the
Corporate Governance Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors of the Bank
are kept by the Company Secretary. Minutes of the meetings of the
Remuneration Committee and other Specialised committees (as listed
under Section D.1 of this report) are kept by the appointed secretary
of each committee. Minutes of the meetings of the Board and all the
Board committees are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter (including material transaction with connected persons) which
the Board has determined to be material, the relevant matter will be
dealt with at a Board meeting in accordance with the requirements as set
out in the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of the Bank.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Jiang Jianqing is a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the
Board. Mr. Chen Aiping is the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank. With
the support of the experienced senior management, Mr. Chen assumes
the responsibility to supervise the daily management and operations
of the Bank, including the implementation of major strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board of Directors from time to time. The
roles of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank
are segregated, with a clear division of responsibilities.

With the support of the Executive Directors and the senior
management, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
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A.4 Board Composition

A5

As at the date of this report, the Board of the Bank consisted of nine
Directors comprising three Executive Directors, three Non-executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. All the
Directors are expressly identified by such categories in all corporate
communications that disclose their names. The Bank has received
from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence by reference to the guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Bank considers all of them to
be independent.

The Bank benefits from the substantial business, banking and
professional experience of its Directors. Biography of the Directors is set
out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
section under the Bank’s 2009 Annual Report.

Dr. Jiang Jianqing is the chairman of the board of directors of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”, the substantial
shareholder of the Bank), Ms. Wang Lili is the senior executive vice
president of ICBC, Mr. Hu Hao is the general manager of International
Business Department of ICBC and Mr. Wong Yuen Fai is the deputy
general manager of ICBC, Hong Kong Branch. Save as disclosed
above, the Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal

The Bank uses a formal, considered and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new Directors. The appointment of new Directors will
be discussed by the Nomination Committee before recommending
to the Board for consideration and approval after due deliberation.
In accordance with the requirement under the Banking Ordinance,
approval from HKMA will also be obtained for any appointment of
new Directors. All new Directors are subject to election by shareholders
of the Bank at the next scheduled Annual General Meeting after their
appointments have become effective, and shall then be entitled for re-
election.

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Bank are not appointed for specific term but subject
to the retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings in accordance with the Bank’s Articles of Association. At each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not exceeding one-third, shall retire from office by rotation. All the
retiring Directors are eligible for re-election.

In compliance with the requirements of code provision A.4.2 and
Articles 94(1) and 94(2) of Articles of Association of the Bank, Ms.
Wang Lili, Mr. Chen Aiping and Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard,
S.B.S., J.P., will offer themselves for retirement at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Bank and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.
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A.6

Save for the above-mentioned retiring Directors, who will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
of the Bank, as at the date of this report, no Director held office for over
three years.

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction of
regulatory requirements. The Directors are continually updated on the
latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practice.

During the year, the Nomination Committee of the Bank has reviewed
the organisation structure of the Bank and considered the structure and
composition of the Board.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Bank regularly reminds all Directors of their functions and
responsibilities and updates them of the legal and regulatory
developments. Through regular Board meetings and circulation of
regular financial reports and other materials (such as minutes of the
meetings of the Board, Board Committees and Specialised committees,
where appropriate), all Directors are informed of the business operation
and financial situation of the Bank.

The functions of the Non-executive Directors of the Bank as set out in
the Terms of Reference of the Board include the functions as specified
in code provision A.5.2 (a) to (d) of the Code (with appropriate
modifications when necessary).

The Bank has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. The Bank confirms that, having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2009.

Employees who are deemed to be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information of the Bank or its securities are required to
follow the same manner as Directors with respect to the notification
and reporting requirements when dealing in the Bank’s securities.
Other employees shall follow strictly the requirements as set out in the
“Guidelines on Employee Securities Dealing” issued by the Bank.

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities has
been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group against
risk exposure arising from operating businesses of the Group.
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A.7 Board Committees

The Board has set up five committees, namely Audit Committee,
Corporate Governance Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Risk Management Committee of Board

of Directors.

Each of these Board committees has specific written Terms of Reference
which state clearly with its authority and duties. The Terms of Reference
of Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee have primarily included the duties prescribed in code
provisions and/or recommended best practices as contained in the
Code with appropriate modifications when necessary. All Board
committees are comprised mainly of non-executive Directors.
All Board committees report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations on a regular basis. Material matters are reserved for
the approval of the Board according to the terms of reference of such
committees.

Corporate Governance Structure of the Bank

WA

Audit Committee

Board of Directors

Z5 ZH %A :
Members: Members: Members:
TR R et WA e EEB Lt
(F) (FJ) (F/%)
Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George*  Ms. Wang Lili
(Chairman) (Chairman) (Chairlady)
WA e ETFWi#dE - sBS. B A
Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George* P Mr. Hu Hao
B EE Professor Wong Yue Chim, — RIEHESEA:"
Mr. Hu Hao Richard, SB.S. J.p.* Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec*
TR S AT
Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec* Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George*
B S IR A S A
Mr. Hu Hao Mr. Fung Siu Ming*
¢ Independent Non-executive Directors

%A : ZH:
Members: Members:
EFWiHd% - SBS. - Mok
KVt (F/)
(TH) Mr. Chen Aiping
Professor Wong Yue Chim, (Chairman)
Richard, S.BS.J.p# [ibEyies
(Chairman) Mr. Hu Hao
R ek BE MG
(BT ) Mr. Wong Yuen Fai
Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George’  E Filli#f% > S.BS.
(Alternate Chairman) KP4t
G e Professor Wong Yue Chim,
Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec* Richard, $.B.S.,J.p.#
B SEA R e
Mr. Hu Hao Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George*
: L IERAT
* B A
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The Audit Committee meets regularly, normally at least four times a year, with
senior financial and internal audit executives and external auditors, to consider,
among other things, the Bank’s financial reporting, the nature and scope of audit
reviews and the effectiveness of the systems of internal control and compliance. It is
also responsible for making recommendations on the appointment, re-appointment,
removal and remuneration of the Bank’s external auditors.

The Corporate Governance Committee meets at least twice a year. It mainly
oversees and promotes a high standard of corporate governance practices, with the
aim to strengthen the corporate governance framework of the Bank, including but
not limited to risk management and internal controls enhancement. The Corporate
Governance Committee also continuously reviews the appropriate Board structure,
enhances the effectiveness of the independence of the Board, enhances the corporate
transparency and quality of information disclosure and keeps abreast of changes in
regulations, with the aim to maximise sustainable corporate values and shareholders’
interests.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year and is responsible for
assessing the suitability of the candidates and recommending to the Board all new
appointments of Directors and senior executives (including but not limited to
Chief Executive Officer, alternate chief executives, deputy general managers, chief
risk officer, chief financial officer and chief operation officer). The Nomination
Committee also reviews the structure and composition of the Board on a regular
basis.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year and is responsible for
overseeing the remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Bank to
ensure that their remuneration is appropriate for their duties and consistent with the
Bank’s culture, strategy and control environment. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for recommending to the Board on the Bank’s remuneration policy
framework.

The Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors meets regularly on a
quarterly basis. It reviews the Bank’s position in various risks and formulates risk
management principles, basic policies, guidelines and risk appetite of the Bank.
It monitors and reviews the effectiveness of the risk management of the Bank,
including its ability to stand stress conditions. The risks it oversees include credit,
market, operational, interest rate, legal and compliance, liquidity, strategic and
reputation risks.
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Board Committee Members’ Attendance
The attendance record of individual member for each of the Board
Committee during the year are set out below:

TRFIAEIE R ERK B
Number of Meetings Attended/Held during 2009
1 L BB
HORHA
Eie LR Risk
ZHH Management
RUZRY Corporate REZAEY HMZEHE Committee of
Name of Audit Governance Nomination Remuneration Board of
ZHAZAKS Committee Member Committee Committee Committee Committee Directors
EREBE LA Ms. Wang Lili - - - - 4/4
RS Mr. Chen Aiping - 2/2 - - -
BT e Mr. Hu Hao 0/4 0/2 0/1 0/1 2/4
Evidi Vs Mr. Wong Yuen Fai - 1/2 - _ _
ETWHIR - Professor Wong Yue Chim, 4/4 2/2 - 1/1 -
S.B.S.» KF#tr Richard, $.B.,J.p.
MRS A Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec’ 3/4 - 1/1 1/1 3/4
HEEA Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George” 4/4 212 1/1 171 4/4
WIRW] e+ Mr. Fung Siu Ming* - - - - 4/4
: LI RATH : Independent Non-executive Directors
* JE I A * Chief Risk Officer

A8 ERHRBE R
A A T Hb A B Ry A BRAS SRAT A B 2
JIAT DR > DURIEAN 55 7E JE AT AR /2 3 2 BB %
BEIT ERTR RS 2 E © TR E R4 TR
A AT AT U 2 B SRR o

A.8 Supply of and Access to Information
The Directors have given rights on fully and timely access to all relevant
information of the Bank so that they can make an informed decision
in discharging their duties and responsibilities as Directors. The
Board and each Director has separate and independent access to the
management of the Bank.

B. EHLFEAEBAHZHM B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
B.1  HTHKF B AL DA B ok B.1 The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure
WE R g ARG EEF AR E AR Z The Remuneration Committee is responsible for formulating the
P 5RE remuneration policy on Directors and the senior management.

N BIMER T T IRE®  HMER
Tk ERRINERTC EE TR

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting. The
major works performed by the Remuneration Committee during 2009
included:

= BREMIEER G AR KR -
e (BRI T AT )

considered and recommended to the Board the allocation of
performance bonus of the Group (including that of the Executive
Directors);

—  EEARNERGHEESHEEABEE S -
FE)NETZH =1 HIEFEEZ R B
4L

considered and recommended to the Board the performance
bonus of senior management for the year ended 31 December
2008;

—  EEANERGHEBIEIITERRE F -
FENFEFZH=ZT—HIEFEZERM
%

considered and recommended to the Board the Directors’ fee
of the Non-executive Directors for the year ended 31 December
2008;
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- considered and recommended to the Board the remuneration
policy on distribution of performance bonus of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2009.

Information relating to the remuneration of each Director for 2009 is set
out in Note 17 to the financial statements of the Bank.

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

C.1 WHHE C.1 Financial Reporting
WG ] 2 A g Monthly reports on financial results are submitted to the Board for
MEHEAT B S o AR UK H DR 25 & G ik ey ) o ongoing monitoring. Business performance and financial situation of
o MERASRAT 2 R R B IR > DL B the Bank are reported to the Board at each Board meeting to assist the
#E g B AT 2 KRB R AT R B Board to have a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the
IR &R A R I Bank’s performance, position and prospects.
5 H IR R AR AT M IR 2 ] The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
fEe REZENF T _HA=1+—H  #EHIA financial statements of the Bank. As at 31 December 2009, the Directors
SR A A o] E R W B IR 3R BT RS AR ARAT were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
P2 R A SRR R e ) 2 S el I L o conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Bank’s ability to
CL PR A AR SR AR SRAT 2 IS R continue as a going concern. The Directors have prepared the financial
statements of the Bank on a going concern basis.
C.2 AN Wi C.2 External Auditors
B K TS T 5 A8 SRAT 1 SNEEAZ B - 3 Ernst & Young is the Bank’s external auditors. The Audit Committee
%% B A T A SRAT AN B 2 AT - is responsible for making recommendations on the appointment,
N I LYNE A IE Y e re-appointment, removal and remuneration of the Bank’s external
auditors.
AR A B A% O S B JF A% BURES A During the year, the fees paid to the external auditors of the Group for
A8 A% R 2 2% 43 Bl B 5,196,000 U T K the audit services and non-audit services amounted to HK$5,196,000
3,637,000 W5 70 o T I AU M AT B 2 and HK$3,637,000 respectively. Details of the significant non-audit
P service assignments and the fees paid were as follows:
o &M GET)
FeA% s P Nature of Non-audit Service Fees Paid (HKS$)
BUBS B Tax service 2,830,000
LB A SR TR 4 e Regulatory review 795,000
HoAth RS Other services 12,000

B SR A FG P 5 0 A AT T A 2 A A i
ARAT BRI 81 HEH 2 HZ BT
RIS

A statement by the external auditors with respect to their financial
reporting responsibilities is included in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 81 and 82 of the Bank’s 2009 Annual Report.
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Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the internal controls at the Bank and its
subsidiaries and for reviewing its effectiveness through well-established
organisational structure and comprehensive procedures, policies and
standards. A review of the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal controls
system is carried out annually. The annual review covers all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions. In addition, the annual review also
considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Bank’s accounting and financial reporting function and their
training programmes and budget.

Systems, policies and procedures are in place in the Bank to identify,
measure, control and monitor the major types of risks the Bank faces.
Business departments are responsible for the assessment of individual
types of risk arising under their areas of responsibility, the management
of the risks in accordance with risk management procedures and
reporting on risk management. The senior management, Senior
Executive Risk Management Committee and Risk Management
Department review and revise the risk management policies and
procedures from time to time as deemed appropriate. The Internal
Audit Department also performs regular checks to ensure due
compliance with policies and procedures.

Details of the policies and procedures for management of each of the
major types of risks the Bank faces, including credit, market, liquidity,
interest rate, operational, legal and compliance and reputation risks, are
included in Note 4 to the financial statements of the Bank.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Department plays an important role in the Bank’s
internal controls framework. It monitors the effectiveness of internal
control procedures and compliance with policies and standards across
all departments of the Bank. It also evaluates the Bank’s internal
controls on an on-going basis and reports to the Audit Committee at
least four times each year on significant findings on internal controls.
All management letters from external auditors and relevant reports
from regulatory authorities will be reviewed by the Audit Committee
and all recommendations will be implemented. The Internal Audit
Department also advises management on operational efficiency and
other risk management issues. In performing the audit, the risk based
approach is adopted. The Head of Internal Audit Department of the
Bank reports to the Audit Committee and the Chief Executive Officer.
Copies of the minutes of the Audit Committee meetings will also be sent
to the Board members for information.
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C.5

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities
for ensuring an effective system of internal control and compliance, and
in meeting its external financial reporting obligations.

During the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings and all the
meetings were with the participation of the external auditors of the
Bank. Major works performed by the Audit Committee are summarised

as follows:

- Met with external auditors to discuss the general scope of their
audit work;

- Reviewed external auditors’ management letter and management
response;

- Reviewed the external auditors’ 2009 audit plan;

- Reviewed the external auditors’ reports and findings and the
management response;

- Reviewed the internal audit plan for the year of 2009;

- Reviewed the internal audit reports covering the evaluation of
internal controls;

- Reviewed the independent assessment report on the effectiveness
of the Bank’s internal control system;

- Reviewed the audited financial statements and final results
announcement for the financial year ended 31 December 2008;

- Reviewed the Interim Report and the interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2009; and

- Reviewed the work performed by Legal and Compliance
Department of the Bank for the year of 2009.

D. DELEGATION OF THE BOARD

D.1 Management Functions

The Board assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Bank and delegates aspects of its management and administration
functions to the senior management. The Board sets up clear guidelines
as to the powers to the senior management, in particular, with respect
to reporting mechanism and the matters that shall be subject to the
approval of the Board (such as substantial changes in the management
structure, the business objectives, strategies and business plans, the
policies and manuals which may substantially affect the financial and
risk management of the Bank).

g TR 8RAT (SHN) A PR AW Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 77

ZEZ VS Annual Report 2009



e FEgE: ey
Corporate Governance Report

PR E S Z Aot > EHRESMLUT I
AT ZEEITE A& (AT RATE R S A
B 7 T 2 R AR IR B AL

L THZEEE
T HE A TR A 2 R o
TTEZ B & 2 T AT BRRRIE L - Hipl
Z AW EATEARRL - AIARASHE - R
MR APSRRELD - EEARED > DIRGHATIR
MBAR IR B ARSI - [THZRAGE D
A B — ek o

2 HERAMEAEAR

B B I B A R B T
LB Y K A 2 0L 4 LA % i3 B 81
RESE B o K7E K B RS I BRI
T 3 oK A8 1 B4 A ] K
BG4 KT - WL ARENERY
fh B S A (T R R - T
B AL 2B R  5
- SRR - R A R - A
W B 7 33 R A0 5 e 17 059
LR o R KA S B @ 0T B
B HES - 45 H Ak

3. IFHZEARE

i B2 B g i BRLAR SRAR B 2 O~ 4631
KREFF - DAHERFARSRATE AL H & - f5
BERE VT N R
RSB A~ AN B PO LS
AR AR oA th I - [ & B frih
fE VAR T () - JEUBR A8 B K SE5 AT
M2 R ARACET ~ By A A ) A AR
B o A5 EEZR B ol v A L B A R
B e > SRR B gk o

EBp AR EENEERTRRE A
HIE 2 s AR B L

78 i TRGERAT () B FR/A T Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

ZEEJUFE4ER Annual Report 2009

Apart from the Board Committees, the Board has also established the
following five key specialised committees which comprise Executive
Directors and other senior executives of the Bank from relevant areas:

1. Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established to supervise the
overall operation of the Group. The Chairman of the Executive
Committee is the Chief Executive Officer and the other
committee members consist of the Alternative Chief Executives,
Deputy General Managers, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Operation Officer and the Assistant General
Managers designated by the Chief Executive Officer. The
Executive Committee meets at least once a month.

2. Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Asset and Liability Management Committee was established
to closely monitor the mix of liquid assets and funding channels,
and the exposure to movements in interest rate and foreign
exchange. The Asset and Liability Management Committee also
meets to review the optimal liquidity level in response to internal
requirements and external market indicators. It comprises the
Chief Financial Officer (the Chairman and Secretary of the
Committee), all Deputy General Managers, the designated
Assistant General Managers in charge of business units, the
Chief Risk Officer, Head of Asset and Liability Management
Department, Market Risk Section Head of Risk Management
Department and Head of Global Markets and Trading
Department. The Asset and Liability Management Committee
reports to the Executive Committee and meets on a monthly
basis.

3. Credit Committee

The Credit Committee sets up credit related policies, guidelines
and procedures in order to maintain the quality of the credit
portfolio of the Bank. It reviews and approves large credit
exposures, manages credit risk concentration, accepts or rejects
new credit strategies and responds to deteriorating credits. The
Credit Committee consists of the Head of Credit Department
(Chairman), the Chief Risk Officer and the Deputy General
Managers or Assistant General Managers or Department Heads
in charge of business lines. The Credit Committee reports to the
Senior Executive Risk Management Committee and meets from
time to time.

The Chief Risk Officer reports to the Risk Management
Committee of Board of Directors on credit related matters on a
quarterly basis.
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Operational Risk Committee

The Operational Risk Committee was established to focus on
operational risk management. It reviews and reports on the
adequacy of operational risk management policies, procedures
and systems for the Bank. It also evaluates the effectiveness of
existing policies, and the need for other risk control tools as to
mitigate operational risks; makes recommendations or decides
on amended/increased/decreased operational control policies,
procedures and measures of the Bank. It comprises the Chief
Risk Officer (Chairman), Chief Operation Officer, Co Head
(or Deputy Head) of Human Resources Department, Head (or
Deputy Head) of Internal Audit Department, Operational Risk
Head and representative from Personal Banking Department.
The Operational Risk Committee reports to the Senior Executive
Risk Management Committee and meets on a quarterly basis.

Senior Executive Risk Management Committee

The Senior Executive Risk Management Committee was
established to review and report on the adequacy and efficiency of
risk management procedures, policies and systems of the Group.
It focuses on credit risk, interest rate risk, market risk, liquidity
risk, operational risk, reputation risk and legal risk. The Senior
Executive Risk Management Committee comprises the Chief
Risk Officer (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer, Deputy
General Manager in charge of Global Markets and Trading,
Deputy General Manager in charge of Retail Banking, the Chief
Financial Officer, the Chief Operation Officer, Head of Global
Markets and Trading, Head of Risk Management Department,
Head of Credit Department, Market Risk Section Head of Risk
Management Department, Head of Systems & IT Department
and Head of Legal and Compliance. The Senior Executive Risk
Management Committee reports to the Executive Committee and
Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors and meets on
a quarterly basis.

5 ER AR B g RIE IR P A BE Each of these key specialised committees has specific written terms of
HE > S WA B EAT: - reference which state clearly its authorities and duties.
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E.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

E1

E.2

Effective Communication

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. All Directors will make an effort to
attend. External auditors are also invited to attend the annual general
meeting to address shareholders’ queries. Separate resolutions are
proposed at general meetings for each substantial issue, including re-
election of the retiring Directors.

The Bank organises press conferences and analysts’ meetings to explain
its annual and interim results in detail. The website of the Bank www.
icbcasia.com contains the “Investor Relations” and “About Us” sections
which offer timely access to the Bank’s publications, press releases and
other business information.

The Chairman was unable to attend the 2008 Annual General
Meeting due to other important business engagements. The Board
members (including the Chairman or the Alternate Chairman or the
respective committee members of each of the Audit, and Nomination
and Remuneration Committees) attended the 2008 Annual General
Meeting of the Bank to answer questions from shareholders.

In order to comply with the revised Listing Rules which became
effective 1 January 2009, the Bank has proposed to amend its Articles
of Association and submitted as a special resolution to its shareholders.
The special resolution was duly passed at the 2008 Annual General
Meeting held on 22 May 2009. All notices of general meetings
despatched by the Bank to its shareholders for meetings held on or after
1 January 2009 shall be sent in the following manner:

- at least 21 clear days or 20 clear business days (whichever is
longer) for every annual general meeting;

- at least 21 clear days for every general meeting at which it is
proposed to pass a special resolution; and

- at least 14 clear days or 10 clear business days (whichever is
longer) for every other extraordinary general meeting.

Voting by Poll

The Bank undertakes to ensure that the shareholders are familiar with
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll as required under the
Listing Rules. All the resolutions proposed at the 2008 Annual General
Meeting had been duly passed by shareholders of the Bank by poll
voting.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF
CHINA (ASIA) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Asia) Limited (the “Bank”) set out on pages 83 to 240, which comprise the
consolidated and the Bank’s statements of financial position as at 31 December
2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Bank and of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor,

Two International Financial Centre,
8 Finance Street,

Central,

Hong Kong

24 March 2010
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
B & T#x T
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
FLEWA Interest income (6) 4,479,068 7,753,857
FE S Interest expense (6) (1,469,872) (4,755,554)
A B Net interest income (6) 3,009,196 2,998,303
Wi K AR 4 Fee and commission income (7) 814,429 756,268
Wi A 4 S Fee and commission expense (7) (87,395) (93,166)
WBe e B 01 4 MON ¥ 2 Net fee and commission income (7) 727,034 663,102
BRI Net trading income (8) 214,338 273,441
B8 LA E R a8 R AR Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities 9) 193,215 (230,640)
SR B2 IR (B548)  designated at fair value through profit or loss
AR H & E 2 RS A Dividend income from financial investments (10) 6,476 14,859
HoAth & 2E A Other operating income (11) 39,922 33,246
BREBA Operating income 4,190,181 3,752,311
mEIH Operating expenses (12) (1,358,339) (1,252,119)
AR MBRIRAAL I R 2 8 2R R Operating profit before impairment losses 2,831,842 2,500,192
B IR R S 8 Charge for impairment losses on loans and advances (14) (385,536) (408,629)
T 28 3 A < B (1] ¢ Write-back of impairment losses on
held-to-maturity financial investments (28) 2,145 156
P S B R S HR R S 8 Charge for impairment losses on
available-for-sale financial investments (195,058) (802,880)
BRI R 2 28 2 B A Operating profit after impairment losses 2,253,393 1,288,839
AR (L) Revaluation gain/(loss) on investment properties (31) 6,087 (498)
4 Y2 R RIS T3 Net gain from disposal/reversal of revaluation
B - i e Y HEE 22 Tl e At deficits of property, plant and equipment and
Wi g 1 EE leasehold land and land use rights (15) 3,850 5,513
B SRR Loss on disposal of loans and advances - (28,710)
B A R B R R Net gain/(loss) on disposal of available-for-sale
A (B AR financial investments 782,300 (201,962)
B BT B A ) R D Bk Gain on disposal of subsidiaries and an associate 1,328 =
BEERN Operating profit 3,046,958 1,063,182
JRE A W5 A ) i ) Share of profits of associates 23,243 655
I 82 1 it A1) Profit before tax 3,070,201 1,063,837
CRELNE Income tax expense (16) (544,059) (94,814)
I B A i A Profit attributable to equity holders 2,526,142 969,023
BB B — FEAFN T Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (19) HK$1.95 HKS$0.77
RN E AT LB URAT I B 2 R A A SR R B 5 18 9 - Details of the dividend paid and proposed for the year are disclosed in Note 18 to the

financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
T#x T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
RNl Profit for the year 2,526,142 969,023
ATV E R B R Revaluation surplus on bank premises 7,343 7,289
AR 2 Income tax effect (3,614) (1,656)
3,729 5,633
B 2 i TR Change of fair value of hedging instruments
WNTAEESEE) under cash flow hedge (7,853) 7,853
LS & B Mg 2 AP EE Change in fair value reserve of
st s available-for-sale financial investments 2,035,053 (3,419,922)
175 R ik (L PR 2 P A A 5 < Transfer from the available-for-sale financial investment
& A 5 reserve to the income statement on impairment 43,715 819,504
PRESEZ Income tax effect (336,082) 445,638
1,742,686 (2,154,780)
BN A Rl E A 2 [ESE 2% Exchange differences arising from
translation of results of a foreign subsidiary 123 72,778
A T R AR ELAth 2 T Wi i Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,738,685 (2,068,516)
AF N BRABIAR 4 T A s AR Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 4,264,827 (1,099,493)
AT ARIEST 2 Attributable to:
EAllE TRk Equity holders of the Bank 4,264,827 (1,099,493)
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As at 31 December 2009
2009 2008
B3 T#T T
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
% Assets
B4 S AE A7 [v] 2 B Ath, Cash and balances with banks and
B RN 2 45 7 other financial institutions (21) 27,910,582 28,678,778
TESRAT B H At 4 R Placements with and advances to
TEA B K banks and other financial institutions (22) 1,663,286 844,358
FHERL 5 i & & Financial assets held for trading (23) 190,246 52,051
16 78 LAAFAE(E RS I 45 3% Financial assets designated at fair
AR A value through profit or loss (24) 1,162,149 1,488,003
A T H Derivative financial instruments (25) 1,285,306 2,308,702
K~ GRAT R HAh & Rl Loans and advances to customers,
e 2 B banks and other financial institutions (26) 147,024,582 137,082,721
ERE - Financial investments: 33,653,175 19,379,478
— ke ~ Available-for-sale (27) 32,361,666 17,403,075
— A 22 ~ Held-to-maturity (28) 1,291,509 1,976,403
TR A A 2 B Investments in associates (29) 175,177 184,854
T T oAt A Goodwill and other intangible assets (30) 1,020,893 1,032,938
B Investment properties (31) 46,213 40,126
LIE &I ] Property, plant and equipment (32) 273,953 276,074
AELEE Aty % = b fofi ) A Leasehold land and land use rights (33) 43,117 43,860
BATRUE & Current income tax assets - 130,988
R S T Deferred income tax assets (38) - 151,619
Hofth ¥ e Other assets (34) 1,305,150 2,869,559
gzl Total assets 215,753,829 194,564,109
£ Liabilities
SRAT IR S S A 4 Rl A 2 Deposits from banks and other financial
AP S iR institutions 20,176,700 20,056,756
A4 T H Derivative financial instruments (25) 1,403,832 3,296,670
AR Deposits from customers (36) 161,161,561 138,183,332
— 5 E LA-PEE AL RAR — Designated at fair value through profit or loss (37) - 301,216
— LAHRSH A — At amortised cost 161,161,561 137,882,116
EL BT A7 3 Certificates of deposit issued 2,394,546 4,312,361
—F8E AAFEE A 28 R AR — Designated at fair value through profit or loss 37) 1,419,077 3,489,361
— LAHRSH A — At amortised cost 975,469 823,000
ST Debt securities in issue 159,526 3,146,399
— 5 E LA-PEE AL R RAR — Designated at fair value through profit or loss (37) - 3,146,399
— DA 87 A - At amortised cost 159,526 =
BATRUE & (& Current income tax liabilities 1,531,204 10,113
R ST TE 4 Deferred income tax liabilities (38) 190,262 14,072
DUBESH 1A AR 2 15 (5 (2 T8 Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost (39) 8,561,125 8,556,348
HAt & 7 Other liabilities (40) 2,070,476 3,050,280
£ A Total liabilities 197,649,232 180,626,331
JBE A 2 Equity
JigAs Share capital (41) 2,636,681 2,570,536
B U A1 Retained earnings (42) 5,181,915 3,290,741
HAt At Other reserves (42) 10,286,001 8,076,501
It S B 2 A 7 Total equity 18,104,597 13,937,778
JB SR 2 B £ 45 A2 Total equity and liabilities 215,753,829 194,564,109
LW Bl fgcy ¥ K Jiang Jianqing Chen Aiping Wong Yuen Fai Tsang Mei Kuen
e 3 HHPAERE HHE VAL /= Chairman Managing Director & Deputy ~ Company Secretary
BT Vil bt Director & General Manager
Chief Executive
Officer
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BT INY S

ment of Financial Position

et 2 SN Y e
As at 31 December 2009

2009 2008
B3 T#IT T
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
E Assets
B 4 I AR B4 T[] SE B A Cash and balances with banks and
SRR 2 G5 AT other financial institutions (21) 25,247,532 27,649,423
TEGRAT B HAth 4 Rl B A 2 Placements with and advances to banks
T B R and other financial institutions (22) 2,427,183 1,660,123
FRERS 2 i 4 il & Financial assets held for trading (23) 67,998 52,051
858 A AR [E RS U R R Financial assets designated at fair
N AES value through profit or loss (24) 1,162,149 1,488,003
A AE 4 b LB Derivative financial instruments (25) 1,285,306 2,308,702
BF 81 &,ﬁxﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂ Loans and advances to customers,
e 2 B banks and other financial institutions (26) 137,725,764 128,285,852
SRR Financial investments: 33,652,605 19,378,861
— Bt & - Available-for-sale (27) 32,361,096 17,402,458
— 22 - Held-to-maturity (28) 1,291,509 1,976,403
RS A T 2 & Investments in associates (29) 138,138 152,646
T M o w1 2 & Investments in subsidiaries (35) 2,772,478 1,908,750
PR R HLAth ST 3 Goodwill and other intangible assets (30) 630,967 642,109
EXS-LV/ES Investment properties (31) 25,500 25,200
EN I Property, plant and equipment (32) 180,464 185,878
FEET 1 b, % - b fi A RE Leasehold land and land use rights (33) 43,117 43,860
BUTRLIEE Current income tax assets - 128,586
AR HE Rl TE Deferred income tax assets (38) - 151,619
HAt & Other assets (34) 1,647,361 3,095,070
jag ko Total assets 207,006,562 187,156,733
fifi Liabilities
SRATIR] 3 K A < R A A 2 Deposits from banks and other
TEak B st financial institutions 16,804,941 17,001,164
i Gl T Derivative financial instruments (25) 1,403,832 3,324,174
EIRRES Deposits from customers (36) 157,977,892 137,636,067
—J5E LA PEE A R RARR - Designated at fair value through profit or loss (37) 301,216
— DAHRESH A - At amortised cost 157,997,892 137,334,851
B BTG Certificates of deposit issued 2,394,546 4,312,361
— 8B DA B A 25 AR - Designated at fair value through profit or loss (37) 1,419,077 3,489,361
— DAESH LA - At amortised cost 975,469 823,000
DABESH LA AR 2 B 8T S5 Debt securities in issue measured at amortised cost 159,526 -
BATRIIE A 1 Current income tax liabilities 208,893 -
R AR VE A & Deferred income tax liabilities (38) 184,850
DABRE AR AC AR 2 AR MBI Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost (39) 8,561,125 8,556,348
HAh & Other liabilities (40) 2,217,332 3,101,794
A Total liabilities 189,912,937 173,931,908
JBe A i Equity
JigAs Share capital (41) 2,636,681 2,570,536
R B Ui A1 Retained earnings (42) 4,525,547 2,885,298
HoAtfeti s Other reserves (42) 9,931,397 7,768,991
JBe SR it 4 7 Total equity 17,093,625 13,224,825
JBe SR it B £ 45 B8 2 Total equity and liabilities 207,006,562 187,156,733
B350 B % - W R LB ] Jiang Jianqing Chen Aiping Wong Yuen Fai Tsang Mei Kuen
L HHEAET HHE VAT /= Chairman Managing Director & Deputy ~ Company Secretary
BT % A Director & General Manager
Chief Executive
i TRGER4T (35U B PR A R Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited Oﬁ(icer
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L) L) L]
nsoli ment of Changes in Equi
BECETIES A=+ HILFEE
For the year ended 31 December 2009
2009 2008
BT T#x T
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
ih—H— B Z O R a5 a5 Total equity as at 1 January 13,937,778 15,008,139
JIE B A i ] Profit attributable to equity holders (42) 2,526,142 969,023
oAb AT AR Other comprehensive income 1,738,685 (2,068,516)
2 TA M o AR Total comprehensive income 4,264,827 (1,099,493)
ik 5! Dividends (42) (595,135) (1,137,307)
AR A BB AT 1Y R A3 Shares issued in lieu of dividends (41) 497,187 868,160
AT 5B B AR B4 T 1 Shares issued on exercise of warrants (41) - 298,400
BT S Share issue expenses (41),(42) (60) (121)
A = —H 2 BARERR M Total equity as at 31 December 18,104,597 13,937,778
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BEEZNET A =+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

h Fl

ment of

2009 2008
! T#x T
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
RGBT Cash flows from operating activities:
R iy Vi A Profit before tax 3,070,201 1,063,837
R 22 S RE Write-back of impairment losses on
AN 3 held-to-maturity financial investments (28) (2,145) (156)
BRI (E AR R S A Charge for impairment losses on loans and advances (14) 385,536 408,629
PG B B R E TR I S Charge for impairment losses on available-for-sale
financial investments 195,058 802,880
AETE 5 A Amortisation of intangible assets (12) 17,755 46,835
FHE L Sy Amortisation of leasehold land (12) 743 744
reg Depreciation (12) 47,124 47,595
DA S A AR 2 AR B AR T Interest paid on subordinated debts
S measured at amortised cost 147,886 292,565
Wi [m] EL A K Recoveries of loans and advances written off (14) 43,532 11,594
g 2 R AR Net gain from disposal/reversal of revaluation
b e - i ek HE 2 A deficits of property, plant and equipment
i Al 2 i g VR AR and leasehold land and land use rights (15) (3,850) (5,513)
EXLEVS-CUE A TN CS Revaluation (gain)/loss on investment properties (31) (6,087) 498
B LGN B SRR Net (gain)/loss on disposal of available-for-sale
(A HEI T EE financial investments (782,300) 201,962
B 1R Loss on disposal of loans and advances - 28,710
B R 2 ) B B 4 i Gain on disposal of subsidiaries and an associate (1,328) -
JRE A A ) U Share of net profits of associates (23,243) (655)
KRB EhERAESE 2 A i Dividend income received from listed
SrTE 2 S financial assets held for trading (10) (664) (1,133)
A B & SR E Dividend income received from
BB A listed available-for-sale financial investments (10) (2,006) (9,747)
H A FE E TR SR E 2 Dividend income received from unlisted
B A available-for-sale financial investments (10) (3,806) (3,979)
R A SR A B S U A Operating profit before working capital changes 3,082,406 2,884,666
SR E () (Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
SRR DL B2 R Treasury bills maturing beyond three months (10,132) 847,211
Fy = A DA b 22 8847 S HoAth Placements with and advances to banks and other
BB RE 2 A7 3K financial institutions maturing beyond three months (275,755) 1,589,593
R 22 e R E Held-to-maturity financial investments 697,171 490,359
FRERS 2 R 4 il & Financial assets held for trading (22,822) 2,205
A LA RS I 6 R Financial assets designated at fair
MR Al value through profit or loss 325,854 266,739
L e B S AR A Available-for-sale financial investments (12,336,295) (5,731,364)
B~ ST I oA 5 R A Loans and advances to customers, banks and other
R A financial institutions and other assets (8,904,520) (15,810,098)
A4 T H Derivative financial instruments 1,031,249 (1,087,111)
BEEA R, (B Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
B =AE A B2 88T K H At Deposits from banks and other financial
5 BB A7 K A5 T institutions maturity beyond three months 119,944 (1,430,820)
B Deposits from customers 22,978,229 656,772
E B T A7 2 Certificates of deposit issued (1,917,815) 606,965
CEfT R Debt securities in issue (2,986,873) 26,527
HoAh £ £ Other liabilities (984,764) (405,124)
A4 T H Derivative financial instruments (1,892,838) 1,944,972
A& EZ BlE e Cash flows used in operations (1,096,961) (15,148,508)
EL A0 s A A5 B R A Hong Kong profits tax paid (50,799) (335,533)
NEZAN e U REE Overseas tax paid (35,770) (48,242)
A 6T B 2 B4 3 R AR Net cash flows used in operating activities (1,183,530) (15,532,283)
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BEEZNET A =+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
! T#x T
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
BOETEE 2 B e Cash flows from investing activities:
TR 7 2 3, i A 7 Investments in subsidiaries/purchase of a subsidiary (35b) 1,171,732 (18,786)
i T Purchase of intangible assets (30) (5,900) (16,439)
LR E NG Purchase of property, plant and equipment (32) (31,747) (62,014)
it %%%& 5] Proceeds from disposal
It of property, plant and equipment 171 121
B T 8 ) P A R 0E Proceeds from disposal of an associate 28,796 -
L 65 BB 2 ) i ﬁﬁlﬁ Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries (35¢) 4,627 -
RE EAGREsC S & Dividend income received from listed
S RE E 2 R financial assets held for trading (10) 664 1,133
A _E T L S SR E 2 Dividend income received from listed
BB A available-for-sale financial investments (10) 2,006 9,747
G S S o s - Dividend income received from unlisted
BB A available-for-sale financial investments (10) 3,806 3,979
WE (AR #&EE 2 Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
T4 ik VAR 1,174,155 (82,259)
Pl ) < B A Cash flows from financing activities:
BT LABES A AR Issuance of a subordinated debt
HAEEIE measured at amortised cost - 1,550,020
HE [m] DA 85 Rl AR A MR 2 Redemption of a subordinated debt
ARG measured at amortised cost - (500,000)
AT R R EE AT R A Issuance of shares on exercise of warrants (41) - 298,400
AT A \iud:'u Share issue expenses (41),(42) (60) (121)
DASESH A A B2 A% H A5 0E Interest paid on subordinated debts
FIE iﬂ:’ measured at amortised cost (147,886) (292,565)
SCATE A A B Dividends paid on ordinary shares (97,948) (269,147)
(IR /5 B BE TG #) 2 Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities
B4 i 1 VAR (245,894) 786,587
e 5,26 B 2 28 Effects of foreign exchange differences 30,246 67,330
Bl 4 I S R B4 TH H 2 i VAR Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (225,023) (14,760,625)
W—H—HzZB e K5%RB4HE  Cashand cash equivalents at 1 January 28,933,732 43,694,357
WA=+ —H2ZB& K Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
S5 [ Bl TH H 28,708,709 28,933,732

AR ERERNS » He kB E&EFREH B FHR For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash

FIWH & — 8 H 8L R 2 &k equivalents comprise the following balances with original maturity of three months
or less:
A4
Group
2009 2008
T# THETT
HK$’000 HK$°000

T4 B AE SRAT B Ath 4 Rl A 1 2 Cash and balances with banks and other

LEAE (B 21) financial institutions (Note 21) 6,776,503 9,182,552
TEERAT S HoAMh 4 PR > A7 3K Placements with banks and other financial institutions 21,932,206 19,751,180
28,708,709 28,933,732
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.1 B 1.1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
AT 2 RIS B IR AMRAT ~ WA S H A A TS AR B The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking, financial and
JIRHS o 25 BitJE 2 W) 2 B S O B R R M 35 other financial related services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are

shown in Note 35 to the financial statements.

1.2 EEEEHE 1.2 PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
A GRAT 25 1A A s g A ST I A A s 2 AR T R R AR The Bank is a licenced bank incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and
AT o FLGE e i S b s SE b B 5 7 s v BRAE [ has its registered office and principal place of business at 33/F, ICBC Tower, 3
358 b B TR SRAT B 33 4 - Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong

2 EEEEHBORBER 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A A GRS PATS R R BR P 2 R B G TR A R ik - The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
BRSNS - 5% & st BOREL AR AT SR A — 20 - consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 AmdAEHE 2.1 Basis of preparation
AR 2 G5 BB IR AK IRt B s e Rt AT € The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
([ A vt A & 1) MH A 2 T s BA 5 e 4t 1 ) prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
(1 75 v A5 S 15 2 1 ) A0 (7 s B 5 e £ 1 Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
S A6 BT A s A i A MR B~ s e e ) Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
(TEWEFHEL]) Ka ) » FBARZ gFHE and interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Al > DA BTN AR 2 LR o AS SR IR Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
65 7 B B 15 28 2 T A P8 ) s 2 i B B accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
FRE 2 PR - These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure

provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

A KR B S R T H4E JRE S AR B A Y - (HA The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
PR 4 - B R B AR > ARGE A BAES historical cost convention, except for certain buildings modified by
R [ EAGTAE ] 5H&E > R A8 & Sl the revaluation, available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets
EE - FHERS B2 EMERE REmA R - and financial liabilities held for trading, financial assets and financial
DA {5 (B A8 2 3 A MR 2 46l 7 B < B liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
18 > DA R A PAE(E R & 2 fir A= 4 ol TR HI A instruments which have been measured at fair value.

AT EEAG R -

2 7 s B S A A U A0 R RS R R IR B R The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
TEZEZ GaHAEE > TRERE B A R A 4R requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
[ & 5HBUR Z MR PR B o W SR H B management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
AR T - SR A B RS R T B Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
HEZ B SAGEE  ICAEMTRE 3 MR - judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
3.
2.2 AT B ARG A v B 25 ik s i HI Y R 2 2.2 Impact of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards
7 [ A A 5 PR ) B 5 3 R R AN AT R T The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
LR ABRT & s BB iR M R o BRTERS THE UL T the first time for the current year’s financial statements. Except for in
B BoH ] R BB & s BUR Ko ib i @& 4h - % certain cases, giving rise to new and revised accounting policies and
A% 5 R T S KRG T A s A A E HI 3B AR B additional disclosures, the adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
Rl MR 2 o has had no significant effect on these financial statements.

90 1 TR ER1T (SEM) A BR/A W Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 BEEEBORMIE @) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.2 BTAT B BB W A v T 5 i o U Y R 2.2 Impact of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
(#) Standards (continued)
M REERIE 1 58 R AR R 1 5K HKFRS 1 and Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Frit e 7% TR B T R HKAS 27 Adoption of HKFRSs and HKAS 27
(A1) W ETHERIE 27 555 & B Amendments Consolidated and Separate Financial
S B E — — FHE A Statements
A~ L[ R - Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
A B B AR A T Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
FrbIB A 255 HE IR RS 2 5500 HKERS 2 Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
(BT %) T BB 3k — SR 1 Amendments Payment - Vesting Conditions
&L ) and Cancellations
FrbIB R 7 9% BB RS RS 7R HKERS 7 Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
(B7TA) TH: - gELR T Amendments Instruments: Disclosures - Improving
A 1R 5T Disclosures about Financial Instruments
B AR EL 2 8 5 R HKFRS 8* Operating Segments
it s e 1 58 (054T) PR 251 HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements
i grHEE 25k HREETEAE 2R T HKAS 32 and Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
FritaaHEAE 15 (T4 B B RA a1 HKAS 1 Instruments: Presentation and HKAS 1
b e R A Amendments Presentation of Financial Statements —
SRTHRERREANE Puttable Financial
{EfE BT Instruments and Obligations Arising

on Liquidation

i (BB B 5 R B (RRRB S R R 1 HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
aEZae) R R ZHG) R 9 E i HKAS 39 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
FEETHERS 205 (BiTA)  ARMAETERASGHE Amendments and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:

HIEE 3945 : ERR Mot & — it Recognition and Measurement -
AR TRAES BT Embedded Derivatives
it (PR R A e R F St #l HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

RERAG) B 1Y

il (BB B R BEANERS B R HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a
REZEE) RS 165 Foreign Operation

ik (B Pe BB e HEFERER (CZFE HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
REZAS) RS 185 + H— B (adopted from 1 July 2009)

it TS A e HE TR IR E A Improvements to Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
(ZZZETA) T HKFRSs

(October 2008)
* K85 51l B T AT v B A R * Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued in May 2009).

HOfE O —FFIUAER A A -
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R A0 ST AT S AT U B e )
BEWT :

(a) HBEYBIRAERT IR KRB
TR A A A T 25 0 o A A 35 27 SRR A R
T 7 T i 2E — e — [T g 23 A~ HE[r]
T T AR 2 I 1 B A (I 67T
s E R ERSE 27 58 (ERTA) BUE M8 A
]~ B ) s R o B A A
R BE w8 S B 5 e 1A B i 2 f
8 o ANTEREESRISOIE AR 1A i M A7 TE 2258 o
SR AT B B L P ST R E AR A 7125 B 1
ARG o ZERT AR RKREN o &
W R 27 SR T IR B AT - DU R
BN FE R R — TR S A 7 LA I A
Z BN R OL T B AR [ Ay > R
BOE A R o A BB R HE R AR 1
R (BRI ) 70 7 s A 55 i M ) e o
UCER AN PR TR RS w2 EL A — 1] B
DN ~ W R s (R B 4R
A5 o py A A S S I 0 U BR A 7 A S R
R HERIE o SO S R R 1 B (1
FIAS) BRG] -

(b) BB ERBIRAHERF 255 LR 7
HY I sk — B G 15 1 R s ) i 9 67T
T B YE ISR 2 5% (IBRTAR) 80 B
JE A A L M5 o 1 S R BT © Hofts
AEAT R4 75 R BRI e o v JE B e
7 T HE B ) £ o A o AR R ARG > 1T
5| B B A RE i, i 15 LR AR 2t
S o Py A A 2 [ S AN R S AT AT AR O B
PEPFE AR ST AR - G2 AE T B AL M
HO A B IR UL A S AT S R 2

() HEBHBIRAIERE 795 £/ T A - #%
FF— B TR AT B | F AT
s B i RN A 7 8 (B RTAS ) 2Rk
OB B i ) 5 < Ja\ g At RO o
BITAUA T EEARZ S THE, A
S (L RC AR AR T B B 285 e s 1
YR =TGN T E B S5 AT % -
Sl ZECEE B = T A PR (R A S BRI A
Atk DU AT 2 R R
HEATEIR o SZAERT AN Ui BT AR TR A
Ty K B < BRLPT T A B Y D
AL Y R AE
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

B

Impact of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as
follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of HKFRSs and
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

- Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

The HKAS 27 Amendment requires all dividends from
subsidiaries, associates or jointly-controlled entities to be
recognised in the income statement in the parent’s separate
financial statements. The distinction between pre and post
acquisition profits is no longer required. However, the payment
of such dividends requires the Bank to consider whether there
is an indicator of impairment. The amendment is applied
prospectively. HKAS 27 has also been amended to deal with
the measurement of the cost of investments where a parent
reorganises the structure of its group by establishing a new entity
as its parent. The HKFRS 1 Amendment allows a first-time
adopter of HKFRSs to measure its investment in subsidiaries,
associates or jointly-controlled entities using a deemed cost. As
the Group is not a first-time adopter of HKFRSs, the HKFRS 1
Amendment is not applicable to the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations

The HKFRS 2 Amendments clarify that vesting conditions are
service conditions and performance conditions only. Any other
conditions are non-vesting conditions. Where an award does not
vest as a result of a failure to meet a non-vesting condition that
is within the control of either the entity or the counterparty, this
is accounted for as a cancellation. As the Group has not entered
into share-based payment schemes with non-vesting conditions
attached, the amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or results of operations of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

- Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require additional disclosures
about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. Fair value
measurements related to items recorded at fair value are to
be disclosed by sources of inputs using a three-level fair value
hierarchy, by class, for all financial instruments recognised at
fair value. In addition, a reconciliation between the beginning
and ending balance is now required for level 3 fair value
measurements, as well as significant transfers between levels
in the fair value hierarchy. The amendments also clarify the
requirements for liquidity risk disclosures with respect to
derivative transactions and assets used for liquidity management.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Impact of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

(d)

(e)

®

HKERS 8 Operating Segments

HKERS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting, specifies
how an entity should report information about its operating
segments, based on information about the components of the
entity that is available to the chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of allocating resources to the segments and assessing
their performance. The standard also requires the disclosure of
information about the products and services provided by the
segments, the geographical areas in which the Group operates,
and revenue from the Group’s major customers. The Group
concluded that the operating segments determined in accordance
with HKFRS 8 are the same as the business segments previously
identified under HKAS 14.

The Group has early adopted in these financial statements the
Amendments to HKFRS 8 issued in Improvements to HKFRSs
2009 which clarifies that segment assets need only to be reported
when those assets are included in measures that are used by the
chief operating decision maker.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation
and disclosures of financial statements. The revised standard
separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement
of changes in equity includes only details of transactions with
owners, with all non-owner changes in equity presented as a
single line. In addition, this standard introduces the statement
of comprehensive income, with all items of income and expense
recognised in profit or loss, together with all other items of
recognised income and expense recognised directly in equity,
either in one single statement, or in two linked statements. The
Group has elected to present two statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:

Presentation and HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial

Statements — Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation

The HKAS 32 Amendments provide a limited scope exception
for puttable financial instruments and instruments that impose
specified obligations arising on liquidation to be classified as
equity if they fulfil a number of specified features. The HKAS
1 Amendments require disclosure of certain information
relating to these puttable financial instruments and obligations
classified as equity. As the Group currently has no such financial
instruments or obligations, the amendments have had no impact
on the financial position or results of operations of the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Impact of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

()

(h)

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement — Embedded Derivatives

The amendment to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 requires an entity to assess
whether an embedded derivative must be separated from a host
contract when the entity reclassifies a hybrid financial asset out
of the fair value through profit or loss category. This assessment
is to be made based on circumstances that existed on the later of
the date the entity first became a party to the contract and the date
of any contract amendments that significantly change the cash
flows of the contract. HKAS 39 has been revised to state that if an
embedded derivative cannot be separately measured, the entire
hybrid instrument must remain classified as fair value through
profit or loss in its entirety. The adoption of the amendments has
had no impact on the financial position or results of operations of
the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires customer loyalty award credits to be
accounted for as a separate component of the sales transaction
in which they are granted. The consideration received in the
sales transaction is allocated between the loyalty award credits
and the other components of the sale. The amount allocated
to the loyalty award credits is determined by reference to their
fair value and is deferred until the awards are redeemed or the
liability is otherwise extinguished. Adoption of this new HKFRS
requirement has had no material effect on the financial position
or performance of the Group, nor has resulted in restatement of
comparative figures.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 provides guidance on the accounting for a
hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation. This includes
clarification that (i) hedge accounting may be applied only to
the foreign exchange differences arising between the functional
currencies of the foreign operation and the parent entity; (ii) a
hedging instrument may be held by any entities within a group;
and (iii) on disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative gain
or loss relating to both the net investment and the hedging
instrument that was determined to be an effective hedge should
be reclassified to the income statement as a reclassification
adjustment. As the Group currently has no hedge of a net
investment in a foreign operation, the interpretation has had no
impact on the financial position or results of operations of the
Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Impact of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

()

(k)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
(adopted from 1 July 2009)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 provides guidance on accounting by recipients
that receive from customers items of property, plant and
equipment or cash for the acquisition or construction of such
items, provided that these assets must then be used to connect
customers to networks or to provide ongoing access to a supply
of goods or services, or both. As the Group currently has no
such transactions, the interpretation has had no impact on the
financial position or results of operations of the Group.

In October 2008, the HKICPA issued its first Improvements to
HKFRSs which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs.
Except for the amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Plan to sell the
controlling interest in a subsidiary which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009, the Group adopted
all the amendments from 1 January 2009. While the adoption
of some of the amendments results in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments has had a significant financial
impact to the Group. Details of the key amendments most
applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKEFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Removes the
reference to “total interest income” as a component of finance
costs.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies that
assets and liabilities which are classified as held for trading in
accordance with HKAS 39 are not automatically classified as
current in the statement of financial position.

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Replaces the term “net
selling price” with “fair value less costs to sell” and the recoverable
amount of property, plant and equipment is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In addition,
items of property, plant and equipment held for rental that are
routinely sold in the ordinary course of business after rental are
transferred to inventories when rental ceases and they are held for
sale.

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements:
Requires that when a parent entity financial statements for
a subsidiary at fair value in accordance with HKAS 39 in its
separate financial statements, this treatment continues when the
subsidiary is subsequently classified as held for sale.

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates: Clarifies that an investment
in an associate is a single asset for the purpose of conducting the
impairment test and that no impairment is separately allocated to
goodwill included in the investment balance.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Impact of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

(k)

(continued)

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets: When discounted cash flows
are used to estimate “fair value less costs to sell”, additional
disclosures (e.g., discount rate and growth rate used) are required
which are consistent with the disclosures required when the
discounted cash flows are used to estimate “value in use”.

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets: Expenditure on advertising and
promotional activities is recognised as an expense when the
Group either has the right to access the goods or has received the
service.

The reference to there being rarely, if ever, persuasive evidence
to support an amortisation method for intangible assets other
than the straight-line method has been removed. The Group has
reassessed the useful lives of its intangible assets and concluded
that the straight-line method is still appropriate.

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement:
(i) sets out a number of changes in circumstances relating to
derivatives that are not considered to result in reclassification
into or out of the fair value through profit or loss category; (ii)
removes the reference to the designation of hedging instrument
at the segment level; and (iii) requires that the revised effective
interest rate (rather than the original effective interest rate)
calculated on cessation of fair value hedge accounting should be
used for the re-measurement of the hedged item when paragraph
AG8 of HKAS 39 is applicable.

HKAS 40 Investment Property: Revises the scope such that
property being constructed or developed for future as an
investment property is classified as an investment property.
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements:

HKEFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKERS 3 (Revised)
HKEFRS 9

HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

Amendments to
HKEFRS 5 included
in Improvements to
HKEFRSs issued in
October 2008

HK Interpretation 4
(Revised in
December 2009)

First Time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards'

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited
Exemptions from Comparative HKFRS7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters*

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Group Cash-settled Share-
based Payment Transactions’

Business Combinations'

Financial Instruments®

Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements'

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues’

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items'

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners'

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments*

Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations - Plan to sell the controlling
interest in a subsidiary’

Leases — Determination of the Length of
Lease Term in respect of Hong
Kong Land Leases?

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to
HKEFRSs 2009 which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009 while the amendments to HKFRS 5, HKERS 8, HKAS
1, HKAS 7, HKAS 17, HKAS 36 and HKAS 39 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010 although there are separate
transitional provisions for each standard or interpretation.
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HKEFRS 1 (Revised) was issued with an aim to improve the structure of
the standard. The revised version of the standard does not make any
changes to the substance of accounting by first-time adopters. As the
Group is not a first-time adopter of HKFRSs, the amendments will not
have any financial impact on the Group.

The HKFRS 1 Amendments provide relief from the full retrospective
application of HKFRSs for the measurement of oil and gas assets
and leases. As a result of extending the options for determining
deemed cost to oil and gas assets, the existing exemption relating to
decommissioning liabilities has also been revised. As the Group is not
a first-time adopter of HKFRSs, the amendments will not have any
financial impact on the Group.

The HKFRS 2 Amendments provide guidance on how to account for
cash-settled share-based payment transactions in the separate financial
statements of the entity receiving the goods and services when the entity
has no obligation to settle the share-based payment transactions. The
amendments also incorporate guidance that was previously included in
HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2
— Group and Treasury Share Transactions. The Group expects to adopt
the HKFRS 2 Amendments from 1 January 2010. The amendments are
unlikely to have any significant implications on the Group’s accounting
for share-based payments.

HKEFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes in the accounting
for business combinations that will impact the amount of goodwill
recognised, the reported results in the period that an acquisition occurs,
and future reported results.

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary without loss of control is accounted for as an equity
transaction. Therefore, such a change will have no impact on goodwill,
nor will it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the revised standard
changes the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as well as
the loss of control of a subsidiary. Other consequential amendments
were made to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 12 Income
Taxes, HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates,
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and HKAS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures.

The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS 27
(Revised) from 1 January 2010. The changes introduced by these revised
standards must be applied prospectively and will affect the accounting
of future acquisitions, loss of control and transactions with minority
interests.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3

Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

HKEFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of
a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses on
the classification and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an entity shall classify
financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or
fair value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify the approach for the
classification and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of HKAS 39.

While the adoption of HKFRS 9 is mandatory from 1 January 2013,
earlier adoption is permitted. The Group is considering the implications
of the standard, the impact on the Group and the timing of its adoption
by the Group.

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definition of related
parties. It also provides for a partial exemption of related party
disclosure to government-related entities for transactions with the
same government or entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by the same government. The Group expects
to adopt HKAS 24 (Revised) from 1 January 2011 and the comparative
related party disclosures will be amended accordingly.

The HKAS 32 Amendment revises the definition of financial liabilities
such that rights, options or warrants issued to acquire a fixed number of
the entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount of any currency
are equity instruments, provided that the entity offers the rights, options
or warrants pro rata to all of its existing owners of the same class of its
own non-derivative equity instruments. The Group expects to adopt the
HKAS 32 Amendment from 1 January 2011. As the Group currently has
no such rights, options or warrants in issue, the amendment is unlikely
to have any financial impact on the Group.

The HKAS 39 Amendment addresses the designation of a one-sided
risk in a hedged item, and the designation of inflation as a hedged risk
or portion in particular situations. It clarifies that an entity is permitted
to designate a portion of the fair value changes or cash flow variability
of a financial instrument as a hedged item. The Group expects to adopt
the HKAS 39 Amendment from 1 January 2010. As the Group has not
entered into any such hedges, the amendment is unlikely to have any
financial impact on the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3

Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

The HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendments remove an unintended
consequence arising from the treatment of prepayments of future
contributions in certain circumstances when there is a minimum
funding requirement. The amendments require an entity to treat the
benefit of an early payment as a pension asset. The economic benefit
available as a reduction in future contributions is thus equal to the
sum of (i) the prepayment for future services and (ii) the estimated
future services costs less the estimated minimum funding requirement
contributions that would be required as if there were no prepayments.
While the adoption of the amendments is mandatory from 1 January
2011, earlier adoption is permitted. The Group is considering the
implications of the amendments, the impact on the Group and the
timing of its adoption by the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 standardises practice in the accounting for non-
reciprocal distributions of non-cash assets to owners. The Group
expects to apply the interpretation from 1 January 2010 prospectively.
The interpretation clarifies that (i) a dividend payable should be
recognised when the dividend is appropriately authorised and is no
longer at the discretion of the entity; (ii) an entity should measure the
dividend payable at the fair value of the net assets to be distributed; and
(iii) an entity should recognise the difference between the dividend paid
and the carrying amount of the net assets distributed in profit or loss.
Other consequential amendments were made to HKAS 10 Events after
the Reporting Period and HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations. While the adoption of the interpretation
may result in changes in certain accounting policies, the interpretation
is unlikely to have any material financial impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 addresses the accounting by an entity when the terms
of a financial liability are renegotiated and result in the entity issuing
equity instruments to a creditor of the entity to extinguish all or part
of the financial liability. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
from 1 January 2011. The interpretation clarifies that equity
instruments issued to a creditor to extinguish a financial liability are
consideration paid in accordance with HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished, and the consideration
paid, shall be recognised in profit or loss. The consideration paid should
be measured based on the fair value of the equity instrument issued or,
if the fair value of the equity instrument cannot be reliably measured,
the fair value of the financial liability extinguished. As the Group has not
undertaken such transactions, the interpretation is unlikely to have any
material financial impact on the Group.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that all assets and liabilities of a
subsidiary shall be classified as held for sale if an entity has a sale plan
involving loss of control of the subsidiary, regardless of whether the
entity will retain a non-controlling interest. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2010. The changes must be applied
prospectively and will affect future sale transactions or plans involving
loss of control of a subsidiary.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3

Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 issued in May 2009 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. Except for the amendment to
HKAS 18 and the amendment to HKFRS 8, the Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2010. There are separate transitional
provisions for each standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments may result in changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments are expected to have a significant financial impact on
the Group. Those amendments that are expected to have a significant
impact on the Group are as follows:

(a) HKERS 2 Share-based Payment: Clarifies that a contribution of
a business on the formation of a joint venture and combination
of entities or businesses under common control is not within the
scope of HKERS 2 even though it is outside the scope of HKFRS
3.

(b) HKEFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations: Clarifies that (i) the disclosures required in respect
of non-current assets (or a disposal group) classified as held for
sale or a discontinued operation are those set out in HKFRS 5;
(ii) the general requirements of HKAS 1 still apply (e.g., source of
estimation uncertainty); and (iii) the disclosures in other HKFRSs
are not required unless:

(i)  those HKERSs specifically require disclosures in respect of
non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held
for sale or discontinued operations; or

(ii)  the disclosures relate to the measurement of assets or
liabilities within a disposal group that are outside the scope
of measurement requirements of HKFRS 5 and disclosures
are not disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements.

(c) HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: States that the
terms of a liability that could result, at anytime, in its settlement
by the issuance of equity instruments at the option of the
counterparty do not affect its classification.

(d) HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Requires that only
expenditures that result in a recognised asset in the statement of
financial position can be classified as a cash flow from investing
activities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRSS (continued)

(e)

®

(g)

(h)

()

HKAS 17 Leases: Removes the specific guidance on classifying
land as a lease. As a result, leases of land should be classified as
either operating or finance leases in accordance with the general
guidance in HKAS 17.

HK Interpretation 4 Leases-Determination of the Length of
Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong Land Leases is revised as a
consequence of the amendment to HKAS 17 Leases included in
improvements to HKFRSs 2009. Following this amendment, the
scope of HK Interpretation 4 has been expanded to cover all land
leases, including those classified as finance leases. As a result, this
interpretation is applicable to all leases of property accounted for
in accordance with HKAS 16, HKAS 17 and HKAS 40.

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets: Clarifies that the largest
unit permitted for allocating goodwill acquired in a business
combination is the operating segment as defined in HKFRS 8
Operating Segments before aggregation for financial reporting
purposes.

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets: Clarifies that (i) if an intangible
asset acquired in a business combination is identifiable only with
another intangible asset, the acquirer may recognise the group
of assets as a single asset provided that the individual assets have
similar useful lives; and (ii) the valuation techniques presented
for determining the fair value of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination that are not traded in active markets are
only examples and are not restrictive on the methods that can be
used.

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement:
Clarifies that (i) a prepayment option is considered closely related
to the host contract when the exercise price of a prepayment
option reimburses the lender up to the approximate present
value of lost interest for the remaining term of the host contract;
(ii) the scope exemption for contracts between an acquirer and
a vendor in a business combination to buy or sell an acquiree
at a future date, applies only to binding forward contracts, and
not derivative contracts where further actions by either party are
still to be taken; and (iii) gains or losses on cash flow hedges of a
forecast transaction that subsequently results in the recognition
of a financial instrument or on cash flow hedges of recognised
financial instruments should be reclassified in the period that the
hedged forecast cash flows affect profit or loss.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives:
Clarifies that it does not apply to possible reassessment, at the
date of acquisition, to embedded derivatives in contracts acquired
in a combination between entities or businesses under common
control or the formation of a joint venture.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

(j).:  HK(FRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation: Removes the restriction of where the hedging
instrument may be held in a hedge of a net investment in a
foreign operation, qualifying hedging instruments may be held
by any entity or entities within the Group, including the foreign
operation itself, as long as the designation, documentation
and effectiveness requirements of HKAS 39 that relate to a net
investment hedge are satisfied.

2.4 Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Bank and its subsidiaries and attributable share of results and
reserves of its associates (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2009.

(a)  Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Bank, directly or
indirectly, controls the composition of the Board of Directors,
controls more than half of the voting power or holds more than
half of the issued share capital; or over which the Bank has a
contractual right to exercise a dominant influence with respect
to that entity’s financial and operating policies. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(a)

)

Subsidiaries (continued)
All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has been
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. This
method involves allocating the cost of the business combinations
to the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. The
cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the
difference between the proceeds of the sale and the Group’s share
of its net assets together with any goodwill or negative goodwill
taken to reserves and which was not previously charged or
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Bank’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Bank’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates is included as part of the
Group’s interests in associates and is not individually tested for
impairment.

The results of associates are included in the Bank’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Bank’s investments in associates are treated as non-current assets
and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

For regulatory reporting, the basis of consolidation for
calculation of consolidated capital adequacy ratio of the Group is
set out in Note 1 of the “Supplementary Financial Information”
section.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.5

2.6

Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all interest-bearing financial instruments using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, an interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Non-interest income

Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Commitment fees for loans that
are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with related direct
costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on
the loan. Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the
syndication has been completed and the Group retained no part of the
loan package for itself or retained a part at the same effective interest
rate as the other participants. Portfolio and other management advisory
and service fees are recognised based on the applicable service contracts,
usually on a time-apportionate basis.

Net trading income

Net trading income comprises all gains and losses from changes in the
fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as held
for trading and available for sale. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of derivatives to the extent as described in the accounting
policy set out in Note 2.10 are reported as “Net trading income”.

Gains and losses on foreign exchange trading and other transactions are
also reported as “Net trading income” except for those gains and losses
on translation of foreign currencies recognised in the foreign exchange
reserve in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.15.

Dividend income
Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.7

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-
to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (i) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (ii) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank balances, trade
and other receivables, loans receivable, quoted and unquoted financial
instruments, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement. These
net fair value changes do not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.7 Financial assets (continued)

(a)

®)

v TR R4T (3HN) A BRA W Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 107

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to
sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets
and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable future
significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets in rare circumstances. The reclassification from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. Reassessment only occurs
if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables, including cash and short-term funds,
placements with and advances to banks and other financial
institutions, trade bills and loans and advances to customers,
banks and other financial institutions, are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in net interest income in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
income statement.

ZETJEF . Annual Report 2009
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.7 Financial assets (continued)

(c)

(d)

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in net interest income in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
income statement. Were the Group to sell or reclassify other than
an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments, the
entire category would be tainted and reclassified as available for
sale.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities
in this category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response
to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale financial investment reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the income statement in other income, or
until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the income statement
and removed from the available-for-sale financial investment
reserve. Interest and dividends earned are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the income statement as “net interest income” and “dividend
income from financial investments”.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets whether
the ability and intention to sell them in the near term are still
appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent to do so
significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets. In rare circumstances,
reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when the
financial assets meet the definition of loans and receivables and
the Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or to maturity. The reclassification to the held-
to-maturity category is permitted only when the entity has the
ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial
asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.7 Financial assets (continued)

(d)

(e)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in reserve is amortised to the income statement
over the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost
and the expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in reserve is reclassified to the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a passthrough arrangement, and
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Fair value

The fair values of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. The
Group establishes the fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, a
discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models refined
to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about the following loss events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

. the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the

borrower’s financial difficulty granting to the borrower, a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties;

. deterioration in the value of collateral;
. downgrading below investment grade level; or
. observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in

the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in
the group, including adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or national or local economic conditions
that correlate with the defaults on the assets in the group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowances are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows of a
collateralised financial asset less costs for obtaining and selling
the collateral, reflects the cash flows that may result from
foreclosure whether or not the foreclosure is probable.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e., on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, industry, geographical location,
collateral type, overdue status and other relevant factors). Those
characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows
from groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’
ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms
of the assets being evaluated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the
contractual cash flows of the assets in the Group and the historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
those in the Group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the
basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current
conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical
loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in
the historical period that do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment
status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of
losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loan is written off after all
the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of the allowances for
loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
2.8 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b)  Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The determination
of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the income statement
- is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the income statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the income
statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

2.9 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. The
Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

(a)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held for
trading and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at
inception.

Financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, including the Group’s own debt securities in issue and
deposits received from customers that are embedded with
certain derivatives, are designated as such at inception. Financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are carried
at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair value
are recognised in the income statement.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of sale in the short term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKAS 39. Any interests charged on these financial
liabilities are included in the income statement under “Interest
expense”. It is carried at fair value and any gains and losses from
changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.

(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently stated
at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the other financial liabilities
using the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. The
related interest expense is recognised within “Interest expense” in
the income statement.
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(c)  Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices
in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and option pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition
is the transaction price (i.e., the fair value of the consideration given
or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is better evidenced
by comparison with other observable current market transactions in
the same instrument (i.e., without modification or repackaging) or
based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from
observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Group recognises
profits on day one.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the
host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement unless the Group chooses to
designate the hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

(continued)

Derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as either: (i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities or unrecognised firm commitments (fair value hedge); or (ii)
hedges of highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised
asset or liability, or a forecasted transaction (cash flow hedge). Hedge
accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way provided
certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(a)  Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or
liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which
the effective interest method is used is amortised to the income
statement over the period to maturity. The adjustment to the
carrying amount of a hedged equity security remains in retained
earnings until the disposal of the equity security.

(b)  Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised
in other comprehensive income in the hedging reserve. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are recycled
to the income statement in the periods in which the hedged item
will affect profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that
is hedged takes place).

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in other comprehensive income at that time
remains in other comprehensive income and is recognised when
the forecast transaction affects profit or loss. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or
loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the
income statement.

s TR $RAT (S59) A FR/A 7] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
ZETJEF . Annual Report 2009

115



oA 5 it 25 B
N he Financial S

2

F R BORMEE (50

2.10

2112

2.13

A Ak T 5 e B oh & SR L (450

W ETEB M B T IEFE i TR

A AT A TESE R & VR b & B F o A f]
AFFE VRS h G st g2 fii A LR 2 A PEE
S BV R JY WS4 R A e R

TG TR

i ELAE A5 BUAT T T AT A0 R S e 8 <
Fe it LA aRAS S - B RF 48 B B 7 AT (B
A < il ) <l B AL EL ARG - T 7E A5
IRVLR A AR RS 7R o

B i ik

i AR AT REAR R 5 4 T (9] ) 6 42
i IR > AR ] e ([ 3 ] e 1) 5 o 2 i
TE WA B R 0 BB 4T 7 07 2 A
G AAESRAT S HoAth & R A 2 A7 Bl 2 5 773K
(P A T AE ) o AR o sk ([0S ik )
WA Z @50 R B SRAT B AR 2
B (PR A E) o /8 5 5L ] (5 2 2= 3 A
R RSB BR > Sl B P EL PR 3R 1 Bk 2 4 0
WRHE o 73 T 07 2 /8 55 IR R B AR B ek
7 o

A Z @S5 NTER TSR N AERR > B JF 5% 55 v
F R =0 (TR T > HE REEES
TR IR IA) o i i% 5 i I 2 BARAE 2 5
BN T E AT -

e el g

CL i [m] 547 S 78 54 7 B R AN H I
SPARAEL S o 7E W o] 980 B B R B BGERIEE - AR 4R
P 2008 T B AR B A RN IS A
BT A 5 BT o AR AR 4 1 MY 5 2.8 () T AL Y
ERTEOR o G B  HER IR EA
At S A A i R 2 T BE B o A A ] R
HERAR > PITSCHBRGERREHE B U0 JA Ieh  EE
AR B R A 1k o TR T ER
BRI TN -

116 W@ T84T () AFLA T Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

ZEEJUFE4EIR Annual Report 2009

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.10

2ol

2.13

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that does not
qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is
currently enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (“repos”) are
reclassified in the financial statements as pledged assets when the
transferee has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge
the collateral; the counterparty liability is included in deposits from
banks and other financial institutions or deposits from customers, as
appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell (“reverse
repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to customers, banks or other
financial institutions, as appropriate. The difference between sale and
repurchase prices is treated as an interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to
counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchase and sale
are recorded with the gain or loss included in the trading income. The
obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading liability.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are reported as off balance-sheet items and
are stated at fair value. In the recovery of impaired loans and advances,
the Group may take possession of the collateral assets through court
proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. In
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy set out in Note 2.8(a),
impairment allowances for impaired loans and advances are maintained
after taking into account the net realisable value of the collateral assets.
On a sale transaction of repossessed assets, the amount received will be
used to offset the loans and advances first until they are fully recovered,
and any remaining amount will be released to the borrowers.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.14 Segment reporting

2.15

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in
providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of other business segments. A geographical
segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular

economic environment that are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of segments operating in other economic

environments.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

®)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translations
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in other comprehensive income
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equity
held at fair value through profit or loss, are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
items, such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group entities (none
of which has a functional currency which is the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities of these entities are translated at the
closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

. their income statements are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions); and
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.15

2.16

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)  Group companies (continued)

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate
component of equity.

On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are included in a separate component
of equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income statement as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
(d)  Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Property, plant and equipment

Bank premises and properties comprise mainly branches and offices.
Bank premises and properties are shown at fair value, based on
periodic, but at least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation
at the date of revaluation is restated proportionately with the change
in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying amount
of the asset after revaluation equals its revalued amount. All other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property,
plant and equipment.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.16

2.17

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank
premises and properties are credited to other reserves in shareholders’
equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are
charged against bank premises revaluation reserve directly in equity;
all other decreases are expensed in the income statement. Each year
the difference between the depreciation amount based on the revalued
carrying amount of the asset expensed in the income statement and the
depreciation amount based on the asset’s original cost is transferred
from the bank premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Bank premises and properties Over the remaining lease period of
the land on which the properties
are situated or 50 years, whichever
is shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term of the leased
premises or 10 years whichever is
shorter

Furniture and equipment 4 to 10 years

The residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount, with the amount charged directly to the
income statement.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. On disposal of
a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained earnings as a movement in
reserves.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment properties comprise land held under operating leases and
buildings held under finance leases.
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2.17 Investment properties (continued)
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Land held under operating leases are classified and accounted for as
an investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted,
if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific asset. If this information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are
performed in accordance with the guidance issued by the International
Valuation Standards Committee. These valuations are reviewed
annually by external valuers. Investment properties that are being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment properties, or for which
the market has become less active, continues to be measured at fair
value.

The fair value of investment properties reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental income
from future leases in light of current market conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that
could be expected in respect of the properties. Some of those outflows
are recognised as liabilities, including finance lease liabilities in respect
ofland classified as investment properties; others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Properties
that are being constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties is classified as property, plant and equipment and stated at
cost until construction or development is completed, at which time
they are reclassified and subsequently accounted for as investment
properties.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment
under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.18

2.19

2.20

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold interest in the land held for own use is accounted for as being
held under an operating lease where the fair value of the interest in any
buildings situated on the leasehold land could be measured separately
from the fair value of the leasehold interest in land at the time the lease
was first entered into by the Group. The interest in leasehold land is
stated at cost less impairment loss in the statement of financial position
and is amortised to the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the remaining lease term.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed of the acquired subsidiaries at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of an associate
is included in “Investments in associates”. The carrying amount of
goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. Each of those cash-generating units is represented
by each primary reporting segment.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Gains or losses from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the income statement when
the assets are derecognised.

(a)  Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful
life of four years.
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(a)  Computer software (continued)

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer
software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Costs that are directly associated with the production of
identifiable and unique software products controlled by the
Group, and that will probably generate economic benefits
exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible
assets. Direct costs include the software development employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Computer software development costs recognised as intangible
assets are amortised over their estimated useful life (not
exceeding four years).

(b)  Trading rights

Trading rights represent eligibility rights with indefinite useful
lives to trade on or through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and are tested for impairment annually. Such intangible
assets are not amortised. The useful life is reviewed annually to
determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable, if not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to infinite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

2.21 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation,
but are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.



oA % e 25 P
N he Financial S

2

F R BORMEE (50

2.22 R

JIT AL L4 ) PR AE BT o A7 B4 2 1 R
JEH B9 IS BLURMB R SMERS > a2 R HA
A TR B AR AR o

" T B 1 ) ] 2 B TR e AR > AR
35 A A O R 4 0 A48 RIS 2 R B A 2 B
H(RBIBIEB) - 7% A 4R B 2 P TE
%,/ AL R B e R AR > T A
L5 AT 1 [ sl 5 T BB AR P 2 R & o

TEIEBL T fifsi & MBS ik v & R A2 Bl
2 ELAR 8 R T (2 D A 5 0 A SRR /8 2 22 i
AR AR - AR ROE AR A o SATID > A
IERLIATIAC [ VI il pB 20 5 (I IR 2685 3 F) 2
B A > H 25 Wl A R B g s A b g
AR B A SR o AR ARSI 2 RSB o 4
ST IE B T I o 0 A5 ORI L A e A L A
it 2% PE A A I A B 3 A B B S I
B ER R 2 Bl (MBS FE -

AR ST R IR T i R AH A T R A IR Ui
) LA B8l P I 2 2 A A IS B R 7 T R

O SE R T ZE A 15 S o 2 ) e Mo ) T 2
A BT IR 2 ST B o BRI R 2 B fgE ]
Y 7 A B 2 ) B I 2 AR T RE S @ 2 T L
RACHE B o

LA S A5 B0 e B4 i B 2 AP (E T
R AR B < RAEBLIH - IR B HTE R AR P AT BR
SR A SR - FLAR T[] 8 S 48 i 1 Wi 2% e

i

\

W

k=l

O SIE 3 T 4 2 R T R % i 5 A A R R A A T
FEAR > SO E AS T T A EE AR 400 1B R Vi 1 L )
A 22 0 A 2 40 A A3 I AR 8 I T DA I
B o AR 2 A SE L T T i o U A R R
BTHEAT RPAS - SR AT B E A A2 0 B i
Y LA i [ 2 P8 s R A0 A0 5 I A 7 1 KB s
THERR

ESER T i I B U ARSI S A5 R Rr 2
s A O H 2 B2 (RBLE) > T
TS Y A B R R R AT 2 B et 2 o

A SE LV 7 % A A T R DA B
T o R DA A 8 A T A0 S 5 I L ] —
o B 5 ] — 5 B P A B Ry 7 LA EL ARG o

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.22 Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, if the deferred income tax arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for as deferred
income tax. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-
sale investments and cash flow hedges, which are charged or credited
directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to equity and is
subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the
deferred gain or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of the reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.23

Employee benefits
(a)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

(b)  Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement scheme
under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the
“ORSO Scheme”) and another defined contribution retirement
scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for those employees of the Group
who are eligible and have elected to participate in the schemes.
The Group’s contributions to the ORSO Scheme are made based
on a percentage of the eligible employees’ basic salaries and those
made to the MPF Scheme are made based on a percentage of
the eligible employees’ relevant income as defined in the MPF
Scheme. These contributions are expensed as incurred and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees of the
Group who leave the schemes prior to the contributions vesting
fully. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administered funds.

2.24 Provisions

2.25

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when
(i) the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; (ii) it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and (iii) the amount has been
reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination
penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there is a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the period of the lease. The Group’s interests in leasehold
land and land use rights are also accounted as operating leases.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.25

2.26

2.27

Operating leases (continued)

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets leased out are
included in property, plant and equipment in the statement of financial
position. They are depreciated over their expected useful lives on a basis
consistent with similar owned property, plant and equipment. Rental
income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’
maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances with
banks and other financial institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills
and certificates of deposit.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
Group’s control.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the Group’s control, or a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised either because an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
is not probable or the amount of obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as an asset.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.28

2.29

2.30

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the Group that
gives it significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint
control over the Group;

(®)

the party is an associate;

(c)

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;
(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (d);

(f)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement
of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Bank’s memorandum and articles of association grant the directors
the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions. These assets and
income arising thereon are excluded from these financial statements, as
they are not assets of the Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a)

(b)

Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment on a
monthly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should
be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgements
as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio
of loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan
in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating
that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a group, or in the national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on assets in the group of borrowers.
Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of
impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future
cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

Fair value of derivatives

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using various valuation techniques
according to the nature of the financial instruments. These include
third party price quotation, a discounted cash flow and option pricing
models. These models are built by reputable system suppliers and are
widely used in the market. They are reviewed and calibrated by qualified
personnel independent of the area that created them. Valuation outputs
are generated from these systems using relevant current observable
market parameters and are verified before they are used for financial
reporting purposes.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments are impaired
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value below its cost. This determination of what is significant or
prolonged requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates among other factors, the normal volatility in share prices. In
addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of a
deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector
performance, changes in technology, and operating and financing cash
flows.
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3  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to classify non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
as held-to-maturity. This classification requires significant judgement.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability
to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep these
investments to maturity other than for the specific circumstances,
for example, selling an insignificant amount close to maturity, it will
be required to reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale financial
investments. The investments would therefore be measured at fair value
and not at amortised cost.

Fair value of bank premises and properties

The fair value of the leasehold building is estimated based on the
valuation made by an independent professionally qualified valuer on an
open market basis.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on
the value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates of discount rate and long-term growth rate.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1

Opverall risk management

Pursuant to the implementation of Basel II New Accord since January
2007, the Group practises risk management in 2009 in congruence with
the principles and requirements of the New Accord. Paying increased
attention to corporate governance, the Board oversight and a top-down
approach permeated through the Group’s risk management structure,
processes, policies and internal control. For its business plan and
activities, the Group identifies, assesses, monitors, controls, reports and
reviews the major risks to ensure capital adequacy and compliance with
regulatory guidelines and adherence to the Board’s risk expectation,
including during stress times.
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4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1

Opverall risk management (continued)

Risk management structure and principles

The Group has established policies and procedures for the
identification, measurement, control and monitoring of risk factors
(including credit, liquidity, market, interest rate, operational, legal
and compliance risks). Central to the Group’s risk management is the
Board’s oversight, which ultimately endorses all core risk policies and
their subsequent amendments. Two Risk Management Committees,
one at Board level and the other at senior executive level, reinforce
the Board and management’s oversight in the risk management
structure, process and policies. The management of the Group, the
Risk Management Department and the relevant functional committees
review and revise these policies and procedures on a regular basis. The
Group’s Internal Audit Department also performs regular checks on
compliance with policies and procedures.

Launch of new products and services

The launch of new banking products and services has to go through
the essential steps of development and approval process to ensure their
commercial viability, ethical suitability and statutory compliance. The
Product Development Department or other relevant business unit is
responsible to prepare a proposal for any new product or service to the
New Product & Business Committee (chaired by an executive director
of the Bank) for approval. The main objective of the process is to
identify and assess the risks associated with the product; to implement
steps to prevent the occurrence or minimise its magnitude of impact;
and to exercise measures to ensure the risks are all the times under
managed and control.

In accordance with Basel II Pillar I, the Group adopts the following
approaches for its credit, market and operational risk exposure in the
calculation of its capital adequacy ratio (“CAR”):

Credit risk
Market risk
Operational risk

— Standardized approach
— Standardized approach
- Basic indicator approach

The Risk Management Department is responsible for credit, market and
operational risk management. Its department head reports to Chief Risk
Officer, who in turn reports to the Risk Management Committee of the
Board of Directors.

The following diagram depicts the Group’s risk management structure
under the Basel II regime and compatible with relevant HKMA
guidelines.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a borrower or counterparty of the Group will
be unable or unwilling to honor a repayment obligation. The Group
has standards, policies and procedures and designated functional
departments in place to control and monitor these risks.

The Group devotes considerable resources to maintaining sound credit
risk management. Management has set credit policies and systems to
identify, measure, monitor and control risks inherent in various lending
businesses. This process ensures prudence, minimises operational
omissions in credit matters, and aims at early detection of potential
problems, thereby minimising business loss.

High-level credit policies of the Group are set, reviewed and constantly
updated by the relevant functional departments and committees,
and for prominent issues, by the Management or even the Board
of Directors to take balanced account of dynamic market situation,
regulatory requirement, the Group’s usual prudent lending practices
and its latest business strategies. All these credit policies, processes
and practices, as they are developed, updated, reviewed and revised,
are written now and then into Credit Manuals and supplementary
lending product manuals for internal control and compliance purposes.
Given the Basel II Capital Accord implemented since January 2007,
the Group has been adjusting its credit risk management practice in
line with relevant guidelines released by the HKMA and for the sake
of enhancing internal credit control, processing efficiency and product
competitiveness.

Credit authorities are delegated to individual approvers for efficiency
and productivity purposes. Except for taxi loans, small business
loans and consumer loans, no business originating units can singly
approve any loan. Loans singly approved by business originating
units are nevertheless still subject to approval criteria pre-set by the
Credit Function or Credit Committee. Otherwise, the Group generally
requires “dual” approval whereby loan proposals shall require joint
approval by the Business Line and Credit Function. The Bank’s Credit
Committee, which approves all credit policies and large loans, shall
not pass any credit related proposal if its Credit Function approvers
disagree. Only the loan proposals approved by the Credit Committee
would be submitted to Chief Executive Officer for signature if and
where it is needed.
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4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2

Credit risk (continued)

The Credit Department and the Loans Administration Department are
the centralised departments in the Bank mandated to carry out credit
policies. They perform independent credit assessment, post-approval
credit administration and other credit control functions to ensure that
the credit process complies with credit policies and guidelines laid down
by the management. Apart from the independent credit assessment and
matrix approval process, regular post approval inspection by the Risk
Management Department and credit audits are conducted on specific
loan portfolio or operating units in the credit process. To maintain
its independence, the Credit Department and Loans Administration
Department of the Bank have a direct reporting line to a Deputy General
Manager who is independent of business. Same control, supplemented
by system support, regular mark-to-market and case by case approval
by the Risk Management Department, also applies to the counter party
credit risk of structured derivative products.

The Group employs RAROC techniques to help ensure that its loan
assets are commensurately priced on a credit risk-adjusted basis
according to Basel II principles.

Management spares no efforts in monitoring the quality and behavior
of the loan portfolio. The Group’s internal credit risk grading system
consisting of 15 grades built on Basel II - compliant attributes is
adopted for credit risk differentiation purpose. With internal data to be
constantly enriched through years of experience, it is expected that the
Group can make further use of the credit statistics to profile and track
down credit risk migration, to measure loan default probabilities and
to practise other credit risk management processes, of which the new
credit rating model is and will substantially be an integral part.

The Group’s credit risk appetite is spelt out, disseminated and referred
to in daily credit decision. Purpose is to limit the range of credit
proposals presented to the credit approval process to those that fit the
Group’s risk appetite developed out of the Group’s past experience, the
Board preference and risk or reward evaluation.

The Bank is vigilant about risk concentration and has therefore be
practising credit risk exposure limits to individual customers in
absolute amount and as a percentage of the Bank’s equity, to industry
sectors and to geographical markets.

The Group’s quarterly credit guidelines and quarterly loan portfolio
review have been practised for years. In economic bad times, it is basic
to the mechanism for initiating pre-emptive measures to help stabilise
the quality of the Group’s loan asset portfolio. Given that the market
liquidity of investment papers tends to rapidly dry up when global
economic conditions suffer, the Group increases its reliance, too, on the
Credit Function and on the Credit Committee in the approval and risk
monitoring process of these investment papers.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2

Credit risk (continued)

(a)  Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or

K17 & other credit enhancements
AREH AT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T T T Tt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HHEREARENZ Credit risk exposures relating to on-
£ SOML A balance sheet assets are as follows:
B RAE AT B Cash and balances with banks and

EAL 3 YA other financial institutions 27,910,582 28,678,778 25,247,532 27,649,423
TESRAT R oA 4 i b 2 Placements with and advances to

B banks and other financial institutions 1,663,286 844,358 2,427,183 1,660,123
FHER G kS RE R Financial assets held for trading 190,246 52,051 67,998 52,051
HE AT RAR R Financial assets designated at fair

ANRZ &G RE value through profit or loss 1,162,149 1,488,003 1,162,149 1,488,003
eI Derivative financial instruments 1,285,306 2,308,702 1,285,306 2,308,702
K~ 87 KA Loans and advances to customers,

SRR banks and other financial institutions 147,024,582 137,082,721 137,725,764 128,285,852
e SRBE Available-for-sale financial investments 32,361,666 17,403,075 32,361,096 17,402,458
FFHZE SRS Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,291,509 1,976,403 1,291,509 1,976,403
B R HEUIZ Credit risk exposures relating to off-

£ SOM A balance sheet items are as follows:

BARGE IR AR B R Loan commitments and other credit

related commitments 11,085,237 17,994,335 6,183,199 5,752,305
P Ok B A5 A B A £ B Financial guarantees and other credit

related contingent liabilities 92,672,144 71,723,015 92,446,260 71,525,226
BN A B At the end of the reporting period 316,646,707 279,551,441 300,197,996 258,100,546

(b) FHEF

(b)  Credit quality

BB Gross loans and advances
()  HfE B R 0Bl S AR AR Al an (i)  Distribution of gross loans and advances by credit quality
L is summarised as follows:
AL Xy
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T Tk T Tt
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
R 2 S Gross loans and advances to customers:
— BRI R A - neither past due nor impaired 135,103,632 117,918,865 125,928,706 109,378,442
—BEIER A - past due but not impaired 529,218 1,230,299 529,218 1,226,677
—ERfE - impaired 1,358,618 888,965 1,095,353 835,897
st Total 136,991,468 120,038,129 127,553,277 111,441,016
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4 B R KA B (a0 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 %EELFXAX (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(b) 17 EE 3 (4) (b)  Credit quality (continued)
AR () Gross loans and advances (continued)
() %5 BVE 2 0 HE 2 A R AR Al (i)  Distribution of gross loans and advances by credit quality
() is summarised as follows: (continued)
A% AT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T T T Tt
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
SRAT R A R A Gross loans and advances to banks
2B and other financial institutions:
— BRI R A - neither past due nor impaired 10,671,725 16,731,818 10,671,725 16,556,691
— CfER A ~ past due but not impaired - - - -
— Wi - impaired - - - -
A5t Total 10,671,725 16,731,818 10,671,725 16,556,691
(i)  BEARBHIIRAR W E 2 B AR A 5 (ii)  Distribution of gross loans and advances that are neither
past due nor impaired
i 1 25t R B A A 39 S A il (. The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances
ZEFMEGZERERT S BALE that were neither past due nor impaired at the end of
VB iy PR AN 2 TN TR AR A T A the reporting periods can be assessed by reference to the
internal rating system adopted by the Group.
AL AT
Group Bank
M B
AFEE 1 PA 2009 2008 2009 2008
e Internal S&P’s T Tik T T
Credit rating rating equivalent HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EF4H Pass Grade A-E AAA to BBB- 34,875,810 34,061,738 34,019,167 33,393,354
F-H BB+ to BB 63,989,856 70,190,588 61,993,408 65,952,459
1] BB- to B+ 36,472,345 24,189,154 30,404,242 20,666,337
B Special Mention Grade ~ K-L Bto CCC- 10,437,346 6,209,203 10,183,614 5,922,983
At Total 145,775,357 134,650,683 136,600,431 125,935,133

134 i T84T () AR AW Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

()
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Credit quality (continued)
Gross loans and advances (continued)

(ii)

Distribution of gross loans and advances that are neither
past due nor impaired (continued)

The various internal and external rating criteria and
calibration are mapped back to one single internal credit
rating scale for statistical and regulatory purposes. The
Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”) equivalent ratings are based
on mapping the individual probability of default of each
internal grade with that of the S&P’s ratings.

The Credit Function and Credit Committee decide an
individual borrower’s credit rating. Credit rating is a
function of quantitative and management attributes that
include economic outlook, account conduct and industry
risk. The Group has a different rating scale for large
corporates and SMEs. The external rating of S&P, Moodys
and Fitch will be adopted, if available.

The following table which gives a distribution of the
Group’s total loans and advances by credit rating. The
Group has calibrated its borrowing customers into Grade
A - Grade O and works out their respective weighted
average probability of default (“PD”) and loss given default
(“LGD”) since 2005.

Pass Grades A to
Special Mention Grades K to IL
Non-Performing

Loan Grade (“NPL”) M to O

—

Grades A - J: Loans where borrowers are currently in
meeting commitment and full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt. There are 10 grades within the
performing category from A to J.

Grades K - L: All pass grade borrowers which have
overdue loans for a period exceeding one month are
downgraded to special mention rating or below, unless
with strong justification irrespective of the internal ratings.
Borrowers exhibiting one or more of the characteristics
per the HKMA'’s special mention or non-performing
grades definition or as general economic environment
deteriorates, may also be graded K & L, notwithstanding
the absence of overdue loan on default record. This is a
stringent credit rating approach to raise the Group’s credit
risk alertness.

ZETJEFH Annual Report 2009
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4 EABREBEAE B () 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 %Em&bﬂ(@) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(b) (FHEZF () (b)  Credit quality (continued)
AR () Gross loans and advances (continued)

(i) B HE R S 2 SRR AAAE (iii) Gross loans and advances which were past due but not
impaired

DA 23 51 75 4 i o5 01 5 IR L 7
WERBEZ FF ~ A7 % H A

The analysis below shows the gross loans and advances
to customers, banks and other financial institutions that

PR 2 R AR were past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting
periods:
S L | A GAT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T# TH#s T T#x T T
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
AR 30 F Past due up to 30 days 473,455 748,891 473,455 748,891
i 31-60 H Past due 31-60 days 51,519 73,419 51,519 69,797
i 61-90 H Past due 61-90 days 1,890 404,953 1,890 404,953
oo H Ak Past due over 90 days 2,354 3,036 2,354 3,036
Hast Total 529,218 1,230,299 529,218 1,226,677
HEA i 2 AP (E Fair value of collateral 479,922 1,034,412 479,922 1,030,790

= . P N e =2 < I )
T \AE 2 A AR > Sl AT
o < il E 5 BRI -

i FEGAH i 0 o B AR o R
HEA TR 22 A A AR 2 AT
B o

(iv) 5 Az B

AR 42 B B AT 52 BUR > A8 0
90 H 2 % F ¥ 1Ik = NPL# Al - @
W90 H A | 2 o fif 52 45 3005 f4 B8
FEIEF AR A > T A 7E B B (E &
1 IE & D o B U E S IR TE — ikl
2 P R IR P A DA (] i
2 i 5% K 7 2K BE 4 5 A 28 S b T DA
FEAG > PRE RCE G o MER A A B2
FE M EIRES > XK EZE
JF 2 Fp A R T A S
Bl > A B S & RIS B BUA T )
WA R AR — 3085 2 HAthfig
HE N SRAT Bk 5 2R B8 45 22 Al 1o ok
R AR B2 K PR BOR E 1 i DA
R P 2 &R dalmE - i H
IR PRI A L N B N B AR
DA A Bk (B 2 T 39 (8 2 (B A o
PREBI IS 5 o
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(iv)

Other than gross loans and advances, no financial assets
were past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting
periods of 2009 and 2008.

Where collateral values are greater than gross loans and
advances, only the amount of collateral up to the gross
loans and advances was included.

Loans and advances individually impaired

The Group has a policy of downgrading customers to the
NPL grade when overdue is longer than 90 days. Very
seldom would outstandings for over 90 days be retained
in pass grade instead of the impaired. Impaired borrowing
accounts are typically transferred to management by the
Special Assets Department, so that the prospect and means
of recovery can be more independently evaluated, decided
and implemented. The Special Assets Department may not
take any immediate recovery action. It may even help in
circumstances where the customer in question is deemed
to be able to be rehabilitated and the collateral is important
to the customer’s continued business operation. The Group
may at times join or seek agreement with other creditor
banks to stand still in concert. Otherwise, the Group will
take appropriate measures to preserve the customer’s
assets, to maximise recovery and to fast realise property
collateral in a timely manner either by private sale or by
public auction at prices that are in acceptable proximity
with the average of several external valuations.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

()
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Credit quality (continued)
Gross loans and advances (continued)

(iv) Loans and advances individually impaired (continued)

The Group adopts an objective individual impairment
policy in compliance with the requirement of HKAS 39.
Impairment requirement, if any, can always be traceable
back to reasonably expected discounted repayment cash
flows and/or the assessed net realisable value of the
collateral.

Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be past due or
impaired

Restructuring activities include extended payment
arrangements, approved external management plans,
modification and deferral of payments. Following
restructuring, a previously overdue customer account
is reset to a normal status and managed together with
other similar restructured debts by the Special Assets
Department. Restructuring policies and practices are
based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgment
of management, indicate that payment will most likely
continue. These policies are kept under continuous review.
Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be past due or
impaired totalled HK$7,049,372 as at 31 December 2009
(2008: HK$6,651,801). They are retained in classified loans
for as long as we do not have sufficient good reasons to
believe that the obligor will be able to sustainably meet the
re-scheduled loan repayment terms.

ZEEJUAFE4EIR Annual Report 2009
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 & EE ) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(b) (FHEZF (4) (b)  Credit quality (continued)
fE5 MR =B Debt and equity securities
() RIS E B 2 A (i)  Financial investments by rating agency designation
FRIRA T A =+ — Bk The table below presents an analysis of financial
Rkt E# Z2 SIEE ST > T investments by rating agency designation at 31 December,
R A A Y I T 2 T A 8 S A based on S&P’s ratings or their equivalance to the
%A Z PGS AT - FERA respective categories of financial investments. In the
EBATRIAR UL - HIER A absence of such issue ratings, the rating scale adopted by
BREEAT NPRAN 2 REAR S AR o the issuers is used.
A PR
Bk
N2 &R
F#fE% %2  Financial assets fifk e FHERW
2BEE  designatedat LHH% LHHE
Financial fair value Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity
assetsheld  through profit financial financial st
for trading or loss investments investments Total
M Group T#L T#L T#L T#L T
“ERE 2009 HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
AAA AAA - - 4,697,943 - 4,697,943
AA-EAA+ AA-to AA+ 425 201,022 7,016,151 1,206,732 8,424,330
A-FA+ A-to A+ 62,687 562,713 15,569,046 84,777 16,279,223
[ A- Lower than A- 4,886 398,414 4,723,280 - 5,126,580
it Unrated 122,048 - 355,246 - 477,494
At Total 190,246 1,162,149 32,361,666 1,291,509 35,005,570
fHEVAFEE
Blin#
MRZERERE
FfE2csiZ Financial assets s RZEE
SRERE designated at SRRE SRRE
Financial fair value ~ Available-for-sale  Held-to-maturity
assetsheld  through profit financial financial gt
for trading or loss investments investments Total
A Group Tt T T T T
“EENE 2008 HKS'000 HKS$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000
AAA AAA - - 1,700,548 - 1,700,548
AA-F AA+ AA-to AA+ 628 200,119 2,192,436 1,219,821 3,613,004
A-EA+ A-to A+ 46,728 399,792 9,051,465 756,582 10,254,567
[ A- Lower than A- 4,695 695,092 4,241,970 - 4,941,757
K% Unrated - 193,000 216,656 - 409,656
A5t Total 52,051 1,488,003 17,403,075 1,976,403 20,919,532
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4 A B BE (m) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 %EEL FXAX (47) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
b) 1FEEZF %) (b)  Credit quality (continued)
5 I B B a8  (4#) Debt and equity securities (continued)
() TP IRE B 2 SRR (i)  Financial investments by rating agency designation (continued)
RELAPRU
Bk
MEz &% R
FifiR %2 Financial assets ks FHESM
LW%EE  designatedat A58 A4
Financial fairvalue Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity N
assetsheld  through profit financial financial it
. for trading or loss investments investments Total
ARAT Bank Tin T T T T
“ERWE 2009 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA AAA - - 4,697,943 - 4,697,943
AA-F AA+ AA-to AA+ 425 201,022 7,016,151 1,206,732 8,424,330
A-BA+ A-to A+ 62,687 562,713 15,569,046 84,777 16,279,223
&R A- Lower than A- 4,886 398,414 4,723,280 - 5,126,580
K% Unrated - - 354,676 - 354,676
st Total 67,998 1,162,149 32,361,096 1,291,509 34,882,752
HEUATEE
:\tqﬁﬁﬁﬁ
IN 74 0
FHIERSZ  Financial assets fiifikeg e Fefi 23
SRR designated at SREH SREH
Financial fair value ~ Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity )
assetsheld  through profit financial financial st
. for trading or loss investments investments Total
AT Bank T T T T T
“ERNE 2008 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
AAA AAA - = 1,700,548 - 1,700,548
AA-F AA+ AA-to AA+ 628 200,119 2,192,436 1,219,821 3,613,004
A-EA+ A-to A+ 46,728 399,792 9,051,465 756,582 10,254,567
AR A- Lower than A- 4,695 695,092 441970 - 4941757
AL Unrated - 193,000 216,039 - 409,039
At Total 52,051 1,488,003 17,402,458 1,976,403 20918915
(i) WEHE (i) Investment portfolio
MR_EFEEZNLFE+_HA=1+—H:> As at 31 December 2009, the Bank’s debt securities
A ERTT 2 A 7?% 5 A 4y 321 [ s portfolio amounted to HK$32.1 billion, with a 77.1%
ot B EE)NEFE+_H=+—H increase over the HK$18.1 billion as at 31 December 2008.

ZlSli’%%fni%{%nl% H #1103
BT AL A 2 32.1% 15 & —
TAEFNH o M A& 2 KFBA LI TE &
WonEHE > 1 EER AR T - B -
NEE - H BB ot % HoAth &
WERHE - BRARF M 5 > #190% 2 &
T%H%ﬁ%uﬁ1%%%ﬁﬁw
175 o W2 A BRI 84% & ik &
SRAIBANA o ARIT 2 54 AR
TR e 4 Fe 2 1 2 Ja g A HELAE A
& WA A TG T 2 N
EIEG| > SN HEE
AT — R EM - HEEEERN
o ASERAT I MR R S
([CDOJ) KBk #h i e v - {H
A THEMIE TR (TS1Iv]) &
SR IEIES S (TCMBS))

HK$10.3 billion or 32.1% of the portfolio will mature in
2010. The majority of the portfolio are denominated in
US$ and HK$ whereas the rest are in other currencies,
such as AUD, EUR, CNY, JPY and SGD. In terms of
booking, over 90% of the outstanding exposures are kept
in the available-for-sale book category. Over 84% of the
portfolio falls within the investment grade category. The
Bank’s debt securities portfolio operates under a strict and
prudent risk management framework and is in compliance
with all pre-determined internal investment guidelines,
which are reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors
annually. It is noteworthy that the Bank has no exposure to
collateralised debt obligations (“CDOs”) and United States
subprime mortgages but has some exposures to structured-
investment vehicles (“SIVs”) and commercial mortgage-
backed securities (“CMBSs”).

s TR $R4T (259) A FR/A 7] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

)

()

(d)

(e)

Credit quality (continued)
Debt and equity securities (continued)

(ii)  Investment portfolio (continued)

The Bank adopts HKAS 39 compliant accounting and
value impairment policy for its investment paper portfolio
other than the held-to-maturity ones. They are marked-
to-market on a monthly basis, often with prices quoted by
several reliable sources from which the more realistically
conservative one is selected for impairment adjustment or
permanent value diminution purpose.

Derivatives

The Group maintains strict control limits on open derivative
positions. At any one time, the amount subject to credit risk is
limited to the current fair value of instruments that are favourable
to the Group (i.e., assets where their fair values are positive),
which is only a small fraction of the contracts in relation to
derivatives, or is not limited to the notional values used to
express the volume of instruments outstanding. This credit risk
exposure is managed as part of the overall lending limits with
counterparties on nominal amounts. Collateral or other security
is obtained for credit risk exposures either in the form of margin
deposits or when the accrued marked-to-market loss exceeds a
pre-determined threshold.

Master netting arrangements

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit risk by entering
into master netting arrangements with counterparties with which
it undertakes a significant volume of transactions. Master netting
arrangements do not generally result in an offset of assets and
liabilities in the statement of financial position, as transactions are
usually settled on a gross basis. However, the credit risk is reduced
by a master netting arrangement to the extent that if an event of
default occurs, all amounts with the counterparty are terminated
and settled on a net basis.

Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds
are available to a customer to settle his obligations as required.
Guarantees and standby letters of credit which represent
irrevocable assurances that the Group will make payments in the
event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties
carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary and commercial
letters of credit which are written undertakings by the Group
on behalf of a customer authorising a third party to draw drafts
on the Group up to a stipulated amount under specific terms
and conditions are collateralised by the underlying shipments
of goods to which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a
direct lending.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(e)

()
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Credit-related commitments (continued)

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees
or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments
to extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in
an amount equal to the total unused commitments. However,
even in the worst scenario, loss is likely to be less than the total
unused commitments, as most commitments to extend credit
are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit
standards. The Group monitors the term to maturity of credit
commitments because longer-term commitments generally have
a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group holds collateral against loans and advances to
customers in the forms of mortgages over property, other
registered securities over assets, cash deposits and guarantees.
Collateral generally is not held over loans and advances to banks,
except when securities are held as part of reverse repurchase
and securities borrowing activity. Collateral held as security for
financial assets other than loans and advances is determined by
the nature of the instrument.

Credit risk stress test

In accordance with the HKMA’s supervisory policy guidelines,
the Group runs the counterparty credit risk stress test periodically
in estimation of the probable credit loss in a mild, moderate
and severe crisis scenario. The Group performs the credit risk
stress test on the basis of the empirical data during the Asian
financial crisis spanning 1998 and 2004, including the 2003 SARS
epidemic. The Senior Executive Risk Management Committee
reviews the stress test, their parameters and their impact on
the Group’s regulatory capital adequacy ratio. Contingent
measures will be devised to control possible adversities, if deemed
necessary.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(g)  Credit risk stress test (continued)

The following table summarises the result of the Group’s latest
credit risk stress tests for counterparties.

ZERUHEFZAE 0 CERNEF A=

FERRNG L Crisis scenario 31 December 2009 31 December 2008
g REASEERG (D) Mild NPL (HK$ million) 3,412 5611
R #) SR AR 2 (%) NPL ratio (%) 2.80% 4.67%
TG B L (F & T) Expected credit loss (HK$ million) 1,126 828
AN RIE A SR A (E BT Moderate  NPL (HK$ million) 4,057 6,548
AN #) SR AR 2 (%) NPL ratio (%) 3.35% 5.45%
TEIA(E Bk (B B HsI0) Expected credit loss (HK$ million) 1,393 1,158
i ANIE XA (H B IT) Severe NPL (HK$ million) 4,649 7,497
T HI LR AR EE 2R (%) NPL ratio (%) 3.84% 6.24%
TEMME SR (F & #EIT) Expected credit loss (HK$ million) 1,674 1,549

P EadfE SRS A i F HZ A e
AT e ) g 2 Ry A L A P
Z B EEAT R o 5 R UK I
(A #7 LA ~ Sl - SRR >
T A 0 T T 5% 1) 2 = € TR R LA
TERCA B R ~ S At v o

All the above credit risk reports are reviewed monthly by the
Credit Committee or quarterly by the Senior Executive Risk
Management Committee. Warning signals or policy deviations, if
any, will be investigated, discussed, rectified or dealt with, and, if
necessary, be reported to the Board in due course for information,
instruction or approval.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that market rates and prices on assets, liabilities
and off-balance sheet positions change, thus causing profits or losses.
Generally the Group’s market risk is associated with its positions in
foreign exchange, money market, debt securities, derivatives and stocks.
Most off-balance sheet derivative positions arise from the execution
of customer-related orders and positions taken for hedging purposes.
Structured products are basically offered to customers in most cases on
a back-to-back basis to maintain the Bank’s market competitiveness at
minimal market risk, commensurate with the Group’s risk appetite. The
Board places material emphasis on market risk control, including the
operational control of the Bank’s proprietary and non-bank customer
dealing operation, for which regular Board’s initiatives are made.

The objective of the Group’s market risk management is to optimise
return and control market risk in ways consistent with the Group’s risk
profile and its status as a premier provider of financial products and
services.

The Group classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or
non-trading portfolios. Trading portfolios include those positions
arising from market-making, proprietary position taking and other
mark-to-market positions so designated. Non-trading portfolios
primarily arise from the effective foreign exchange and interest rate
management of the Group’s retail, corporate and commercial banking
assets and liabilities.

(a)  Market risk management framework

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions
is managed within risk limits and guidelines approved by
the Management and the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (the “ALCO”), and for prominent issues, reviewed
by the Board of Directors. Trading limits are increased for
opportunities in the market. Exposures are measured and
monitored against limits on positions, stop-loss, value-at-risk,
sensitivity, delta, gamma, etc. Daily risk monitoring is carried
out by an independent market risk unit of the Risk Management
Department, which ensures all dealing activities are conducted
in a proper mode and within approved limits. The Group’s
market risk exposures are reviewed by the ALCO and the Senior
Executive Risk Management Committee. All exceptions to limits
are reported to the ALCO. Important derivations, if any, will be
escalated to the attention of the Risk Management Committee
of Board of Directors. Stress tests are performed regularly to
estimate the possible losses under extreme circumstances. The
Group’s Internal Audit Department also performs regular review
and testing on dealing activities to ensure compliance with all
internal guidelines.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(a)

®)

(c)

Market risk management framework (continued)

Besides, various reputable treasury systems are being used to
further strengthen the functions of control and monitoring,
supplemented as mentioned by, among others, predetermined
stop loss limits to keep the risk of increased trading limits at
bay. An enhanced system is in process of installation with
implementation in phases during 2009 through 2012, and
with a view to ultimately strengthen the Group’s market risk
management and counterparty credit risk control for structured
products.

Measurement of Market Risk

Measurement techniques used to quantify the market risk
arising from the Bank’s trading and non-trading activities
include sensitivity analysis and stress testing. Sensitivity
measures, concentration and stop-loss limits are used as the risk
management tools. Limits are set for each portfolio, product
and risk type. Stress tests are performed regularly to assess the
potential losses under extreme circumstances. The ALCO and the
Senior Executive Risk Management Committee review stress test
results on a regular basis.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Group’s position may be
adversely affected by a change in market interest rates. Interest
rate risk arises mainly from the maturity mismatch of interest-
bearing assets and liabilities and yield curve movements.
Interest-rate risk exposures are managed within risk limits
approved and monitored by the ALCO with the participation of
the Risk Management Department and the Asset and Liability
Management Department. Interest rate risk exposures in non-
trading portfolio are measured once a month and the results are
reported to the ALCO.

The Group manages its interest rate risk by way of entering into
on or off-balance sheet interest rate risk hedging instruments.
The effectiveness of the hedging activities is assessed regularly in
accordance with HKAS 39. The Group’s interest rate risk position
is further regularly reported to and scrutinised by the Senior
Executive Risk Management Committee.

Foreign currency funding used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets
is normally hedged using currency swaps or forward exchange
contracts to neutralise foreign exchange risk.

The Group will use and counts on stop loss, management trigger
limits, stress test and a software system in installation to manage
its interest rate risk.
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4 AR BEAS B () 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
43 TR R B () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
(©)  FIREF (45 (c) Interest rate risk (continued)
T R Al A A ) T T 2 ) R R i The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate
BRTA(E S R AL 2 e M Bl > & risks. Included in the table are the Group’s assets and liabilities
B fE Al d e 5 F SR A (AR at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual
FHYE) M o repricing or maturity dates.
= L —&=MA =&#+2HA —& ik Tk Lk Hit
Upto 13 312 1-5 Over 5 Non-interest- Hst
1 month months months years years bearing Total
AEH Group THL TR T TR TR THL TR
ZEFWFFZHZTH At31December 2009 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
{3 Assets
B% R EE M Cashand balances with banks and
Exli e other financial institutions 27,490,845 - - - - 419,737 27,910,582
TR R AR Placements with and advances to
b2z Vit banks and other financial institutions - 903,730 759,556 - - - 1,663,286
s R R RG R Financial assets held for trading - - 19,884 19244 7,920 143,198 190,246
BEUATEESNGE  Financial assets designated at
MNEZ BRI fair value through profit or loss - 78,433 157,551 711,467 214,698 - 1,162,149
it &M TR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,285,306 1,285,306
%P~ ki Loans and advances to customers, banks
SRERBZEN and other financial institutions 110,067,397 25,486,467 9,366,608 534,006 1,503,876 66,228 147,024,582
kSRt E Available-for-sale financial investments 2,843,909 8,600,204 5,158,233 12,678,739 1,486,571 1,594,010 32,361,666
HHES NSRS Held-to-maturity financial investments 114,436 - 1,177,073 - - - 1,291,509
HihgzE Other assets 12,330 - - - - 2,852,173 2,864,503
HgyE Total assets 140,528917 35,068,834 16,638,905 13,943,456 3,213,065 6,360,652 215,753,829
fifg Liabilities
SRR Deposits from banks and other
(Y financial institutions 11,564,169 6,958,339 1,026,322 - - 627,870 20,176,700
ik SRR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,403,832 1,403,832
KFffa Deposits from customers 94,676,777 3,875,477 23,533,062 989,716 28357 8,058,172 161,161,561
CE#fTH Certificates of deposit issued 1,053,200 50,306 356,013 935,027 - - 2,394,546
MBI AR Debt securities in issue measured
2B atamortised cost - - - - - 159,526 159,526
DABESHAR A TR Subordinated debts measured
iR at amortised cost 3,063,225 3,714,250 1,783,650 - - - 8,561,125
Kt Other liabilities 387,162 - - - - 3,404,780 3,791,942
AR Total liabilities 110,744,533 44598372 26,699,047 1,924,743 28,357 13,654,180 197,649,232
FURBRRBE Bk A Total interest sensitivity gap 29,784,384 (9,529,538) (10,060,142) 12,018,713 3,184,708 (7,293,528) 18,104,397
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4 BAFSIRUBEAS L (a0 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 TG E B B () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
() FIFE 5 (4) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)
—fARN —Z={iA =E+2MA —EHE kA RitE
Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 Non-interest- st
1 month months months years years bearing Total
At Group Tl Tl Tt Tt Tl Tl T
“EFNEFZAZ4—H  At31 December 2008 HK$1000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
(A Assets
B% R EE AR Cashand balances with banks and
Exliva other financial institutions 28,116,080 = = = = 562,698 2,678,778
TR R AR Placements with and advances to
i BER banks and other financial institutions = 689,360 154998 = = = 844,358
A ke AR Financial assets held for trading - 50 5692 25,109 - 21200 5,051
BEUATEESNGE  Financial assets designated at
MNEZ GREE fair value through profit or loss - - 77,400 923,444 487,159 - 1,488,003
Mkl T Derivative financial instruments - - - - = 2,308,702 2,308,702
%P Sk Loans and advances to customers, banks
SREREZEN and other financial institutions 95,205,918 30,084,808 11,086,371 466,590 139,535 99,499 137,082,721
kSRt E Available-for-sale financial investments 1,836,298 4154659 1,850926 6,458,068 1,818947 1,284,177 17,403,075
HHESMSREE Held-to-maturity financial investments 292,086 292,852 1,361,659 29,806 - - 1,976,403
Kbk Other assets 734,126 = = = = 3,995,892 4730018
HgyE Total assets 126,184,508 35,221,729 14,537,046 7,903,017 2,445,641 8,272,168 194,564,109
fifg Liabilities
SRR Deposits from banks and other
W2 o bt financial institutions 6,896,715 12,031,964 778,690 = = 349,387 20,056,756
ik SRR Derivative financial instruments - = - - = 3,296,670 3,296,670
KRR Deposits from customers 102,133,978 21,024,863 10973517 36,087 10075 4004812 138,183,332
CE#fTfE Certificates of deposit issued 250,000 1,220,762 2,061857 579,742 - - 4312361
BEUATHEELINGE  Debt securities n issue designated
MNEZ B8R at fair value through profit or loss - 3,146,399 - - - - 3,146,399
DABESHAR A TR Subordinated debts measured
A at amortised cost 3,061,290 3,712,535 1,782,523 S = = 8,556,348
Kt Other liabilities 83,761 = = = = 2,990,704 3,074,465
AR Total liabilities 112,425,744 41,136,523 15,796,587 615,829 10,075 10,641,573 180,626,331
R P A Total interest sensitivity gap 13,758,764 (5914,794) (1,259,541) 7,287,188 2,435,566 (2,369,405) 13,937,778
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4 BAFSIRUBEAS L (a0 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
43 TR R B () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
() FIFE 5 (4) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)
= L —&=MA =&#+2HA —& ik Tk Lk Hit
Upto 13 312 1-5 Over 5 Non-interest- Hit
1 month months months years years bearing Total
AR Bank THL TR T TR TR THL TR
ZEFWFFZHZTH At31December 2009 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
44 Assets
B RARTFER LI Cash and balances with banks
SRR G and other financial institutions 24,841,315 - - - - 406,217 25,247,532
TR R AR Placements with and advances to
ZHIRER banks and other financial institutions 212,120 1,229,597 985,466 - - - 2,427,183
s R R R G Financial assets held for trading - - 19,884 19244 7,920 20,950 67,998
BEUATEERNGE  Financial assets designated at
MNEZ BRI fair value through profit or loss - 78,433 157,551 711,467 214,698 - 1,162,149
MM T Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,285,306 1,285,306
LR G &N Loans and advances to customers, banks
Bz ER and other financial institutions 104,979,951 23,240,230 7,979,938 145,667 1,213,750 166,228 137,725,764
kSRt E Available-for-sale financial investments 2,843,909 8,600,204 5,158,233 12,678,739 1,486,571 1,593,440 32,361,096
R EI RS Held-to-maturity financial investments 114,436 - 1,177,073 - - - 1,291,509
g Other assets 12,330 - - - - 5,425,695 5,438,025
HgyE Total assets 133,004,061 33,148,464 15,478,145 13,555,117 2,922,939 8,897,836 207,006,562
Al Liabilities
SRR Deposits from banks and other
(Y financial institutions 11,108,520 5,052,300 15,510 - - 628,611 16,804,941
ik SRR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,403,832 1,403,832
KRR Deposits from customers 93,082,814 33,183,194 20,139,693 786,232 28,356 8,757,603 157,977,892
CE#fTH Certificates of deposit issued 1,053,200 50,306 356,013 935,027 - - 2,394,546
DMBBIRA AR Debt securities in issue
TR measured at amortised cost - - - - - 159,526 159,526
DABESHUAR A TR Subordinated debts measured
iR at amortised cost 3,063,225 3,714,250 1,783,650 - - - 8,561,125
Kt Other liabilities 387,162 - - - - 2223913 2,611,075
AR Total liabilities 108,694,921 42,000,050 24,204,866 1,721,259 28,356 13,173,485 189,912,937
FURBRRBE kA Total interest sensitivity gap 24,309,140 (8,851,586) (8,816,721) 11,833,858 2,894,583 (4,275,649) 17,093,625
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4 BAFSIRUBEAS L (a0 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
43 TR R B () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
() FIFE 5 (4) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)
—fARN —Z={iA =E+2MA —EHE kA RitE
Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over5 Non-interest- st
1 month months months years years bearing Total
AT Bank T T T T T T T
“EFNEFZAZ4—H  At31 December 2008 HK$1000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
(A Assets
B% R EE AR Cashand balances with banks and

Exliva other financial institutions 27,288,086 = = = = 361,337 27,649423
TR R AR Placements with and advances to

i BER banks and other financial institutions = 496,415 1,163,708 = = = 1,660,123
s R R R Financial assets held for trading - 50 5,692 25,109 - 21,200 52,051
BEUATEESNGE  Financial assets designated at

MNEZ GREE fair value through profit or loss - - 77,400 923,444 487,159 - 1,488,003
Mkl T Derivative financial instruments - - - - = 2,308,702 2,308,702
LR G &N Loans and advances to customers,

Bz ER banks and other financial institutions 89,223,831 28,606,164 9,737,876 517,074 139,535 61372 128,285,852
kSRt E Available-for-sale financial investments 1,836,298 4154659 1,850926 6,458,068 1,818947 1,283,560 17,402,458
HHESMSREE Held-to-maturity financial investments 292,086 292,852 1,361,659 29,806 - - 1,976,403
Kbk Other assets 718,899 = = = = 5,614,819 6,333,718
b Total assets 119,359,200 33,550,140 14,197,261 7,953,501 2,445,641 9650990 187,156,733
ki Liabilities
SRR Deposits from banks and other

W2 o bt financial institutions 6,470,722 10,174,632 = = = 355,810 17,001,164
MEEHTE Derivative financial instruments - - = = = 3,304,174 3304174
KRR Deposits from customers 99,912,839 20,544328 12978351 915 10075 4,189,559 137,636,067
CE#fTfE Certificates of deposit issued 250,000 1,220,762 2,061857 579,742 - - 4312361
DMBRIRA AR Subordinated debts measured

fhiEER atamortised cost 3,061,290 3,712,535 1,782,523 = = = 8,556,348
Hiba Other liabilities 83,761 = = - = 3,018,033 3,101,794
ARHH Total liabilities 109,778,612 35,652,257 17,022,731 580,657 10075 10,887,576 173,931,908
FIRA8 B 1 AR Total interest sensitivity gap 9,580,588 (2,102,117) (2,825,470 7,372,844 2,435,566 (1,236,586) 13,224,825
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(c)
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Interest rate risk (continued)

Trading portfolio

The Group’s control of interest rate risk is based on restricting
individual operations to trading within the market risk limits,
and a list of permissible instruments authorised by the Board.
In particular, trading in the derivative products is supported by
robust control systems whereas more complicated derivatives
are basically undertaken on a back-to-back basis. Sensitivity
measures, concentration and stop-loss limits are used as the risk
management tools. Risk limits are independently monitored on a
daily basis.

Non-trading portfolio

The principal objective of interest rate risk management of non-
trading portfolios (also known as “banking book”) is to optimise
net interest income but without exposing to excessive risk. This
is done on a daily basis by the Global Markets and Trading
Department (“GMT”) taking over the interest rate risk in non-
treasury business under the supervision of the ALCO. When the
behavioral characteristics of a product differ from its contractual
characteristics, the behavioral characteristics are assessed to
determine their actual underlying interest rate risk. The ALCO
monitors all such behavioral assumptions and interest rate risk
positions to ensure they comply with interest rate risk limits
established by the Board. Interest rate risk limits are set for the
purpose of governing the interest rate risk arising from non-
trading portfolio. The limits are measured and independently
monitored on a regular basis.

There are four primary forms of interest rate risk faced by the
Group with regard to its banking book: re-pricing (or maturity
mismatch) risk, yield curve risk, basis risk and option risk.
Interest rate risk is measured in relation to the impact of changes
in interest rates on earnings or economic values assuming all
other factors to remain constant, e.g., no action taken by GMT
or other business units to mitigate the impact of this interest rate
risk and interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount.
Prepayment, early withdrawal of customer loans or deposits are
usually not entertained or with fees paid.
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4 W R BE (a0 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 S A B AE BE (0 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
(o) FIZEmE gz (4) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)
URE AT Sensitivity analysis
T RBURNE A ERT T R B UAE K The tables below show the last stress tests on the Bank’s trading
CRE )N A B IRE A S and investment portfolios conducted in December 2009 and 2008
AT IR — IR Z BT o AR 2 TR 57 ) respectively. The testing scenario (bps of yield curve shift) of the
il Bl o M (ZE B AR 8 ) 2 L) stress test is changed in the current year to be in line with the
AT - DIATE i i financial market development:
e = 9 % 2 2009
F %23 5y 2 F) % B Ry bl ik Interest rate stress test for interest rate trading
T WA
(HK$°000) Scenario
et LA i
Light Moderate Extreme
~100fH5EBE  +100 (EAEEE 200 fEAEEE  +200fEEES 300 fHIEEE  +300 fRHEE;
SNy Yield curve shift ~100 bps +100 bps ~200 bps +200 bps -300 bps +300 bps
ZRBNAE December
+—=H 2009 (4,403) (2,973) (8,831) (5,861) (13,283) (8,703)
B MR 7 2 R L Bge Interest rate risk for investment book debt securities
(HTMJE 7 J EFN B24F) (excluding HTM book and EFNs)
T WA
(HK$°000) Scenario
L4 LA i ZR & Lk 22 50l 4 85T
Light Moderate Extreme Yield curve steepen Yield curve flatten
+100 LSS +200 fREERE  +300 fAAESS  100fREERE  300fEAEES  100fEEEEE 300 fHAEE
ESNiiF Y Yield curve shift ~ +100 bps +200 bps +300 bps 100 bps 300 bps 100 bps 300 bps
ZRBNAE December
+=H 2009 (304,178) (550,813) (760,644) (204,356) (465,467) (105,342) (321,087)
ZRE)N\E 2008
TR BE T 2 700 50l gt ey Bl Interest rate stress test for interest rate trading
T RUNARIE
(HK$°000) Scenario
A A fe
Light Moderate Extreme
~100 1A 5EBE  +100fH2EEE  —200 fEAEES  +200fEEERE 300 fHEES  +300 flAEE;
EYSNiiFE 00 Yield curve shift ~100 bps +100 bps ~200 bps +200 bps ~300 bps +300 bps
CETNAF December
+=H 2008 (4,659) (5,787) (9,307) (11,574) (13,899) (17,227)
BB NRIE AT S 2 ) 2% L g Interest rate risk for investment book debt securities
(HTMJIEF ¢ EEN E:4F) (excluding HTM book and EFNs)
T 15 53 A
(HK$’000) Scenario
L4473 A & ZE s Bt 2 5 AR 5T
Light Moderate Extreme Yield curve steepen Yield curve flatten
+100 fEAEEE  +200 fHAEEE  +300fEAEEE  100ME2EES  300fEAEEEF  1001EEEEE 300 fHAEE
E¥sNiifry ) Yield curve shift ~ +100 bps +200 bps +300 bps 100 bps 300 bps 100 bps 300 bps
BTN December
+=A 2008 (323,547) (587,275) (718,522) (185,599) (413,918) (111,346) (327,935)
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4 BAGS R\ BEAE B )
4.3 TGRS B (40

4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

d)  EHm (d)  Currency risk
8 R IS T < T L 2 (L PR A REE A AL T Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument
% I B 2 JE B e will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
AN [ 2 AT oy~ 2 4 <l T 3 g The Group’s foreign exchange exposures mainly comprise
1T ZAMERE 5y KI5 E AR I SRAT 37 2 foreign exchange dealing by GMT and currency exposures
BHRE o RIIE 38 5 267 A 2 B R originated from the Group’s banking business. Currency
Ty GG - MRE R g rtifEZ exposures arising from non-trading businesses are transferred
SPE R R R AEAT R LB B o A BERE 1% to GMT for centralised management within foreign exchange
B W R B B AR o M7 0 U5 B position limits approved by the Board of Directors. Management
MR A AE AL o PR A AT H O AL B has set limits on positions by currency. Positions are
£ o independently monitored by Risk Management Department
against the approved limits on a daily basis.
T R A A R e A SR AT I 2 A B The tables below summarise the Group’s and the Bank’s exposure
B o 5% A HE A 45 ) S A SR T He AR T (E 51 to foreign currency exchange risk. Included in the tables are the
W G E KA IR EIT A - Group’s and the Bank’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency.
5T e b A5t
HKS$ US$ Others Total
A Group Tt T T Tl
ZRFUAETZAZH At 31 December 2009 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
903 Assets
B4 B AR SA TR 2 B Cash and balances with banks and

oAl A 2 577 other financial institutions 4,637,922 19,023,634 4,249,026 27,910,582
TESRAT B FAth <5 Pl e Ao Placements with and advances to banks

e V& T ¢ and other financial institutions 721,257 942,029 - 1,663,286
FRE3C 5 vk 4 i B e Financial assets held for trading 143,623 7,920 38,703 190,246

B E DLAFEERS I R Financial assets designated at fair

ARz BREE value through profit or loss 325,210 836,939 - 1,162,149
R~ SRAT S At 4 il Loans and advances to customers,

R K banks and other financial institutions 94,653,805 39,316,802 13,053,975 147,024,582
A Eid <y Available-for-sale financial investments 2,197,991 26,608,511 3,555,164 32,361,666
Fh 22 E R Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,206,733 54,117 30,659 1,291,509
R A R Z B8 Investments in associates 175,177 - - 175,177
2 I HLA I ¥ 7 Goodwill and other intangible assets 653,422 - 367,471 1,020,893
BOEYE Investment properties 25,500 - 20,713 46,213
LEN G Property, plant and equipment 181,145 - 92,808 273,953
FHLE A T - fe A Leasehold land and land use rights 43,117 - - 43,117
oAt Other assets 779,508 473,252 52,390 1,305,150
A Total assets 105,744,410 87,263,204 21,460,909 214,468,523
£ Liabilities
SRATIR) ZE B H A B R Deposits from banks and other

W2 Ar R R AR financial institutions 6,010,926 11,431,061 2,734,713 20,176,700
BFE Deposits from customers 76,597,664 66,572,639 17,991,258 161,161,561
C BT Certificates of deposit issued 1,458,472 936,074 - 2,394,546
DIESE RS ABR 2 B85 T B S Debt securities in issue at amortised cost 159,526 - - 159,526
ARG AR A2 Subordinated debts measured

RAEHIE at amortised cost 1,000,000 7,561,125 - 8,561,125
HAB 6 > ARBAT R Other liabilities, including

BRI A current and deferred tax liabilities 2,605,906 909,475 276,561 3,791,942
AR Total liabilities 87,832,494 87,410,374 21,002,532 196,245,400
B AT R A Net on-balance sheet position 17,911,916 (147,170) 458,377 18,223,123
s SO Credit commitments 81,353,064 19,856,953 2,547,364 103,757,381
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3

Market risk management (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

HESTH ESTn HAth st
HK$ US$ Others Total

AL Group T T THIT THTT
ZEZNFFZH=1—H At 31 December 2008 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
Y Assets
B4 Je AE SR A TR S 52 Cash and balances with banks and

Fofth 4 Al 2 517 other financial institutions 650,345 15,530,015 12,498,418 28,678,778
TESRAT R oAl 4 Pl e Placements with and advances to

AR banks and other financial institutions 23,660 751,747 68,951 844,358
FefEsc o ke g Financial assets held for trading 21,828 - 30,223 52,051
TEE AT EES G Financial assets designated at fair

AR R RE value through profit or loss 300,580 1,187,423 - 1,488,003
HF SR L A 4 Loans and advances to customers,

etk 2 B banks and other financial institutions 81,987,659 42,033,711 13,061,351 137,082,721
fifikss & SR A Available-for-sale financial investments 1,616,080 12,757,816 3,029,179 17,403,075
AR SR Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,319,509 627,088 29,806 1,976,403
EE AR 2 RE Investments in associates 184,854 - - 184,854
1 S A T S Goodwill and other intangible assets 1,028,060 - 4,878 1,032,938
Eid L/ES Investment properties 25,200 - 14,926 40,126
LENE 4 Property, plant and equipment 186,971 - 89,103 276,074
AR B b o st (5 Leasehold land and land use rights 43,860 = = 43,860
HApth & Other assets 1,785,619 1,302,506 64,041 3,152,166
B Total assets 89,174,225 74,190,306 28,890,876 192,255,407
1% Liabilities
SRATIRI 3 B H A Deposits from banks and other

Wtz FERR A iR financial institutions 3,056,158 14,276,836 2,723,762 20,056,756
EF Deposits from customers 60,958,666 64,796,200 12,428,466 138,183,332
C BT Certificates of deposit issued 2,915,886 1,396,475 = 4,312,361
a8 VA TE R g = Debt securities in issue designated

ANIEZ BT at fair value through profit or loss - 3,146,399 - 3,146,399
VIBERI AR AR Z Subordinated debts measured

HIEEE at amortised cost 1,000,000 7,556,348 = 8,556,348
HAth & > RIEET R Other liabilities, including

IEAERTE A K current and deferred tax liabilities 1,800,468 945,427 328,570 3,074,465
£ A Total liabilities 69,731,178 92,117,685 15,480,798 177,329,661
A B R AT B Net on-balance sheet position 19,443,047 (17,927,379) 13,410,078 14,925,746
15 BE kil Credit commitments 65,133,066 22,035,266 2,549,018 89,717,350
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4 BAFSIRUBEAS L (a0 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
43 TR R B () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
d) EWE R 4 (d)  Currency risk (continued)
ST E T Jofis FCE
HK$ US$ Others Total
ARHUT Bank T T#x T T
“EFAMETHZETH At 31 December 2009 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Y Assets
B4 Je AE SR A TR S 52 Cash and balances with banks and
Fofth 4 Al 2 517 other financial institutions 4,612,417 18,769,411 1,865,704 25,247,532
TESRAT R oAl 4 Pl e Placements with and advances to
ZAFH IR banks and other financial institutions 996,810 1,309,044 121,329 2,427,183
FefEsc 5 s i E e Financial assets held for trading 21,375 7,920 38,703 67,998
R AT EMES G Financial assets designated at fair
ANIEZ & E value through profit or loss 325,210 836,939 - 1,162,149
I 8RAT A 4 R Loans and advances to customers,
Mtk 2 B banks and other financial institutions 94,365,635 37,662,880 5,697,249 137,725,764
fifikss & SR A Available-for-sale financial investments 2,197,421 26,608,511 3,555,164 32,361,096
SRR MRS Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,206,733 54,117 30,659 1,291,509
BB A 2 B & Investments in associates 138,138 - - 138,138
T B A 7 2 B Investments in subsidiaries 400,403 - 2,372,075 2,772,478
PR R HA AT Y Goodwill and other intangible assets 630,967 - - 630,967
BOEYE Investment properties 25,500 - - 25,500
LENE ] Property, plant and equipment 180,464 - - 180,464
TR 4t Jo A bt A Leasehold land and land use rights 43,117 - - 43,117
Hpth & Other assets 1,074,181 468,337 104,843 1,647,361
WY Total assets 106,218,371 85,717,159 13,785,726 205,721,256
£ 18 Liabilities
SRATIR) 2E B H A Deposits from banks and other
WehE 2 A7 3k M A B financial institutions 6,011,645 10,626,751 166,545 16,804,941
BN Deposits from customers 77,197,505 67,611,414 13,168,973 157,977,892
BT Certificates of deposit issued 1,458,472 936,074 - 2,394,546
DAHESH RS AR Z Debt securities in issue measured
BB Tl at amortised cost 159,526 - - 159,526
DIESH AR AR 2 Subordinated debts measured
AR at amortised cost 1,000,000 7,561,125 - 8,561,125
HAB 6% > ARBAT Other liabilities, including
B FERIE £ £ current and deferred tax liabilities 1,574,259 909,983 126,833 2,611,075
£ fit s Total liabilities 87,401,407 87,645,347 13,462,351 188,509,105
B B R AT B Net on-balance sheet position 18,816,964 (1,928,188) 323,375 17,212,151
i SOk Credit commitments 81,179,115 15,799,118 1,651,226 98,629,459
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3

Market risk management (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

HESTH ETin HAth st
HK$ US$ Others Total

AT Bank T T T 0 T Tt
ZEZNFFZH=1—H At 31 December 2008 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
Y Assets
B4 Je AE R A TR 3L 5 Cash and balances with banks and

Fofth 4 RS 2 517 other financial institutions 675,478 15,373,500 11,600,445 27,649,423
TESRAT R oAl 4 Pl e Placements with and advances to

AR K banks and other financial institutions 105,999 1,471,216 82,908 1,660,123
FefEsc o ke G Financial assets held for trading 21,828 - 30,223 52,051
A TFEMES G Financial assets designated at fair

ANRZ SRR value through profit or loss 300,580 1,187,423 - 1,488,003
B SR S A 4 Loans and advances to customers,

etk 2 Bk banks and other financial institutions 81,848,955 40,394,074 6,042,823 128,285,852
fifikss & SR A Available-for-sale financial investments 1,615,463 12,757,816 3,029,179 17,402,458
AR SR Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,319,509 627,088 29,806 1,976,403
AR 2R Investments in associates 152,646 - - 152,646
TR A ) 2 B Investments in subsidiaries 148,403 = 1,760,347 1,908,750
TR T HC A AT Goodwill and other intangible assets 642,109 - - 642,109
BEYE Investment properties 25,200 = = 25,200
LENE 4] Property, plant and equipment 185,878 = - 185,878
TR A3t Jo A bt A R Leasehold land and land use rights 43,860 = = 43,860
Hph e Other assets 1,903,151 1,353,394 118,730 3,375,275
W Total assets 88,989,059 73,164,511 22,694,461 184,848,031
£ Liabilities
SRATIR) 26 B H A Deposits from banks and other

R 2 A7 3k S A B financial institutions 3,062,581 13,584,245 354,338 17,001,164
EFEHR Deposits from customers 61,141,628 67,795,705 8,698,734 137,636,067
C BT Certificates of deposit issued 2,915,886 1,396,475 - 4,312,361
DAHESH RS AR Z Subordinated debts measured

H A at amortised cost 1,000,000 7,556,348 - 8,556,348
Hith & & > RasssT Other liabilities, including

B R HER IH A current and deferred tax liabilities 1,982,109 983,451 136,234 3,101,794
£ B Total liabilities 70,102,204 91,316,224 9,189,306 170,607,734
Y B AT T R Net on-balance sheet position 18,886,855 (18,151,713) 13,505,155 14,240,297
i $¥ 7kl Credit commitments 64,755,918 10,782,238 1,739,375 77,277,531
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4 W R BE (a0 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 TG E B B () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
d)  EWHE kR () (d)  Currency risk (continued)
JEE 38 Stress test
TEE T AT RE KRR AR The tables below show the last stress tests conducted in December
AL A A B AR A EDLT - B which calculate the change in dollar term of a reasonably possible
HA 2R S AR B i — BB A —FE movement of spot rates and foreign exchange volatility for 2009
JNAE 2 & IR BB S W) fr i AE 2 HonsRT i 2 and 2008, with all other variables held constant. The testing
b o ASAERE R S5 2 MRS AT (8 scenario (volatity change) of the stress test is changed in the
B AP - UG ERii e current year to be in line with the financial market development:
“ZFNAE 2009
A B £ K6 Bl B JRE )k Risk stress testing for foreign exchange position
T T oL H
HK$’000 Scenario
Lt WA Ji
Light Moderate Extreme
2% 5% 15%
Worst of spot and 5% volatility change AR BRI K 5% 1 i 5 8
(excluding CNY) (N R¥EERAD) (3,685) (9,261) (18,938)
T T WL aH
HK$’000 Scenario
Lt WA Ji
Light Moderate Extreme
1% 3% 5%
Worst of spot and 5% volatility change (CNY) eI R J2 59 i3 i s 8h (O R (790) (2,370) (3,951)
2 AN 2008
A1 8 L i JE 7 3t Risk stress testing for foreign exchange position
THIT 15 53 A
HK$’000 Scenario
H A A fig T
Light Moderate Extreme
2% 5% 15%
Worst of spot and 5% volatility change AR BV B2 59 5% W 5 )
(excluding CNY) (NERHEBRSM) (3,828) (8,895) (21,253)
THIC 15 53 A
HK$’000 Scenario
A A fig T
Light Moderate Extreme
1% 3% 5%
Worst of spot and 5% volatility change (CNY) T B R K2 596 it i s h (N R (6,083) (18,275) (30,458)
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(e) JREZERs B

B SRABAR SR T BB SR AR 5 2 T (L R
TR BOKF- B A8 A e S AL T T Fie 2
JEBE o B ERENET A AEED
PR ERTEHLAS B 2 B IR B B R B2
JBe gy i 5 R UL o RS 4 A S PR A
Fe Al B FR AT AR 5 e 0 AT BOE © B
JBe 5 2 v 5 Ja B Bl i BEAB AR @

RSP BB T4 A S W B2 5y B
EFTRMSERAE > KT 2 RIS B A
B 2 SEF MR 2 BOE o HAWB SR TS
mEAWR 2 BT

Rt FEASTE R LA ASRAT IR BR AR %
SR I T R A 2 SR AR AR o B B o
AR RIFTIRG » Bt R HE At B i A 22 JR
LG B I EE A o

AR R SUAE R TR\ AR IR
JEBR: 2 R WIS - 3 AR 27 7
oz [ & Mg | 51 - MisEas
Pl 2 [ 5V 2e 5 ik S B E 1A 20y A
38 P IR - S 52 e A P A e i
B o

A BRI R P 2 Bt o i Al By
TR PATSER AR B3 2 5 38 o AAE i
H NS R S ) o

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(e)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of the equity
portfolio decrease as the result of changes in the levels of equity
indices and the value of individual stocks. Since the second half
of 2006, the Group has begun to take market risk positions in
shares at the time of their respective IPO process. Concentration
limits and stop-loss limits are set for individual shares. Market
risk positions on equity are relatively not sizeable at this stage.

Investments that are held for the purpose of entering into a
strategic cooperation with the investee with a view to leveraging
the respective strengths to enhance the Group’s business are
classified by the Group as strategic investments. Other equity
investments are held for capital gain purposes.

For capital adequacy ratio purpose, the Bank deducts those
equity holdings taken for relationship and strategic reasons from
the core and supplementary capital and includes those equity
holdings taken for other reasons in the risk-weighted assets.

The Group’s equity exposures in 2009 and 2008 are mainly long-
term equity investments which are reported as “available-for-
sale financial investments” set out in Note 27. Equities held for
trading purpose are included under “Financial assets held for
trading” set out in Note 23. These are subject to risk management
control procedures.

Accounting techniques and valuation methodologies applied
for equity investments are detailed in Note 2 of the financial
statements. There are no significant changes during the annual
reporting period.

ARSE I R AR AT
Group and Bank
2009 2008
T#xT TH T
HK$’000 HK$°000
A B R B AR Y Cumulative realised gains arising from
SR B R sales and liquidations of equity exposure 834,384 5,896
TEZARSRAT Rt R R - Total unrealised gains recognised
B AT 8 g R AR in the Bank’s reserve but
REH U a5 H 48 5T not through the income statement 1,247,844 778,217

ST FEAR T L LR G AE
ASGRAT B0 BRI S 10 B A A
R E B BB

Unrealised gains included in
the Bank’s supplementary capital for
capital adequacy ratio purpose
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4.4 REVE 4 )EBE

U B8 < L T A AR AR T A B S SUAE B S R R
REMLAT 2 JE B o PRI > Vi) < IRV B A TS 2
AR A S B EL A 78 R 2 B4 U - 55K DARL AR
R 2 J7 i A — M B ZR B VLT AR A A 5
FAL o AR RSy — DI RUE o A B )
G m b o AR LR R R
BOR > A AR DI RE R B @R o HohE
HHBREHGHMZ o AEEE HIHREE
2 L 5 B U ) 5 SRR il T 3 7 KA
i R 22 B & 1 i DL B AR AT B > A HL K
I B AT IR Rt ) o A T 2 R AHURE g Bt - DA
AR BT R LML EET R EE AL
JEE o i Tl ) S LR o I PR O A R
ifi o 7S S B AR AT HE U B I R 2 i i R A
FEOMBAREF T & o B R B R ERAT
TE I 5 4 P 3 B B < ey b 4R it S
SRR ERIREET -

CERBNERFEZ R ESRWAKR T
) 4 B 40.2% (—EE \AFEF1
37.0%) > BRI 25% 2 L EER o

TR T IUAEY] - A A B A SL — (R8T 10 2 B
A RVEHN - B EEAMEIZ B eI HE)
< JE g A L R o IR R AL SR o A SR [ IR 21
(SEE Y & kR I b | o)
RS A SR AT I 4 > LR TR B i I
H o 7R AR T A AR DR HO0 T il 12 L R LA
AR IR R B & ST - A ER A
JBE 3 18 S = — AR AT AR AR i )
EEBRRE o

A WSS IR 2 5 A B A AR R 4R R
2B B A G B e ASRAT 2 B e A A

B K B A LA 52 4 2 S5 3 A 41 [ U )
R BB E R o RS K RN E
EAHY th R H AR - [R5 ESRAT M8 5 AR L Y
VUL AR o A AH PR 156 D0 B T RE R o5 L
i ABES) > e S E B A B PR A o

F AR 22 5 B AR (16 45 AL & PR B TR o 4R
WEF AR RRTER BN Z B M &
HIF 3 F SIS 52 4 SRR S B 4 ik A IR ] A
R o

4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

44

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. Liquidity risk management is
therefore to ensure adequate cash flows to meet all financial obligations
under both normal and contingency circumstances in a cost-effective
manner and within regulatory requirements. To manage liquidity risk,
the Group has established asset and liquidity management policies that
are reviewed by the relevant functional committees, with prominent
issues approved by the Board. Liquidity is also managed and forecasted
on a daily basis to enable GMT and the relevant functional committee
to act proactively according to the changing market conditions and to
implement contingent plans on a timely basis. Stress tests are regularly
performed to assess contingent funding needs and the adequacy of
funds to meet them. In case of shortage identified, the corresponding
remedial measures will be executed. The Group continues to explore
and diversify funding channels to capitalise on opportunities for
the Group’s business expansion. Concrete funding from the parent
company, ICBC, has proven to be efficient in strengthening the Group’s
liquidity capability.

The liquidity position remained affluent throughout 2009 with an
average liquidity ratio of 40.2% (Average for 2008: 37.0%), that was well
above the statutory requirement of 25%.

In early 2009, the Group set up a new Asset and Liability Management
Department to support the ALCO in the latter’s implementation
of liquidity risk monitoring and control. The Group has always a
high vigilance for liquidity risk management, relying much more
significantly on customer’s deposit than on inter-bank funding,
particularly in volatile times. The Group will continue to take the
necessary measures commensurate with its scale and complexity of
operation to strengthen its liquidity capability, including meeting
various stress scenarios and any new liquidity risk requirements that
will be introduced in 2010 by regulators.

The table below summarises the Group’s and the Bank’s assets and
liabilities by maturity based on the remaining period at the end of the
reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

The matching and controlled mismatching assets and liabilities are
fundamental to the liquidity management of the Group. It is unusual for
banks to be completely matched, as transactions often entail uncertain
terms and are often of different types. While an unmatched position
potentially enhances profitability, it increases the interest rate risk and
the liquidity risk of an entity.

As the trading and available-for-sale portfolios may be sold before
maturity or deposit from customers may mature without being
withdrawn, the contractual maturity dates do not totally represent the
expected timing and availability of future cash flows.

s TR $R4T (259) A FR/A 7] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
ZETJEF . Annual Report 2009

157



158

R

2 Pt

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 BAGS R\ BEAE B )

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 BSR4 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
JREASH 4 O i A FH RS T BT 7 T 79 3 ) Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
St R DR IRGE I R > R A AR SR — A standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
IS =T e AR IR i sk oK S B - R RZAE commitments because the Group does not generally expect its third
BR U ZE ) A 4 B4 S A I R parties to draw funds under the agreements. The total outstanding
M BEARYE R v R AE AT A W] A B AR A5 6] H contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
BBl K necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or be terminated without being funded.
T RIEN ISR 2 H £ A AF M H 2 F The tables below analyse assets and liabilities of the Group and the
SR ] AT AS SR B R ASSRAT IR+ — H =+ —H Bank as at 31 December into relevant maturing groupings based on the
2 KA RE A AL remaining period at the end of reporting period date to the contractual
maturity date.
AEM Group BRI —fN - =4
HIw 38 WA =) I et ) % T S W R
Repayable Upto 1-3 312 15 Over5 TR st
ondemand  1month months months years years  Indefinite Total
T Ti#r  Td#x  Tix T Ti#r  Td#x  Tix
“RRWEF S At31 December 2009 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
Bk Assets
B4 BRI Cash and balances with banks and
HAbBRER 2 457 other financial institutions 6,240,723 21,134,079 - - - - 535780 27,910,582
T R SRR Placements with and advances to
W2 AE sk sk banks and other financial institutions - - 903730 759,556 - - - 1,663,286
RS e R R Financial assets held for trading - - - 19,884 19,244 79200 143,198 190,246
R A TEERER Financial assets designated at fair
N Z& A value through profit or loss
— bk - other debt securities - - 78433 157,551 71467 214,698 - 1162149
fikE&MTE Derivative financial instruments 61 399,829 149,750 320,904 256,211 158,551 - 1,285,306
KF ST R Loans and advances to customers,
BRRER Bk banks and other financial institutions 15,629,122 6,722,168 8,189,544 25454036 61,072,255 29,957,457 - 147,024,582
kB E LR Y Available-for-sale financial investments
— R - equity securities - - - - - - 1,587,800 1,587,800
— A 2 Aok - certificates of deposit held - - - - 150,225 - - 150,225
—Hibfes - other debt securities - 3025 3291607 5473922 19863398 1,686,279 6,210 30,623,641
HAZEM R Held-to-maturity financial investments
— R - treasury bills - - - 1146414 - - - 1146414
—HhbfEs - other debt securities - - - 84,777 - 60,318 - 145,095
AN 2B E Investments in associates - - - - - S VAR v/ VA Vi
TR T A e e Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - 1,020,893 1,020,893
R Investment properties - - - - - - 46,213 46,13
EYEU] Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 273,953 273,953
TG 3 R £ s A A Leasehold land and land se rights - - - - - 43,117 - 43,117
HAl g Other assets 19676 588916 251,953 111,209 84,220 - 49176 1,305,150
Mk Total assets 21,889,582 29,147,217 12,865,017 33,528,253 82,157,020 32,128,340 4,038,400 215,753,829
Al Liabilities
BATRIER M A Deposits from banks and other
v financial institutions 1313,038 10,879,001 6,731,190 1,253,471 - - - 20,176,700
i AN Derivative financial instruments 5164 244176 137,561 391,698 441575 183,658 - 1,403,832
KFfE Deposits from customers 46,811,559 55,923,263 33,875,477 23,533,175 989,730 28,357 - 161,161,561
EE#TTENE Certificates of deposit issued - 77,731 99748 356,013 1,861,054 - - 2,394,546
VISR ATR 2 E % 17% Dbt securities in issue measured at amortised cost - 66,529 92,997 - - - - 159,526
DSR2 5 T R Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost - - - - 7,010,125 1,551,000 - 8,561,125
Hiua - AR5 R Other liabilities, including
SRAEHIA A 1 current and deferred tax liabilities 182,704 707,880 541,684  1971,797 94,060 - 293817 3791942
AR Total liabilities 48,312,465 67,898,580 41,478,657 27,506,154 10,396,544 1,763,015 293,817 197,649,232
L Ak I Net liquidity gap (26,422,883) (38,751,363) (28,613,640) 6,022,099 71,760,476 30,365,325 3,744,583 18,104,597
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

REH Group ED L —fiA —% =3
IR Y HUT =MA tZRA —ERE RENE
Repayable Upto 1-3 312 1-5 Over 5 TR st
ondemand  1month months months years years  Indefinite Total
T Tt T T Tt Tl T T
“ZENEFZA=1—H At 31 December 2008 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
B Assets
Be RAESTR £ Cash and balances with banks and
HbBAREZ 5 other financial institutions 9,182,560 19,496,218 = = = = - 28678778
TESRAT Rt R Placements with and advances to
W2z R banks and other financial institutions - - 689,360 154,998 - - - 844,358
s fEeREE Financial assets held for trading - - 50 5,692 25,109 - 21,200 52,051
EEUNTBEESIGE R Financial assets designated at fair
MEZERERE value through profit or loss
— s - other debt securities = = = 77400 923444 487,159 - 1488003
it gmTH Derivative financial instruments 5071 436272 403457 661278 615555 187,069 - 2,308,702
KF ST R Loans and advances to customers,
SRR B0 banks and other financial institutions 13755723 9490067 15242404 19,096,848 52,491,165 27,006,514 - 137,082,721
it e SRR E Available-for-sale financial investments
— IR - equity securities - - - - - - L9 1277921
iR - certificates of deposit held - - - - - 7,931 - 7,931
—H s - other debt securities = - 115219 2580260 11,145,044 2070443 6257 16,117,203
HAZEMERRE Held-to-maturity financial investments
— B - treasury bills - - - 1136282 - - - 1136282
— g% - other debt securities = 154,522 = 518,228 83,832 83,539 = 840,121
WEEATZ B Investments in associates - - - - - - 184,854 184,854
[ PENRIGA Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - 1032938 1032938
/-3 /E Investment properties = = = = = = 40,126 40,126
EST] Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 276,074 276,074
T 0 S P Leasehold land and land use rights = = = - - 43,860 - 43,860
Hih Other assets 41764 1567543 243350 924708 237377 2,301 135123 3,152,166
W Total assets 20,985,118 31144622 16693840 25155694 65521526 30,088,816 2974493 194,564,109
A Liabilities
SRATIRIE TR A Deposits from banks and other
W2 fiak R financial institutions 840360 6405743 12,031,966 778,687 = = - 20,056,756
fiksMITE Derivative financial instruments 252 309,961 251,479 1,561,999 819,922 353,057 - 3,296,670
R Deposits from customers 2533357 80805435 21024864 10,973,517 37,084 10,075 - 138,183,332
EE TN Certificates of deposit issued - - 99TT6 Q734857 579742 - - 4312361
HEE VAT R AR i Debt securities in issue designated at
ENEZEBITESR fair value through profit or loss - - - 3146399 = = - 3146399
DI A2 R B R Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost - - - 1,162,515 5843813 1,550,020 - 8,556,348
Hi& g mfBT R Other liabilities, including
EIERIE A current and deferred tax liabilities 149279 1692613 316781 717,883 130,531 = 67,378 3,074,465
AAH Total liabilities 263048 89213752 34622852  21,075857 7411092 1913152 67,378 180,626,331
bl hign ke Net liquidity gap (3337,130) (58,069,130) (17,929,012) 4079837 58110434 28175664 2907115  13937,778
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

g3 70 Bank AEkE —HA —Z =%
MR /) WA SR —EHE HENE
Repayable Upto 13 312 15 Over 5 SR A5t
ondemand  1month months months years years  Indefinite Total
Tién Tién T T#x Tién Ti#n T Ti#x
“ERMEF S At 31 December 2009 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000  HKS$000  HKS$000  HKS000  HKS$000
hi{:3 Assets
B RAESITR £ Cash and balances with banks and
Hib Rk 4517 other finanial institutions 5071923 19,975,609 - - - - - 25,4753
TR Placements with and advances to
2 R R banks and other financial institutions - - 06652 1,520,531 - - - 2407183
s fEeREE Financial assets held for trading - - - 19,884 19244 7,920 20,950 67,998
HEUATEES IR Financial assets designated at fair
MEZERERE value through profit or loss
—HbfEs% - other debt securities - - 78433 157,551 71467 214,698 - L162,149
it eMTR Derivative financial instruments 61 399,829 149,750 320,904 256,211 158,551 - 1,285,306
KF - Ut hitis Loans and advances to customers,
Ll va- oy banks and other financial institutions 15,447,695 6368202 7,046,141 21,618,818 57,889,763 29,355,145 - 137,725,764
Tl & SR Available-for-sale financial investments
— IR - equity securities - - - - - - 1,587,800 1,587,800
— iR 2 Ak - certificates of deposit held - - - - 150,225 - - 150,225
— b4 - other debt securities - 302205 3291607 5473922 19,863,398 1,686,279 5,640 30,623,071
FAZEERRE Held-to-maturity financial investments
— R - treasury bills - - - 16414 - - - 146414
e -iile - other debt securities - - - 84,777 - 60,318 - 14509
REEATZHE Investments in associates - - - - - - 138,138 138,138
B AR 2 B E Investments in subsidiaries - - - - - - LT2478 2772478
T S L BT Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - 630967 630967
i4-CE S Investment properties - - - - - - 25,500 25,500
ESE ] Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 180,464 180,464
ilam & il Leasehold land and land use rights - - - - - 43,117 - 43,117
HibgeE Other assets 8415 869567 252,023 174136 96,456 - 246764 1,647,361
W Total assets 20,728,094 27915432 11,724,606 30,516,937 78,986,764 31,526,028 5,608,701 207,006,562
fifs Liabilities
AT R 2 R Deposits from banks and other
4 v W financial institutions 1,323,435 10413696 5,052,300 15,510 - - - 16804941
Mtk em T Derivative financial instruments 5164 244176 137,561 391,698 441,575 183,658 - 1,403,832
KR Deposits from customers 46,184,497 55,655,794 33,183,194 22,139,807 786,244 28,356 - 157,977,892
CE#fTERE Certificates of deposit issued - 77,731 99748 356,013 1,861,054 - - 2,394,546
VIS A A2 D% TE%  Debt securities in issue measured at amortised cost - 66,529 92,997 - - - - 159,526
DA R AR 2 R B R Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost - - - - 7,010,125 1,551,000 - 8,561,125
a8 Other liabilities, including
REERIAE current and deferred tax liabilities 181,359 987,721 530,781 675,061 51,474 - 184,679 2,611,075
AR Total liabilities 47,694,455 67,445,647 39,096,581 23,578,089 10,150,472 1,763,014 184,679 189,912,937
HHE AR Net liquidity gap (26966,361) (39530,215) (27,371,975) 6,938,848 68,836,292 29763014 5,424,022 17,093,625
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

ASR1T Bank JATR I —f —2 =3
liien BUT WA WA —ERE HEDE
Repayable Upto 1-3 312 1-5 Over 5 TR st
ondemand  1month months months years years  Indefinite Total
T Tt T T T T T T
“ZENEFZA=1-H At 31 December 2008 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
jid:d Assets
B RAESTR £ Cash and balances with banks and
BREE v other financial institutions 8465361 19,184,062 = = = = - 27649423
TESRAT Rt 4 Placements with and advances to
1 Y& WS banks and other financial institutions - - 496415 1163708 - - - 1,660,123
s fEeREE Financial assets held for trading - - 50 5,692 25,109 - 21,200 52,051
HEUATEES G Financial assets designated at fair
MEZERERE value through profit or loss
—H s - other debt securities = = = 77400 923444 487,159 - 1488003
i gmTH Derivative financial instruments 5071 436272 403457 661278 615555 187,069 - 2,308,702
K Ut ks Loans and advances to customers,
Rz B banks and other financial institutions 13714196 7571,828 14,081,899 16984348  49,046920 26,886,661 - 128285852
it e SRR E Available-for-sale financial investments
— IR - equity securities - - - - - - L7791 1277921
— A E - certificates of deposit held - - - - - 7,931 - 7,931
—H s ~ other debt securities = - 115219 2580260 11145044 2270443 5640 16,116,606
HAZEMERRE Held-to-maturity financial investments
— B - treasury bills - - - 1136282 - - - 1136282
— i - other debt securities = 154,522 = 518,228 83,832 83,539 = 840,121
WEEATZ B Investments in associates - - - - - - 152,646 152,646
RIE AR Z B & Tnvestments in subsidiaries = = = = = - 1908750 1,908,750
TR I A e e Goodwill and other intangible assets = = = = = = 642,109 642,109
HENE Investment properties - - - - - - 25,200 25,200
ESE L] Property, plant and equipment = = = = - - 185,878 185,878
TE L RS Leasehold land and land use rights - - - - - 43,860 - 43,860
Hoht e Other assets 4720 1627200 286554 1049078 237377 2,301 131038 3375275
W Total assets 2206348 28973891 15383594 24176274 62,077,281 29968963 4350382 187,156,733
fifs Liabilities
AT R A Deposits from banks and other
v WS financial institutions 851,683 5974849 10,174,632 = = s - 17,001,164
Mk EMIA Derivative financial instruments 252 309,961 251479 1,589,503 819,922 353,057 - 334174
KR Deposits from customers 25141505 78960802 20,544,329 12,978,351 1,005 10,075 - 137,636,067
CE TG Certificates of deposit issued - - 99TT6R 2734857 579742 - - 4312361
DABEBS A A I f B (58 Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost = = - L6515 5843813 1550020 - 8556348
HibB - BT Other liabilities, including
JRERIAA current and deferred tax liabilities 82,863 1870898 329704 698,116 43583 = 76630 3,101,794
ARAH Total liabilities 26076303 87116510 32297906 19163342 7,288,065 1913152 76,630 173,931,908
B A0 F A Net liquidity gap (3,849.955) (58,142,619) (16914312) 5012932 54789216 28055811 4273752 13,224,825
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4 T LA B ) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 BSR4 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
TR G A S 0 45 A 2 B F R AT A The tables below present the cash flows payable by the Group under
FUME -~ DA R A YR A5 T AR AT A B P A SO non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
DA 0 A 258 S (Y 407 A 4 T LT A [E e will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
AP BB T o S A A A 9] 7 AR 48 ) 1) A S T B will be settled on a gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at
T4 i A L A 7 U Y e B > E R T T A the end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the tables are
& 2 BUR B A R AR BT B BLE TR the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages
the inherent liquidity risk based on the expected undiscounted cash
inflows.
N DAV R A S (Y AR AT A T4 Those derivatives that will be settled on a net basis include:
- AMNEEfT A T H A 5 &R - Foreign exchange derivatives: over-the-counter (“OTC”)
(forcl) ;s & currency options; and
- FERATAETH - R R R - Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
RS HI A8 s | Ze agreements and OTC interest rate options
LSRR A S AR AT AR T A4 Those derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:
- AMEfTA LR B EMEE - AFE - Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency swaps;
s & and
- FISATETH - 2R R Rl - - Interest rate derivatives: cross currency interest rate swaps.

162 W T84T () AR AT Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 BSR4 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
A%H Group BRI
R =MASUT =2+2MA —& R4 AR L
Repayable 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over 5 At
on demand or less months years years Total
THL TL TL TL TL THL
i 2> 5 i Y = e | At 31 December 2009 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
LRAE Financial liabilities
ST S A S Deposits from banks and other
Wtz fr ek st financial institutions 1,313,039 18,345,501 571,493 - - 20,230,033
CIRNEE N Deposits from customers 46,608,827 90,103,686 23,774,438 1,022,925 28357 161,538,233
C# T Certificates of deposit issued - 207,169 395,511 1,899,196 - 2,501,876
DAESH AR A B 2 Debt securities in issue measured
EETES at amortised cost - 159,526 - - - 159,526
DAEBH AR A BR 2 Subordinated debts measured
RIERE at amortised cost - 15,498 64,795 7,286,525 1,763,900 9,130,718
A4 Other financial liabilities 178,079 1,058,822 1,783,258 71,393 293,817 3,385,369
LA B Total financial liabilities 48,099,945 109,890,202 26,589,495 10,280,039 2,086,074 196,945,755
B4 Derivative cash flows
DIFEA BT Derivative financial instruments
SRMITH settled on a net basis (2,375) 19 (221,885) (923,874) (270,996)  (1,419,111)
WA Total inflow - 552,952 3,818,804 16,606,459 6,712,951 27,691,166
i AR Total outflow (2,375) (552,933)  (4,040,689)  (17,530,333)  (6,983,947)  (29,110,277)
DA T A Derivative financial instruments
SHITE settled on a gross basis
WA Total inflow 229,834 32,869,801 51,286,554 3,112,984 - 87,499,173
i AR Total outflow (234,937)  (32,710957)  (51,351,749)  (3,128,392) - (87,426,035)
HEANFIEE Off-balance sheet items
AL Group —AEg T — &4 ARk Ht
No later than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
Tl T Tl T
“RBNETZAET—H At 31 December 2009 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Bk Loan commitments 71,985,549 19,871,892 - 91,857,441
R - RERH R Guarantees, acceptances
ot P S b and other financial facilities 11,085,237 - - 11,085,237
B Mk Forward forward deposits placed 814,703 - - 814,703
it Total 83,885,489 19,871,892 - 103,757,381
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4 BAFSIRUBEAS L (a0 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 BSR4 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
AEH Group JHELR I
B =MAZMT =ZF+ZMA —ZBRF HAE L
Repayable 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over 5 A5t
on demand or less months years years Total
T Tk T T T Tt
ZEENFEFZR=1—H At 31 December 2008 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AMaE Financial liabilities
ST S A 5 Deposits from banks and other
Wtz fr ek st financial institutions 840,528 18,543,148 841,210 4408 = 20,229,294
CIRNEE N Deposits from customers 25341,896 102,172,660 11,341,091 41954 10,075 138,907,676
CB T Certificates of deposit issued 1,880 1,028,719 2,824,376 606,486 = 4,461,461
HEUATEES Debt securities in issue
6 EIN: 74 designated at fair value
BRI through profit or loss - 105,637 3,206,075 - - 3,311,712
DIESH A AR 2 Subordinated debts measured
A EE at amortised cost = 63,704 1,394,744 6,931,521 2,526,031 10,916,000
HoAth 4R A Other financial liabilities 108,560 1,416,345 453,779 81,368 65,326 2,125,378
WA Total financial liabilities 26,292,864 123,330,213 20,061,275 7,665,737 2,601,432 179,951,521
R A Derivative cash flows
IDREE N it Derivative financial instruments
SRTH settled on a net basis (4,626) 4,050 21,689 (151,214) (21,202) (151,303)
TALH Total inflow 26,193 1,201,782 8,023,139 15,579,501 6,795,710 31,626,325
i AR Total outflow (30,819) (1,197,732) (8,001,450)  (15,730,715) (6,816912)  (31,777,628)
DR N iy Derivative financial instruments
SMIR settled on a gross basis
TALH Total inflow 63,533 146,041,388 14,670,723 4,606,561 = 95,382,205
i AR Total outflow (58,714)  (45777,898)  (45,610,624) (4,608,657) - (96,055,893)
HEANFIEE Off-balance sheet items
ALEH Group s U —Ff4E AL E Mt
No later than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
Tkt Tt Tt Tt
“EE)\FFZHA=Z1T—H At 31 December 2008 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BHUR Loan commitments 58,714,921 10,697,995 = 69,412,916
R - RERH R Guarantees, acceptances and
ot P b other financial facilities 17,994,335 = = 17,994,335
CEHA B Forward forward deposits placed 2,310,099 - - 2,310,099
At Total 79,019,355 10,697,995 = 89,717,350
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 BSR4 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
AHUF Bank BRI
R =MHEUT =£1+-MA —Z il AR L
Repayable 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over 5 At
on demand or less months years years Total
THL T THL THL TL TL
i 2 5 i Y = e | At 31 December 2009 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
LRAE Financial liabilities
ST S A 4 Deposits from banks and
Wt 2 fr ek st other financial institutions 1,323,435 15,484,883 15,606 - - 16,823,924
CIRNEE N Deposits from customers 46,185,563 88933528 22,325,744 796,350 28,356 158,269,541
CBITE Certificates of deposit issued - 207,169 395,511 1,899,196 - 2,501,876
DI AR A B 2 Debt securities in issue measured
EETES at amortised cost - 159,526 - - - 159,526
DABEB AR A BR 2 Subordinated debts measured at
RIERE amortised cost - 15,498 64,795 7,286,525 1,763,900 9,130,718
oA 45 P A R Other financial liabilities 177,917 1,339,251 507,208 35,886 184,679 2,244,941
LA B Total financial liabilities 47,686,915 106,139,855 23,308,864 10,017,957 1,976,935 189,130,526
PB4 Derivative cash flows
DIFEA T Derivative financial instruments
SRMITH settled on a net basis (2,375) 19 (221,885) (923,874) (270,996)  (1,419,111)
WA Total inflow - 552,952 3,818,804 16,606,459 6,712,951 27,691,166
i 4 Total outflow (2,375) (552,933)  (4,040,689)  (17,530,333)  (6,983,947)  (29,110,277)
DA R AT AE Derivative financial instruments
SHITE settled on a gross basis
WA Total inflow 229,834 32,869,801 51,286,554 3,112,984 - 87,499,173
i 4 Total outflow (234,937)  (32,710957)  (51,351,749)  (3,128,392) - (87,426,035)
B AMFAEH Off-balance sheet items
AGUF Bank —AEg AT —Z s THAER |k H5t
No later than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
Tt Tt Tt T
“ZEWEZ A= At 31 December 2009 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BHURH Loan commitments 71,939,852 19,497,830 - 91,437,682
R - RiEHR Guarantees, acceptances and
o fth s other financial facilities 6,377,074 - - 6,377,074
CEA B Forward forward deposits placed 814,703 - - 814,703
&t Total 79,131,629 19,497,830 - 98,629,459
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4 BAFSIRUBEAS L (a0 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 BSR4 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
AHUF Bank LS
B =MAZMT =ZF+ZMA —ZBRF HAEE
Repayable 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over 5 A5t
on demand or less months years years Total
Tk T Tk T Tk Tt
ZEENFEFZR=1—H At 31 December 2008 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AW Financial liabilities
ST S A 5 Deposits from banks and
Wtz fr ek st other financial institutions 851,851 16,217,433 = = = 17,069,284
KRR Deposits from customers 25,150,135 99,835,424 13,324,070 1,043 10,075 138,320,747
CEIT Certificates of deposit issued 1,880 1,028,719 2,824,376 606,486 - 4,461,461
DIESH AR A BR 2 Subordinated debts measured
RIERE at amortised cost = 63,704 1,394,744 6,931,521 2,526,031 10,916,000
Hib &R R Other financial liabilities 42,144 1,682,869 460,043 35,482 76,630 2,297,168
SRR LS Total financial liabilities 26,046,010 118,828,149 18,003,233 7,574,532 2,612,736 173,064,660
RiEBLAH Derivative cash flows
DO AT A Derivative financial instruments
ERTH settled on a net basis (4,626) (7,207) 11,306 (151,214) (21,202) (172,943)
TAMEH Total inflow 26,193 1,211,387 11,069,624 15,579,501 6,795,710 34,682,415
ik A% Total outflow (30,819)  (1,218594)  (11,058,318)  (15730,715)  (6,816912)  (34855358)
D) AR AR S AT A Derivative financial instruments
SMTHE settled on a gross basis
TALE Total inflow 63,533 46,041,388 44,670,723 4,606,561 S 95,382,205
i 4 Total outflow (58,714)  (45,777,898)  (45,610,624) (4,608,657) - (96,055,893)
HEAEFRIEH Off-balance sheet items
ARRAT Bank —HET = il AE HAEM L Hgt
No later than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
Tkt Tt T Tk
“EZENEFH=1—H At 31 December 2008 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000
B Loan commitments 58,616,668 10,598,459 = 69,215,127
S Guarantees, acceptances and
o fth B Rl other financial facilities 5,752,305 = = 5,752,305
B A Mk Forward forward deposits placed 2,310,099 - - 2,310,099
At Total 66,679,072 10,598,459 - 77,277,531
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.5

4.6

Strategy in using financial instruments

By their nature, the Group’s activities are principally related to the use of
financial instruments including derivatives. The Group accepts deposits
from customers at both fixed and floating rates, and for various periods,
and seeks to optimise the interest margins by investing these funds in
high-quality assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins generally
by consolidating short-term funds and lending for longer periods at
higher rates, while maintaining sufficient liquidity in the process to
meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to raise its interest margins, net of allowances,
through lending to commercial and retail borrowers with a range of
credit standing. Such exposures involve not just on-balance sheet loans
and advances but also guarantees and other commitments such as
letters of credit and performance and other bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments by taking positions in
OTC instruments to take advantage of short-term market movements in
currencies, interest rates and securities prices. The Management places
trading limits on the level of exposure for trading products.

(a)  Fair value hedges
The Group hedges part of the existing Hong Kong dollar and
foreign currency interest rate risk in its fixed rate assets by means
of interest rate and cross-currency interest rate swaps. The net fair
value of these swaps as at 31 December 2009 was HK$136 million
negative (2008: HK$271 million negative).

(b)  Cash flow hedges
The Group uses cross-currency swaps to protect against
exposures to variability in future cash flows on non-trading assets
which bear interest at variable rates. There was no cross-currency
swap as at 31 December 2009 (2008: HK$37 million negative).

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments measured at fair value using a valuation
technique

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is
the current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, OTC derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on observable market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period. Market quotes are used
for debt securities and structured derivatives. The fair value of interest
rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future
cash flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange market rates at the end of the
reporting period.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value using a valuation
technique (continued)

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from
the fair value from other observable current market transactions in the
same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable markets, the Group immediately
recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a
“Day 1” profit) in “Net trading income”. In cases where data which is
not observable is used, the difference between the transaction price and
model value is only recognised in the income statement when the inputs
become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Determination of fair value hierarchy

The Bank uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing
the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted (unadjusted) prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which
all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which
all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that
are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments

SRTHE : measured at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:
A%H Group EHh— EH— = B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T Ti#x THL T#L
“ZRNEFCAZTH 31 December 2009 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SMERE Financial assets
it/ TE Derivative financial instruments
i HAMNE G4 Forward foreign exchange contracts - 694,470 - 694,470
joyize Currency swaps - 13,084 - 13,084
SNEHTHE EX options - 33,645 - 33,645
GilEE Interest rate swaps - 326,018 55,681 381,699
FIR M Interest rate options - 4,657 - 4,657
B SR HRE Equity options - 157,751 - 157,751
- 1,229,625 55,681 1,285,306
R Rtz &REE Financial assets held for trading
% Debt securities 46,883 165 - 47,048
HEHE Fund investment 122,248 - - 122,248
B= Equities 20,950 - - 20,950
190,081 165 - 190,246
FREUATHEERRERANR Financial assets designated at
ZEMERE fair value through profit or loss
fi5 Debt securities 598,890 563,259 - 1,162,149
598,890 563,259 - 1,162,149
it E M E Available-for-sale financial investments
fiss Debt securities 22,697,961 8,067,735 1,960 30,767,656
[l Equities 1,501,944 - - 1,501,944
24,199,905 8,067,735 1,960 32,269,600
SREERE Total financial assets 24,988,876 9,860,784 57,641 34,907,301
L@ Af Financial liabilities
fiitkeMTHE Derivative financial instruments
ISR 4 Forward foreign exchange contracts - 608,472 - 608,472
gl Currency swaps - 23,720 - 23,720
SIEHE EX options - 34,179 - 34,179
| 4w A Interest rate swaps - 519,372 55,681 575,053
ik il Interest rate options - 4,657 - 4,657
RS HIHE Equity options - 157,751 - 157,751
- 1,348,151 55,681 1,403,832
IR LMAP R BRI f R AR Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMARE fair value through profit or loss
BB TG Certificates of deposit issued - 1,419,077 - 1,419,077
- 1,419,077 - 1,419,077
SR AR Total financial liabilities - 2,767,228 55,681 2,822,909
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4 A B BE () 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.6 ZRVEENEABZATEME @) 4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
JHEE LA (E A () Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)
N ) Bank HHh— FH FH= A
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T T T TL
“ERET AT 31 December 2009 HK$°000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
LR Financial assets
fiEam TR Derivative financial instruments
i HAMNES 4 Forward foreign exchange contracts - 694,470 - 694,470
Lt g Currency swaps - 13,084 - 13,084
SN EX options - 33,645 - 33,645
pilpsie Interest rate swaps - 326,018 55,681 381,699
pilEsiiy Interest rate options - 4,657 - 4,657
i S Equity options - 157,751 - 157,751
- 1,229,625 55,681 1,285,306
FRfE2H fik 2z R Financial assets held for trading
e Debt securities 46,883 165 - 47,048
B= Equities 20,950 - - 20,950
67,833 165 - 67,998
B 7E AATEE R R R AR Financial assets designated at fair
BREE value through profit or loss
fi5 Debt securities 598,890 563,259 - 1,162,149
598,890 563,259 - 1,162,149
it E S M E Available-for-sale financial investments
fis Debt securities 22,697,961 8,067,735 1,960 30,767,656
[l Equities 1,501,944 - - 1,501,944
24,199,905 8,067,735 1,960 32,269,600
SREERE Total financial assets 24,866,628 9,860,784 57,641 34,785,053
SR Af Financial liabilities
fiitk &M TR Derivative financial instruments
ISR 4 Forward foreign exchange contracts - 608,472 - 608,472
gt Currency swaps - 23,720 - 23,720
S HIHE EX options - 34,179 - 34,179
| 4w Interest rate swaps - 519,372 55,681 575,053
ik il Interest rate options - 4,657 - 4,657
RS HIHE Equity options - 157,751 - 157,751
- 1,348,151 55,681 1,403,832
IR VAP BRI A R AR Financial liabilities designated at
AR fair value through profit or loss
BB TG Certificates of deposit issued - 1,419,077 - 1,419,077
- 1,419,077 - 1,419,077
=lip Total financial liabilities - 2,767,228 55,681 2,822,909
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4 W R BE (a0 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.6 ZRVEENEABZATEME @) 4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
EIRFR =2 2B (a2 BT - Movements in the fair value measurements in Level 3 during the year

are as follows:

TRBINE A FEEIIRE SR =S RE E & The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing
8 AP ) BR AR BRLAR SR 2 I amounts of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities which are recorded at
fair value:

ERA R 2
iz ds, MBI i R

(Ol H) 4% Total gains
REZFNAE  Total gains/(losses) recorded in other REEBNAE
—H—H recorded in the comprehensive +ZH=Z4—H
At 1 January 2009 income statement income At 31 December 2009
T T#x T#x T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
LW Financial assets
fiEamTH Derivative financial instruments
|2 4w A Interest rate swaps 47,202 8,479 - 55,681
47,202 ©8,479 - 55,681
Mt SR E Available-for-sale financial investments
e Debt securities 13,247 (12,572) 1,285 1,960
13,247 ®(12,572) 1,285 1,960
S AR A Total Level 3 financial assets 60,449 (4,093) 1,285 57,641
@ Af Financial liabilities
fiit &M TR Derivative financial instruments
s Interest rate swaps (47,202) (8,479) - (55,681)
EH= A ERE Total Level 3 financial liabilities (47,202) @ (8,479) - (55,681)
FG=GRERE /(AR FEAE Total net Level 3 financial assets/(liabilities) 13,047 (12572) 1,285 1,960
(a) FIATHZZUA (@)  Included in “Net trading income”
(b)  FEA [ & £ M IRk (b)  Included in “Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial
investments”
FIAREF WG R EH =2/ T H 2 FEEA Losses on Level 3 financial instruments included in the income
¥ - statement for the year comprise:
KB H REEBIR A Hm
Unrealised losses  Unrealised gain Total
R T Tibi T
2009 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEAAAE R AR 2R Total losses included in the income
2 e AR statement for the year (12,572) - (12,572)
BEZZIFETH=1—H ILFE > I % During the year ended 31 December 2009, there was no transfer of fair
TREE SR — KA 2 TR N B (A R Ol value measurements between Level 1 and 2 and no transfers into or out
S 2 AR A = B A S AR = o of Level 3.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial instruments not measured at fair value
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are estimated as follows:

(a) Balances and placements with banks and other financial
institutions

The fair values of floating rate placements and overnight deposits
are their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest-bearing deposits, all of which are less than one year, is
based on the discounted cash flows using prevailing money-
market interest rates and the remaining maturity. Therefore, the
fair value is approximately equal to its carrying value.

(b) Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions

Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions are net of allowances for impairment. All items,
except a very insignificant portion of loans and advances to
customers, bear interest at a floating rate. The Group has assessed
the fair values of loans and advances to customers, banks and
other financial institutions, after taking into account the relevant
market interest rates and noted that the total fair value is not
materially different from the total carrying value.

(c)  Held-to-maturity financial investments

The fair value of held-to-maturity debt securities is determined
with reference to the available market value. If quoted market
prices are not available, then the fair value is estimated on the
basis of pricing models.

M i AR
Carrying value Fair value
2009 2008 2009 2008
T TH# T T TH T
ARG B AR BT Group and Bank HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Eol 440 Financial assets
2RSS Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,291,509 1,976,403 1,290,189 1,961,113
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6

4.7

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

(d)  Deposits and balances from customers, banks and other financial
institutions.

The estimated fair value of deposits and balances with no stated
maturity is the amount repayable on demand. The fair value of
those balances having an interest at a floating rate is their carrying
value.

The estimated fair value of the fixed interest-bearing deposits
of banks and deposits from customers without quoted market
prices is based on discounted cash flows using interest rates for
new debts with similar remaining maturity. As their maturity is
normally less than one year from the end of the reporting period,
their fair values are approximately equal to their carrying values.

(e)  Certificates of deposit issued and subordinated debts

The Group has assessed the fair value of certificates of deposit
after taking into account the relevant yield curve and noted
that the total fair value is not materially different from the total
carrying value.

() Other assets and other liabilities

The estimated fair value of the other assets and other liabilities,
which are normally non-interest-bearing, is their carrying value.

Capital management

The Group’s objective for managing capital is to allocate capital in an
efficient and risk-based approach to optimise risk adjusted return to
the shareholders. The Group periodically reviews its capital structure
and maintains a strong capital base to support the development of its
business.

The Group manages its capital to execute its strategic business plans and
support its growth and investments in an efficient way. The Group’s
core capital ratio and capital adequacy ratio were 9.0% and 14.9%
respectively as at 31 December 2009. The Group adjusts its business and
lending strategy from time to time to optimise its risk-return profile. A
capital planning and allocation policy is in place to ensure compliance
with Basel II Pillar IT and the related HKMA requirements, engineered
by the Asset and Liability Management Department.
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4 B IR B B (a) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
47 BAGEIL () 4.7 Capital management (continued)

T Sl LR SR AR SRAT A4 B B AR The HKMA requires the Bank to maintain a ratio of total regulatory
BRLINRE SRR S E 2 b B A 78 2 bE3R) e AR capital to the risk-weighted asset (the capital adequacy ratio) at the
B 8% FE-FHIN— 1B EAS 45 i o ASSE [ 2 2 T g minimum of 8% plus a capital cushion. Certain subsidiaries of the
2N R INJEAE 5 A B R A A AU R O S B Group are also subject to statutory capital requirements from other
Y ERE B G 2 e EARE - B4 regulatory authorities, such as the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
FERIRVL B i 78 AR 22 A8 T o 7 42 8 A B g ) Commission. Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
AR T RT 8 2 O AT B WA o TR closely monitored by the Management, employing techniques based on
BRI 2 B LA TR R T SR S T A i the Capital Rules. The required information is filed with the HKMA on
SREIR o EATLIRD S EAKLRE 2 #5R a quarterly basis. The disclosure of capital adequacy and capital base are
A BN A R (1) © shown in Note 1 of the Supplementary Financial Information.

PATR SR A GRAT A B ZE W I 2 — SHE— 145 & The following exhibits the Bank’s Basel II Pillar I Regulatory Capital
FLUE 7 BEAS R 7E IR R o AN AR [E] A 1 IRy i Adequacy Ratio (“CAR”) on a consolidated basis. The Group will
AT E AR B KoL - DA A BRI E L perform capital planning and allocation in due course to fulfill Basel IT
FEZZ BRI o AR E BT IR K FF AR Pillar II standards. During the two years ended 31 December 2009 and
T HE T H WA A EESE T 2008, the Group complied with all of the capital requirements externally
U < A B R B MR 2 T EARUE o imposed by the HKMA.

2009 2008
EATE L Capital adequacy ratio 14.9% 13.6%
4.8 SEWSE M m b B 4.8 Operational risk management

HEEAE S B i TR = B ik 2 AR - NH -
FR A0 B ARG R 2 A 2 BB R R 2
JEUBRE o 5 28 T S A I fF 7 SR IR AR > 7
A AR AN ) o T o 2 PR B 22 2 £ it DA i
Be T RAR 7 vl 9 A0 B 25 A A SRR o LT SRR
AR AR 2 — B> o R S S5 4R AR A b
H 2 HE ) E AT BTN GR o ASHE I 2 S 8 4 L P
ZAE > DB & EISE - BRET =
BRI B ATl - EZRFRAEEE - 4xT 2 R
I JSE ~ 45 70 R PR B B st B R A 1k
it > i R A ) R AR (B A5 B
— PR o BN > ARGER 2 R ERRE AR RE A AL
R B AR P 2 AT AT UG UL > IS P 8 52T %
BLHb A 25 R G T AN TR S T o AR
A B 1Y [ 28 AR i A — AR i A T A o <
PR B A 15 5 A0 LRI - AR M BR B AT
B ROHR ) SE RS PR AR B - B /i
5 — 2 LB A S AR > ASSE P BRI 5 4
it LA B 2% B IR
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Operational risk is the risk of unexpected financial losses resulting
from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems and
from external events. It is inherent to every business organisation
and covers a wide spectrum of issues. Enhanced efforts in identifying
and understanding the underlying operational risks in process are
taken. This is part of the job of the Risk Management Department.
Its capability for handling operational risk management is enhanced.
An Operational Risk Committee is in place in forging ahead with
the initiatives. Such operational risk is further mitigated through
the implementation of key risk assessment, key risk indicators,
comprehensive internal control systems, adequate insurance cover,
offshore computer back-up sites and contingency plans with periodic
drills. The Group’s Internal Audit Department also plays an important
role in detecting any deviations from operating procedures and
identifying weaknesses at all operating levels independently and
objectively. The Group will keep on pursuing active and proactive
operational risk management practice in accordance with the relevant
Basel IT and HKMA guidelines and principles. In the wake of the
financial tsunami that began in the last quarter of 2008, the Group
has adopted incremental presumptive measures to detect and prevent
fraud.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.9

Legal and compliance risk management

Legal and compliance risk is the prospective risk of legal and regulatory
sanctions, financial loss, or reputation loss that the Group may suffer
as a result for violations of, or non-compliance with, all applicable laws,
regulations, internal policies etc with respect to the conduct of business.

Legal and compliance staff members advise the management on
the legal and regulatory developments and assist the management
in establishing policies, procedures and monitoring programme to
ensure compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements. They
conduct regular compliance checking so that the Bank can identify any
potential non-compliance issue and take remedial action on a timely
basis. They also issue monthly bulletins and arrange training from time
to time to enrich the knowledge of all staff in the legal and regulatory
requirements. Furthermore, regular reports on non-compliance issues
and the legal and regulatory developments are made to the Executive
Committee.

5 SEGMENT REPORTING

()

Class of business

Following an internal restructuring during 2009, the business of the
Group has been organised into seven major operating segments.
Commercial banking represents commercial lending and trade
financing. Retail banking represents retail banking, hire purchase and
leasing, and credit card business. Global markets and trading represents
foreign exchange, money market and capital market activities. Corporate
and investment banking mainly comprises corporate banking, the
provision of debt capital market and investment banking. Institutional
banking represents financial institution business. Chinese Mercantile
Bank represents the business of the Bank’s subsidiary in Mainland
China. Unallocated items mainly comprise the central management unit,
bank premises and any items which cannot be reasonably allocated to
specific operating segments.
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5  EbERE @ 5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
() SEFHRER (80 (a) Class of business (continued)
el
biaed 70 AR it
Corporate B30 FhMr Global BBy Chinese
and investment  Commercial Retail  marketsand  Institutional Mercantile RN At
banking banking banking trading banking Bank  Unallocated Total
T Ti#x T Ti#x Ti#x i1 Ti#x Ti#n
2 gk 2009 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000
HHLEBMA/ (L) Net interest income/(expense) 826,679 948,050 575,871 414889 112,587 269,041 ®7921) 300919
Y R E A Fee and commission incorme 134,506 1854 302,591 1,610 67,037 49,406 17425 814429
IR Fec and commission expense (15497) (10970) (50,188) - (1,004 (2,640) (7,096) (87,395)
e YU ETIN: | Net fee and commission income 119,009 230,884 252,403 1,610 66,033 46,766 10,329 727,034
BRI/ (k) Net trading incomel (expense) 7 41,92 18,894 187,604 1,365 (496) (35,696) 214338
HEENATERA R Net gain on financial assets and
N2z & REE R A liabilities designated at fair value
et through profit or loss - - - 110,097 - - 83,118 193,215
KAEREEZRERA Dividend income from financial investments 597 - 40 - - - 5,839 6,476
HAbEERA Other operating income 352 3374 13,992 180 31 10,758 11,235 39,922
BEIA/ (i) Operating income/(expense) 947,384 1,224,228 861,200 714380 180,016 326,069 (63,09) 4,190,181
BEH Operating expenses (62,33) (285,877) (623,777) (98,579) (15,909) (73,299) (198575)  (1,338,339)
RIIlER S Operating profit/(loss) before
LEEER/ (ER) impairment losses 885,061 938,351 8743 615,801 164,107 252770 (261671) 2,831,842
SR (Charge for)/write-back of impairment
() / EH? losses on loans and advances (110,567) (152,355) (3,779) 473 (5,368) (141,011) 27,571 (385,536)
EEEE BT Write-back of impairment losses
fﬁ%@@‘ on held-to-maturity financial investments - - - 2,145 - - - 2,145
ftkESRBE Charge for impairment losses on
WL available-for-sale financial investments - - - (43,676) - - (151,382) (195,038)
BB A&/ (BHR) Operating profitloss)after impairment losses 774494 785,996 233,644 574,743 158,239 111,759 (38548) 225339
EEdsE Sl Revaluation gain on investment properties - - - - - 5,787 300 6,087
e /BEE R Net (loss)/gain from disposalreversal of revaluation
HE LR HEREZ defiits of property, plant and equipment
Bt (B8 /Wi F8  and leasehold land and land use rights 6) 1 (438) 2) - 1) 4307 3,850
HEREAR &Wé‘ AR Gain on disposal of subsidiaries and an associate - - - - - - 1,328 1,328
HERAAES ﬁﬂ!ﬁ i Net (loss)/gain on disposal of available-for-sale
() /Al financial investments - - - (51,829) - - 834,129 782,300
B Operating profit 774,488 785,997 233,206 52,892 158,239 117,534 454,602 3,046,958
FEfte e A A Share of profits of associates - - - - - - 23,43 23,243
Sl Profit before tax 774488 785,997 233,206 522,892 158,239 117,534 477845 3,070,201
b Segment assets 5T57943 ST 8MBS67 5962047 12546559 12,805,062 708626 211,662,757
REEATZBE [nvestments in associates - - - - - - 3,915,895 3,915,895
RERE Unallocated assets - - - - - - 175,177 175,177
HEE Total assets BIT9B SLTTR MBS6T 962047 12546559 12805062 4799698 215,753,829
vtk Segment liablities 51006908 47579809 50,110,770 17,414,802 8,634,626 9,119,425 853476 184,719,816
FEAME Unallocated lsbilties - - - - - - 99416 12929416
fifkiE Totallsbilties 5L006908 47579809 50110770 17414802 8634626 19425 13782892 197,649,232
e Capital expenditure b} 169 16,382 762 6 667 19574 37,647
HERBER Depreciation and amortisation charges 602 2,364 UL 1,399 156 12,183 U481 65,622

s TR 8R1T (3EM) A BR/A ] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
ZEZJAEEHR Annual Report 2009



Woh 5 2 Pt ¥
Notes to the Financial Statements

5  EbEE o

) 5

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

() SEFHRER (80 (a) Class of business (continued)
fic
R¥HT AR it
Corporate B30 FhMr Global BBy Chinese
and investment  Commercial Retail  marketsand  Institutional Mercantile RN At
banking banking banking trading banking Bank  Unallocated Total
T T Tibn T T T T T
ER\E 2008 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000
HRIBMA/ (52) Net interest income/(expense) 443610 813727 526,553 624614 284,668 306812 (1681 2,998303
I RIEIA/ (k) Fee and commission income/(expense) 246,743 12,091 262,365 (787) 26,112 32,582 (228%) 756,268
ey EST Fee and commission expense (24048) (21,149) (38835) = (621) (1) (7.801) (93,166)
W R4 A/ (0tk) B8 Net fee and commission income/(expense) 2,695 190,942 13,530 (787) 25491 31870 (30,639) 663,102
WRAA/ i) Net trading income/(expense) 6,373 43,630 17,081 182,852 19% (17,264) 40573 273441
FEUATEESIGER Net loss on financial assets and liabilities
N2 & REE R A designated at fair value
AT through profit or loss = 5 = (163,855) = = (6,785) (230,640)
KAEREEZBEMA Dividend income from financial investments 943 - 0 = = = 13,894 14859
B % (R /A Other operating (loss)/income 1) 7630 13,147 629 - 3070 8,751 33,46
A () /M Inter segment (expense)/income - - (830) - - - 830 -
BEIA/ () Operating income/(expense) 673,620 1,055,949 779503 643,453 310355 34,488 (35,057) 375311
BEH Operating expenses (71,106) (299,020 (57,787) (97,089) (12325) (78981) 1381)  (1250119)
AGRERE Operating profit/(loss) before
LEERR/ (BR) impairment losses 602,514 756,929 01,716 546,364 298,030 245,507 (170,868) 2,500,192
SR (Charge for) write-back of impairment
(e8)/ lﬁlfﬁ‘ losses on loans and advances (101,821) (242,754) (34.921) (190) (4.984) (30,774) 6,815 (408,629)
SRl e G Write-back of impairment losses
E%W&{ on held-to-maturity financial investments - - - 156 - - - 156
Mtk E SRR Charge for impairment losses on
HIREVS available-for-sale financial investments - - - (721,3%0) - - (81,490) (802,880)
MEBEREL Operating profit/(loss) after
BEEH/ (BR) impairment losses 500,693 514175 186,795 (175,060) 293,046 2473 (45,543) 1,288,839
BB AMERH/(BB)  Revaluation gain/(loss) on investment properties = = = = = 302 (800) (498)
e /B Net gain/(loss) from disposal/reversal of revaluation
WERF ARG LR deficts of property, plantand equipment
THERE, BB and leaschold land and
i@/ () land use rights - 5 (1,107) 1) - - 6616 5513
HESES Loss on disposal of loans and advances (3:493) (11,075) (3,600) = (250) = (10,290) (28710)
e E SR Net gain/(loss) on disposal of available-for-sale
WA/ (B8 B financial investments - - 6,560 (214,201) = = 5679 (201,962)
R/ (BR) Operating profit/(loss) 497,200 503,105 188,648 (389,262) 29,79 215,035 (244,339) 1,063,182
ElSREATERN Share of profits o assocates - - - - - - 655 655
iR/ () Profitloss) before tax 497,00 503,105 188,648 (389,262) 292,79% 20503 (243689) 1063837
g Segment assets 0056048 B4031 26687406 9534105 1804877 10397781 06 190439784
REEATZBE [nvestments in associates - - - - - - 184,854 184,854
RNGE Unallocated assets - - - = = = 3,939,471 3,939,471
HEE Total assets 0056048 B403B1 26687406 49534105 1804877 10397781 4373561 194564109
ik - Segment iablities 0074235 3690548 513047 19564555 9,495,181 7705671 355348 164432085
A Unallocated libilties = - - - - - 1619406 16194046
Affas Total liabilties 174235 3690548 SL204T 19564555 9,495,181 7,705,671 16549394 180626331
S Capital expenditure 100 1,094 2909 230 76 8,708 20,168 73085
I RE Depreciation and amortisation charges 545 2092 2542 1985 126 11,850 53,154 95,174
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5 SrEkERkh e 5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) b o (b) Geographical area
7B 8] A A A ST o R A S B The Group operates predominantly in Hong Kong. The geographical
#1732 MR AT IR analysis, which has been classified by the location of the principal
operations, is as follows:.
[ 3)8) e
K b ik
Asia Pacific
i (excluding ¢y | At
Hong Kong Hong Kong) Europe Total
T#IL T#IT T#T T#T
ZRBNAE 2009 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
wERA Operating income 3,861,083 326,069 3,029 4,190,181
I3 30 T i Profit before tax 2,950,575 117,533 2,093 3,070,201
M Total assets 202,522,159 12,816,014 415,656 215,753,829
A fEAEH Total liabilities 187,026,401 10,613,554 9,277 197,649,232
SR B R SR if Contingent liabilities
and commitments 98,629,459 5,127,922 - 103,757,381
FENEA S Capital expenditure during the year 36,980 667 - 37,647
PR AU LASN 2
R Hb [
Asia Pacific
s (excluding A Hast
Hong Kong Hong Kong) Europe Total
THs T T#s 70 THs 70 T 0
ZET)\4F 2008 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
WA (L) Operating income/(expense) 3,437,069 324,489 (9,247) 3,752,311
BB R A (E548) Profit/(loss) before tax 867,849 215,036 (19,048) 1,063,837
mEE Total assets 183,756,501 10,397,781 409,827 194,564,109
B AE Total liabilities 172,915,166 7,705,671 5,494 180,626,331
R AT SR Contingent liabilities
and commitments 77,277,530 12,439,819 - 89,717,349
FRNEA S Capital expenditure during the year 64,577 8,708 - 73,285

A ERIUER RE/\A > MR AT
%5 B T2 o Z A A AR S B AR A 10% 5%
PIE o

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or
counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue in
2009 or 2008.
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6 A BEIA 6 NET INTEREST INCOME
2009 2008
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$000
PAIFIEH Z RS - Interest income on:
B 4 S RAT B Cash and balances with banks

HoAth 4 RS 2~ #5407 and other financial institutions 70,008 860,645
GRAT B Ath 45 R A Placements with and advances to

AR banks and other financial institutions 98,613 175,740
FE ~ GRAT B HAth Loans and advances to customers,

SRR 2 B banks and other financial institutions 3,466,631 5,795,131
SR E — ke & Financial investments — available-for-sale 749,181 755,224
SRIBE — R 258 Financial investments — held-to-maturity 24,510 79,279

4,408,943 7,666,019
FHER 5 g 2 4 g Financial assets held for trading 1,809 458
i 78 PLA-PE B A 6 R AR Financial assets designated at fair
2 A RE value through profit or loss 68,316 87,380
4,479,068 7,753,857
DA H Z FLE S Interest expense on:
SRAT B HA < A A 2 Deposits from banks and other

Tk K GE financial institutions 190,724 766,413
B AR Deposits from customers 869,919 3,387,747
CE T A7 Certificates of deposit issued 6,699 18,069
DUBESH WA AR 2 15 fE T8 Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost 147,886 292,565
HoAt Others 90,354 9,617

1,305,582 4,474,411

858 A TAE RS U s RAMR Financial liabilities designated at
Z A A R fair value through profit or loss 164,290 281,143
1,469,872 4,755,554
RS WA Net interest income 3,009,196 2,998,303

A Fal T EH 2 W 4 Rl A A R 2 Ak A
23,569,520 5 7 ( —EE J\4F 1 45,236,357 5 70) > L4
B IR J 2 FLE P s E] 10,999,491 # 7T (- F %

JNAE ©13,212,853 W5 00) °

Included in the above is interest income accrued on impaired financial assets

of HK$23,569,520 (2008: HK$45,236,357), including unwinding of discounts
on loan impairment losses of HK$10,999,491 (2008: HK$13,212,853).
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7 Wl RO EE

7  NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2009 2008
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$000
B B R Loans, overdrafts and guarantees 261,870 296,175
B I S A Securities and brokerage 199,579 128,822
2L Trade finance 161,612 151,423
BFHR Credit card 72,312 55,480
TR Remittance 26,895 23,413
FRB Insurance 20,695 18,242
AT T i S8R T IR Other retail and commercial banking services 34,420 34,722
HoAtb Others 37,046 47,991
NPT EA TN Fee and commission income 814,429 756,268
Wi R A 4 S Fee and commission expense (87,395) (93,166)
Wi K AR 4 W T AE Net fee and commission income 727,034 663,102
Hrp e Of which:
TR IS (A 18 2 B BRI S By Net fee income, other than amounts included in
ERtA ~ IR 5 T determining the effective interest rate, arising
8B U THEE &I 5 BAR from financial assets or financial liabilities that
24 A i R A are not held for trading nor designated at fair
ZRIARRAN) value through profit or loss 423,482 447,598
KA AR [ QR R P Rf e 5 Net fee income on trust and other fiduciary
B2 A RE M FHA 32 R E A ZERS activities where the Group holds or
M 72 A 2 PR ISCE R invests on behalf of its customers 14,041 10,405
2009 2008
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Hrp Of which:
i 7 i AL AL Wi B A B A Fee and commission income by product line
AT IR R A 4 KRR constitutes not less than 10% of the total
[ER e i amount of fee and commission income, as follows:
— iR R A - securities and brokerage 199,579 128,822
— SR K - syndicated loan 200,128 173,755
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8 TFRIABA 8 NET TRADING INCOME
2009 2008
T#x T
HK$’000 HK$000
JEHERE Equity investments 17,356 (16,306)
&% —FrExc o ik &g = Debt securities — financial assets held for trading 3,100 1,424
— e SRR A — available-for-sale financial investments 28,404 =
ik THE Derivatives 54,061 (45,454)
Sl Foreign exchange 118,009 361,928
220,930 301,592
SR B 2 e 1 Loss from hedging activities
PR Fair value hedges
—EfppE s — Net (loss)/gain on hedged items
HhTEH (E1R) Wit attributable to the hedged risk (153,823) 204,484
— ¥ TRk s () - Net gain/(loss) on hedging instruments 147,231 (232,635)
(6,592) (28,151)
VA 5 A\ AR Total net trading income 214,338 273,441

138 5 WS A FE ARG DA B A AR 2 46l i A
2,884 %570 (- )\4E : 501,762 #E7C) ©

9 IREDA-PEERBEE R AR Sl g 9

KE s () da

Included in the total net trading income is the gain on financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost of HK$2,884 (2008: HK$501,762).

NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

2009 2008
T THIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
B E DA P EER I 4 RAMR Financial assets designated at fair
2 A RE value through profit or loss 108,626 (158,763)
i 78 PLA-PE A I f R AR Financial liabilities designated at
ZARa fair value through profit or loss 84,589 (71,877)
A DLA-PEEAS I RANR Total net gain/(loss) on financial
Z &g E KA ik (k) assets and liabilities designated
FEH A at fair value through profit or loss 193,215 (230,640)
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10 ZREZ&mEZ kS BA 10 DIVIDEND INCOME FROM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

182

2009 2008
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$000
FefEze 5 & Dividend income from listed
Z b RlgE 2 YA financial assets held for trading 664 1,133
T L & S R EUE Dividend income from listed
Z B A available-for-sale financial investments 2,006 9,747
IE BT HLEE S R A Dividend income from unlisted
Z BRI A available-for-sale financial investments 3,806 3,979
A A E 2 S IS SR Total dividend income from financial investments 6,476 14,859
11 HAbEEKRA 11 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2009 2008
T#IT T
HK$’000 HK$000
(ERLE PN Management fee income 7,253 7,500
T4 IA Rental income 62 79
BEWEZ WA Rental income from investment properties 2,446 2,372
Wk E N EAEFS A Z Less: Direct operating expenses arising
Ee-L/E FARI-& Sdin from investment properties that
generated rental income during the year (227) (115)
HoAth Others 30,388 23,410
o Ath 7 SR A SE%H Total other operating income 39,922 33,246
12 BmEXH 12 OPERATING EXPENSES
2009 2008
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT Staff costs:
— e K H A ST H — Salaries and other costs 623,333 568,150
— B - Redundancy payments 2,498 -
—iB ARG — Retirement benefit costs 38,586 38,491
664,417 606,641
L E VS ipE Premises and equipment expenses,
(LT85 Bty ) excluding depreciation and amortisation:
— YR - Rental of premises 230,259 222,407
— HoAth - Others 73,850 74,063
304,109 296,470
e B g S Depreciation and amortisation expenses 65,622 95,174
127 SCHIT M 4 Auditors’ remuneration 5,196 5,134
AT General administrative expenses 34,766 35,087
TR Business promotion expenses 40,237 43,874
ik K= di| Communication expenses 41,051 38,086
HoAb g 33 Other operating expenses 202,941 131,653
(CE Skt Total operating expenses 1,358,339 1,252,119
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13 BIREZH 13 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS
I Wi A AR 2 AR AR 4B 52 8 A B2 B AR R I AR R The retirement benefit cost charged to the income statement represents
wrEMEp) R oA w8 ([aZ45 s8] ) 816 B 2 kK - contributions payable by the Group to the ORSO Scheme and the MPF
Scheme (the “Schemes”).
REZERE > REEZ B TR G & 2B Under the Schemes, the Group’s contributions are reduced by contributions
I = (3R AT AR s 5wt il > A 4R ) Al Y i it LA 4 forfeited by those employees who leave the Schemes prior to the contributions
WUEST 2 ALk o 4N B8 A 32,290,000 #ET (—F vesting fully. Forfeited contributions totalling HK$2,290,000 (2008:
FJ\AE ¢ 1,450, ooo {%71: AR K - TR A& H i R HK$1,450,000) were utilised during the year leaving HK$232,000 (2008:
232,000 #% 7T (- FE J\4E : 152,000 #70) B AE H &30 HK$152,000) available at the year-end to reduce future contributions.
WAL -
IJLA ﬂ‘zﬂ: F S A A 7 5% 5 ) 2 3k (R N4 No contributions were payable to the Schemes at the year end (2008: Nil).
o B2 AT E 2 A P T 4 S R B SR [ 2 The assets of the Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
@ ﬁ} BHAHE o independently administered funds.
14 B R R S 8 14 CHARGE FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON LOANS AND
ADVANCES
2009 2008
TH#C TH T
HK$’000 HK$°000
EE R R S8 Charge for impairment losses on loans and advances
M REAL Individually assessed
— R - New allowances 414,003 272,908
— 3] — Releases (59,113) (21,655)
— il (PfF5E 26) - Recoveries (Note 26) (43,532) (11,594)
I8 1 A S R B4R 5% Net charge for impairment losses on individually
SE AR (B 5T 26) assessed loans and advances (Note 26) 311,358 239,659
AR Collectively assessed
— W A ~ New allowances 77,800 168,970
— 4= - Releases (3,622) -
A ARG R E R Net charge for impairment losses on collectively
T EHIRAR (P 5E 26) assessed loans and advances (Note 26) 74,178 168,970
T WAL 3 ST BH AR Net charge to the income statement 385,536 408,629
15 i EE R S R S A S % e 15 NET GAIN FROM DISPOSAL/REVERSAL OF

P Y73

5 P e 2 A ol Al 2 WAL

REVALUATION DEFICITS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE
RIGHTS

2009 2008
T#T THIT
HK$°000 HK$000
H B ) 2 A < Wi T Net gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 3,840 5,503

SRAT ) 2 Tl A ] 43 Write-back of reversal of revaluation
deficits of bank premises 10 10
3,850 5,513
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B v FISBLTIARBEAAE BE2R B 7595 2 Al 5 IR B 1t 1
YRR H16.5% (—FE/\4F 1 16.5%) ¥tk o 1 BN
AT B B8 A ) R AL i ) 194 0 T g A 4 (B o 7 7 [

R BATHLA

TR R WA 2R STI RO BLIE A -

16

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.
Taxes on profits assessable for overseas branches and subsidiaries have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

The amount of tax charged to the consolidated income statement represents:

2009 2008
TH#x T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
AAEBIIE — B s R 15 B 4 Current tax - provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
NG for the year 490,729 159,332
— Y SN TE HE A A N B TR ~ provision for overseas tax for the year 50,156 49,315
FEAFAERGAS R/ (R REYER) Under/(over) provision in respect of prior years 1,394 (83,299)
IR R AR Deferred taxation
WTIF 2= KA 2 i A K i (] Origination and reversal of temporary differences 1,780 (29,960)
Toi e et 2 5 2 Effect of change in tax rate - (574)
544,059 94,814

AR A B R S i M) 2 ot TR B e BT B 4Tt

2 BRI ZEREAE

The difference between the tax expense for the Group’s profit before tax and
the theoretical amount that would arise at the current tax rate is as follows:

2009 2008
TH#C THEIC
HK$’000 HK$000
R i ¥ 1] Profit before tax 3,070,201 1,063,837
FeBi % 16.5% Calculated at a tax rate of
(ZER\E © 16.5%) 7T H 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) 506,583 175,534
A 28] AN [ A % 2 g Effect of different tax rates in other countries 30,488 3,033
GBS TP % Effect of change of tax rate - (574)
AEZE R 2 WA Income not subject to tax (38,283) (43,771)
FBLAS I 5 AS AT 32 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 55,288 43,999
AR AR BE B JE 8 Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous years 1,346 (83,299)
BiIE N Tax credit claimed (10,412) =
Sk A F B TE Share of tax of an associate (3,835) (108)
G ABLIH Taxation of partnership (2,923) -
HoAt Others 5,807 -
B Tax charge 544,059 94,814
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17 R EE B B S 17 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS
(a) FEHME (a) Directors’ emoluments
BHENRE _ZZIF T H=1—HILF The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 December
FERFRIMRS R 2009 is set out below:
AREHX
(M iE13)
Contribution to
i 2 B MG B AEAL the Schemes
LK Salaries and Discretionary (as defined it
Fees allowances bonuses in Note 13) Total
T T#T T#T T#T T#T
A Name of director HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
LR L Dr. Jiang Jianqing 190 - - - 190
ERBLL Ms. Wang Lili 140 - - - 140
PR ToEAE Mr. Chen Aiping - 3,166 2,000 217 5,383
HREIEE Mr. Wong Yuen Fai - 4,397 1,100 332 5,829
RS Mr. Zhang Yi - 2,419 1,800 159 4,378
WINE R Mr. Hu Hao 90 - - - 90
T T > sBS.» KF#-L*  Prof. Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $B.S., J.p.#* 260 - - - 260
TRIEHE ST Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec*** 270 - - - 270
R Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George*** 270 - - - 270
1,220 9,982 4,900 708 16,810
FEFNEE_TLT/FE+HZH =+ — A IR4F The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 December
FERFRIAS ] R 2008 is set out below:
NG EALTS
(EF SMRE13)
Contribution to
i SR WEIEAL the Schemes
1% Salaries and Discretionary (as defined At
Fees allowances bonuses in Note 13) Total
Tt T T Tt T
A Name of director HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Lt Dr. Jiang Jianqing 190 - - = 190
FRELL Ms. Wang Lili 140 - - - 140
RERSEAE* Mr. Zhu Qi* - 1,387 - 128 1,515
BT Mr. Chen Aiping 50 1,041 = 61 1,152
FR IR Mr. Wong Yuen Fai - 4375 300 330 5,005
SRSk Mr. Zhang Yi - 1,724 500 159 2,383
[P Mr. Hu Hao 15 = - - 15
Damis Jacobus Ziengs J&4: ** Mr. Damis Jacobus Ziengs** - - - - -
FF WA > SBS. - kLA Prof. Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B., J..** 250 = = = 250
TR e Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec*** 250 - - - 250
RET St Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George*** 250 - - - 250
1,145 8,527 800 678 11,150
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< REBBUELACFHRHE
o RCEBAE—A A RHE
BT
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(b) Tk AL

A A A N < B i P A8 N LR = M
(ZEB)NG : =4) > KSR B =
B ENTAN REMN AL (ZEFENE W
#) NERBEIT

17 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

* Resigned on 22 July 2008
> Resigned on 24 January 2008
***  Independent Non-executive directors

There was no arrangement under which any director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include three directors (2008: three) whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid and
payable to the remaining two (2008: two) individuals during the year are
as follows:

2009 2008
T T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FEAFH A~ B R Basic salaries, housing allowances, other

HAbH R & B 2 allowances and benefits in kind 4,750 4,724
fL4L Bonuses 2,824 632
NS EMEE Contributions to the Schemes 526 523
8,100 5,879

P <5z e BE 4N T The emoluments fall within the following bands:
T4 i Emolument bands 2009 2008
2,000,001 #5 75 % 2,500,000 #5 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 1
2,500,001 #5762 3,000,000 ¥ ¢ HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 - -
3,000,001 # 7T £ 3,500,000 ¥ 7T HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 -
3,500,001 #5 7T 2 4,000,000 #5 7T HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 - 1
4,000,001 #57G % 4,500,000 5 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 - -
4,500,001 #5JCZE 5,000,000 ¥ ¢ HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 -
2 2
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18 KB

() AAFPEREABLE

18 DIVIDENDS

(a) Dividends attributable to the year

2009 2008
T#T T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
E ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬂﬁ LA 2 i Paid interim dividend of HK$0.28
0.28 WEoC (—FF/\LE : 028 WEC)  (2008: HK$0.28) per ordinary share 363,787 355,599
A A 5'51?&21:%4735{ E Final dividend paid in respect of the
BRIy 80 = 6 T AT previous financial year on shares
Z AL R B RERE I 3547 1Y i 473 issued from exercise of bonus warrants
HEIRAS b — BABUAE R R, subsequent to the end of the reporting period and
g B4 % 0.18 W T before the close of the Register of Members
(ZF /AR © 0.63%7T) of the Bank, of HK$0.18 (2008: HK$0.63) - 9,358
TERUR A AR A S kﬂﬁﬂﬁlﬂﬁ Proposed final dividend of HK$0.57
0.57 670 (“FF/\LE : 0.187C)  (2008: HK$0.18) per ordinary share 751,454 231,348
1,115,241 596,305

(b) AL P RAIRS Z 248 HEAT IR,

(b) Dividends attributable to the prior year, approved and paid

during the year
2009 2008
T# THE T
HK$’000 HK$000
AR R B IR A 2 AT Final dividend in respect of the prior year,
IS A L 0.18 WG approved and paid during the year, of
(FFE/)NAE 2 0.63 #5I0) HKS$0.18 (2008: HK$0.63) per ordinary share - 781,708

AR -TEZH A H BT e L >

At a meeting held on 24 March 2010, the Board of Directors proposed a

19 i

B R IR A B B A S A i 0.57 W T © BER
S0 DA B 4 S A sl T age s DA AR S - R %S T
MOE-FTAERH A R ) 2SR A
RIE2 B AR SRAT AR 44 T2 IR o EBRUR A+ AL,
FHBUSASERAT R 2 HEHE El.]fﬁk)%ztiﬂh%i&%é
RFIEREN IS, - (BdSIfERZE — BT A+ —
A=+—HIH4EE 43 (M'é}d&o

J&TiR }U

AN AP BE A S AS 5 R SRR TS e A S T B R FRE A 4 7R i

19

final dividend of HK$0.57 per ordinary share. The final dividend will be
payable in cash with an option to receive new, fully paid shares in lieu of
cash, to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members
of the Bank at the close of business on Tuesday, 25 May 2010. This
proposed dividend is subject to the approval of the Bank’s shareholders
and was not reflected as dividend payable in these financial statements,
but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic earnings per share amount is calculated by dividing the profit for

F - BREAAE A B BT 5 A8 2 IR BT o the year attributable to equity holders of the Group by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2009 2008
JB R EA 165 ] (45 0) Profit attributable to equity holders (HK$’000) 2,526,142 969,023
O T8 B 2 RT3 B (F- /%) Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 1,296,898 1,254,631
BEBREAZL A (B s o) Basic earnings per share HK$1.95 HK$0.77

CRAEE —TLNFEL

FENFE+_A=+—H

14 2 B SR B > R BE 251 2 IR EEA
B SRR A o

H A Z I ARAT 2 RR IR Ml 2 AR E LI — %
TN+ — HS HRRL > Sz s —FLIF

p -
F o

FENE+FZH=Z+—H ILEE RS

No adjustments have been made to the basic earnings per share amounts
presented for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 in respect of a
dilution as per share amount presented.

Diluted earnings per share amounts for the year ended 31 December 2009
and 31 December 2008 have not been disclosed, as the subscription rights
attaching to the warrants were lapsed on 6 November 2008.

s TR $RAT (S59) A FR/A 7] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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20 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS

)8 e 03 Ty
Wl ATHEAK WSS RHEEE  EkEE CRENA
HERAME  HWHE  Designated  Available- Held-to-  Loansand Other ik
Trading Hedging  at fair value for-sale  maturity receivables amortised cost Total
AEM Group T T T T T T T T
REZBAAET A=A At31 December 2009 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000
B Assets
R RAERTE Cash and balances with banks and

RS RgE 4R other financial institutions - - - - - - 2791058 27910582
TESRAT B S R Placements with and advances to

ZHFRER banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 1,663,286 - 1,663,286
MESETH Derivative financial instruments 1,235,654 49,652 - - - - - 1,285,306
KF -~ SR Loans and advances to customers,

BRI S banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 47,024,582 - 147,024,582
EEH Investment securities 190,246 - 1,162,149 32,361,666 1,291,509 - - 35,005,570
%ﬁﬁg A Total financial assets 1,425,900 49,652 1,162,149 32,361,666 1,291,509 148,687,868 27,910,582 212,889,326
FamgE Non-financial assets 2,864,503
AR Total assets 215,753,829
Al Liabilities
TR Deposits from banks and other

SRR AR financial institutions - - - - - - 20076700 20,176,700
fitkeH IR Derivative financial instruments 1,218,304 185,528 - - - - - 1403832
KRt Deposits from customers - - - - - - 161,161,561 161,161,561
B8R Certificates of deposit issued

BY i and debt securities in issue - - 1419077 - - - LI9%  2554072
DMBBI A A2 1R B EE Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost - - - - - - 8561125 8,561,125
SHAREH Total financial labilites 1218304 185528 1419077 - - - 191,034381 193,857,290
FemAak Non-financial liabilities 3,791,942
AR Total liabilities 197,649,232
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20 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS (continued)

HHIEL]

Hk Hib

MEATHEEAR  FREE RIS BIGUE  CESRE
fEhfE  HWA%  Designated  Available  Heldto-  Loansand Other st
Trading Hedging  at fair value for-sale maturity  receivables amortised cost Total
3] Group T FHL THL THL T FHL THL T
REFFAEFZA=1—H At 31 December 2008 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Assets
R RAERTE Cash and balances with banks and

RS RgE LR other financial institutions - - - - - - 28678778 28678778
TESRAT B S R Placements with and advances to banks

ZHFRER and other financial institutions - - - - - 844,358 - 844,358
fitkeM IR Derivative financial instruments 2,305,212 3,490 - - - - - 2308702
KF -~ SR Loans and advances to customers,

BRI S banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 137082721 - 13708721
fikms Investment securities 52,051 - 1,488,003 17,403,075 1,976,403 - - 20919532
SREEME Total financial assets 2,357,263 3,490 1,488,003 17,403,075 1,976,403 137,927,079 28,678,778 189,834,091
FamgE Non-financial assets 4730,018
At Total assets 194,564,109
A Liabilities
SR Deposits from banks and

SRR T R R other financial institutions = = = = = - 0,056,756 20,056,756
fitkeHIA Derivative financial instruments 3,023,284 273,386 - - - - - 309670
KR Deposts from customers - - 301,216 - - - 137882106 138,183,332
E#fFRER Certificates of deposit issued

BYi i and debt securities in issue - - 6635760 - - - 823000 7458760
DB AT R IR Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost - - - - - - 8,556,348 8,556,348
SRS RAH Total financial liabilities 3,023,284 73386 6936976 - - - 167318220 177,551,866
FemAafk Non-financial liabilities 3,074,465
AR Total liabilities 180,626,331
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20 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS (continued)

70 i 9/1 Tk
il APREAK  GRE  REEEN RMEE oA
HERAME  HWHE  Designated  Available- Held-to-  Loansand Other 5]
Trading Hedging  at fair value forsale  maturity receivables amortised cost Total
g3 ) Bank T#x T#x T Ti#x T#x T T#x T#x
REFRNETZA=A—H At31 December 2009 HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000
it Assets
B4 RARTH Cash and balances with banks and

RS Rl 4G other financial institutions - - - - - - 25047532 25,047,532
FESIT R M & RN Placements with and advances to

ZHFRER banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 2427183 - 2427183
MESETHE Derivative financial instruments 1,235,654 49,652 - - - - - 1,285,306
KF - S R Loans and advances to customers,

SRRz &N banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 137,725,764 - 137,725,764
8- Cors Investment securities 67,998 - LI62149 3236109 1,291,509 - - 34882752
SREESH Total financial assets 1,303,652 49652 1162149 3236109 1,291,509 140,152,947 25,247,532 201,568,537
FomGRE Non-financial assets 5,438,025
gy Total assets 207,006,562
A Liabilities
ST RN Deposits from banks and

SRR R other financial institutions - - - - - - 16804941 16804941
MESHTE Derivative financial instruments 1,218,304 185,528 - - - - - 1403832
KR Deposits from customers - - - - - - 157,977,892 157,977,892
B8R Certificates of deposit issued

EEfT and debt securities in issue - - 1419077 - - - LI 2554072
DB AR Subordinated debts measured

LR atamortised cost - - - - - - 856L125 8,561,125
SRR Total financial liabilities 1,218,304 185528 1,419,077 - - - 184478953 187,301,862
Famak Non-financial liabilities 2,611,075
AR Total liabilities 189,912,937
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20 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS (continued)

D) BHR a1
WE ATEEAR  fBESE SEEHN O BIGUE  CESENA
fEhfE  HWA%  Designated  Available  Heldto-  Loansand Other st
Trading Hedging  at fair value for-sale maturity  receivables amortised cost Total
AT Bank T T T T Tl T T T
REZZNETZH=1—H At31 December 2008 HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
it Assets
B4 RAeRTH Cash and balances with banks and

pE v other financial institutions = - = = - S 64943 27649423
TES1T R M & RN Placements with and advances to

ZHFRER banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 1,660,123 - 1,660,123
it Derivative financial instruments 2,305,212 3490 = = = = - 2308702
KF - S R Loans and advances to customers,

SRRz &N banks and other financial institutions = = = = - 10828585 - 12828585
it Investment securities 52,051 - 1488003 17402458 1976403 = - 20918915
SREESH Total financial assets 2,357,263 3490 1488003 17402458 1976403 129945975 27649423 180823015
komgRE Non-financial assets 6,333,718
W Total assets 187,156,733
A Liabilities
SR Deposits from banks and

SRR T R R other financial institutions - - = - - - 17000164 17,001,164
MESHTE Derivative financial instruments 3,050,788 273,386 = = = = - 33474
KR Deposits from customers - - 301,216 - - - 137334851 137,636,067
E#fFRER Certificates of deposit issued

TR and debt securities in issue - - 3489361 - = = 823000 4312361
Db iR IN Subordinated debts measured

L MEfER atamortised cost = = = = = - 856348 8556348
SREA RS Total financial liabilities 3,050,788 w3386 3790577 - - - 163715363 170,830,114
FemAak Non-financial liabilities 3,101,794
A Total liabilities 173,931,908
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21 B4 e AroRAT B H b 4 phvieRs > 45 1% 21 CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS AND OTHER
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
AL RGBT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
Tt RN T Tt
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
B Cash on hand 266,421 260,075 266,409 260,061
TR ERAT 2 K AE Balances with central banks 5,213,938 924,435 4,045,227 408,605
HAbERTT I 4Rl Balances with other banks and
- 4l s financial institutions 1,296,144 7,998,042 960,287 7,796,695
TA—A A AN 2 Placements with banks and other
§RAT M H A financial institutions maturing
xRS A7 K within one month 21,134,079 19,496,226 19,975,609 19,184,062
27,910,582 28,678,778 25,247,532 27,649,423

22 FESRAT R HoAth 4 b AE 2 17k S K 22 PLACEMENTS WITH AND ADVANCES TO BANKS AND

OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

A4 AT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T#T T T#IT T
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$000
A2+ 8 H B Placements with other banks and other
LAt SRAT K2 Hopth financial institutions maturing
BRI between one and twelve months 1,663,286 844,358 2,427,183 1,660,123
1,663,286 844,358 2,427,183 1,660,123
23 FHER G M B ERE E 23 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING
A
Group
2009 2008
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$000
&5 > ATEME - Debt securities, at fair value:
R b Listed in Hong Kong 8,180 410
i) Unlisted 38,868 30,441
47,048 30,851
SRR > AT Equity securities, at fair value:
R b Listed in Hong Kong 20,950 21,200
i) Unlisted 122,248 =
143,198 21,200
FREAC 5 F i 4 Rl & e 40 Total financial assets held for trading 190,246 52,051
FRERE ) & 2 ARl E Financial assets held for trading are analysed by
AT NI AT category of issuer as follows:
FH SRR K H S SRAT Central governments and central banks 23 -
N B Public sector entities 425 628
SRAT e HoAth 4> il A Banks and other financial institutions 181,878 51,423
2 Corporate entities 7,920 -
190,246 52,051
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23 FER G RIEERE E @

23 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING (continued)

AGAT
Bank
2009 2008
TH#x T#E T
HK$’000 HK$000
i > A FEE: Debt securities, at fair value:
TR LT Listed in Hong Kong 8,180 410
E ] Unlisted 38,868 30,441
47,048 30,851
B SRR I o PR Equity securities, at fair value:
RS B Listed in Hong Kong 20,950 21,200
20,950 21,200
FRVEAS 5 i 4 il s e Al Total financial assets held for trading 67,998 52,051
FHERS Y i 2 R e Financial assets held for trading are analysed by
AT NIEBI AT category of issuer as follows:
FH SRR K S ERAT Central governments and central banks 23 =
NS Public sector entities 425 628
SRAT B HAth 4 Rl i Banks and other financial institutions 59,630 51,423
12 Corporate entities 7,920 -
67,998 52,051

24 1REDAFEMEBREE R AR £ BlgE 24 FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
A4 Bl B AR S AT
Group and Bank
2009 2008
T#0 T
HK$°000 HK$°000
R > A TEE - Debt securities, at fair value:
RS L Listed in Hong Kong 377,848 340,506
A FHE LASMB I T Listed outside Hong Kong 599,139 973,906
I L Unlisted 185,162 173,591
6 LAA-TE (A S 4 3R AR Total financial assets designated at fair value through
4 T A profit or loss 1,162,149 1,488,003
16 AAHE R A RARRZ Financial assets designated at fair value through
BREEGREUNIEE ¢ profit or loss are comprised of the following item:
HAb Other debt securities 1,162,149 1,488,003
1,162,149 1,488,003
i 78 LA-FEE R I i RAMRZ Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
S RE E ST AT R+ are analysed by category of issuer as follows:
Hh SLERF K H S ERAT Central governments and central banks - 202,890
INEHERE Public sector entities 201,022 200,119
SRAT B At Tl B AR Banks and other financial institutions 183,716 309,333
i Corporate entities 777,411 775,661
1,162,149 1,488,003
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FEHELUR T IS IA R 2 RSB 5 i > Tl
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FR G BABER LR A BT RERR ) AP (E AR < i T
FLAYEFHOIERE o (EUR > Ta M RER T R RAR I B
U B AT A PRI - RIS RE S A 45 P e
T B PO £ TR B B M e« Wi BT AR i TR
R B O T 5 3 - TSRO E A IR I B) > it
A= i T L B Al (B 7T R AR B SRAT A R (R ) A A
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AR FIEAT I N 30 M AL I i 52 5 19 1 22 F A2 B
JRF RS o ASE M5 23[R 3 i 5 7 A E
52 7 ¥4 55 A AR 7R 41 T ) 5 )L g BB

AT HE FE SR A SERA TR I A S B > U L
e i 44 BB A RO AR 7 T AT RS S o Al
A2 i 38 e A )RR 0 44 R BCRE DA R BR A > SIf
7128 55 14 i 1= A B R AR i 2 A TR AR » 5
ATAEFE Al 2 5 I ZEEER AN E R R A > LUEATAS S -
BT AY ~ it B -
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group enters into the following equity, foreign exchange and interest
rate related derivative financial instruments for trading and risk management
purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign
currency on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash
flows for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies, interest rates (for
example, fixed rate for floating rate), or a combination of all these (i.e., cross-
currency interest rate swaps). Except for certain currency swap contracts, no
exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency, interest rate and equity options are contractual agreements
under which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the rights,
but not an obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at
or by a set date or during a set period, a specific amount of the financial
instrument at a predetermined price. In consideration for the assumption
of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the seller receives a premium
from the purchaser. Options are negotiated OTC between the Group and its
counterparty or traded through the stock exchange (for example, exchange-
traded stock option).

The contractual/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial
instruments held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The
contractual/notional amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding at the end of reporting periods and certain of them
provide a basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position. However, they do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair values of
the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit
or market risks. The derivative financial instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity relative to their terms. The
aggregate fair values of derivative financial instruments (assets and liabilities)
can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded or OTC) mainly
for customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies
in providing derivative products to the customers and in trading derivative
products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book.
A derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list before
any transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to control
the notional amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions and
the maximum tenor of the deal and management alert limit in profit or loss
is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into the relevant system for
settlement, mark to market revaluation, reporting and control.
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25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following tables summaries the contractual/notional amounts of each

A2 &# /2B S significant type of derivative financial instruments as at 31 December:
ARG
Group
GEVEE =% BTRE AV
Contractual/ B £
notional Fair value Fair value
amount assets liabilities
T Tl Tl
R 2009 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1) FERGREZAETR 1)  Derivatives held for trading
a) AMEfTAETA a)  Foreign exchange derivatives
— Bt - Currency forwards 87,492,643 707,554 (632,192)
—GAME M IRER A - OTC currency options purchased 5,013,375 33,494 (151)
— MR IR R - OTC currency options written 5,007,140 151 (34,028)
HMERTA T H A3 Total foreign exchange derivatives 741,199 (666,371)
b) APRATAETA b) Interest rate derivatives
— | f5i 4 ~ Interest rate swaps 16,136,691 327,792 (301,572)
— R A - Interest rate options purchased 804,075 4,657 -
— FISR AR - Interest rate options written 804,075 - (4,657)
Fl A TR AR Total interest rate derivatives 332,449 (306,229)
o BAfAETHR ¢)  Equity derivatives
— A — Equity options 310,807 157,751 (157,751)
P AT A TR AR Total equity derivatives 157,751 (157,751)
FefEc s Rigfird TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
B,/ (Bl B held for trading 1,231,399 (1,130,351)
2) g TR 2)  Derivatives held for hedging
a) JRERATEESMZAETAE a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges 8,388,175 49,652 (185,528)
— A4l - Interest rate swaps
b) fREAREMEERZAETR b) Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
— A ~ Cross currency swaps - - -
PR Rz i TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
B/ (AfE) 85 held for hedging 49,652 (185,528)
3)  fEEHENIARTT A EE 3)  Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
P o HEEE DAAFE purposes but which are managed in conjunction
at i HH B R AR with the financial instruments designated at
S TA—FEHLiETA fair value through profit or loss
FESE Interest rate swaps 1,300,395 4,255 (87,953)
AEE S REZ AiTE TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) not qualified
&/ (A &5 as hedges 1,300,395 4,255 (87,953)
C R THEE Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities) 1,285,306 (1,403,832)

(Bfig) 3
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25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

AL
Group
CEOVEE S NHEE NPHEE
Contractual/ G FfH
notional Fair value Fair value
amount assets liabilities
THIT T THIT
TEE )\ 2008 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
1) FERHMEZATETH 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) SMEMAETHR a)  Foreign exchange derivatives
— BRI - Currency forwards 94,045,118 1,644,821 (2,262,968)
— BRI A - OTC currency options purchased 6,258,859 62,706 (88,640)
— NI - OTC currency options written 6,080,840 88,640 (62,842)
SR AE T H AR Total foreign exchange derivatives 1,796,167 (2,414,450)
b) FlEfiiE TR b) Interest rate derivatives
— | %451 4 — Interest rate swaps 23,309,829 501,510 (431,715)
—FIZHREE A - Interest rate options purchased 300,000 5,470 -
— FIRHAHE S - Interest rate options written 300,000 - (5,470)
F R fE T A Total interest rate derivatives 506,980 (437,185)
o BAMETR ¢)  Equity derivatives
— A - Equity options 30,130 = =
JieAAT A T A% Total equity derivatives - =
TG gz ik TH Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
B/ (AfE) 85 held for trading 2,303,147 (2,851,635)
2) FHEEMARZAETR 2)  Derivatives held for hedging
a) WEAATEEHMAETR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
— i34 - Interest rate swaps 3,185,923 - (270,636)
b) HHEAREWEENZAETR b) Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
— XX &4 ~ Cross currency swaps 503,757 = (37,261)
TR A2 e TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
G/ (EfE) B held for hedging = (307,897)
3) ARG FHERAA G 3)  Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
F#E o {H B E LA purposes but which are managed in conjunction
[ SERSY LIl with the financial instruments designated at
SRTLE—[FEHZ AL T fair value through profit or loss
|24 1) Interest rate swaps 1,648,517 5,555 (137,138)
ARG AR TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) not qualified
B/ (Aff) &5t as hedges 1,648,517 5,555 (137,138)
R TEHERE /(A A5 Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities) 2,308,702 (3,296,670)

196 B TR 4R4T (35M) R /A ] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

AHAT
Bank
EVET Tox | AT AV
Contractual/ B £
notional Fair value Fair value
amount assets liabilities
Tl Tt T#L
“EFWH 2009 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
1) FERHMEZATETH 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) SMEMAETHR a)  Foreign exchange derivatives
— BRI - Currency forwards 87,492,643 707,554 (632,192)
—GAME M IREE A - OTC currency options purchased 5,013,375 33,494 (151)
— AN R - OTC currency options written 5,007,140 151 (34,028)
ANERTAE T H A Total foreign exchange derivatives 741,199 (666,371)
b) FlEfiiE TR b) Interest rate derivatives
— | %45 4 — Interest rate swaps 16,136,691 327,792 (301,572)
— R AIREE A - Interest rate options purchased 804,075 4,657 -
— RIS HER - Interest rate options written 804,075 - (4,657)
Fl A TR AR Total interest rate derivatives 332,449 (306,229)
o BAMETR ¢)  Equity derivatives
— A — Equity options 310,807 157,751 (157,751)
JRA T A T H A3 Total equity derivatives 157,751 (157,751)
R G gz ik TH Total derivative assets/(liabilities) 1,231,399 (1,130,351)
G/ (RfR) A held for trading
2)  FREEMRBZAAE TR 2)  Derivatives held for hedging
a) HEAAFEESM AT a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges 8,388,175 49,652 (185,528)
— il - Interest rate swaps
b) EEABSRERMNZATETR b) Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
— W - Cross currency swaps - - -
Fefeshm Ak 2 ik TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
B/ (A ) held for hedging 49,652 (185,528)
3) fEEEtERIATE & EE 3) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
Fig - RELHEE LA purposes but which are managed in conjunction
at i A E R AR with the financial instruments designated at
ST H—REH e TH fair value through profit or loss
FESTE] Interest rate swaps 1,300,395 4,255 (87,953)
AF ARG 2 Ak TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) not qualified
&/ (AfR) Gt as hedges 1,300,395 4,255 (87,953)
EfERfE THERE /(AE) 85 Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities) 1,285,306 (1,403,832)

] TR 4R4T (35) AR A 5] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 197

ZEEJUFE4EIR Annual Report 2009



Foh % e 2 B R
Notes to the Financial Statements

25 RiA:4mh T A g 25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
AERAT
Bank
GR VL =i ~FEE AR
Contractual/ B Afk
notional Fair value Fair value
amount assets liabilities
Tilc Tt Tt
ZETNE 2008 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1) FERG B ZATETR 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) SMERTAE TR a)  Foreign exchange derivatives
— B - Currency forwards 94,045,118 1,644,821 (2,262,968)
— BRI A - OTC currency options purchased 6,258,859 62,706 (88,640)
— NI - OTC currency options written 6,080,840 88,640 (62,842)
S HERTAE T EAA Total foreign exchange derivatives 1,796,167 (2,414,450)
b) FIRAETH b) Interest rate derivatives
— Al Bt ~ Interest rate swaps 26,409,869 501,510 (459,219)
—FIRIRER A - Interest rate options purchased 300,000 5,470 -
— RIS HE R - Interest rate options written 300,000 - (5,470)
F 2 fE TR Total interest rate derivatives 506,980 (464,689)
o MBAfAETE ¢)  Equity derivatives
— A - Equity options 30,130 - -
A A T H AR Total equity derivatives - =
TG gz ik TH Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
B/ (BfE) B held for trading 2,303,147 (2,879,139)
2) FHEEAEZATETH 2)  Derivatives held for hedging
a)  HERATEERR A TR a)  Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
— il - Interest rate swaps 3,185,923 = (270,636)
b) HHERBGRERIZATETA b) Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
— WA - Cross currency swaps 503,757 - (37,261)
FefEthp g 2 i TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
B/ (AR 2% held for hedging - (307,897)
3)  fEEtERIARTT A EEh 3)  Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
P - R EE E DAAFE purposes but which are managed in conjunction
ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ)\hﬁﬁﬁﬁ with the financial instruments designated at
SRIA—FEHZ AT fair value through profit or loss
s n Interest rate swaps 1,648,517 5,555 (137,138)
AREE S Rg 2 ik TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) not qualified
&/ (AfE) &5t as hedges 1,648,517 5,555 (137,138)
R TREE /(A A5 Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities) 2,308,702 (3,324,174)
SRR ROR S DA B A AR < i T HL A& 4 54 Fe A The contractual or notional amounts of contingent liabilities and
PR T A A SRR Y R S S o - B AR 3 commitments and derivative financial instruments provide only an indication
V149 4 I e g ) L R o of the volume of business outstanding at the end of the reporting period and
bear little relation to the underlying risks of the exposures.
i A S TR 2 2 T IE H i E AR T Among the above derivative financial instruments, certain of them were
A o designated as hedging instruments.
SR [ BR T P (3 o DA R 5 HL 6 52 T 5 ) 3 S ) Fair value hedges are used by the Group to protect it against changes in the
SRR 4 Rl NP (LA ) o A I o R R fair value of financial assets due to movements in market interest rates. The
B T ARk ) < B LR S AR A LS s o 4R financial instruments hedged for interest rate risk mainly include available-for-
AT PR T 4 S e ) R oy sale debt securities. The Bank uses interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risk.

198 i TR 4R4T (3HM) AR /A ] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The effectiveness of the hedge based on changes in fair value of the derivatives
and the hedged items attributable to the hedged risk recognised in the income
statement during the year is presented as follows:

AR S B B A B AT

Group and Bank
2009 2008
T# TH:IC
HK$’000 HK$°000

AR R g (R Gain/(loss) arising from fair value hedge, net:
LA FIEHE ¢

— ¥ LHE - Hedging instruments 147,231 (232,635)
— A S e S < A I A S e - Hedged items attributable to the hedged risk (153,823) 204,484
(6,592) (28,151)

BITRESR T A LRI oy e 2 AN O IRV At N & = o/
BRI CR A AL (3] 6o 32 V7 ) ) o5 7 U ) A 2l
B JELRG: 00 8GR 0 o A 22 Wi 2 M s 4R A LRI
RE £ N 2 B4 U i v g (SR > IO TR B 4 i i
B BT 35 R IEHE B AR R o A ATAE TR RS
o3 AR 2 W s B e 18T BV IRE A i 25 R TR o AEIN
ST 488 A WA 2 2 A R B 4 U o 3 o e R 2 A
Y (ZFEE AR+ F) o B2z YA W FI] 23R 4 1 b 4R
S B o SR HE g TR0 e 52 2 A B B 46 i 38 o £ A
7,853,000 #500 ( —FR /N« F) R # £ > WEEA
A EA o

A B A BRI DA B i A e R B AR B AR
Lo f SR\ i B A

Cash flow hedge consists of a cross-currency interest swap entered into in
2008 that is used to protect the Group against exposures to variability of a
floating-rate asset. Gains and losses on the effective portion of the swap are
initially recognised directly in equity, in the cash flow hedging reserve, and
are transferred to the income statement when the forecast cash flows affect
the income statement. The gains and losses on ineffective portions of such
derivatives are recognised immediately in the income statement. During the
year, there was no ineffectiveness recognised in the income statement that
arose from cash flow hedges (2008: Nil). The hedging cross-currency interest
rate swap had matured during the year. The related cash flow hedge reserve of
HK$7,853,000 (2008: Nil) previously recognised in equity was transferred to
the income statement and included in the net interest income.

The aggregate replacement costs and credit risk weighted amounts of the
above contingent liabilities and commitments and derivative financial
instruments are:

SR B B AR BT
Group and Bank
2009 2008
15 M B fREmE
k5 I
oA Credit risk HE A Credit risk
Replacement cost ~ weighted amount ~ Replacement cost ~ weighted amount
5T TH#x THIT THIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
AR A Contingent liabilities and
K rRYE commitments - 14,394,189 - 14,141,170
SNHES % Exchange rate contracts
— 3 ~ Forwards 475,856 485,712 1,050,816 611,967
— 1t — Swaps 13,084 13,685 331,641 160,531
— Ik - Options 33,366 39,711 62,635 102,839
522,306 539,108 1,445,092 875,337
FREH) Interest rate contracts
— i — Swaps 384,475 366,596 507,066 502,651
— HikE - Options 4,657 4,916 5,476 1,395
389,132 371,512 512,542 504,046
Jili& =] Equity contracts 157,751 33,467 - 181
1,069,189 15,338,276 1,957,634 15,520,734

Al R\ B I ] o B A B L B B R A
LI SRS e 2

The replacement costs and credit risk weighted amounts of the exposures do
not have the effects of bilateral netting arrangements.
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26 R~ BT M HAb S ph bR 2 Bk 26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS AND
OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
(a) &P~ SBIT R H A RS > Bk (a) Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions
AS M ARHUT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T#x THEIC T#x T
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
&R Advances to customers 135,734,340 118,428,192 126,358,120 109,838,262
SRAT B HAth 4 Rl Advances to banks and other
et K financial institutions 10,671,725 16,731,818 10,671,725 16,556,691
[HE % Trade bills 1,257,128 1,609,937 1,195,157 1,602,754
T~ GRAT B HoAth 4 Rl Gross loans and advances to customers,
A B R AR banks and other financial institutions 147,663,193 136,769,947 138,225,002 127,997,707
JEFHFILE Accrued interest 256,677 974,129 237,454 920,113
147,919,870 137,744,076 138,462,456 128,917,820
B YRR EA Less: impairment allowances
— {8 I FEAG - Individually assessed (441,896) (282,506) (370,636) (267,287)
— MG FEAL — Collectively assessed (453,392) (378,849) (366,056) (364,681)
147,024,582 137,082,721 137,725,764 128,285,852
A AT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T-#T THT T#T T
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$000
ARSI Gross impaired loans and advances 1,358,618 888,965 1,095,353 835,897
bl B B E A Impairment allowances made
in respect of such loans 441,896 282,506 370,636 267,287
[CRIER Sk Y i Gross impaired loans and
MEZHES advances as a percentage
of the total gross loans and advances 0.92% 0.65% 0.79% 0.65%
A i 717 Market value of collateral 693,671 806,490 501,666 784,185
BB OE 38 4 R B URHE R e 1 o B — 1 Impaired loans and advances are defined as those loans which are
S AR DA SEA RER AR BB i A B individually determined to have objective evidence of impairment as a
Fe ([t 1) o TS5 e A2 A7 A T8 result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
TR T 2B T A P R o of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the loans that can be reliably estimated.
MRE-FZNFE+H=Z=1+—HRE_FT)N\E There were no impaired advances to banks and other financial
TZAZT—H o AREEET AT S A 4 institutions as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008; nor were
WA I > A SR > IMRA %5 there any individual impairment allowances made for them on these
B R AT A 118 A Dok (L A two dates.
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26 B~ RAT M It 4 AR Bk () 26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS AND
OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)
(b) B~ RAT B H A4 RS Bk 2 B IR (b) Loan impairment allowances against advances to customers,
& Al banks and other financial institutions
AS
Group
A 30wl FiReg 2
Individual Collective Hm
assessment Assessment Total
T#x T#x T
“RFhAE 2009 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB B AR E) Movement in impairment allowances
on loans and advances:

A EENAF—H— HERE Balance at 1 January 2009 282,506 378,849 661,355
IRETE K (Fffak 14) Impairment losses (Note 14) 311,358 74,178 385,536
TEHAS BE i 1] 2 Bk Loans written off as uncollectible (184,514) - (184,514)
RS RSN ONGER S/ T Unwinding of discounts of loan impairment

MERSHT IR 1] (P 5T 6) allowances recognised as interest income (Note 6) (10,999) - (10,999)
A [ 0 e A Recoveries of advances written
B B (BT 14) off in previous years (Note 14) 43,533 - 43,533
T 5, % JHAt i 45 Exchange and other adjustments 12 365 377
RoEFENE+_A=+—H At 31 December 2009 441,896 453,392 895,288
kR A - Deducted from:
&R Advances to customers 440,231 428,693 868,924
SRAT T HoAth 4 Rl B A 2 3K Advances to banks and other financial institutions - 20,825 20,825
[EESsE 4 Trade bills 1,665 3,874 5,539
441,896 453,392 895,288
AL
Group
R FEAL HAFEAL
Individual Collective AR
assessment assessment Total
T#HT T T
TERF)\LE 2008 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
SR S ) - Movement in impairment allowances
on loans and advances:
R FLNE—H — H R Balance at 1 January 2008 125,293 210,269 335,562
WAL (BT 14) Impairment losses (Note 14) 239,659 168,970 408,629
TERAS e [] 2 Bk Loans written off as uncollectible (79,829) - (79,829)
TERR 5 R BB Y B Unwinding of discounts of loan impairment
YEMHT BB A (5T 6) allowances recognised as interest income (Note 6) (13,213) = (13,213)
Wiz [ A A AR B Recoveries of advances written
S SR (K5 14) off in previous years (Note 14) 11,594 - 11,594
[TEE S, 5 At 5 Exchange and other adjustments (998) (390) (1,388)
WoEENFE+HA=Z+—H At 31 December 2008 282,506 378,849 661,355
fgR A - Deducted from:
E R Advances to customers 279,794 356,201 635,995
SRAT e HAth 4 Rl A Bk Advances to banks and other financial institutions - 17,589 17,589
e S Trade bills 2,712 5,059 7,771
282,506 378,849 661,355
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26 P~ ST ROt A R () 26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS AND
OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)
b)) & o~ SRAT S H At 4 B 2k 2 SRR (b) Loan impairment allowances against advances to customers,
fE M () banks and other financial institutions (continued)
AT
Bank
A 30wk i Reg 2
Individual Collective bk
assessment assessment Total
T#T T#T T#T
ZRFMAE 2009 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FEFR A A S ) Movement in impairment allowances
on loans and advances:
R ELIE—H — HERE Balance at 1 January 2009 267,287 364,681 631,968
FEAIERIEES Impairment losses 257,947 1,375 259,322
TERAS e [m] 2 Bk Loans written off as uncollectible (173,936) - (173,936)
THERR 25 FILE R 2 B E Unwinding of discounts of loan impairment
AT S (A 8 ] allowances recognised as interest income (9,398) - (9,398)
WAL T R 1 4 BE L U Bk Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 28,736 - 28,736
RoEFENETH=1—H At 31 December 2009 370,636 366,056 736,692
kg g : Deducted from:
&R Advances to customers 368,971 341,980 710,951
BRAT Fe At 4 R A s 5 K Advances to banks and other financial institutions - 20,825 20,825
e Trade bills 1,665 3,251 4,916
370,636 366,056 736,692
AT
Bank
B I EE AL FERE R
Individual Collective R
assessment assessment Total
T T T
TR )\ 2008 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB (B A 5 ) Movement in impairment allowances
on loans and advances:

AR NF—H— H R Balance at 1 January 2008 125,293 210,269 335,562
IEE R Impairment losses 227,913 154,412 382,325
TERAS BE M ] 2 Bk Loans written off as uncollectible (79,829) - (79,829)
TERR 2 I Bl A 2 S8 E Unwinding of discounts of loan impairment

HEA T BUEHE ] allowances recognised as interest income (13,213) - (13,213)

WAz I 748 A B L I Rk Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 7,123 - 7,123

MEFENFE+H=1+—H At 31 December 2008 267,287 364,681 631,968
BR A : Deducted from:

EIRk-T e Advances to customers 264,575 342,407 606,982

SRAT e HoAth 4 Rl AE B3 Advances to banks and other financial institutions = 17,229 17,229

[EE L Trade bills 2,712 5,045 7,757

267,287 364,681 631,968
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HoAth 4> BB 2 SR () 26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS AND

OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)

26 &P~ 47

(o) A% - BRAT Jo At 4 b HE A 2 B2k
CNEUE S Y X E Y

ZMEE KA SRATE @A K T - $RAT R HAh 4
TRl A 2 B R AR (S B 466 7 2 SR 0 I ek
TH) A Hrun R

(c) Overdue advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions (excluding trade bills and receivables)

The gross amount of the Group’s and the Bank’s advances to
customers, banks and other financial institutions (excluding trade bills
and receivables) which have been overdue is analysed as follows:

TR WAL A
WWEmE  AENSRAR  ECWERAN Individual
fakim R Market value Amount of Amount of impairment
Gross advances Bifli el of collateral secured balance  unsecured balance allowance
T % of advances T T SR SR
A5EH Group HK$000 to customers HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$1000
ZRBIAE 2009
ax(EpEEE Y Six months or less
{HE A =8 A but over three months 29,403 0.0 13,568 4,426 24,977 908
—AE LT One year or less but
{H 8 7S H over six months 388,847 0.3 236,048 231,932 156,915 196,572
I — 4 Over one year 109,111 0.1 65,283 43,668 65,443 70,033
527,361 0.4 314,899 280,026 247,335 267,513
e =2 IAD 2008
75 H SR Six months or less
{HE =8 H but over three months 241,726 0.2 313,680 186,712 55,014 34,592
—AE LT One year or less but
{E &SR A over six months 35,196 0.0 9,499 9,331 25,865 25,632
B — A Over one year 13,007 0.0 5,461 3,224 9,783 13,007
289,929 0.2 328,640 199,267 90,662 73,231
TR SR A
WWam  HEAERAR RN Individual
fakim FR gt Market value Amount of Amount of impairment
Gross advances Bl sl of collateral secured balance  unsecured balance allowance
T¥x % of advances SR T T T¥x
ASAT Bank HKS$'000 to customers HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$1000 HKS$'000
ZEZNAE 2009
FNEH LT Six months or less but
{HEEH =18 A over three months 29,403 0.0 13,568 4,426 24,977 908
—4EH AT One year or less but
EN R RV (D over six months 178,735 0.1 58,830 54,714 124,021 163,678
A — 4 Over one year 55,958 0.0 50,496 28,881 27,077 31,667
264,096 0.1 122,894 88,021 176,075 196,253
R\ 2008
v ETYEN Six months or less but
B8 =18 A over three months 241,726 0.2 313,680 186,712 55,014 34,592
—EH AT One year or less but
EN R RV (D over six months 35,196 0.0 9,499 9,331 25,865 25,632
A — 4 Over one year 13,007 0.0 5,461 3,224 9,783 13,007
289,929 0.2 328,640 199,267 90,662 73,231
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26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS AND
OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)

(c) BIR P~ SRAT S Hofth 4 B A = 53K (c) Overdue advances to customers, banks and other financial
(L9552 S 0 I B WG IA) () institutions (excluding trade bills and receivables) (continued)
A BRI S ARE T The criteria for eligible collateral are as follows:
SICAF i T (B 5 % 7o R iR 4 Bt e E B B - The market value of the collateral is readily determinable or can
oA be reasonably established and verified;
IS AT T8 > HER BB/ - Fiisd - The collateral is marketable and there exists a readily available
B secondary market for disposing of the collateral;
AR ERAT U [ ] HEA 5t P R AT AR i L LA T - The Bank’s rights to repossess the collateral is legally
HMEAEATATRELBRE 5 J2 enforceable and without impediment; and
MEHEAR i 2 TR B e - RIS By AR SR T - If the collateral is a movable asset, it should be under the Bank’s
PR - BRARSRAT T R T B (oL 7 o custody, or its whereabouts can be located by the Bank.
B BRI i B R R - The eligible collateral is mainly properties, deposits and shares.
(d) H-fsari g e (d) Other overdue assets
2009 2009 2008 2008
/P oAb ¥ A JEFTALE HoAth g e
Accrued interest Other assets  Accrued interest Other assets
T-#L T#L T T
A4 Group HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
NE A SR N EEE R =1E A Six months or less but
over three months - - 25 227
— A DA E A S A A One year or less but over six months 692 1,635 - -
R —4F Over one year 7,378 - 1 1,439
8,070 1,635 26 1,666
EAHEE Rescheduled assets 9 - 2 -
8,079 1,635 28 1,666
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26 HP -~ BT KA BB 2 B (0

26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS AND

OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)

(d) H g s (d) Other overdue assets (continued)
2009 2009 2008 2008
JRE AR HAb%E JREFT LS HoAth & 7
Accrued interest Other assets  Accrued interest Other assets
T-#IL T#IL T T¥#Io
A GRAT Bank HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
I H B A (R = A Six months or less but over three months - - 25 227
— Al DA E A S A One year or less but over six months - 1,635 - -
R —4F Over one year 1 - 1 1,439
1 1,635 26 1,666
A EE Rescheduled assets 9 - 2 =
10 1,635 28 1,666

A 7 i 78 2 TR T MO

Other assets refer to trade bills and receivables.

(e) HAEXK (e) Rescheduled advances
2009 2008
A A A e Bt
Group and Bank HK$°000 HK$°000
AR ONEHG B Rescheduled advances (excluding overdue loans over three months) 112,377 161,662
=l H 2 i R0
2009 2008
& F ARG E A As % of advances to customers 0.1 0.1
R A A wT B 2 M 7 0 e = 8 H 79 T 4 Rescheduled advances which have been overdue for more than three
BRERE 3 (o) BeEHa SR 2 A months under the revised repayment terms are included in the analysis
of overdue advances in (c) above.
W EEAET ] =+ — Hgﬁ —RER /} it There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
+ZA=+—H  #ET ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁ\:ﬁgﬁ Tl 1 which were overdue for over 3 months; nor were there any rescheduled
%%?f}(@ﬁ,ﬂﬁi@iﬁ]ﬁ 3 IR AT AT SRAT B H At advances to banks and other financial institutions as at 31 December
4 R R 1) EE AH R o 2009 and 31 December 2008.
) W el & 7 (f) Repossessed assets

MOEEJAET A=+ —H o AEHE G
E 1A 5 T (B 4 6,304,000 7 7T (B E A ¢
49,023,000 ¥#5 J0G) © 5% %5 B S A 1 B 40 R BR
RN BT T S (R e 3 A 7 B A B 1
NE AT ) BUR ke HIHE > P2 -

At 31 December 2009, the estimated market value of the repossessed
assets of the Group amounted to HK$6,304,000 (2008: HK$49,023,000).
They only comprise properties which the Group has acquired access
or control (e.g., through legal actions or voluntary actions by the
borrowers concerned) for releasing in full or in part on the obligations
of the borrowers.
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27 HGtEE SRR E 27 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
ALEH
Group
2009 2008
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
&5 Debt securities
A Ll Listed in Hong Kong 2,386,583 1,916,434
AU LA R T Listed outside Hong Kong 15,803,326 8,752,054
I b Unlisted 12,583,957 5,456,666
30,773,866 16,125,154
ii&=Fic o Equity securities
i N i Listed in Hong Kong 1,501,944 1,198,756
I bl Unlisted 85,856 79,165
1,587,800 1,277,921
ML a 4 R E 4a % Total available-for-sale financial investments 32,361,666 17,403,075
RS 2 hE Market value of listed securities 19,691,853 11,867,244
KEABER R Z Debt securities after taking into account
fEASEFEUNIEE - of impairment loss comprised the following items:
e 2 73 Certificates of deposit held 150,225 7,931
HAthfE 25 Other debt securities 30,623,641 16,117,223
30,773,866 16,125,154

M8 4 13 i BT A3 Available-for-sale financial investments are analysed by

ST category of issuer as follows:

FR LB B2 R R ERA T Central governments and central banks 2,991,296 1,353,598

INEHER Public sector entities 779,928 753,638

SRAT T HoAth 4 Rl A Banks and other financial institutions 19,799,129 7,401,455

12 Corporate entities 8,787,116 7,893,403

HoAth Others 4,197 981

32,361,666 17,403,075

A AR H 2 A8 Al 96k (5 48 2% 195,058,000 #5 7T (& During the year, the individual impairment loss made amounted to
Z\AE ¢ 802,880 #5TT) © HK$195,058,000 (2008: HK$802,880).
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27 HEBLEE ERE 0

27 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

(continued)

ARG
2009 2008
T#x THIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
B Debt securities
i N i Listed in Hong Kong 2,386,583 1,916,434
AT L St [ i Listed outside Hong Kong 15,803,326 8,752,054
E ] Unlisted 12,583,387 5,456,049
30,773,296 16,124,537
MR Equity securities
R LT Listed in Hong Kong 1,501,944 1,198,756
b Unlisted 85,856 79,165
1,587,800 1,277,921
HESHE SR E AR Total available-for-sale financial investments 32,361,096 17,402,458
Sz (E Market value of listed securities 19,691,853 11,867,244
KEAWEIRRZ Debt securities after taking into account
AU TEA - of impairment loss comprised the following items:
FiRe 2 A7 Certificates of deposit held 150,225 7,931
HoAth fi 25 Other debt securities 30,623,071 16,116,606
30,773,296 16,124,537
i LS 5 < 15 B 54T SRR Available-for-sale financial investments are analysed by
SR category of issuer as follows:
R LIRS R A T Central governments and central banks 2,991,296 1,353,598
NG Public sector entities 779,928 753,638
SRAT e HoAth 4> A Banks and other financial institutions 19,799,129 7,401,455
i1 Corporate entities 8,790,366 7,893,390
HAth Others 377 377
32,361,096 17,402,458
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28 FAZEIHERE 28 HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
A3 B R A AT
Group and Bank
2009 2008
TH# TH T
HK$’000 HK$°000
s Debt securities
RS B Listed in Hong Kong - 78,605
A EHE LASMb IR E T Listed outside Hong Kong 80,466 575,811
I bl Unlisted 1,211,277 1,324,366
1,291,743 1,978,782
W BEIR R Less: Impairment loss (234) (2,379)
R 2 5 1 4 A 4% AR Total held-to-maturity financial investments 1,291,509 1,976,403
iR (E Market value of listed securities 79,045 630,681
KEFAWEIRRZ 55 Debt securities after taking into account of
AAELLRIEH ¢ impairment loss comprised
the following items:
JBi S5 Treasury bills 1,146,414 1,136,282
HAtb 2 Other debt securities 145,095 840,121
1,291,509 1,976,403
FrA ZE R MGG ET A Held-to-maturity financial investments are analysed by
FERI S HTANT category of issuer as follows:
— R IR B R SR AT Central governments and central banks 1,146,414 1,214,640
— AETERE Public sector entities 60,318 83,539
— SRAT S A 4 Rl A A Banks and other financial institutions 84,777 238,354
— 43 Corporate entities - 439,870
1,291,509 1,976,403
FrA R GRS 2 A A E R ) Movement in collective impairment allowances on held-to-maturity financial
investments
AR I B A B AT
Group and Bank
2009 2008
TR Tl
HK$’000 HK$°000
w—H—H At 1 January 2,379 2,535
G AR I Write-back of collective impairment losses (2,145) (156)
Bt HA=+—H At 31 December 234 2,379
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29 RBVEARZRE 29 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
3 3|
Group
2009 2008
T#T THIT
HK$°000 HK$000
B At T Share of net assets 145,391 155,068
WA IS IR 28 A 27 pi Goodwill on acquisition 29,786 29,786
175,177 184,854
RGBT
Bank
2009 2008
T#0 Tt
HK$°000 HK$000
F LA E > T RASIE Unlisted shares investments at cost 138,138 152,646
ESCL SRS EE 3 NI Sl R NTIES Y The Group’s interests in its principal associates which are unlisted, are as
Fbw s follows:
#iAl,
R £ BA (#HZK) Rz
sk o 3 2 Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit/(loss) "l
Place of T#x T# T#x T#IL % of interest
incorporation HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 held
2009
B 214,719 131,792 21,874 18,984 40%
IEC Investments Limited Hong Kong
2008
B2 PR B (i) AR T il 51,547 22,886 (7,112) (13,743) 25%
China Ping An Insurance Hong Kong
(Hong Kong) Company Limited
o 207,956 81,549 19,802 14,398 40%
IEC Investments Limited Hong Kong
ER > ALEE R B R b () A R The interest of shareholding held by the Group in China Ping An Insurance
AT RHE o (Hong Kong) Company Limited was disposed during the year.
IEC Investments Limited £ &R HHEHEN o A%k IEC Investments Limited engages in investment holding in Hong Kong. The
A RIHEA 40,000 5 R THT (B 1 W6 0 2 s% 8 A ) Group held 40,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each of this associate during the
A year.
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30 TR AR A

30 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ik A 2 Sk
[k Computer Trading b
Goodwill software rights Total
T-#IL T#IT T#T T#T
AS M Group HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
AL BSR4 Cost or net carrying amount
REELNE—H—H At 1 January 2009 999,715 210,827 1,895 1,212,437
WE (F5E () Additions (Note (i)) - 5,900 - 5,900
& Disposal - (560) - (560)
At 37 2 Other adjustments - (302) - (302)
B FEENEFH=1+—H At 31 December 2009 999,715 215,865 1,895 1,217,475
EVie 3 Accumulated amortisation
A RRNF—H—H At 1 January 2009 - 179,499 - 179,499
R Charge for the year - 17,768 - 17,768
HE Disposal - (468) - (468)
oAt 7 e Other adjustments (217) (217)
MoEENET+_A=+—H At 31 December 2009 - 196,582 - 196,582
R TA (. Net book value
AEEZNAEF_HA=+—H At 31 December 2009 999,715 19,283 1,895 1,020,893
A Lo
[k Computer Trading Gt
Goodwill software rights Total
RN T T T
A SR Group HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
A AR T (B Cost or net carrying amount
RoEZE)NF—H—H At 1 January 2008 974,805 203,349 1,895 1,180,049
I — [ BB 2w i g Acquired from a subsidiary - 11 - 11
N E (BRE @) 2 (i) Additions (Notes (i) and (ii)) 24,910 11,270 = 36,180
& Disposal = (3,803) - (3,803)
W oEE)NFE+—H=+—H At 31 December 2008 999,715 210,827 1,895 1,212,437
EYieit Accumulated amortisation
W R NFE—H—H At 1 January 2008 - 136,467 - 136,467
A R Charge for the year - 46,835 - 46,835
e Disposal = (3,803) - (3,803)
HoZEENFE+H=+—H At 31 December 2008 - 179,499 - 179,499
T R Net book value
B EENFE+—H=+—H At 31 December 2008 999,715 31,328 1,895 1,032,938
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30 MR R E E m) 30 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Ik A
E- o Computer b
Goodwill software Total
T#IT T#IT T#
AT Bank HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AL BSR4 Cost or net carrying amount
REELNE—H—H At 1 January 2009 615,669 204,792 820,461
WE (F5E 1)) Additions (Notes (i)) - 5,537 5,537
HE Disposal - (442) (442)
At 3 % Other adjustments - (288) (288)
HoEENFE+H=+—H At 31 December 2009 615,669 209,599 825,268
EVie 3 Accumulated amortisation
A ERNF—H—H At 1 January 2009 - 178,352 178,352
GRUNE: (32 Charge for the year - 16,607 16,607
e Disposal - (442) (442)
oA 7 Other adjustments - (216) (216)
MoEENE+_A=+—H At 31 December 2009 - 194,301 194,301
R TA (. Net book value
AEENAEF_HA=+—H At 31 December 2009 615,669 15,298 630,967
A
[k Computer Gl
Goodwill software Total
T T T
ARAT Bank HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
A AR T (B Cost or net carrying amount
W EE)\F—H—H At 1 January 2008 615,669 202,513 818,182
WE (F5E 1)) Additions (Notes (i)) = 6,082 6,082
ke Disposal = (3,803) (3,803)
B FEENE+H=+—H At 31 December 2008 615,669 204,792 820,461
E¥ie: 3 Accumulated amortisation
AT E N\ F—H—H At 1 January 2008 = 136,438 136,438
GRUNE: (3201 Charge for the year - 45,717 45,717
b 5 Disposal - (3,803) (3,803)
WoEENE+HA=+—H At 31 December 2008 - 178,352 178,352
W THT R Net book value
A FEENE+H=+—H At 31 December 2008 615,669 26,440 642,109
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30 PR MM A () 30 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
FfF5E Notes:
(i) HEEBHKAGIN EETAE T HEST T4k - B (i) The Core banking system was upgraded in October 2005 with direct costs
JRAS L AE A B B ) 2 AR BA - 00 P RERR A including software development consultancy fees and employee costs recognised
AT BN BT )NE+ A = HZ R EE - as intangible asset as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 respectively.
(i) AYEEE LRI B T 2 B E ek as 7.3 8 > (ii)  In section 7.13 of the sale and purchase agreement of the acquisition of Belgian
toh 22 By (A 6RAT) 28 1) B 5 (& @ ERAT) AT BLHS Bank, Hong Kong Branch, it was agreed that the purchaser (the Bank) shall pay
FPE A A R FE LU AR AT 2 (B TE 2 A s A AT acEE B e to the seller (Fortis Bank) the difference between the payment by the debtor of
Ti BiA R 2 220 o BUBS AR AR 2.1.2 T W B 7 1% 1) Belgian Bank’s debt and the amount paid by the purchaser during the period while
B S A S8 A B A BRI ~ BERT R i the tax deed is in effect. The clause 2.1.2 of the tax deed stipulated that the seller
A~ T R B 2R T E A 2 B B o PR A EE LR will pay to the purchaser the tax liability which has arisen in respect of income,
T EHE AN 2 G5 EARBBIS BRI S profits or gains earned, accrued or received on or before the completion date. The
Mz % - goodwill represents the difference between the amount paid on Belgian Bank’s
debts and the amount received from tax deeds.
(i) P P AR R4 A T LA 22 (R (iii)  Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill
A 4 90 42 S5 430 T A T T 1 B < A LA Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”) identified
(TH AL ]) anF according to operating segment’s as follows:
2009 2008
T#T T
HK$°000 HK$000
ﬁ%;ﬁii&l HEERTT Corporate and Investment Banking 585,715 585,715
P 2ESRAT Commercial Banking 230,450 230,450
T RAT Retail Banking 142,386 142,386
HoAtb Others 41,164 41,164
999,715 999,715

B 45 A AL 4 A R e < A AR B T AR (B 55 - it
B85 32 F R TR 8 v Y L S TR G B D A
il o A A — A ) ] B B A S A )l A R A A
BT o i —SE U0 A B < D TR 2 R AN TR AR %
4 o BT T A S Y R M T H I R e

FIRAFHEAE A EE R ITH L 0% % 4% (ZFF/\F
2% % 8%) °

L AR R A T T 11 5 B LA R TR A R
B o fIHET-H 3 R A A TR A T (R BB — B o
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The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. Such calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the one-year period are extrapolated using the estimate rates stated
below. The growth rate which applies to the cash flow projections over the one-
year period does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business of
which the CGU operates.

The discount rates used for value-in-use calculations range from 0% to 4% (2008:
2% to 8%).

Management determined the budgeted financial performance based on the past
performance and its expectation for market development. The weighted average
growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.
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31 ®EWE 31 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
A A [ A AT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T R T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
R —H— H Z iR A Carrying amount at 1 January 40,126 40,624 25,200 26,000
Fflle s (518 48 Net revaluation gain/(loss) 6,087 (498) 300 (800)
WA=+ —HZARHEE Carrying amount at 31 December 46,213 40,126 25,500 25,200

A A B 2 A SE LA B v B b > HCHR T 43 (B A
THUARA -

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and Mainland
China and its net book value are held under the following lease terms:

AEE AT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T BRI T THsIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
TEFBRA Held in Hong Kong
RUHE (5040 ) Long term leases (over 50 years) 25,500 25,200 25,500 25,200
FRHAFE (10 2 50 4F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) - = - =
TEAUE LA [ 1A Held outside Hong Kong
PR (10 % 504F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 20,713 14,926 - -
46,213 40,126 25,500 25,200

REATHBEYER —FZNFE T _A=T—HHE
7 T B A T B B B A R R AT A B T 8
ey T R 3R 3 1 J 5 72 £ 25,500,000 7 7T (—FF A
4F 1 25,200,000 #570) © ARERTT I E A w1 E W FE R
TEENAEF A=+ BB S BRI R
TEYIITH [0 ST 7 A o 55 £t 16 3 0 A5 R )
20N BRI T 455 I T P 4 B VE E R AT 0 2 20,713,000 5
JC (FENAE ¢ 14,926,000 #7C) ©

BEYSEER
“EEAET A= R

The Bank’s investment property was revalued on 31 December 2009 by A.G.
Wilkinson & Associates, an independent professionally qualified valuer, at
HK$25,500,000 (2008: HK$25,200,000) on an open market, existing use basis.
The investment properties of the Bank’s subsidiaries were revalued on 31
December 2009 by Shenzhen GuoZhongLian Asset and Real Estate Appraisal
Consulting Co., Ltd, an independent professionally qualified valuer, at
HK$20,713,000 (2008: HK$14,926,000) on an open market, existing use basis.

Particulars of investment properties
31 December 2009

74 1 2 B ) ) 2
o & ALY Attributable interest
Location Use Lease term of the Group
T Y SIS o A 8 R T B B [HESEEES R E (504FLL L) 100%
Shop B on the Ground Floor Office building Long term lease (over 50 years) 100%
No. 8 Causeway Road
Hong Kong
ORI e I I % P o B 2010 958 [HESEESS T AFE B (10 2 50 4F) 100%
FE K EL 23 i
23/F, Dongfeng Building Office building Medium term lease (10-50 years) 100%
No. 2010 Shennan Central Road
Futian District, Shenzhen
RN T A5 165 4 L e A% )32 T2 (R [HESEESS T AFE B (10 % 50 4F) 100%
POt —HEA ~ BJE
Units A&B, 2/F, Block 4 Office building Medium term lease (10-50 years) 100%
SEG Technology Park

Zhenxing Road, Futian District, Shenzhen
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32 WEFGEAME 32 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
4R 1 Group
BT Rk BEAR B fii
Bank M EYEEE Furniture
premises and Leasehold and A5k
properties  improvements equipment Total
F#x T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 31 December 2008 and
1 January 2009:
Cost or valuation 150,720 204,330 233,670 588,720
Bt KE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (52,718) (111,236) (148,692) (312,646)
ATERNELHA=T—HR Net book value at 31 December 2008
TERTIAE—H — HZ IR EHE and 1 January 2009 98,002 93,094 84,978 276,074
A Additions - 15,630 16,117 31,747
e Disposals - (119) (1,172) (1,291)
Al (B E ) Revaluation (Note (i)) 14,452 - - 14,452
ERFHESTE Depreciation provided during the year (10,074) (17,560) (19,490) (47,124)
BEE 5, B At 4 R Exchange rate and other adjustments 86 1 8 95
MREEZNFE+_H=1T—H2 Net book value at 31 December 2009
M T 3% (L 102,466 91,046 80,441 273,953
WEEENFE+A=Z+—H At 31 December 2009:
A B BA (E Cost or valuation 171,868 208,261 221,736 601,865
ST S E Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (69,402) (117,215) (141,295) (327,912)
REERNFEF A =1T—H Net book value at 31 December 2009
Z IR HE 102,466 91,046 80,441 273,953
bl 2 AR B The analysis of cost or valuation
f{EA TR of the above assets is as follows:
MFEFENNFEFF A =1+—H: At 31 December 2009:
FAME At cost - 208,261 221,736 429,997
Al B At valuation 102,466 - - 102,466
102,466 208,261 221,736 532,463
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32 WE R () 32 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
A (1) Group (continued)
SRAT I EE S Y]
Bank FHEYEKE Furniture
premises and Leasehold and o
properties improvements equipment Total
T T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
At 31 December 2007 and
1 January 2008:
Cost or valuation 139,411 192,153 251,664 583,228
Bt KsE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (42,423) (100,919) (182,133) (325,475)
ACERLETHA=T—H R Net book value at 31 December
ZRF)NE—H — H 2RI E 2007 and 1 January 2008 96,988 91,234 69,531 257,753
UNE Additions 6,766 21,330 33,918 62,014
H — [ B 2 i i e Acquired from a subsidiary - - 30 30
e Disposals = (1,212) (238) (1,450)
AL (BfF5E (1)) Revaluation (Note (i)) 7,155 - - 7,155
ERNFHESTE Depreciation provided during the year (10,078) (18,867) (18,650) (47,595)
[iEE b, K At 5 3 Exchange rate and other adjustments (2,829) 609 387 (1,833)
WEEENET A =1T—HZ Net book value at 31 December 2008
M T U 98,002 93,094 84,978 276,074
REEENE+H=+—H : At 31 December 2008:
BRASE B Cost or valuation 150,720 204,330 233,670 588,720
St (e Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (52,718) (111,236) (148,692) (312,646)
WEENEFZH=1+—H Net book value at 31 December 2008
Z BT 98,002 93,094 84,978 276,074
Rl g EE 2 RASASE TR ¢ The analysis of cost or valuation of the
above assets is as follows:
R NEFZA=F—H ¢ At 31 December 2008:
FAE At cost - 204,330 233,670 438,000
e fhE At valuation 98,002 - - 98,002
98,002 204,330 233,670 536,002
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32 W3k LSt (o 32 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
ARG Bank

BUT B B Wk BAR B s il

Bank Al RE Furniture
premises and Leasehold and A5k
properties  improvements equipment Total
T#T T#T T#T T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

W EENFE+—H=Z=+—H K At 31 December 2008 and

“EFAFE—HA—H : 1 January 2009:
FAE B AR Cost or valuation 17,306 203,605 221,788 442,699
Bt KsE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (2,763) (111,117) (142,941) (256,821)
WEERE/NFE+ZH=E1T—H K Net book value at 31 December
“EZAFE—~H—H 2008 and 1 January 2009 14,543 92,488 78,847 185,878
UNE Additions - 15,630 15,764 31,394
e Disposals - (119) (1,032) (1,151)
H Al (KFEE ) Revaluation (Note (i) (30) - - (30)
ERFHETE Depreciation provided during the year (800) (17,187) (17,640) (35,627)
ACELNFETA=T—HZ Net book value at 31 December 2009
R T Y 13,713 90,812 75,939 180,464
MEFENFE+—H=1+—H: At 31 December 2009:
A E A (A Cost or valuation 17,234 207,535 209,622 434,391
R S E Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (3,521) (116,723) (133,683) (253,927)

REEZNFE+ZHA=1T—HZ Net book value at 31 December 2009
HR T 13,713 90,812 75,939 180,464

R E 2 A ST The analysis of cost or valuation

of the above assets is as follows:

MoFEFENFE++H=1+—H: At 31 December 2009:
F5 W AME At cost - 207,535 209,622 417,157
Ak E At valuation 13,713 - - 13,713

13,713 207,535 209,622 430,870

216 P TREER4T (35) B PR/ R Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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32 WS St e 32 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
AEAT (50 Bank (continued)
SRAT I EE S Y]
Bank  fHEWZESEME Furniture
premises and Leasehold and A5t
properties improvements equipment Total
THT T T T
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
MNoFEELFEFF_A=+—H R At 31 December 2007 and
TERR)NFE—H—H 1 January 2008:
A (B SR A (B Cost or valuation 17,261 182,290 244,769 444,320
2 EHr e K E Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (2,139) (97,432) (178,059) (277,630)
MWoEELE+H=1+—HK& Net book value at 31 December
CRF)NF—H — H Z HR I E 2007 and 1 January 2008 15,122 84,858 66,710 166,690
wNE Additions - 27,371 29,917 57,288
HE Disposals = (993) (238) (1,231)
Al (FFEE () Revaluation (Note (1)) 181 = = 181
ENFHESTE Depreciation provided during the year (760) (18,748) (17,201) (36,709)
FE 52, B HoAth 8 5 Exchange rate and other adjustments - - (341) (341)
MEEENFE+_H=1+—HZ Net book value at 31 December 2008
IR 14,543 92,488 78,847 185,878
HoEEZNFEF—H=1+—H: At 31 December 2008:
JEAE A A Cost or valuation 17,306 203,605 221,788 442,699
25T K E Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (2,763) (111,117) (142,941) (256,821)
W_EENEFTZA=+—HZ Net book value at 31 December 2008
HRTHT 14,543 92,488 78,847 185,878
bl 2 AR The analysis of cost or valuation
fEE BT of the above assets
is as follows:
W oZEENFE+_H=+—H : At 31 December 2008:
i AN At cost - 203,605 221,788 425,393
FEAG B At valuation 14,543 = = 14,543
14,543 203,605 221,788 439,936
FFEE - Note:
(@ ATV Z IV =1 = BARGR i LT (1) The bank premises were revalued at 31 December 2009 based on the open market

24 A (R Rl 5 B A W B A T T4 o 2 A B T 454
EHEATEAY - AEFMEA R ZFEEC R - FFILFE
T H = — BARSE e A S ST B A
Fifi 11 T (36 A B 0 2 o £ - b 5 b A A R Rl A PR
) T AE t 22 08 B T 355 A6 (L HEE AT A o o 28 iR (41
B TR AE AR B ) T 5t AR HHE i v 2 SRAT A S dLAh
TR o NS 8 B AR SRAT 2 $RAT 5 7o T ) 4 il AR
kR FHT RS AR - RIABESE 2 R TET (B 43 7l 2 41,861,000
Wt (= BE /U 49,060,000 75 7T) & 9,321,000 5 IT
(ZFF )\ 1 9,720,000 #T) ©

value by A.G. Wilkinson & Associates, an independent professionally qualified
valuer. The subsidiary’s premises were revalued at 31 December 2009 based
on the open market value by Shenzhen GuoZhongLian Asset and Real Estate
Appraisal Consulting Co., Ltd, an independent professionally qualified valuer
in Mainland China. The revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred income
taxes was credited to bank premises revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity.
The carrying amounts of the bank premises and properties of the Group and the
Bank would have been HK$41,861,000 (2008: HK$49,060,000) and HK$9,321,000
(2008: HK$9,720,000) respectively had they been stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation.

s TR $RAT (S59) A FR/A 7] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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32 WSE R ) 32 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

AT 2 WP ZERLR A S A > FLHRTAT B4 AT The Group’s properties are situated in Hong Kong and Mainland China and

218

MR their net book values are held under the following lease terms:
ARG ARGAT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T#T THIT T#x T
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
TERERFA Held in Hong Kong
R E (504ERA 1) Long term leases (over 50 years) 4,039 4,405 4,039 4,405
HHATH (10 2 50 4F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 9,674 10,138 9,674 10,138
TER W LASML R A Held outside Hong Kong
FRHAFHE (10 % 504F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 88,753 83,459 - -
102,466 98,002 13,713 14,543
33 A et % - o5 B 33 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS
ARG M B AR BT
Group and Bank
T#x
HK$°000
MR H Carrying amount
MREEENE—A—H At 1 January 2009 and as at 31 December 2009
E=ZFNETZA=1T—H 54,449
SIS KE Accumulated amortisation and impairment
AZELZNAFE—H—H At 1 January 2009 10,589
GRUNE: (3] Amortisation for the year 743
REFENFFZA=+—H At 31 December 2009 11,332
MR THT VA - Net carrying amount
WoFEENFEZA=+—H At 31 December 2009 43,117
AL [ AR RAT
Group and Bank
THIT
HK$000
HRTHI(H Carrying amount
N=EE)NFE—H—H At 1 January 2008 and as at 31 December 2008
S =)\ ZH =+—H 54,449
SIS KsE Accumulated amortisation and impairment
R EE )\ F—H—H At 1 January 2008 9,845
RN 3 Amortisation for the year 744
AERNFEFZH=+—H At 31 December 2008 10,589
M THT V(L Net carrying amount
WEEENEFZA=1—H At 31 December 2008 43,860

s TR 8R1T (3EM) A BR/A ] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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33 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS (continued)

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent

A9 S EL AR R E A BT R operating leases and their net book values are analysed as follows:
2009 2008
T RN
HK$’000 HK$°000
TERW > & FIEMRRA ¢ In Hong Kong, held on:
— FHIHA KR 4 50 47 - Leases over 50 years 29,014 29,380
— FHHAYE 10 & 50 4F 2 [H] — Leases between 10 and 50 years 14,103 14,480
43,117 43,860
34 HAtERE 34 OTHER ASSETS
ALEH ARHUT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T-H#IL T T#IL R RPN
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
W] Interest receivable 340,173 498,375 336,088 540,501
TEARIA Prepayments 110,882 130,557 108,850 124,640
HEIRE Settlement accounts 409,350 1,209,518 689,398 1,390,600
HoAh Others 444,745 1,031,109 513,025 1,039,329
1,305,150 2,869,559 1,647,361 3,095,070
35 RHEARZHEE 35 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(a) HAHEE (a) Investments at cost
AT
Bank
2009 2008
T-H#L Tt
HK$’000 HK$°000
IE BT > FRBASE Unlisted shares at cost 2,772,478 1,908,750

] TR 4R4T (35) A FR/A 5] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 219
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35 MR A F Z 8 ) 35 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) JRASHEHE (40 (a) Investment at cost (continued)
AN BARSITN EENEF —H=1+—HH#F The following is a list of subsidiaries held by the Bank at 31 December
A Z Mg 2 ) 4 2009:
sl A OB,
Place of Wk AR Z it
Al f incorporation/ BV 37 Particulars of issued shares Fef Z Hii 4
Name establishment Principal activities held/ registered capital Interest held
2009 2008
R RAT e \ RACANE SRATIEHS A B 1,650,000,000 7 100% 100%
Chinese Mercantile Bank* People’s Republic Banking business RMB1,650,000,000
of China
TSR Y AT PR R it S I R A 1,000,000 A1k I T (L 1785762 1% 28 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Asset Management Hong Kong Provision of asset management 1,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
Company Limited services
LERTH A RAT Hrils NG 6,000,000 e 5 A T {1 1 570 H 4 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Bullion Hong Kong Inactive 6,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
Company Limited
AR A P A PR R it EHASRATZ AR E SRS 26,000,000 B AEBTHI(E 1 #5702 K 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Investment Holdings ~ Hong Kong Management of the Bank’s PRC 26,000,000 ordinary shares of HKS$1 each
Limited impaired loan portfolio
TR B RA RAT T SR A 27,828,870 A RECTHI L 1 %8 70 2 5 4 e 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Hong Kong Provision of asset management 27,828,870 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
Company Limited services
TARTEPHACHAA P2 A it SRR AR 100 B B (B 100 57T 2 L 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited Hong Kong Provision of nominee services 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 each
TARERYH LS PR it SAtE IR A AR S 100,000,000 B A BEE 1 C2 T 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited Hong Kong Provision of securities 100,000,000 ordinary shares
brokerage services of HK$1 each
THREIH (A RA T S5 LIRS 30,000 A A5 FBE T L 100 ¥ 7 2 598 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Hong Kong Provision of trustee services 30,000 ordinary shares of HK$100 each
Limited
ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees it A 100 FBCAE R T 1 35 70 2 4 100% 100%
Limited Hong Kong Inactive 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
ICBC Asia Wa Pei Limited# LEA B BT 415,879 B 72,14 BOC 2 488 100% 100%
Belgium In liquidation 415,879 ordinary shares of EUR72.14 each
ICBCA (C.L) Limited SRS BT A T LB T 1 SR TE 2 A 100% 100%
Cayman Islands Being a special-purpose 1 ordinary share of US$1 each

vehicle for bond issuance

I B S AT PR A R SR AR RE R AN 5 1B I i 1 58 T2 100% 100%
UB China Business Management British Virgin Islands  Inactive 1 ordinary share of US$1 each
Co. Ltd.
’ S I H 22 K B s S T L K B S T R BR AR A AR * Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm of the Ernst & Young
B AL L A F global network firms
* SR A2 * Foreign-owned enterprise

s TR 8R1T (3EM) A BR/A ] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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35 MR A F Z 8 )
(b) b BALfE LA
R AGATIAL TR E -

T ST T A T i ) R X B R AR
(B R BRSO A 2 AR EAR T (ELAN TS

35

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(b) Investment in controlled unit trusts
During the year, the Bank acquired a number of controlled unit trusts.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired at the date
of acquisition and the correspond carrying amounts immediately before

the acquisition are as follows:

AR
Y i {
Fair value/
Carrying amount
T#T
HK$°000
e RERBEEH Cash and cash equivalents 1,291,732
FHERR Y g E Financial assets held for trading 120,648
BT SR A R Current income tax liabilities (1,292,380)
T s R Net assets acquired 120,000
i Goodwill -
i A KBACME (DABR 4 SAT) Total purchase consideration paid (discharged by cash) 120,000
WS K P A Cost of acquisition 120,000

BB : P s B BT Less: cash and cash equivalents
2 B4 KERB4TEE in controlled unit trusts acquired (1,291,732)
S > Bl A T AR Net inflow of cash on acquisition (1,171,732)

(c) WEZFEHALERE (c) Disposed of controlled unit trusts
2009
T#
HK$°000
g Net assets disposed of:

R Trading securities 4,500
4,500
B 2 A R R Gain on disposal of controlled unit trusts 127
4,627

] TR 4R4T (35) AR A 5] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 221

ZEEJUFE4EIR Annual Report 2009



Foh % e 2 B R
Notes to the Financial Statements ...

35 MR A F Z 8 ) 35 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(c) HWEZEEAETE) (c) Disposed of controlled unit trusts (continued)
LS A2 0 BELVAR RE 2 B4l M A ] B4 TH H A An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
FETHTNT the disposal of controlled unit trusts is as follows:
2009
T#T
HK$°000
At Satisfied by:
b2k Cash 4,627
e E Cash consideration 4,627
TS B4 B SRAT AN B Cash and bank balances disposed of -
2 EAETTZ BlE K& Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
S5 [ B A T H R TR in respect of the disposal of controlled unit trusts 4,627
36 HPfEK 36 DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
A4 ARGAT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T T T Tkt
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR AR 1 Demand deposits and current
accounts 9,869,396 4,986,854 9,105,791 4,446,744
& A Savings deposits 36,475,880 20,034,376 36,827,183 20,383,633
TE HA B8 AR Time, call and notice deposits 114,816,285 113,162,102 112,044,918 112,805,690
161,161,561 138,183,332 157,977,892 137,636,067

222 I TREERAT (3E) A PR/ R Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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37. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

A S [ AGAT

Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T#x THTT T#x T
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
HEAE Deposits from customers - 301,216 - 301,216
CEATAEE (1) Certificates of deposit issued (i) 1,419,077 3,489,361 1,419,077 3,489,361
CE TSR Debt securities in issue - 3,146,399 - =
1,419,077 6,936,976 1,419,077 3,790,577

() FHHER_EFNFEF_H=+—HMHATE
RS & 4 458 = 1,400 B3 T (B
At R 4,600 EEVS T ) o TR L R A ) 4 AR
SR A TEE R 2 WA 2 S8 &KX
R oBBAAER R/ FE+H=+—HZ
2Rt E SEMYGER A ATE K -

R i 5 ) 2 A 2 < il B (B P (BB B 2
TS I 51 AR T R 2 T S A S B < e R A
B (EAES) < SERREE o [FEMEIERASML > T
il 8 {5 22 V(B M S 7 B R Al T 855 R 3% o 5
BhimEE -

38 RALBIIE

R 0 VB ) 1 v L R 2 A A R R 16.5% wf
B (TEE)UE  16.5%) o

RIEBIHE R,/ (R Z BB

(i)  The fair value of the certificates of deposit issued at 31 December 2009
was HK$14 million higher (2008: HK$46 million higher) than the
contractual amount at maturity. The amounts of changes in the fair
value of the financial liabilities that were attributable to changes in
credit risk were considered not significant during the year presented
and cumulatively as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008.

The amounts of changes in the fair value of the financial liabilities that are
attributable to changes in credit risk are determined as the amounts of changes
in the fair value of the financial liabilities that are not attributable to changes
in market conditions that give rise to market risk. The credit spread has not
changed and the changes in fair value of the financial liabilities are attributable
to the changes in other market factor components.

38 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the
liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%).

The movements on the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) account are as follows:

AR AR AREAT
Group Total Bank
2009 2008 2008 2008 2009 2008

Tt T T Tt T Tt
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000

w—H—H At 1 January 137,547 (11,539) (324,717) (336,256) 151,619 (324,717)
GRS T % Effect of change in tax rate - - 18,556 18,556 - 18,556
TEN s 2 (GHR) /7R (Debited)/credited to the
income statement (1,780) (75) 30,035 29,960 (394) 30,035

TERERE (ZIR) /FiiR (Debited)/credited to equity (Note 42)

(FfaE42) (339,696) (1,744) 427,744 426,000 (336,075) 427,744
T 5, J L Ah e % Exchange and other adjustments 13,667 (714) 1 (713) - 1
REZA=+—H At 31 December (190,262) (14,072) 151,619 137,547 (184,850) 151,619

v TR 8R4T (3HN) A PR AW Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 223
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38 IEHEBLIA (#0) 38

R RUIR 7 (GCHR) ZAEAERLIA N T -

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The deferred income tax credited/(debited) to equity during the year is as

follows:
AR AT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T#x TUsIC Tl R
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
JR R A 2 o P (B fi Fair value reserves in shareholder’s equity
SRATYIZE (5T 42) Bank premises (Note 42) (3,614) (1,773) 7 (29)
HE1ILEY & & R Available-for-sale financial
(BfF5E 42) investments (Note 42) (336,082) 427,773 (336,082) 427,773
T R St oy 2 f 2 Effect of change in tax rate - 17,982 - 17,982
(339,696) 443,982 (336,075) 445,726

AT A 0 o I e £ (BRI — BB M B 2 45 R
ST Z BB UR

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year
are as follows:

IEEFLTE G e Deferred income tax assets
AA WK B A i G I BEE T
Collective impairment Investment Accelerated tax M
losses revaluation reserve depreciation Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
TH#L THIT THL THIT T TG T THIT
AHE Group HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
w—H—H At 1 January 38,688 14038 261,403 16,954 1,484 1,398 301,575 32,390
GRS T bs % Effect of change in tax rate - (802) - (969) - - - (1,771)
TEN i % (Charged)/credited to the
() /i income statement (127) 25,452 - = 61 - (66) 25,452
Feffits (3CHR) /iR (Debited)/credited to equity - - (258,594) 245418 - - (258,594) 245418
EE 5, S LAt w65 Exchange and other adjustments - - - - 12,201 86 12,201 86
AT H=1+—H  At31 December 38,561 38,688 2,809 261.403 13,746 1,484 55,116 301,575
FiREsT KIS Bl A il i
Collective impairment Investment M
losses revaluation reserve Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
T FH#IT TWL T TWL TH#IC
YN ZF) Bank HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
h—H—H At 1 January 38,688 14,038 261,403 16,954 300,091 30,992
PR BT 2 Effect of change in tax rate - (802) - (969) - (1,771)
TEl fi % (Charged)/credited to the
(R /TR income statement (127) 25,452 - = (127) 25,452

Feffids (HR) /iR (Debited)/credited to equity - = (258,594) 245,418 (258,594) 245418
e 5, 1 At ) Exchange and other adjustments - - - - - -
AT HA=1—H  At31 December 38,561 38,688 2,809 261,403 41,370 300,091
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38 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

WEIERLTE £ Deferred income tax liabilities
BTN ] SYEIE i LR
Premises Investment Accelerated tax B W
revaluation reserve revaluation reserve depreciation Partnership Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
T T THL T T T T T TR T
x| Group HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
“=A—H At 1 January 17,507 14976 128,406 329,595 18,115 24,075 - - 164,028 368,646
Mags s vE Effect of change in tax rate - (117) - (18,834) - (1,376) - - - (20,327)
g% Credited/(charged) to the
o/ () income statement 1,447 7 - = (15) (4,583) 82 = 1,714 (4,508)
{EER R/ GIR) Credited/(debited) to equity 3,614 1773 77,488 (182,355) - = - = 81,102 (180,582)
BE S R A A Exchange and other
adjustments (1,466) 800 - - - (1) - - (1,466) 799
i oy At 31 December 21,102 17,507 205,894 128,406 17,900 18,115 482 - 245,378 164,028
BTN SV i LR
Premises Investment Accelerated tax B W
revaluation reserve revaluation reserve depreciation Partnership Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
T T THL T THL T TR T TR T
3 i) Bank HK$1000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HK$000
#=HF—H At 1 January 1,951 2,039 128,406 329,595 18,115 24,075 - - 148,472 355,709
MagE s vE Effect of change in tax rate - 117) - (18,834) - (1,376) - - - (20327)
g% (Charged)/credited to the
(3R /iR income statement - - - - (215) (4,583) 48 - 27 (4,583)
{EfER (08R) /70 (Debited)/credited to equity ] 29 77,488 (182,355) - . - = 77,481 (182,326)
BE S R HA e Exchange and other
adjustments - - - = - 1) - - - )
MZA=+—H At 31 December 1,944 1,951 205,894 128,406 17,900 18,115 482 - 226,220 148,472

AR B AE A E A 2 BLE R 1E 19,883,116 5 00 (& &
JNAF © 4,300,465 #570) > AT FR B F DG B 2 A % 5
R 2 AT 2 KRR RERRBL R A o f i R Ak
TR Ak B2 ) SR AT BE A IRE SR o6 A AT
AL A S S B TE R 1R AR IR B SOOI e it I 55 s 18 e
FRARAE LI A o

MREERENET A=+ —H - fRMEE AR S T
Wi 2 ) 2 R AR A LR > A4 B IR AR SN e 2
BEIE R - A S [ SI R £ 2 TR R i RR AR SR I
B (CERNE ) -

A GRAT 170 HL B SR ST A 2 BRI AN B A A A T 45 B A%
.

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$19,883,116 (2008:
HK$4,300,465) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for sometime and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

At 31 December 2009, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
liability (2008: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the future earnings of
certain of the Group’s subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional
tax should such amounts be received.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends
by the Bank to its shareholders.
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38

RS IR DRIk 2 R LEE

TSRV A S B i A B BT B S B A &
TEREFIHCEH B R AT B IE 2 [F) — FA BB T AR i
8 o DA RAESR & MBS IR DL RHRSH IR 2 53 -

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The amounts shown in the statement of financial position include the
following:

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

e
Total
2009 2008 2008 2008
T#x TH#TT T o
AL Group HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EERIHE R Deferred income tax assets:
it i DR 3 4 to be recovered after 12 months 54,177 1,484 299,275 300,759
A8 A A to be recovered within 12 months 939 - 816 816
55,116 1,484 300,091 301,575
IEAERAA L Deferred income tax liabilities:
R T A R to be settled after 12 months (243,842) (15,556) (144,099) (159,655)
T A R to be settled within 12 months (1,536) = (4,373) (4,373)
(245,378) (15,556) (148,472) (164,028)
RACRIE (Bf%) G EEH Deferred income tax (liabilities)/assets, net (190,262) (14,072) 151,619 137,547
2009 2008
T-H#IT T
AGRAT Bank HK$’000 HK$°000
AESERL T 7 - Deferred income tax assets:
ikt e 5 /= Y to be recovered after 12 months 40,431 299,275
T8 H Al lE to be recovered within 12 months 939 816
41,370 300,091
PEAERLE B [ - Deferred income tax liabilities:
e A H AR R to be settled after 12 months (224,684) (144,099)
A to be settled within 12 months (1,536) (4,373)
(226,220) (148,472)
WRAEHIIE (AfE) A TR Deferred income tax (liabilities)/assets, net (184,850) 151,619
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39 DIEESH A AR Z 2B (ETE 39 SUBORDINATED DEBTS MEASURED AT AMORTISED
COST
A Bl B A AT
Group and Bank
2009 2008
IS RS
T#x Interest rate T Interest rate
HK$’000 % HK$°000 %
AR B Subordinated floating rate notes
— R F — with a final maturity on
THZHE 2 July 2011 581,625 0.481% 581,258 0.686%
— R R ——4F - with a final maturity on
TA T HE 12 December 2011 620,400 0.680% 620,008 2.000%
— R T - with a final maturity on
=H AN HEN 26 March 2012 542,850 0.680% 542,507 2.000%
— IR R — 4R - with a final maturity on
L% - Jr/\ H 21| 1 28 April 2014 1,163,250 1.430% 1,162,515 2.250%
— AR RN — with a final maturity on
H 4+jL H 2134 29 June 2016 620,400 0.751% 620,008 1.925%
(AT =B ——4F (callable on 30 June 2011)
ANH=+REM)
— B R\ ~ with a final maturity on
+H A HE 20 October 2018 1,551,000 1.101% 1,550,020 2.275%
(A —F—=4F (callable on 21 October 2013)
+H =+ — BB
— KA (A A = — 4R - perpetual (callable on
A - H ) 10 December 2012) 1,000,000 0.639% 1,000,000 1.451%
— KA (AR F— =4 - perpetual (callable on
L HJLH HER) 9 July 2013) 930,600 0.751% 930,012 1.925%
— KA (A] A =R — R4 - perpetual (callable on
NH=1HEgER) 30 June 2016) 1,551,000 0.851% 1,550,020 2.025%
8,561,125 8,556,348
?ﬁt‘éﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁ%{ﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁiﬁ > Slf7 H e Subordinated debts were raised by the Bank for the development and
PEIA B KA AT 2 RGRE o RIRE AR » 52555 expansion of business and have been fully subscribed by the ultimate holding
PE G G B FIAARERTT Z I E AR - company and its branch. These notes have been qualified and included as the

Bank’s supplementary capital in accordance with the Capital Rules.
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40 HibHfE 40 OTHER LIABILITIES
4R 1 AGAT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T#T THIT T#x T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
JEEAT IR Interest payable 406,233 821,990 376,829 804,652
JREASY 3 4 AR A Salaries and welfare payable 101,702 47,171 94,116 47,171
AR Settlement accounts 407,497 1,212,046 689,975 1,398,032
HoAth Others 1,155,044 969,073 1,056,412 851,939
2,070,476 3,050,280 2,217,332 3,101,794
A [ B AR SRAT 7 A T gl JE B ARSI AT AT 3 A 43 The Group and the Bank have not had any defaults of principal, interest or
FE B AME A (T F 4 4E) other breaches with respect to their liabilities during the year (2008: Nil).
41 A 41 SHARE CAPITAL
B i
JBeAr ¥ H S 1) Ordinary
Number of Ordinary share
shares shares premium
T T T#t
in thousands HK$’000 HK$’000
R-ZZNAE—~H—H At 1 January 2009 1,285,268 2,570,536 8,209,593
MEE—FE/E+ S Allotment of new shares regarding
E+—HIFEERMBRE the scrip dividend scheme of
Z VAR AR SR B T P final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2008 13,970 27,940 160,323
MEEZFFNEANN Allotment of new shares regarding
= eI [ilsriulid st the scrip dividend scheme of
Z VAR AR S R BT i interim dividend for the period ended
30 June 2009 19,102 38,205 270,719
B35 47 52 Share issue expenses - - (60)
REFTAFEFZA=+—H At 31 December 2009 1,318,340 2,636,681 8,640,575
M=ZZENE—H—H At 1 January 2008 1,225,952 2,451,904 7,161,786
MEE—FELEF A Allotment of new shares regarding
=Zth—HIFEERBRS the scrip dividend scheme of
Z VA B Rl R final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2007 29,125 58,250 550,450
M E R/ EAR Allotment of new shares regarding
=B IR R the scrip dividend scheme of
Z DASBREAC G P M interim dividend for the period ended
30 June 2008 15,271 30,542 228,918
CAT B R Warrants exercised 14,920 29,840 268,560
JRe A3 47 52 Share issue expenses - - (121)
REFFNEFZA=1+—H At 31 December 2008 1,285,268 2,570,536 8,209,593

228 i TREERAT (4E) A PR/AF Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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41

AR (0)

7 M S AR 20 (R (R AR ¢ 2008 %) - 4
(A A 2050 ( BT\« BERIE{E2 ) » T
BB AT 38 B K o

257 T IR R S IR AR O 2 32 (B (BT
A 23248 ) - BRI (E 2 5T (BRI -
R TR 5 s I0) o

AERAT PR AN —TE AR B T R HERR A (1)
DABR S W OB 5 3R (2) HiT BRI % 114 38 B 4 DA AR B
4 5 B (3) WG 40 B 4 B A Iy - A T IRORE
BRI G B OME AR, - AL A 49728 T (&
T\ ¢ 8.682fHHETT) ©

AR AT
NS AR SR S — R R E+ A=+ —H
Sz AT AT ) AAT (8 2 RO (4 - ) -

PRI B — AR A + H BT Z HROEAE R
B PR RAT 2 A

PRANFR IR B R AR SRAT Z P /A ] op B R 4RAT
ZSEAAHERR - AR -

41

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The total number of authorised ordinary shares is 2,000 million shares (2008:
2,000 million shares) with a par value of HK$2 per share (2008: HK$2 per
share). All issued shares are fully paid.

The total number of authorised convertible non-cumulative preference shares
is 232 million shares (2008: 232 million shares) with a par value of HK$5 per
share (2008: HKS$5 per share).

The Bank adopted a scrip dividend scheme allowing the shareholders to have
the options to receive (1) dividends in cash; (2) an allotment of new shares in
lieu of cash; or (3) a combination of cash and new shares. Certain shareholders
have selected to receive new shares as dividends amounted to HK$497.2
million (2008: HK$868.2million).

Share options
Share Option Scheme
During the year, no option has been granted and as at 31 December 2009

(2008: Nil), there was no option outstanding.

The Share Option Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Bank at the
general meeting held on 10 May 2007.

The adoption of the Share Option Scheme is subject to the approval of the
shareholders of ICBC, the holding company of the Bank.

v TR 8R4T (3HN) A PR AW Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 229
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42 fiEf 42 RESERVES
AL Group
Rk
HR ik % e
Bl Buk I Honf
Ordinary premises Investment Cash flow B ~H fREA
share revaluation revaluation hedge Exchange General Retained it
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
T T T T T T T Tk
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
jame sy kol At1 January 2009 8,209,593 52,469 (681,710) 785 141,906 346390 390740 1L367,4
Bt (Hka) Issue of shares (Note 1) #1042 - - - - - - 8104
RS (k4) Share issue expenses (Note 41) (60) - - - - - - (60)
ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ EbRfEL Change in fair value of available-for-sale
AFRERD financel investments - - 2678462 - - - - 2678462
EREAELRRE Reserve realised on disposal of
LEERR available-for-sale financial investments - - (643,409) - - - - (643,409)
IREW (i k5 Transfer from available-fr-sale
SRIERRE G financial investments reserve to the
income statement on impairment - - $B715 - - - - $B715
ReNHhZATEERS Charge i fair velue of cash flow hedge - - - (7,833) - - - (7,833)
REE RS Revaluation surplus on bank premises - 7,343 - - - - - 7383
EREH Exchange differences - - 1 - 13 1) - 13
BRI RS Partial transfer of retained earnings to
— Rk (Wka) general reserve (Note a) - - - - - 39833 (39,833) -
AERRTIGEER Totel comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 2526142 2,526,142
FAHRZH (K 30) Changein deferred tax (Note 38) - (3,614) (336,082) - - - - (339,696)
BHZRRAEABRE (Kt 10) 2008 finaldividend paid (Note 18) - - - - - - (131,349) (131348)
ERZEENEPHRE (HiE1s) 2009 intrim dividend paid (Note 18 - - - - - - (363,787) (363,787)
REERAET-A=T-R At31 December 2009 8,640,575 56,198 1060977 - 142,09 36,22 SI8L915 15467916
() A — bl s (a)  The general reserve of the Group comprised of:
= EEETHYNR T AL B ARG = the transfer of retained earnings which is distributable to the
shareholders of the Group; and
= M A R R R A (A T e oh = a statutory surplus reserve of a subsidiary represents 10% of the
LA TR BT R R 2 BB AR T A 3k 2 profit after tax appropriation as required by law and regulation
10%) © Bbfatf iR i 85 B st iE el s g in the PRC. This reserve is used to offset accumulated losses or
7 o increase in capital.
(b) RS H R A RIREE AR HEZM75 1,454,000 1% (b)  The directors proposed a final dividend of HK$751,454,000 after the
G ABEEM R EAEE _EENLET year end which will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings
HA=+—H IEEE R AR 2 8 (FFEE18) © for the year ended 31 December 2009 (Note 18).
(c) )j\ CEZENEFTF_A=Z+—H z]s% [ 76 A (c) As at 31 December 2009, the Group has earmarked a “Regulatory
B2 Vs F 3 801,511,000 8% 75 ( — & & )4 - Reserve” of HK$801,511,000 (2008: HK$781,317,000) from the retained
781,317,000 ¥ 7C) VE [ VEE s | o 1= E%ﬁm = earnings. The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions
A 35 MR SR AT SE A5 1 v 5T B 2 SR AE EE 22 H 1 T of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
B o U B 2 SN AE ) U A A T R AE A purpose. Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained
H15 > HPBEBRREEAEL - earnings and in consultation with the HKMA.
(d) A< B R o ME AL 2 454 vin A Fh AL 38 B R AN SR AT (d) The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Group

HABs e iR B 2 i 1) 2,235,384,000 5 IC (T &
J\AE 1 739,638,000 #5 70 )

ZEBEJUFEAFEH Annual Report 2009
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includes a profit of HK$2,235,384,000 (2008: HK$739,638,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Bank.
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42 RESERVES (continued)

AL Group
BT
Tk ERG ¥ ik
il Bank Bt HibGhf
Ordinary premises  Investment Cash flow Bkl ] REA
share  revaluation  revaluation hedge Exchange General Retained 5t
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
Tl T Tt Tile THL T THL THT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REFENE—A—H At 1 January 2008 7,161,786 4685 147300 = 69,129 03880 348153 12556235
B (ak41) Issue of shares (Note 41) 1,047,928 - - - - - - 1,047,928
Tt (Hzka1) Share issue expenses (Note 41) (121) - - - - - - (121)
lHESRREL Change in fair value of available-for-sale
AFEEES financial investments = - (3416759) = = = - (34167%9)
HERRSE SRS Reserve realised on disposal of available-for-sale
sy 30 financial investments - - (3,163) - - - - (3,163)
IR 1% h ks Transfer from available-for-sale
SRBER G AREE financial investments reserve to the
income statement on impairment = = 819,504 = = = = 819,504
Bt AT ERES Charge in fair value of cash flow hedge = = = 7,853 - - - 7,853
RITEE R Revaluation surplus on bank premises - 7,289 - - - - - 7,289
EiEE Exchange differences - 1 - - 72,777 - - 72,778
R REERE Partial transfer of retained earnings to
— ik f (Hfzta) general reserve (Note a) - - - - - 22,508 (22,508) -
RAEE 2T G A Total comprehensive income for the year = = = = = = 969,023 969,023
IEILHUASE (3 38) Change in deferred tax (Note 36) = (1,656) 445,638 = - - - 44398
ENZZEZLERBRE (i 18) 2007 final dividend paid (Note 18) - - - - - = (781,708) (781,708)
EMZZRNERERE (i 1s) 2008 interim dividend paid (Note 18) - - - - - = (355599)  (355,599)
REZFFNEFZH=1—H At31 December 2008 8,209,593 52,469 (681,710) 7,853 141,906 36390 3290741 11367242
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42 fifthE

42 RESERVES (continued)

ARGAT Bank
LIRS
WK EARR &% BA&R
Hfl Bank AR HG
Ordinary premises  Investment Cash flow ELT ] TR B
share  revaluation  revaluation hedge Exchange General Retained it
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
T T T T T T TR T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000
REBFNE—A—H At January 2009 8,209,593 9871 (680,003) 7,853 3377 9200 288598 10654289
B (sk41) Issue of shares (Note 41) 31,042 - - - - - - £$1,002
Tt (Hska) Share issue expenses (Note 41) (60) - - - - - - (60)
HESRREL Change in fair value of available-for-sale
ATEER financial investments - - 2,678,462 - - - - 2,678,462
HERRSE SRS Reserve realised on disposal of
sy 30 available-for-sale
financial investments - - (643,409) - - - - (643,409)
B3R K h f ks Transfer from available-for-sale
SRBER A £ financial investments reserve to the
income statement on impairment - - 43,715 - - - - 437715
Bensmz AT EEES Charge in fair value of cash flow hedge - - - (7,853) - - - (7,853)
EE ST Revaluation surplus on bank premises - (40) - - - - - (40)
TR A% Exchange differences - - 1 - (3,377) - - (3,376)
AR 2T A Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 2,235,384 2,235,384
TEERLIR N (5t 38) Change in deferred tax (Note 38) - 7 (336,082) - - - - (336,075)
EFZZRAERIRE (M 18) 2008 final dividend paid (Note 18) - - - - - - (231,348) (231,348)
ER-FRNEFHRE (K 18) 2009 interim dividend paid (Note 1) - - - - - - (363,787)  (363,787)
REZENET A= 1R At31 December 2009 8,640,575 9838 1,061,784 - - 29200 4525547 14456944
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42 RESERVES (continued)

ARERAT Bank
I
Tk EfiRG fei HEH
il Bk EffiffE  HER
Ordinary premises  Investment  Cashflow  WESRAM MR REEA
share  revaluation  revaluation hedge Exchange General Retained FiE
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve carnings Total
T T T T T T T Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
A-EENE—A—H At 1 January 2008 7,161,786 9611 147877 - 82 29200 3282967 12,1483
Bl (Hk41) Issue of shares (Note 41) 1,047,928 - - - - - - 1,047,928
R OhaEfT i (Wsk41) Share issue expenses (Note 41) (121) - = = - - - (121)
e SR gL Change in fair value of available-for-sale
ATEERE financial investments - - (3,416,759) - - - - (3,416,759)
HEREE SRR Reserve realised on disposal of
sy 350 available-for-sale
financial investments - - (3,163) - - - - (3,163)
RIS ALK h f Transfer from available-for-sale
SRR EREE AR financial investments reserve to the
income statement on impairment = = 819,504 = = = = 819,504
Bt A YRR Charge in fair value of cash flow hedge - - - 7853 - - - 7853
R R Revaluation surplus on bank premises = 171 - - - - - 171
EAER Exchange differences = 1 = = 2,555 - - 2,55
ARG AE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 739,638 739,638
SEER A (3L 38) Change in deferred tax (Note 36) - 88 445,638 - - - - 45726
EFNZZREERIRE (M 18) 2007 final dividend paid (Note 18) = = = = = - (781,708) (781,708)
ENZERVERIRE (M 18) 2008 interim dividend paid (Note 18) - - - - - - (35559)  (3555%)
REFFNEFZA=F—H At31 December 2008 8,209,593 9871 (680,903) 7,833 3371 29200 2885298 10654289
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DA Z 08— RS A A v B I A 42 8 2 W) A B ) %
J A RN A FIRT S 2 S MRS - BLR AN SRAT )
AP M2 RATA S KB E ARG - %%
S 15 ) 7R 58 5y i M) $ AT e i 5 7 5

a. SRR

43

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Listed out below is a summary of the transactions entered into during
the ordinary course of business with the ultimate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries and associates, including the acceptance of placement of
interbank deposits, corresponding banking transactions and off-balance sheet
transactions. The activities were priced at the relevant market rates at the time
of transactions.

a.  Ultimate holding company

2009 2008

T#T T T

HK$’000 HK$°000

FE A Interest income 242,035 1,274,954

FILE S H Interest expense 351,297 1,079,392

HoAth 2 ZEA 12 Other operating income"? 64,372 13,774

HoAh 23 Other operating expenses’ 23,717 14,805

JRENs B8 Amounts due from 18,713,744 19,052,897

HEA 7 Amounts due to 23,552,602 21,200,266
1. WE_FZFELHA=ZHRLZ G ER® 1. In accordance with the collaboration agreement dated 3 July

PR TR H Y H A )\
AT =B3RS 2 G e > <8475
RALGEIELTEE - RERFER ~ TR
1% 6 15 03 % 4l B3 45 Mo 1 o+ B L i 6RA T
B AT ([0 47 1) WA B A - R
BB LENA T NHI L2 A EW
o ANBATEHR VSR TR R
5 AR5 T 35 4 T 1) e A e 2 ) AL LA
FEYLA o

2. MRIEFTZEAESLHA A G2 e
ok X —FF /AR H TS HRZZFE L
A=t — BRI Z iRt B
W AT BRI A F 2 BT A B
PP A A B AR R B R 85
M 2 5 TG AR LR - A5
MRS 11 1] e 4% A2 P A IS A A5 2 o

3. MECEZHETH A H (BRI
SR ITIETRT B e ) 5T 5L 2 IR ik Je — %
Z\AE=H U H BLAERAT W E A w7 5L
I e o 1 AR ERAT B AR GRAT WA A )
AL AR IBE O R BT B 3t 2 A R T A T
i A 2 RHs o

234 i TREERAT (3E) A PR/ R Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

ZEEJUFE4EIR Annual Report 2009

2001 and the supplemental collaboration agreements dated 4
February 2005 and 13 February 2008, management fee income
was received from the Hong Kong Branch of ICBC (the “Branch”)
for the provision of services such as accounting and budgeting,
internal audit, marketing and back office settlement and clearing.
In accordance with the collaboration agreement dated 28
September 2007, management fee income was received from the
ultimate holding company for the provision of management,
administrative and marketing services of its credit card business.

2. Inaccordance with the custodian and trustee services agreement
dated 4 September 2007 and the supplemental custodian and
trustee services agreements dated 16 May 2008 and 31 December
2009, services fees were paid by the ultimate holding company
to the Bank for providing custodian, settlement and clearing
services in relation to the investments outside the PRC in certain
investment products by the customers of the ultimate holding
company in connection with the Qualified Domestic Institutional
Investor Scheme of the PRC.

3. In accordance with the service levels agreements with the Bank
dated 21 February 2002 (as amended and supplemented by
supplemental agreements), and the service levels agreement with
a subsidiary of the Bank dated 19 March 2008, service fee expense
was paid to the ultimate holding company for the provision of
data processing services to the Bank and its subsidiary.
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43 BHEAZ 5 (a)
a.  IAREEREA ] ()

B 5 A2 A ) 2 2 B AL A B AT AT e I AR AR
TR B > W Y R A N F R H A AT
2R N _EENETHA=1T—H>
A $R AT B 88 17 1 {H £ 100,000,000 3 T 2 7 &
TS T R AR (FE /4 mEA
100,000,000 3£ JC 2 & B AF#EE) o

A B P A SR R AT I Py B AR LA R RN AT
YRR BT SR ERIRR B RE 39 o

HABTEIERR 5
i RPERAFAIE L Z R

BN BAGRAT 7 S R A
TEBEAELH Z BB SRS 18
I B AR T M A SRATHR AL T 7
& DIRERASSRATHER 78 L G A B B
HIKF o

ATERE—MELAZH > REEERAT
K ARGRATRT S — B R Tk > B UL > B
AR B ) [ 7 R A 48 2 5 g 1 ok
BT AR SRAT 2 TR RE R R | R
9,000,000,000 #5 G Z HELR - BN R 25K
iR 7 40 T 7 A 2 AR AR B AR ERAT A Hh SR A
R385 o NFFNAETF_H=+—H &
SRAT L R TR (R R B R b (R e 2 e
fERTE W M2 &% 39,212,000 #7T
(—FZ)\AE 139,188,000 #5 IC) ©

i SR

AT ITF LB HEARNE LS
Hytufazi RE2RER - B
TR [ oA ] K~ AR K R B AT (R
5 M Fi BT Rl o 5% 5 38 T B e A
MO R B B o AT JB 2 B SR AT 2
K51 36,048,500,000 7 T ( . EF T /A ¢
130,793,038,000 % JC ) o it ~FE )\ 4 >
ARERATHE B 2 LA AT A8 J e dE T
24,178,687,000 5 7T » {EA - F LA 4
AT S o N BB » REEITHL
bl 22 5 184347 AN 3L 49 28,737,000
WG (. )\4E @ 48,745,000 0) © #%
LR o T A5 B B B e 2 MRk (A7 )
SR IR 2 A BT T 5 4G > BAA
TR A T FLAth 8 7 SR B SR B 2 R EOE
15 o

43 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

a.  Ultimate holding company (continued)

Transactions with the ultimate holding company included the issuance
of certificates of deposit and subordinated floating rate notes, which
were both fully subscribed by the ultimate holding company and its
branches. As at 31 December 2009, the Bank has issued floating rate
certificates of deposit with a nominal value of US$100,000,000 to the
ultimate holding company (2008: fixed rate certificates of deposit with
nominal value of US$100,000,000).

Information relating to issuance of subordinated floating rate notes by
the Group, fully subscribed by the ultimate holding company and its
branch can be found in Note 39.

Other material transactions

Undertaking from the ultimate holding company

To demonstrate its support to the Bank, a letter of comfort dated
3 July 2001 was executed by the ultimate holding company,
pursuant to which it will provide the Bank with such funding
as may be required by the Bank to ensure that it will maintain
sufficient capital and liquidity levels.

Simultaneously on 3 July 2001, the ultimate holding company
and the Bank entered into a guarantee agreement whereby the
ultimate holding company agreed to guarantee to the extent of
HK$9,000,000,000 the payment obligations of certain customers
whose “large exposures” were transferred to the Bank pursuant
to a business transfer agreement and to indemnify the Bank in
respect of any losses incurred if any obligation of such customers
becomes unenforceable. The amount of such on-balance sheet
large exposures of the Bank covered by this guarantee as at
31 December 2009 was approximately HK$39,212,000 (2008:
HK$39,188,000).

Sub-participation of loans

The Bank entered into various capital markets transactions
with the Branch, which include arranging participation/sub-
participation in loans, acquiring and disposing of interests
in syndicated or individual loans, subscribing to and/or
issuing of debt securities and tax efficient financing. These
transactions included sub-participation in loans of the Bank
by the ultimate holding company and/or the Branch for a total
of HK$36,048,500,000 (2008: HK$130,793,038,000). For 2008,
there was similar sub-participation in loans of the Branch
by the Bank for a total of HK$24,178,687,000, but no such
transaction took place during 2009. The total fee attributable to
the above transactions of approximately HK$28,737,000 (2008:
HK$48,745,000) was paid by the Bank to the Branch in 2009.
These transactions were priced based either on the terms of the
underlying loan agreement, if applicable, or prevailing market
rates if such comparable rates were available, or on terms that
were no less favorable than those available to other independent
loan members.
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43 BAERZ G @) 43 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
b. FRMEAF b.  Fellow subsidiaries
2009 2008
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FLE A Interest income 15,468 16,716
FE S Interest expense 1,452 23,457
HoAth 2Bl Other operating income 211 =
JE W 4% Amounts due from 476 476
JEA 458 Amounts due to 1,571,449 1,562,725
[¢ | c.  Associates
2009 2008
T T#oo
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FLEMA Interest income 1,899 611
FILE Interest expense 78 596
HoAtb g S Other operating income 1 3,510
e 4 %H Amounts due from 6 2,635
JEAT %A Amounts due to 7,769 28,355
d. BEH R EERI B 23 5 d. Transactions with other state-controlled entities

AT 1 ¢ 42 il B A cAsd 2 B ey

e 2 FECHR ([ HA B )
FUESBCEARITVEAF ([
MESHE A A LR 2 & P B R 7R 2

The following state-controlled entities are considered as related parties:

- The Ministry of Finance (“MOF”) of the PRC
- Central Huijin Investment Limited (“Huijin”)

- Other banks and financial institutions under the direction of the

T HABSRAT B <5 Rl A PRC government in which Huijin has equity interests
2009 2008
T#IT T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
F B A Interest income 64,440 91,847
LR SZ Interest expense 14,782 43,158
JRE i< B Amounts due from 8,146,831 4,076,075
JEAT 4258 Amounts due to 1,010,312 3,819,913

236 i TREERAT (4E) A PR/ R Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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43  PBHER G o) 43 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
€. FEATBN B4 & Key management personnel’s remuneration

EEATHA B S > BIRHERR M 17(a) 2 &
SRATHE TN <5 I B 17(b) 2 .44 B s T N £

Remuneration for key management personnel, including the Bank’s
directors’ emoluments as disclosed in Note 17(a) and the five highest

24 > IR paid individuals as disclosed in Note 17(b), is as follows:
2009 2008
T#T THIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
i 5 A Employee benefits 22,611 24,758
f. BRIEESGBABZERZY f.  Material transactions with key management personnel
AR TN o AR [E B R N AR E R T TR ) R During the year, the Group entered into certain banking transactions
T2 8RIT38 5 » WIEEK ~ A7 3 S H A 4 Rl AH consisting of loans and advances, deposits and other financial related
B35 - BN L RIEARITZ EETEA transactions with related parties in the normal course of business.
B~ HFR RN A Fe sz HEE| s R 3] - The related parties include key management personnel of the Bank,
their close family members and companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them.
2009 2008
T T T
HK$’000 HK$000
FE A Interest income 134 178
FLE S H Interest expense 141 356
£ Loans and advances 4,347 5,657
AEK Deposits 18,513 21,245

Loans to officers

g BMTITBARZEHK
HRIE A R B2 161B (4B) R Z HLAE - ATIL

Particulars of the loans made to officers and disclosed pursuant to

NEHER 2 S E T Section 161B(4B) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as
follows:
BT HZ T — HZARER A AP IR R A
Balance outstanding at Maximum balance during
31 December the year

2009 2008 2009 2008

T Tt T#T Tt

HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$000

RAEHRA G KR B AR Aggregate amount outstanding in 4,347 5,657 5,309 6,562

respect of principal and interest
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44 EEAERINE B 44 OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES

() ERAREME MRS (a) Contingent liabilities and commitments
DA £ A 2 BRI ) B8R B R IE I A A The following are summaries of the contractual amounts of each
SR - significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:
2009 2009 2008 2008
HREW R BB SRR R EEBEE
Contractual Credit risk Contractual Credit risk
amount  weighted amount amount  weighted amount
T#L T T THIT
A Group HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
B AR Direct credit substitutes 7,021,198 3,630,946 14,701,288 7,777,596
BT G A B 2 sk B 1R Transaction-related contingencies 132,742 36,848 314,227 101,271
HLRE o) A T 2 siSR B fE Trade-related contingencies 3,931,297 644,944 2,978,820 534,506
HoAth RS Other commitments
— A GRS - Unconditionally cancellable 71,161,225 - 58,436,103 -
— I H DA 1 4R ~ With original maturity of
less than one year 824,324 126,086 278,817 55,763
—JEE A B AE 14E & DA B - With original maturity of
over one year 19,871,892 9,792,424 10,697,995 5,210,014
A AR Forward forward deposits placed 814,703 162,941 2,310,099 462,020
103,757,381 14,394,189 89,717,349 14,141,170
2009 2009 2008 2008
FREW R BmRER aREE FREBMER
Contractual Credit risk Contractual Credit risk
amount  weighted amount amount  weighted amount
T Tl Tt Fibe
ARGAT Bank HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
B AR Direct credit substitutes 2,119,160 1,258,280 2,459,258 1,672,433
B 50 A B 2 3R B Transaction-related contingencies 132,742 36,848 314,227 101,271
HLRE o) A T 2 AR B Trade-related contingencies 3,931,297 644,944 2,978,820 534,506
HIB R s Asset sales with recourse 193,875 193,875 - -
HoAthrx o - Other commitments
— ] SR - Unconditionally cancellable 71,161,225 - 58,436,103 -
— JEE B H AR 1 4R - With original maturity of less
than one year 778,627 116,946 180,564 36,113
—JEEAHFE 14 A B - With original maturity of
over one year 19,497,830 9,605,393 10,598,459 5,160,246
Z A B R Forward forward deposits placed 814,703 162,941 2,310,099 462,020
98,629,459 12,019,227 77,277,530 7,966,589

ZEEJUFE4EIR Annual Report 2009
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44 HERRERIMEER @)
(b) A

R EERENE+TH =+ HZ R H R
T BRI 1 28 B e AR SR AR A T

44 OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (continued)

(b) Capital commitments

Capital commitments for property, plant and equipment outstanding as
at 31 December 2009 not provided for in the financial statements were

as follows:
A 4R I A GAT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T#T THIT T TH#E T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
CRT A MRS 2 S Expenditure contracted
but not provided for 48,111 4,268 47,956 4,135
CRHEMEAR FT A 2 S Expenditure authorised
but not contracted for 235 7,505 235 7,505
48,346 11,773 48,191 11,640

(c) RBMA RS

R FERIVE A = — B AR KA SRAT
AR AN T HHBH Y 8 LA 1A R A B AT Y i (IR AL

Operating lease commitments

At 31 December 2009, the Group and the Bank had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as

SREFEINT follows:
B B A GAT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T T TH#x THIT
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
o3 R Land and buildings
——4ER - Not later than one year 237,070 239,993 235,248 236,439
——4LE - Later than one year and not
B LAEDAA later than five years 503,870 833,255 503,409 830,171
— AR E - More than five years - 48,420 - 48,420
740,940 1,121,668 738,657 1,115,030
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44 EEABERINEFE @ 44
(d) REHLATHE

7 41 T AR 487 A6 AR A6 2 PR 4 T R AR T
FLAR 2 RELAY ARG A% 3 (LR R M

) o AR — B E AR AL ZE ST AR 2
& o MRV B E AR I T DU A Hh R o

MERBAFEF—HA=Z+—H  AEEHLT
] 303 00 PR AR AS T i ) A R A TR R AR R
HORF 1 i (RAR S ABRRA T

OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (continued)
(d) Operating lease arrangements

The Group leases its investment properties (Note 31 to the financial
statements) under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from two to five years. The terms of the leases
generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

At as 31 December 2009, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

A AHUT
Group Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
T-#IL T T#T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—4E A Within one year 1,659 2,203 320 320
ZE A (EEE EWAF) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 3,561 2,814 - =
5,220 5,017 320 320
AR A B B MR AR AT AT R R RR B U AR 4 (2 During the year, the Group has no unrecognised contingent rentals
B\ ) receivable (2008: Nil).
45 HEHRPFIHE 45 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT
MR —RFE=A=+=H> %K'fﬁﬁégﬁﬁﬁ/\ ) On 23 March 2010, ICBC Asia Wa Pei Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary

ICBC Asia Wa Pei Limited B 5& il 5 #EFE 7 > HAREE
K BAE S Al B 54,858,000 15 TG K 8,548,000 5 7T > Ml EL
NGB H AR AASRAT o

46 L4 46

ﬁﬂﬁﬁf’?iﬁﬁﬁl‘i‘iz 2 ZHE— AP WA > AR AR AT
R SUETT A i s i S M A > 5 TIH E RASERR B

a%i&i%*z)\ﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁmﬂ*fw‘% SR o B5
I > 5T M B T A S TS > DA AR
IR st B o

47 B APERE A ] 47

A e M T 2 o B T PR SR AT IR A PR 1 T AR 6
1T 2 B AN a] o
48 AR Z bk 48

RBRARIE —F—FAE = =+ 0 H AR e
L ARG, -
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of the Bank, had completed its liquidation process with its total assets and
liabilities of HK$54,858,000 and HK$8,548,000 respectively as of the date of
liquidation fully transferred to the Bank.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in Note 2.2 to the financial statements, due to the
adoption of new and revised HKFRSs during the year, the accounting
treatment and presentation of certain items and balances in the financial
statements have been revised to comply with the new requirement.
Accordingly, certain comparative amounts have been reclassified and restated
to conform with the current year’s presentation and accounting treatment.

THE ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the Bank is

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, which is established in the
PRC.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board
of Directors on 24 March 2010.
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Supplementary Financial Information

T IR BA RS R B EERE 2 R 20 > SIS AR A
FABSRRALATER Y o

The following information is disclosed as part of the accompanying information to
the financial statements and does not form part of the audited financial statements.

A TE R AR AEE i

RETIR EFNE A=+ —HZEARLK Ty
T2 R A s 4 T A L) i B o 2 RAT CEAR) AR (T &
AR ]) G o HCEASKR N TIAR R A e SR AT ZE M 9155
98 A e IR JEE T il B SE T e A o s i il > Sl A &
FAE— A — B AR o ARSRAT PR EEAS K B i FSR 452 R A
[ ({5 S 7t ) ot (e B8 R 2 el g i e
BEE ~ PRAN [ B AR AR 0 ) RS A SR S AR A
[ (T ) G IRt TS B - R E AR
Al > FHEEAR R S S IR T IR BE I S Rt 2 5
R > (HIPREASBRANA 2 5 [ 2 SR E ] (B
TRBg s T Z M B AT o F > S RGEHZ
Bt A 7] 2 3808 A @A EEARSERRE I BR o 3% 5 R4
A B8 2 R AREATART Y5 42 S 06k o AR B 2 7] 4%
KB ZERS E A BRA R ~ TR & A FR
) ~ TAREEM S AR ~ LERER I GEHA FRA
A > TERERIMECHRA R ~ TEREMEEE AR
N TARERIN G B A PR/ 7] ) ICBC (Asia) Wa

Pei Nominees Limited °

1

CAPITAL ADEQUACY AND CAPITAL BASE

The capital ratios as at 31 December 2009 were computed in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules (the “Capital Rules”) issued by the HKMA under
section 98A of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for the implementation of
the “Basel II” with effect from 1 January 2007. In view of the Capital Rules, the
Bank has adopted the “standardized (credit risk) approach” for the calculation
of the risk-weighted assets for credit risk, “basic indicator approach” for
the calculation of the operational risk and the “standardized (market risk)
approach” for the calculation of market risk. Under the Capital Rules, the basis
of consolidation in calculating the capital ratios follow that of the financial
reporting with the exclusion of subsidiaries which are “regulated financial
entities” (e.g., insurance and securities companies) as defined by the Capital
Rules. Accordingly the investment costs of these unconsolidated subsidiaries
are deducted from the capital base. There is no capital shortfall of these
unconsolidated subsidiaries. Unconsolidated subsidiaries include UB China
Business Management Co. Ltd., ICBC (Asia) Investment Holdings Limited,
ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited, ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited, ICBC
(Asia) Trustee Company Limited, ICBC (Asia) Asset Management Company
Limited, ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited and ICBC
(Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited.

2009 2008
B EAR R Core capital ratio 9.0% 7.3%
EATEE R Capital adequacy ratio 14.9% 13.6%
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1 EARTER AR R EAEERE (a0 1 CAPITAL ADEQUACY AND CAPITAL BASE (continued)
FINEAR B B AL A A AR A G L R IR The components of the total capital base after deductions include the

following items:

2009 2008
TH#x T T
HK$’000 HK$000
BEA Core capital:
U EE A Paid-up ordinary share capital 2,636,681 2,570,536
J 073 Vi 1 Share premium 8,640,575 8,209,593
it it Reserves 2,608,537 621,457
HETES Income statement 1,139,434 407,616
FIBR - PR Deduct: Goodwill (980,154) (980,154)
HoAth ST & Other intangible assets (19,282) (31,318)
R QU T R A Net deferred tax assets - (137,547)
REFH BT 50% 50 per cent of the total unconsolidated
KA IE H investments and other deductions (898,244) (431,507)
13,127,547 10,228,676
BRI INEA Eligible supplementary capital:
b R M 2 A A TAE (B AR Fair value gains on the revaluation of land and buildings 5,302 5,095
M LS 55 7 2 e Fair value gains on the revaluation of available-for-sale
AL A AR IR 25 equities and debt securities 569,191 -
68 AA-TAEM R 25 RAMRZ 7 Unrealised fair value gains arising from equities and debt
5 B AERER BB T EE R a5 securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 18,818 -
A A B EAR S5 T (i Collective impairment allowances and regulatory reserve 1,255,137 1,162,545
IK AR AR Perpetual subordinated debts 3,481,600 3,480,032
DAEGH R AS A BR 2 15 (8 5 0E Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost 4,141,170 4,487,308
HER - REFEHERFHZ 50% Deduct: 50 per cent of the total unconsolidated
Fe HAtb g 5 H investments and other deductions (898,244) (431,507)
8,572,974 8,703,473
FOUR A 2 A A AR AR Total capital base before deductions 21,700,521 18,932,149
B A BB AR AR R Deductions from total capital base - -
AR 2 B A FL A Total capital base after deductions 21,700,521 18,932,149
RGN Risk-weighted assets
R EJE B Credit risk 137,671,817 130,373,943
T35 Fi Market risk 1,118,738 2,937,625
AR JE B Operational risk 7,194,275 6,059,438
JEVB TIARE 4 7 AR Total risk-weighted assets 145,984,830 139,371,006
2 mEESR 2 LIQUIDITY RATIO
SR JIE Y ) 40 % T 4% T ) 4t B 4 e R i The average liquidity ratio for the year is the simple average of each calendar
PR S S RS R AR E PSR & SRR UE month’s average liquidity ratio, which is computed on the consolidated basis
A B A B WCEATIR BT R 4 - as required by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and is computed in
accordance with the Fourth Schedule to the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.
A4
Group
2009 2008
SR JE S Y ) 4 U Average liquidity ratio for the year 40.2% 37.0%
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3 [EEORBE - % B % T B R 2 A 3  CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL AND
it MARKET RISKS

(a) fEERE B

(@) ALEEE TSNS SRR (TS (@)
o ELRTARAR A 1) AR AR AR S P A
(fF SRR s R S A TR BOK

(a) Credit risk

The Group uses the following external credit assessment
institutions (“ECAIs”) to calculate its capital adequacy
requirements under the standardized (credit risk) approach
prescribed in the Capital Rules:

-  BHBER = Moody’s Investors Service
- BT K - S&P’s Ratings Services
—  HURE R - Fitch Ratings

U B R 7 5 R AR AT YE (f
FEE B ) w1 I RO B R ZOR N

The capital requirements on each class of exposures under the
standardised (credit risk) approach as at the end of reporting

T period are summarised as follows:
2009 2008
T#x T
HK$’000 HK$°000
B EREH On-balance sheet
EREE R Sovereign exposures 25,891 31,501
IR IR Public sector entity exposures 26,977 21,211
LB RIT B Multilateral development bank exposures - -
TR Bank exposures 2,868,437 1,822,690
B o A Securities firm exposures 18,040 200
AR Corporate exposures 5,447,259 6,131,348
ARG R Collective investment scheme exposures 18,560 -
BlgIHH Cash items 9,225 9,704
BEMEZE KRR Regulatory retail exposures 434,625 354,525
(EREERIISEN Residential mortgage loans 464,143 417,416
FoAf I 2 3 2 Ja B Other exposures which are not past due exposures 435,325 361,290
U Past due exposures 34,789 31,586
BEAREERERIEE 2 G T A Total capital charge for on-balance sheet exposures 9,783,271 9,181,471
HEAMIINEE Off-balance sheet
HEE SRR Direct credit substitutes 290,476 622,208
SR G A 2 SR EfE Transaction-related contingencies 2,948 8,102
B 5 A B 2 SR A S Trade-related contingencies 51,595 42,760
A R Forward asset purchases - -
FM AR 2 B e 7 Partly paid-up shares and securities - -
AR Forward forward deposits placed 13,035 36,962
AT AR AR 2 AR Unconditionally cancellable commitments - -
HAt kA Other commitments 793,481 421,262
[ERAH Exchange rate contracts 43,129 70,027
FIREH Interest rate contracts 29,721 40,324
FAHE R & 4 Equity contracts 2,677 14
RIEH U SRR e R OTC derivative transactions and credit derivative contracts
BAMiTE THA O REEATE TR AA  subject to valid bilateral netting agreements - =
Ak FAb R A T A 2 Other off-balance exposures which are not elsewhere specified
HAbEE A ERINE R - -
B AR INE R 2 B AR S A Total capital charge for off-balance sheet exposures 1,227,062 1,241,659
fr B 2 B S 4 Total capital charge for credit risk 11,010,333 10,423,130

BRI ARG ] A B S5 2
JR B S HE R 3T A 8% st G o AN S WA R
B EBEEEA -

The capital requirement is made by multiplying the Group’s risk-
weighted amount derived from the relevant calculation approach
by 8%. It does not reflect the Group’s actual regulatory capital.
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30 R - T R B B T R B AR 3 CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL AND
75 MARKET RISKS (continued)
(@) f& BB ) (a) Credit risk (continued)
(i)  H B ANER(E BT AR A 1 P 4 (ii) Where exposures have been rated by the above-mentioned
F1| JEU R A 4 ECALIs, they are categorised under the following classes of
exposures:
e - Sovereign exposures
- AERRER —  Public sector entity exposures
— ZBREETER - Multilateral development bank exposures
= SRATERE - Bank exposures
— WA REEE = Securities firm exposures
- EEE = Corporate exposures
— AaRESHRER - Collective investment scheme exposures
(iii)  ASSE BSRAT E A DAS 2R SN BRSSP A) (iii) The process used to map ECAIs issuer ratings or ECAIs issue
WS EEAT N FESR BRANER (S B R AR MM 21 T specific ratings in the Group’s banking book is consistent with
5 E RE AR R e B AR KR R 22 R — those prescribed in the Capital Rules.
H o
(b) 3 E B (b) Operational risk
T s 4 S L R AR 48 B AR BN S 24(1) () M6 AL HKMA has granted approval under section 24(1)(a) of the Capital
YHEZS £E [ (5 ) 2 ZE 7 B A T 8 — 22 S AR AE G Rules for the Group to use the Basel II Basic Indicator Approach to
DA A R o [R>S A A B A calculate its operational risk. The Group thus applies this approach in
JEE: 7 TR B PR O 5 > LI R Ak 7 v < R managing operational risk, but is simultaneously adopting the relevant
JRZ AREEIRS c N _EEIUFE+ _H=1— supervising guidelines of the HKMA. As at 31 December 2009, the
H > 278 R 2 B S £ 575,542,000 W G (% capital charge for operational risk amounted to HK$575,542,000 (2008:
ZJ\AF- 484,755,040 7T) © HK$484,755,040).
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30 R - T R B B T R B AR 3 CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL AND
Hj 75 MARKET RISKS (continued)
(c) TiEE kR (¢) Market risk
B i A ERAT 4 AT 2 T 35 a1 B S AR T Market risk activities currently undertaken by the Bank can basically be
O35y [ S RIA | B [ I3 G HRIA | - divided into “Trading Book” and “Non-Trading Book”.
3 BRI Trading Book:
2 5 W TR L35 Al AL 8 B 53 ) ) B B TR It consists of proprietary positions in financial instruments and
e, 55 7 3 ol U ) 5 At ol e A 5 T R derivatives which are held for re-sale or which are taken on with the
ZaEMTHRETATRZ AR R - trading intention of benefiting from actual and/or expected short-term
price or interest rate movements.
A [ N A B e e LT 8 R B R [ A e The Group applies the “standardized approach” for its market risk
Bl W _FENAF+ HA=T—HZ 5k in the Capital Rules. The trading book positions as at 31 December
TH M St 5 2 B 3 H 189,499,040 70 (% 2009 and their capital consumptions are HK$89,499,040 (2008:
ZF\AFE © 235,010,000 7T) © A ZFEILE K HK$235,010,000). The market risk capital requirement for trading
FENFET A= —HARZE S REZ T books as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 are:
R EAREWT -
Vi 5 R A iy
Market risk capital charges
2009 2008
T#T THTT
o, gt 35 2 Risk type HK$°000 HK$°000
25 J o — e Interest rate exposure — specific risk 1,046 334
i — — i i Interest rate exposure — general market risk 58,367 137,113
Jil&Ny Equity exposures 3,352 3,392
1 JEL iz Foreign exchange exposures 22,692 94,171
T it JEL P Commodity exposures - =
R R R Option exposures 4,042 -
At Total 89,499 235,010
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3 [EEORBE - % B % T B R 2 A 3 CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL AND
H o) MARKET RISKS (continued)

(c) T 55 SR B (40) (c) Market risk (continued)

AN AR E SR E —EFUE A =1+ — The following histograms show the frequency distribution of daily
AHRERZZFZNF+ZH=1—HILFEEARELEH revenues related to market risk activities of the Group for the years

2 T 5 AR S B A B 2 A H U A SRR o ended 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008.

BEZZZAET AT PR
For the year ended 31 December 2009
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3 A5 ERRURE - B B i 5 R B 2 AR 3 CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL AND
t[:ll (%) MARKET RISKS (continued)
(c) TG mE B (50 (c) Market risk (continued)
BE_ZZNFET+_A=Z+T—HIEFE, K& The average daily revenue earned from the Group’s market risk related
A5 [ B T 55 R A B 2E T 2 A B IR A activities during the year ended 31 December 2009 was HK$124,235
B124,235W 0 ( EE )\ 1 17350280 > (2008: HK$173,542) and the standard deviation for such daily revenue
M7 264 H A 2 e AR 22 4% 909,522 ¥ oG (=% was HK$909,522 (2008: HK$2,327,709). An analysis of the frequency
T4 £ 2,327,708 C) o oM EHIRAZ distribution of daily revenue showed that losses were recorded on
MG E S EFEFIFEZ 24958 7 B H > 107 days out of 249 trading days for the year 2009 (2008: 110 days out
107 H k5 k48 (=2 F 4 : 244825 5 H of 244 trading days). The maximum daily loss was HK$4.83 million
o A 110 H 8k S EE18) > am 2 — H 1R A (2008: HK$15.04 million). The highest daily revenue was HK$3.72
4,830,000 #570 (= FF/\4E 1 15,040,000 #570) © million (2008: HK$28.85 million). In respect of proprietary trading and
e 2 — BRI A 3,720,000 #5 0T (- FF\ customers’ expectation, the Group will gradually expand the scope of
AF 128,850,000 00) - SEHA B E AEF 2 treasury products and services to complement its conventional reliance
AT S - ASHE [ 928 A0 80 o JEE 4 1l 2 B RS on loan assets for revenue. In the process, the Group will watch out for
i > AT B DASRARIE A A A AR the resulting market risk, and counterparty credit risk, liquidity and
A o JRBZIBAR > 7S A (B 19 25 170 IR 1 AR e E A capital implications.
2 iR~ TR RER - WBEE RS
S 2 X
28 7 BRI Non-Trading Book:
R GIREAFBERME - B eSS - &8 It consists of structured foreign exchange and interest rate risk positions
Ko | I RS A B2 2 R AR B T A AR arising from funding and liquidity management as well as investment
) 4 e 1 T ) 5 L g il 11 ol 4 PR v 455340 and balance sheet activities from non-treasury related business.
HEAT Z BRIE B KRR A FBUE SO B R o Debt securities activities undertaken by Global Markets & Trading
Department are largely for investment and liquidity management
purpose.
4 BEMFL 4 ASSET SECURITISATION
RN s ARSRATINA B RS R AL E R S AR EE - B During the year, the Bank only acted as an investor in related securitisation
SHBUE RIS ~ A T % HE B R ) T A T T M FR A exposure. Ratings from Moody’s Investors Service, S&P’s and Fitch Ratings
FHRFEE RS LR o B A GRAT i R Re 2 AL IR 25 are adopted in assessing securitisation exposures. Since the securitisation
B AL RIS R 158 rT SRS S e AR T WP A exposures held by the Bank are all rated by recognised ECAIs designated by
ARGRATER AR HE (Bl R EEERT SR INRE(S S mlbs - the Capital Rules, the Bank uses the standardized (securitisation) approach
ASGRAT BT B AR R R to calculate the weighted credit risk for these exposures. The Bank closely
monitors the risk arising from these exposures.
FEIRR FEE AR _FENE A =+—H The following table indicates the securitisation exposures as at 31 December
Z S B R 2009 and 2008:
R BRI
Exposures deducted from its
R0 2009 SR MBS HARE BB A Hs g A
Outstanding Risk-weighted Capital Core  Supplementary
amounts amounts requirements capital capital
Tl Tl T#x T# T
Fieadle bl g3 Securitisation exposures HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
LS ited Traditional securitisations
IR Instalment loan 105,643 21,129 1,690 - -
TEBY Ok Retail mall properties 97,814 19,563 1,565 - -
Hoply Others 1,967 1,963 157 2 2
205,424 42,655 3,412 2 2
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4 HEHR @ 4 ASSET SECURITISATION (continued)
R BRI 1
Exposures deducted from its
e = 2008 BE AR AAME Bl A WA A
Outstanding Risk-weighted Capital Core Supplementary
amounts amounts requirements capital capital
Tkt TH#IT Tt Tt Tt
Gl N ui Securitisation exposures HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEieeedld Traditional securitisations
oYK Instalment loan 106,021 21,204 1,696 - -
TR O E Retail mall properties 97,943 19,589 1,567 - =
Hits Others 44,404 44,025 3,522 190 190
248,368 84,818 6,785 190 190
A ZRFIET ZH = — AR ERE GEL) i Capital requirement of securitisation exposures under the standardized
HIE RS SR AL BB A B R 4 3,412,332 900 (&% (securitisation) approach at 31 December 2009 was HK$3,412,332 (2008:
J\AE 1 6,785,391 % 00) o N EENE+ _H="+— HK$6,785,391). The deductible items from core and supplementary capital
H AR5 2 w5 AL B A% 0 B BRI AR o wT 40k T8 B under asset securitisation at 31 December 2009 amounted to HK$3,996 (2008:
3,996 #EE (—FE/\AE : 378,982 0L) © HK$378,982).
5 BT 55 BB B Z R BRI 5 COUNTERPARTY CREDIT RISK-RELATED EXPOSURE
AERAT PR AN BT B 2R 465 V5 1 E SRAT M 32 5 A A The Bank has adopted the current exposure method (the “CEM”) to
135 5 A B2 5 3 F- 07 A SRS 1) JRU R A IS A o determine the exposure amount for inter bank counterparty credit risk
AT ERJEEFZH =4 H o AT BRI (] 1] which arises from OTC derivative transactions in banking and trading
RoFAG BN E LEGH (2R« ) - RF books. As at 31 December 2009, there are no repo-style transactions nor
ZNEFTHA=+—H > IRERA R4 E R credit derivative contracts in the Bank (2008: Nil). No recognised collateral
FATAE T 5 A 10 E RERSARA it 16 2 B 505 {5 A including recognised credit derivative contracts is held as credit protection for
B (oA ) SB35 P 45 R PR R (R /A« ) o counterparty credit risk-related exposure as at 31 December 2009 (2008: Nil).
RIS AR E R AR Y B T O £ SRR A B The following table indicates the information of counterparty credit risk-
P4 JeRL o AR AfE A B R related exposures under the standardized approach:
AE AP 15 R J BB Ik AR
Gross total Credit Risk weighted
positive fair value equivalent amount
T T#T T#x
ZEFhA 2009 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RO RETRRS : OTC derivative transactions:
SRAT Bank 652,560 1,498,570 373,152
oA Others 416,629 729,922 570,935
1,069,189 2,228,492 944,087
S\ 2008
o AMITtE THAES) OTC derivative transactions:
AT Bank 1,477,597 2,519,656 710,873
HAth Others 480,037 675,355 668,691
1,957,634 3,195,011 1,379,564

B R AR S R BRI A TR A2 5 (R R A (B

WAHLE -

amounts of the derivative transactions.
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There is no effect of bilateral netting agreement on the credit equivalent
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P& Bl

6 UNKAE BB 6  CREDIT RISK MITIGATION
(@) BB IR B b 2 F (a) Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation
AGRAT O SR AR e T B RS S BT R BURIE & The Bank has established policies on managing and recognising credit
JEBg RS (FLIE 28 5 3 AT A T HL A8 B AR 1 risk mitigation, which are approved by the Credit Committee, for all
B O (5 B R B I RS e G RE ARG types of credit exposure under the standardised approach including
b 2 P R AR LB Y B o ANGR counterparty credit risk-related exposure which arises from OTC
AT F AR AL HE AP 5 R B AT A A M - 1] derivative transactions. The Bank applies prudent assessments of
U AR S B Tk S B Z B & M5 eligibility and quality of collateral. Acceptable credit risk mitigations
BRI FLE o ASSRAT AN i 16 E TR are as defined by the Credit Committee and/or regulatory authorities.
BOREET N > S 52 0 R T4l % U B o A fE The Bank also adheres to safe custodian of collateral, regular revaluation
e S H T R > IR AR AT B H TR and close monitoring. Marketable securities are marked to market on
i,/ E A > B8 H —YORITERM > a daily basis or, if daily revaluation/marked to market is unavailable, a
YISEZE A LAY - minimum of once a month, whilst properties are revalued periodically.
MEEEANFENS » LAEAR A ERN For regulatory capital calculation, only recognised collateral and
TERREGRAR IR Ay BB AR T T A B A e RS e guarantee defined in the Capital Rules are considered as recognised
ARSI o ASERAT A HE 22 {5 B RN B e 11K PR credit risk mitigations. The Bank applies the simple approach criteria as
GRS AR E f i B AT o stipulated in the Capital Rules in ascertaining credit risk mitigation.
TR A HCH A A ARSI BEAFE - 1T Recognised collateral includes eligible guarantees, cash deposits,
& ey - S KGR SR s AR o B gold, shares, debt securities and collective investments in transferable
EREE - EEAHE - IR R o BEE securities, commercial real estate, residential real estate, vehicles and
PR g 7 395 2 DA IS A PR A I S equipment. The exposure amount after mitigation is determined by
VB B Al R P AR A o JERR TSR A 5 S applying the standard supervisory haircut laid down by the Capital
W B B KA 7 O AL o) R AR - A - Rules to the current collateral value. Recognised guarantor is any
SRAT M 2 B RS 250 A s R AR ET A8 SR A5 () sovereign entity, public sector entity, bank and regulated securities
JRANERFEAR A B A- B AL o firm with a lower risk weight than the borrower, or company that is
internally rated with a rating equivalent to external rating of A-or
better.
N EENEKR FEENET+H=+—H The main types of guarantors and their external ratings as at 31
WEOR N T B R S AN EREEAR AT AR December 2009 and 2008 are analysed as follows:
Pl 28
Guaranteed amount
SRR ZERTNAE
2009 2008
RN T 5 T#x TH#:IC
Class of guarantors S&P’s equivalent HK$’000 HK$000
SRAT Bank AAA/AA- 21,404 48,323
A+/A- 39,770,069 22,623,042
T HER Sovereign AAA/AA- 982,466 75,196
40,773,939 22,746,561

A [ {6 P B A A i (48 e R KT
Ledfe ) 2 A & Riisgm bkt > Hes mEERAD -
HL L g Bl AT Tt B 32 22 R A K T I SRAT A I
FHEEF

There are limited credit and market risk concentrations within the
credit risk mitigants (recognised collateral and guarantees) used by
the Group, except for real estate which is extensively relied on for
risk mitigation in lending to non-bank corporate and non-corporate
customers.
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6  TARAE BB ) 6 CREDIT RISK MITIGATION (continued)
(b) M5B E BRI (b) Credit risk exposures

BEAEL T AR S ~ A2 15 A MRS M et
A5 7 G P A AT 25 B T A 5l B 7 4
FA SR ERAE FERT AR AR o T BASI 7R SRR A5 £
P AR AR A S FC RTS8 M P T S B AR A BT
PR ORI o A KL RN B 4 5000 PR E IO T o

S&P’s Ratings Services, Moody’s Investors Service and Fitch Ratings
are the ECAIs that the Group uses in relation to each and all classes
of exposures below. The process it used to map ECAI issuer ratings to
exposures booked in its banking book is a process as prescribed in Part

4 of the Capital Rules.
e £ 51 2009 LT B
MR A R IMRTER  BRTER
Exposures after recognised BRmER MBI MRRRE  RRRRE
JRRS A credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts ~ Totalrisk-  Exposure  Exposure
Total il ke cifs: RiFBe  weighted  coveredby  coveredby
SRR Class of exposures exposures* Rated®  Unrated® Rated”  Unrated® amounts  collateral  guarantees
REABHSH On-balance sheet
T Sovereign 972,680 9261234 981340 320,345 2089 33,634 - -
NEHE Public sector entity 1243953 143953 - B - B - -
ZRUREL Multilateral development bank - - - - - - - -
i Bank 50570230 28,044,828 62,082,397 10743496 25,111,966 35,855,462 - -
AT Securities firm 451,006 - 51006 - M3 205503 - -
¥ Corporate 15278707 13361813 59,685,654 8,405,088 59,685,654 68,090,742 3529907 38,701,333
Anterarsl Collective investment scheme 232,000 - 23000 -0 232,000 - -
H4AWHH Cash items 271,394 - 4414265 - 15318 115318 - -
TRETEEY Regulatory retail 9,141,454 S AYCNZA] - 543808 5432808 264584 163317
{EE R Residential mortgage loans 15,820,241 - 15792612 - 5801782 5801782 27,629 -
FUATE Fe e e d Other exposures which are
not past due exposures 5,954,743 - 5,441,564 - 5,441,564 5,441,564 320,751 192,428
oL Past due exposures 402,813 S /X )K] - 434860 434860 322,560 5,064
jgadlie V| Off-balance sheet
BRI LR A5 Off-balance sheet exposures other than
REATETEAALIAMY OTC derivative transactions or
B AR R AL credit derivative contracts 18789342 1333927 17455415 826387 13567802 14394189 934117 241987
M LRSS OTC derivative transactions 228492 615205 1613287 128243 815844 944087
REMETRAH Credit derivative contracts - - - - - - - -
Ak FAE AR T I Other off-balance sheet exposures
Hfb g A FRDRRAE not elsewhere specified - - - - - - - -
F B AR R R R R 1 Exposures deducted from capital base 1,796,488
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6 I)ﬁi{&ﬁ%\‘m IS,/‘?E (%8) 6 CREDIT RISK MITIGATION (continued)
(b) fEERBEASE @) (b) Credit risk exposures (continued)
“FENE 2008 B ERR R
TR ki MR R
Exposures after recognised AR RRMEAE  MEBRE  OEERE
il credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts ~ Totalrisk- ~ Exposure ~ Exposure
Towl  EFff  ARFR® EWBC AEFH© weighted  coveredby  coveredby
AR A Class of exposures exposures* Rated®  Unrated® Rated®  Unrated ® amounts  collateral  guarantees
BEAFREE On-balance sheet
i Sovereign 3,334,539 3,151,873 253,342 357,234 36,533 393,767 - -
NG 4 Public sector entity 946,91 817,263 129028 239332 5806 265138 - -
LERRR Multilateral development bank - - = = - - = -
17 Bank 42,589,791 15,978,578 49,099,056 5150075 17,633,545 22,783,620 - -
AT Securities firm 6,230 - 5006 - 2,503 2,503 124 -
¥ Corporate 104,811,051 8,181,907 71,565,661 5076,186 71,565,661 76,641,847 4664413 20,399,070
At Collective investment scheme - - - - - - - -
R Cash items 26211 - 54619 - % 1y - -
THETEEY Regulatory retail 8024810 - 5908758 - ABISE 481568 74105 1841947
IR Residential mortgage loans 12,566,382 - 5T - SATET 527697 23,668 -
AL A 0 et Other exposures which are
not past due exposures 5,054,201 - 4516128 = 4516128 4,516,128 220,574 317,499
R Past due exposures 374,653 - 374653 - 394825 394,805 316215 437
BEABRIMER Off-balance sheet
BssMiTE TR Off-balance sheet exposures other than
&M LAAAMSMY OTC derivative transactions or
KEARRNERALE credit derivative contracts BI6O06 135194 L8702 517959 136321 L4MLIT0 68705 183673
ST TR OTC derivative transactions 3195013 98LSI2 2213501 2050158 LIZA406 1379364 - -
fREMETERA Credit derivative contracts - - - - - - - -
ARG HMBA T I Other off-balance sheet exposures
Ll & (RN R 1 ot elsewhere specified - - = = - - = =
BRI Exposures deducted from capital base 863,104
* AR P08 1 Bk 15 14 A 46 B B 55 (R & Representing principal amount or credit equivalent amount, as applicable,
(N7 &) net of individual impairments
" ELAE B A IS AT AR R EEAT 4 A R AR * including exposures with ECAI issue specific rating and exposures which
BRI B BAT M ST AR SRR AR A (BNl T have an inferred rating (i.e. exposures which do not have an issue-specific
5 A A L R AR T A U 7 1Y rating but whose risk-weights are determined under the Capital Rules by
JELBR AR 275 SIS T AR ot J R 7R 4 reference to an ECAI issuer rating assigned to the obligor of the exposure
TR AT N GE AR BB A5 B 5 A3 A% el or to an ECAI issue rating of any other exposures of the obligor)
5 N AT AT HC A EUBR AR 35 10 L ) A TP AR
@ Representing exposures which do not have the ECAI issue specific rating
@ R B ARSI I A AT AR N AT 45 2 R AR A nor inferred rating

R T AP B AR Af
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7 AR

7  SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

(a) B - AT K H A4 Bl = Bk (a) Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions
1) BT~ BT LHAN S RS Sk — i (i)  Advances to customers, banks and other financial institutions —
B 5y by geographical area
A BE [ 485 T AT-{a] JE R s A% R R AR 7 B R The Group’s gross advances to customers, banks and other
S Sr B % 5~ SRAT SOH At B Rl A financial institutions by country or geographical area after taking
Z AR into account any risk transfers are as follows:
%P~ 8UT Rl
AR Sk A W =MA
Gross advances AR ¢ WSS WA ALSMARM
to customers, Overdue advances Impaired Individual Collective
banks and other for over three loans and impairment impairment
financial institutions months advances allowance allowance
T#xL T#xL T#x T#x T#L
“EZNAE 2009 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
il Hong Kong 75,287,249 264,493 588,759 268,285 288,708
i Mainland China 62,536,164 264,502 264,555 72,550 116,663
Y Macau 1,602,866 1 - - 4,054
Gy N Asia Pacific Region

(MR (excluding Hong Kong,

T S IR ) Mainland China and Macau) 2,230,517 - - - 16,891
] United Kingdom 240,796 - - - 3,782
Hits Others 5,765,601 - 505,304 101,061 23,294

147,663,193 528,996 1,358,618 441,896 453,392
EF 47 R
SR Bk AR =18 A

Gross advances P BB WMESH  EREEEE A BEER
to customers, Overdue advances Impaired Individual Collective
banks and other for over three loans and impairment impairment
financial institutions months advances allowance allowance
Fib7e Fibit Fibit ikt ikt
e IN:S 2008 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik Hong Kong 77,727,521 291,595 808,496 242,859 296,671
i Mainland China 49,801,743 - 80,469 39,647 34,146
s Macau 1,597,665 - - - 6,024

PN Asia Pacific Region

(NELTEA (excluding Hong Kong,

TR b R ) Mainland China and Macau) 2,511,335 = = = 14,718
g5 United Kingdom 9,563 - - = 93
FAl Others 5,122,120 - - - 27,197

136,769,947 291,595 888,965 282,506 378,849

P R B EL T T B A [R) TR 38 0 9N
LA R R 2R TG 1) HARER A 5 — B A
SRATRYISN AT B L T 7 & RS Sl

B -
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Risk transfers are only made if the claims are guaranteed by a
party in a country which is different from that of the counterparty
or if the claims are on an overseas branch of a bank whose head
office is located in another country.
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7 ERER @ 7  SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
(@) &P - SAT K ADA R Bk () (a) Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions (continued)
(i) BT~ SRAT S HA 4 RS 2 Sk AR — (ii)  Gross loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
i 3T 4 A institutions — by industry sector
AgH
Group
2009 2009 2008 2008
g ek RIS B AHEATE
Gross loans Bifh e 2 i Gross loans R
and advances % of secured and advances % of secured
T‘%TE advances :F {% fﬁ advances
HK$°000 % HK$'000 %
TR 2 Bk Loans for use in Hong Kong
T AT Industrial, commercial and financial
— Wt - Property development 11,729,026 31.10% 8,352,343 40.67%
— LA - Property investment 18,490,007 81.65% 20,070,465 76.87%
—&RtE - Financial concerns 8,315,020 2.34% 6,932,161 2.95%
— R H AL - Stockbrokers 429,430 99.67% 5,429 100.00%
—HERTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 6,100,255 48.57% 5,180,477 46.06%
—tARLRE - Civil engineering works 239,373 72.70% 209,574 65.11%
— Rk - Manufacturing 3,814,127 59.23% 4,005,977 51.91%
— i SOE R - Transport and transport equipment 9,224,828 68.39% 8,102,202 68.01%
— BN IR - Electricity and gas 143,772 100.00% 4,014 100.00%
— Bl RHE ~ Information technology 1,998,801 1.14% 1,510,208 0.43%
— TS - Recreational activities 3,155 100.00% 2,491 100.00%
=I5 AERKE - Hotels, boarding houses and catering 2,095,209 84.84% 760,375 80.73%
—Hfth - Others 4,869,563 32.34% 5,632,521 28.90%
R AL Individuals
—E [EEAHE] ~ Loans for the purchase of flats
(RAZERER S & in Home Ownership Scheme,
[THEERE | BAz &% Private Sector Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase Scheme 484,437 93.34% 373,563 90.68%
— B H AT - Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 14,165,865 99.81% 11,823,488 99.89%
—fEHRER - Credit card advances 94,156 0.00% 86,965 0.00%
—Hfth - Others 2,246,082 95.13% 2,096,453 97.08%
B ME Trade finance 15,775,567 14.15% 22,495,570 12.34%
e o DASME 2 B3R Loans for use outside Hong Kong 47,444,520 32.41% 39,087,671 32.00%
147,663,193 46.68% 136,769,947 44,53%
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7 OrEBERE e
(@) HF - 847 RIS RS S a0
i) HF ~ SRAT RO A A A B A —
B (a0
165 - AT SO Al & MR 2 S5

10% 5 A L 14 SE 5K ) 118 71 9k (1 6K
SARA VAL Z AR - A A A K

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions (continued)

(i)  Gross loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions — by industry sector (continued)

Individually impaired loans, overdue loans and advances over
three months, impairment allowances and impaired loans and
advances written off in respect of industry sectors that constitute

254 ] TREER4T (3E) B PR/A R Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
ZEEJUFE4EIR Annual Report 2009

TSR AT - 10% or more of the total advances to customers, banks and other
financial institutions are as follows:
ARG B
Group
2009 2008
T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
(a) WG (a) Property investment
A1 Bk (L K Individually impaired loans 146,800 244,043
=18 H DLz @i ek Overdue loans and advances over three months 22,041 166,530
AT 7 ol 24 Individual impairment allowance 5,110 9,738
A R Collective impairment allowance 50,235 62,392
TN AR R S B 2 e (Y A New impairment allowance charged to the income statement (16,786) 32,635
A TR ol L B Impaired loans and advances written off during the year 6,601 -
) O RE (b) Trade finance
1R A 9ok K Individually impaired loans 85,293 186,185
=18 H DLz @i ek Overdue loans and advances over three months 85,052 34,490
AT 7 Sl 24 Individual impairment allowance 80,868 93,767
A R Collective impairment allowance 34,887 33,762
TN AR R S B 2 e (Y A New impairment allowance charged to the income statement (11,774) 66,048
AF TR A ik L B Impaired loans and advances written off during the year 109,727 43,828
(c) TEFELASM 2 Bk (c) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
1A 9ok K Individually impaired loans 993,218 195,495
=8 H DLz @i ek Overdue loans and advances over three months 373,606 56,270
AT 7 Sl 24 Individual impairment allowance 307,576 103,922
A R Collective impairment allowance 188,153 108,327
TN AR R S B 2 e (Y A New impairment allowance charged to the income statement 283,480 97,871
AF: TR ok L B Impaired loans and advances written off during the year 21,871 24,739
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7 SHEERE
(b) EEBIHR

7S T g o [ 53 125 58 AR o A AR AS 3 AT IR
AT O 5t B BLAE 5 77 MR AN IR B 5K 2 55— T
PIAEEAR < BEAZ RS o A MBS 55 H 2R 10% DL B

7 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
(b) Cross-border claims
The Group analyses cross-border claims by geographical area. In

determining this analysis, the Group has taken into account transfer of
risk with respect to claims guaranteed by a party in a country different

Z USRI from that of the counterparty. Those areas that constitute 10% or more
of the aggregate cross-border claims are as follows:
BAT R
Jofb S b
Banks and BEBERE
other financial ~ Public sector Jofib A
institutions entities Others Total
LiE Yo LR Yo T H#C T ##L
HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
ZRFhA 2009
CH N7 Asia Pacific
(NEIEEE) (excluding Hong Kong) 28,137 4,245 55,941 88,323
EIE TS| North and South America 3,726 2,451 6,417 12,594
R Europe 17,065 - 929 17,994
ZET)NE 2008
K [ Asia Pacific
(NEIEEE) (excluding Hong Kong) 32,334 2,617 38,827 73,778
EIE TS North and South America 8,881 1,104 6,041 16,026
BB Europe 10,249 = 565 10,814
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7 SHEERE

7 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

(0)  PIHLIESRAT IE B Ak % (©)

1B Ay i SRAT SR B R 388 T £ R AT 38 T 0 8
A AR 45 7 s < A B R SRATT 3 (DR ) KA
T AE B B SRR R IS TR K8 25 It (6) [ £
AR B IER BT R — MA(BS)2A ] 19
SRS IERT AT - AR ASERAT K1 SN
DN B AT SR v R A S A A o

Non-bank Mainland China exposures

The analysis of non-bank Mainland China exposures is based on
the categories of non-bank counterparties and the types of direct
exposures defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules with reference to the completion instructions in Note 6 of the
“Returns of Quarterly Analysis of Loans and Advances and Provisions
— MA(BS)2A”, which includes the Mainland China exposures extended
by the Bank and its overseas subsidiary and branch.

WRAMGR  WEARRND AR
B A R BB 7R At R WPl Z Al
On-balance Off-balance TR H Individually
sheet sheet Total assessed
exposure exposure exposures allowances
T T#T T#T Tt
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
ZZRNE 2009
R A Mainland China entities 24,138,564 5,826,938 29,965,502 -
BB (5 B0 v B P S Y Companies and individuals outside
o At A S IR 8 ) Mainland China where the credit is
PLEIN granted for use in Mainland China 14,314,188 895,502 15,209,690 133,965
AREATRR Sy HR B RS Other counterparties where the exposure is
B A 3t SR AT R B A considered by the Bank to be non-bank
Z HAOETFIr Mainland China exposure 3,775,205 48,813 3,824,018 1,290
42,227,957 6,771,253 48,999,210 135,255
ZEE N\ 2008
] A b Mainland China entities 18,246,241 1,144,763 19,391,004 -
FURERAR R0 v 1 A Hb 5 74 Companies and individuals outside
o R 3 A S [ 4 ] Mainland China where the credit is
BeAiN granted for use in Mainland China 14,747,579 1,104,903 15,852,482 121,849
ARGRATRR A FLR B R Other counterparties where the exposure is
o A A T SR A considered by the Bank to be non-bank
ZHAMETF Mainland China exposure 996,813 26,459 1,023,272 24,428
33,990,633 2,276,125 36,266,758 146,277
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8 AP FpEE 8 CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

SN R — T R M AR S B R AR GRAT 2 SN R A T
HH o SN R AR R R T A S R R
KR Z 10% B LA BT DU o BUREZ MM 7e B A
BB g R MR AR AN T > FHE W R
WInZ A I REAEE) LB o

Currency concentrations — the table below summarises the net foreign
currency positions of the Group and the Bank. The net positions in foreign
currency is disclosed when the currency constitutes 10% or more of the total
net position of all foreign currencies. A sensitivity analysis calculates the
effect of a reasonably possible movement in a currency rate against the Hong
Kong dollar, with all other variables in the income statement and equity held

constant.
AN
eI N HE L) T bR R ] ¥B5  Other foreign Bt
Us$ RMB JPY NZD CHF GBP currencies Total
A% Group TlL T#n T Tin TirL TiL TL T#n
> K3 2009 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EI3 1 521 Non-structural position
HE & Spot assets 86,907,654 9,297,418 1,788,980 785,658 84,132 114,045 7,277,737 106,255,624
HEAR Spot liabilities (88,627,701)  (9,428,321) (380,549)  (1,022,437) (83,693)  (1,332,928)  (9,342,294) (110,217,923)
HHEA Forward purchases 42,625,084 23,655,848 2,512,865 734,436 372,409 1,469,551 9,586,605 80,956,798
HEIE L Forward sales (40,673,650)  (23,499,689)  (3,713,344) (596,882) (325,005) (204,746)  (7,805,448)  (76,818,764)
HIREAE AR Net option position (325,790) - (78,553) 124,676 (8,997) (718) 297,500 8,118
A%/ (Jal) I8 Netlong/(short) position (94,403) 25,256 129,399 25,451 38,846 45,204 14,100 183,853
R R R Net structural position 478,849 1,662,351 - - - - 20,644 2,161,844
Hib &
EIH NG H A i P b mRr #B  Other foreign M5t
US$ RMB JPY NZD CHF GBP currencies Total
AEEH Group Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
ZEENE 2008 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FEEAR Non-structural position
BEERE Spot assets 74,119,558 8794490 11,984,424 450,489 23,350 410,947 7213158 102,996,416
HEARK Spot liabilities (90,047,326)  (7,892,910) (48,181) (916,950) (100,675) (731,961)  (6478412) (106,216,415)
EEA Forward purchases 53,942,597 13,214,944 2,356,141 550,414 239,061 515,608 8,560,870 79,379,635
EHE Forward sales (37,07,089)  (13,231,607)  (14,142,215) (78,033) (125,740) (154,503)  (9271,267)  (74,210,454)
HIER Net option position (850) = (20,131) 6,812 22,089 315 (17,818) (9,583)
A%/ (Ji#) ¥4 Netlong/(short) position 806,890 884,917 130,038 12,732 58,085 40,406 6,531 1,939,599

BN S\ 9 R 5 ) e e e A 22 AR o SRR 0 A
B ESEE TSGR o AR AR R AL
ASGRATLE I 2 ] B EAS B (B AR SRAT) -

Foreign currency exposures include those arising from trading position. The
net option position is calculated using the delta equivalent approach. The net
structural position of the Group includes the structural positions of the Bank’s
capital investment in overseas subsidiaries (including Chinese Mercantile
Bank).

REERNEFTH=A—H > AN R
M R AR AR 10% 2 HEFAIN I SRV B 0 2 (5
MR -

There was no net structural position in a particular foreign currency which
constitutes (in absolute terms) not less than 10% of its total net structural
position in all currencies as at 31 December 2008.
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.20 OF THE
LISTING RULES

9  MRIELEWHIRIE 13.20 0 H 8 9

AR —FAE— A > AR AR K Ech T
PERATAR M 2 A PR UR SR 2 SR AR P TR gR

As at 4 January 2010, the types of Relevant Advances and the balance of the
relevant outstanding amounts due from, and all guarantees given on behalf of,

TSR MR A PR AT

the ICBC Group were as follows:

A BB Types of the Relevant Advances
T#T
HK$’000
T i B TR SRAT 4 B 2 B 5 B CR AR Trade Loan to ICBC Group outstanding 9,575,000
R 5, v 2 L P SR AT 4 L R A RS Confirmed ICBC Group Standby Letter of
CSAES ) Credit/Guarantee outstanding 7,014,000
T i B LR SRAT A I B M T g CRAEDR) Money Market Placements to ICBC Group outstanding 13,081,000
57 r B T 7 SR T 4 R R B KRR R K Syndication/Club/Revolving Short-term Loan to
HRBR A BB (R AE) ICBC Group outstanding 2,528,000
1o v I AT 4R 4% 1 =2 A R R A Total Relevant Advances to ICBC Group 32,198,000

REF—TAEZHILH > AR AR B T
PRI TAE E A B AR B R R 2 SR S AR P TR
TSR AR AT

As at 9 March 2010, the types of Relevant Advances and the balance of the

relevant outstanding amounts due from, and all guarantees given on behalf of,
the ICBC Group were as follows:

BB Types of the Relevant Advances
T#n
HK$°000
7 i B LR SRAT AR I 2 B 5 Bk (R AR Trade Loan to ICBC Group outstanding 12,341,800
R 5 o B P SR AT AR L T 4 RS Confirmed ICBC Group Standby Letter of
RS (CRAEZ) Credit/Guarantee outstanding 8,439,300
7 b B LR SR AT AR I B M T S e i CRAER) Money Market Placements to ICBC Group outstanding 17,310,000
F2 T v I L T A A P SR kR R Syndication/Club/Revolving Short-term Loan to
TRERAI LR CRAUR) ICBC Group outstanding 1,972,400
Vi vl 1 R AT 4 T 5% 1 2 A B sk A Total Relevant Advances to ICBC Group 40,063,500
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M5 bt BRI SR 13.20 R Z 45 8% )

MEERENA TR AR R
B TR SRAT SR 2 A B R R SR A R SRR
TRASRATAR MRS T AR

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.20 OF THE
LISTING RULES (continued)

As at 15 April 2010, the types of Relevant Advances and the balance of the
relevant outstanding amounts due from, and all guarantees given on behalf of,
the ICBC Group were as follows:

A BB Types of the Relevant Advances
T#T
HK$°000
T i B TR SRAT 4 B 2 B 5 B CR AR Trade Loan to ICBC Group outstanding 17,190,085
R 5, v B L P SR AT 4 I 2 A A L Confirmed ICBC Group Standby Letter of
CSAES ) Credit/Guarantee outstanding 8,924,794
7 i B LR sRAT &R I 2 B W T S5 R0 CRAER) Money Market Placements to ICBC Group outstanding 19,958,020
527 r B T SR A T A T 2 SR T Rk MR EER R Syndication/Club/Revolving Short-term Loan to
HRBR A BB (R AE) ICBC Group outstanding 1,972,400
Jife L v B I R AT R T AT 2 A Purchase of Certificates of Deposit of ICBC
(R Group outstanding 500,500
o vl 1 AT A % 2 A B Ak Total Relevant Advances to ICBC Group 48,545,799

A B B R B BT ST IR SR i B iR B B st
B A A AR E E B > RER TSRS 8
2T PR I R SR AT AR I A BAT SRAT IR SE RS S
SE o A BRI B IR B A0R - A B
R— AR E 4 R —4F REARTS TR R
MG IR, kB =) « 37 h TR sReT
G 2 A BRAEES AR AT A o

F T B TR R AT AR AT B R i AR S FAE
SUTHPIRET - A R B T 2
ASEBI % 5 RIAR 2 IE W RSV (R R AR S
B TR ARAT A M S AP AT I e S 2 — k)

The interest rates charged for the Relevant Advances mostly are floating
interest rates based on the prevailing interbank offer rate, except for some
Certificates of Deposit are priced at fixed rate; and that money market
placements whose interest rates are set by the ICBC Group and based on
the prevailing interbank bid rate. The Relevant Advances are repayable in
full at maturity, and the maturity date for the Relevant Advances generally
range from overnight to one year, or longer than one year for capital market
instruments and standby letter of credit/guarantee/certificates of deposit. The
Relevant Advances to the ICBC Group are not secured by any collateral.

The Relevant Advances to the ICBC Group were made by the Group in the
ordinary course of the Group’s banking business, and on normal commercial
terms commensurate with customers of the Group having similar credit
ratings or financial strengths, and as part of the ongoing banking transactions
entered into between the Group and the ICBC Group.
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Branch idiaries and A i
b YA HEADQUARTERS
T vl P RAL [ 3 % 33/F., ICBC Tower,
R TR ERAT K 33 1 3 Garden Road, Central,
TERG 25881188 Hong Kong
IRl SCHEEL - 2805 1166 Telephone: 2588 1188
TEafl © 73264 ICBCA HX Facsimile: 2805 1166
TRAA © A S B R 5 46 872 BE Telex: 73264 ICBCA HX
IRERERITHMES © UBHKHKHH Post Box: GPO Box 872
A4k © http://www.icbcasia.com SWIFT: UBHKHKHH
Website: http://www.icbcasia.com
AT — BRI BRANCHES - HONG KONG ISLAND
VEERAMT West Point Branch
T s T 8 R 2 5 KB 7Y 242-244 55 242-244 Queen’s Road West, Sai Ying Pun,
&G ¢ 2559 8166 Hong Kong
Telephone: 2559 8166
LB AT Sheung Wan Branch
B b IR R T 317-319 5% Shop F, G/F., Kai Tak Commercial Building,
ZS T SE SN Ntk | 317-319 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan,
T ¢ 2543 3866 Hong Kong
Telephone: 2543 3866
B RIEP 1T Queen’s Road Central Branch
%ﬁ?ﬁ*%%}ﬁjﬁﬁ F1122-126 %% 122-126 Queen’s Road Central, Central,
T nfi ¢ 2534 3333 Hong Kong
Telephone: 2534 3333
HERMT i Central Branch
U R KRB 991 A 1/F., 9 Queen’s Road Central,
T nfi ¢ 2840 5840 Hong Kong

Telephone: 2840 5840

BB AT Caine Road Branch

= o
vk BR7E 22 R BRI G/F., Caine Building, 22 Caine Road,
Ak ¢ 2526 6278 Hong Kong

Telephone: 2526 6278
WA AT Wanchai Branch
AT JE RF4E 117-123 58 117-123 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
A ¢ 2527 3711 Hong Kong

Telephone: 2527 3711

WA ST Wanchai Road Branch
TR (T4 103-103A SR T G/F., 103-103A Wan Chai Road,
A ¢ 2259 7800 Hong Kong
Telephone: 2259 7800
R AT Hennessy Road Branch
B VB S BT JE A 468 HE Shop 2A, G/F. & Basement, Cameron Commercial Centre,
SERSE O 2A 955 468 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay,
A ¢ 28346148 Hong Kong

Telephone: 2834 6148
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Branches. Subsidiari { Associ

T i LS Hh e 23 9%
FEHh 1 2575 5720

AT
FrlFW O —HH T 7A &
TERG ¢ 2518 5000

SIS 17
%‘a%fﬂ% I e 7 50 BRI ) HR 0 A B
FE5G 1 2504 5888

BRENT
Fr i B RE 113-115 5%
TEnh ¢ 25700388

WG R 1T

B s b ) B SR 233 5%
T O R 23 B
TERG ¢ 2887 3811

b 347 A
Fr b £ e 23 436-438 HEH
TERG 2503 2993

i £ 404 T )
T T B fEUTR 2K 29 1036-1040 HEHL N
TERG 2563 8724

(CE: Vg
TG HEEE 19598
TERG ¢ 2568 5730

AT — JUBE IR

RIDWLH 54T
JUBE SR U H % A 7 39 5%
BB KU B &

TERG 3510 1000

RIPI ST ‘
hﬁ‘%%{)ﬂﬂéu 35-37 HEHL T 1-2 955
TERG ¢ 2369 5329

VAT
JURE Ve BB S0 233 SR 1 748
TERG ¢ 2376 1822

WA AT
JUHEH it b 3 0 542 5%
Erh ¢ 2771 6060

Happy Valley Branch

23 King Kwong Street, Happy Valley,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2575 5720

Aberdeen Branch

Shop 7A, G/F., Site 1, Aberdeen Centre,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2518 5000

Causeway Bay Branch

Shop A, G/F., Jardine Center,

50 Jardine’s Bazaar, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2504 5888

Electric Road Branch
113-115 Electric Road, Tin Hau, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2570 0388

City Garden Branch

Shop Unit 23, G/F., Maximall, City Garden,
233 Electric Road, North Point,

Hong Kong

Telephone: 2887 3811

North Point Branch

G/F., 436-438 King’s Road, North Point,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2503 2993

Quarry Bay Branch

G/F., 1036-1040 King’s Road, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2563 8724

Shau Kei Wan Branch
195 Shau Kei Wan Road,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2568 5730

BRANCHES - KOWLOON

Tsimshatsui East Branch

Shop B, G/F., Railway Plaza,

39 Chatham Road South, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon

Telephone: 3510 1000

Tsim Sha Tsui Branch

Shop 1-2, G/F., 35-37 Hankow Road, Tsimshatsui,

Kowloon
Telephone: 2369 5329

Jordan Branch

1/F., JD Mall, No. 233 Nathan Road, Jordan,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2376 1822

Yaumatei Branch

542 Nathan Road, Yaumatei,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2771 6060
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Branches. Subsidiari { Associ

HE £4 2347
JUBERE f£ 380 721-725 5%
e LU ERAT R T

TERE 1 2309 7700

NTFI34T
JURENTE £ 5/ 2808 777 9%
TEG 2380 3008

I\ )
JURETR /K I 7 4% £ 48 290 55 T
TERh ¢ 27255133

IR F AT
JUREZ B R 1D ¥ 7 833 9
RV Goe &
TERG 2741 8787

KTFT
JURESEZ M
IR R — MEN9SA il
TERG ¢ 2266 4600

B RMT
JUBE Al 32 FH 2% 1R 7 F18-F19 9 il
TEah ¢ 2713 9261

AL AT

JUREAL M 18 B i 2-34E 55
AL PRI HL S 2A B
TERG ¢ 2627 7168

KBTS 4T
JURE T A R 12-14 9%
TEEG ¢ 2714 5151

Bl 44T
JUBE B i ) B 7 17 3-23 9%
L F5 1 35 G105 i

TR 1 2325 5387

WARANT
JUBE B KA IE 24T 103 95
BRI A — 18 128 B
TERh ¢ 2726 6966

ABH A 54T

JUREA- B A 77 9%

T R 3545 — AT 211-214 954k
TERG 2260 9688
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Mongkok Branch

G/F., Belgian Bank Building,
721-725 Nathan Road, Mongkok,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2309 7700

Prince Edward Branch
777 Nathan Road, Mongkok,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2380 3008

Shamshuipo Branch

G/F., 290 Lai Chi Kok Road, Shamshuipo,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2725 5133

Lai Chi Kok Branch

Shop G06, G/F., Cheung Sha Wan Plaza,
833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Lai Chi Kok,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2741 8787

Mei Foo Branch

Shop N95A, 1/F., Mount Sterling Mall,
Mei Foo Sun Chuen,

Kowloon

Telephone: 2266 4600

Oi Man Branch

Shop F18 & F19, Oi Man Commercial Complex,

Oi Man Estate, Homantin,
Kowloon
Telephone: 2713 9261

Hung Hom Branch

Shop 2A, G/F., Hung Hom Shopping Mall,
2-34E Tak Man Street, Hung Hom,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2627 7168

Mok Cheong Street Branch

12-14 Mok Cheong Street, Tokwawan,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2714 5151

San Po Kong Branch

Shop G10, Yue Xiu Plaza,

3-23 Ning Yuen Street, San Po Kong,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2325 5387

Wong Tai Sin Branch

Shop 128, Level One, Wong Tai Sin Plaza,
103 Ching Tak Street, Wong Tai Sin,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2726 6966

Ngau Tau Kok Branch

Shop Nos. G211-214, G/F., Phase II,
Amoy Plaza, 77 Ngau Tau Kok Road,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2260 9688
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Branches. Subsidiari { Associ

JUHEHELE FE 2R3 58 9

TR ¢ 2797 2683

BT
JUREHBLYE PR E 79 9%

fih fe bl 0o —H8 5 SR 6 5 B
TERG 23420103

AT — B 5t I

A BT
TS LIRS % 8 5%

AR I R0 2 B 35 2 1 2011-2012 B A

TERE ¢ 3194 3382

FTAT
A2 55 2 T
T C63A-C66 Bl
TERG 2485 8000

ST

AT A EL A T 63 E
T L A R GO2

TERG 24209288

22 1 A BT
TR 1138 423-427 YR R
TERG ¢ 24920167

VWIHE 1T
TR A VDI 2 297-313 5%
UK 4555

TERG ¢ 2439 9278

217
AT P K G 6 18 5F

Fﬂ%l¥#ﬂi*ﬂlﬂﬁ%jﬂ‘§217%uA—F
TERG 2466 8161

S

KELT
B A P R BB P 5 21-23 S
TERE 1 2462 2400

JLHIS AT
AT 138 197-199 55 HL T
TERG ¢ 2442 5005

KNAGAT
SR RN P 5 2 A8 216 5 A
TERG ¢ 2650 2986

Hong Ning Road Branch

58 Hong Ning Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon

Telephone: 2797 2683

Kwun Tong Branch

Shop 5 & 6, 1/F, Crocodile Center,
79 Hoi Yuen Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2342 0103

BRANCHES - NEW TERRITORIES

Tseung Kwan O Branch

Shop Nos. 2011-2012, Level 2, Metro City, Plaza II,

8 Yan King Road, Tseung Kwan O,
New Territories
Telephone: 3194 3382

Kwai Fong Branch

C63A-C66, 2F., Kwai Chung Plaza, Kwai Fong,

New Territories
Telephone: 2485 8000

Kwai Chung Branch

Unit G02, Tower A, Regent Centre,
63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories

Telephone: 2420 9288

Tsuen Wan Castle Peak Road Branch
G/F., 423-427 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan,

New Territories
Telephone: 2492 0167

Sha Tsui Road Branch

Shop 4, G/F., Chung On Building,
297-313 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories

Telephone: 2439 9278

Tuen Mun Branch
217 A-F Central Services Building,

Nan Fung Industrial City, 18 Tin Hau Road, Tuen Mun,

New Territories
Telephone: 2466 8161

Tai Hing Branch

Shop 21-23 Tai Hing Commercial Complex,

Tai Hing Estate, Tuen Mun,
New Territories
Telephone: 2462 2400

Yuen Long Branch

G/F., 197-199 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long,

New Territories
Telephone: 2442 5005

Tai Wo Branch

Shop 216, 2/F., Tai Wo Shopping Centre,

Tai Wo Estate, Tai Po,
New Territories
Telephone: 2650 2986
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Branches. Subsidiari { Associ

K47
AR IR 4 B 34 538 5%
FEEREHL N F i

TERE ¢ 26383199

YW H T
D s 348 207 A
TERG ¢ 2693 3330

o AT
EELid=pi xR

P.O. Box 1034

4/F, Harbour Place,

103 South Church Street
Grand Cayman KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

FoF g 2 ]

P ERAT

AR A A IR A
TERAEINEEH FRA A
AR B Y43 A A PR 7
L8R A Y 43 A A PR )
TAREEACHEA A FRA A
AR AR PR H
LEREEIETERRRA A
ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited
ICBCA (C.I.) Limited

RN v 1B S A B R A

A=
ik =g/

IEC Investments Limited
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Tai Po Branch

Shop F, G/F, Mee Fat Building,
No. 34-38 Tai Wing Lane, Tai Po,
New Territories

Telephone: 2638 3199

Shatin Branch

Shop 22J, Level 3, Shatin Centre,
New Territories

Telephone: 2693 3330

OVERSEAS BRANCH

Cayman Islands Branch
P.O. Box 1034

4/F, Harbour Place,

103 South Church Street
Grand Cayman KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

SUBSIDIARIES

Chinese Mercantile Bank

ICBC (Asia) Asset Management Company Limited
ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited

ICBC (Asia) Investment Holdings Limited

ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited
ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited

ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited

ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited

ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited

ICBCA (C.L) Limited

UB China Business Management Co. Ltd.

~~ A~~~

ASSOCIATES

IEC Investments Limited
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

A v BRAG R0 3 9% v I R SR AT R 33

33/E ICBC Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong
i Tel (852) 2588 1188

{4 Fax (852) 2805 1166

AHHE Website  http://www.icbcasia.com
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